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FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report on Form 10-K (the “Report”) contains “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the
“Securities Act”), and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), adopted pursuant to the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act
of 1995. Forward-looking statements are based upon our good faith assumptions, expectations and beliefs concerning future developments and their potential effect on our
business. In some cases, you can identify forward-looking statements by the following words: “may,” “will,” “could,” “would,” “should,” “expect,” “intends,” “plans,”
“strategy,” “prospects,” “anticipate,” “believe,” “approximately,” “estimate,” “predict,” “project,” “potential,” “continue,” “ongoing,” or the negative of these terms or other
words of similar meaning in connection with a discussion of future events or future operating or financial performance, although the absence of these words does not
necessarily mean that a statement is not forward-looking. This information may involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors which may cause actual
events or our actual results, performance or achievements to be materially different from the future events, results, performance or achievements expressed or implied by any
forward-looking statements. There can be no assurance that future events, results, performance or achievements will be in accordance with our expectations or that the effect of
future events, results, performance or achievements will be those anticipated by us.
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Factors and risks that may cause actual events, results, performance or achievements to differ from these forward-looking statements include, but are not limited to, for
example:

Risks Related to Our Operations

our short operating history making it difficult to predict future results;

our history of losses in prior periods and our inability to become profitable in the future;

our ability to protect our proprietary rights;

assertions of infringements of proprietary rights by us;

competition resulting from Medicine Man Denver (as defined below) authorizing others to use the same proprietary processes we have a right to under the License
Agreement (as defined below);

our ability to compete effectively;

current and future litigation;

lack of available capital to execute our growth strategy;

our ability to service and repay our indebtedness and risks related to default under our indebtedness;

conflicts of interest involving our officers or directors;

our executive officers devoting time to business ventures unrelated to the Company;

our dependence on hiring and retaining qualified management and personnel;

exposure to new or increased risks as a result of expansion into new jurisdictions;

our inability to successfully identify and consummate future acquisitions or dispositions and realize benefits therefrom;
costs associated with failed acquisitions and adverse effects on subsequent attempts to identify and consummate other acquisitions;
exposure to new or increased risks as a result of acquisitions;

economic conditions in the Unites States and the jurisdictions in which we operate;

reductions or changes in consumer spending;

consumer acceptance of cannabis products;

product liability claims from injury suffered from our products;

our ability to obtain and maintain required licenses;

our failure to maintain adequate internal controls;

cyber attacks, privacy breaches and other information technology risks;

unforeseen or catastrophic events;

inadequate insurance coverage to cover risk exposures;

the COVID-19 pandemic;

inaccurate assumptions or judgements used in preparing financial statements; and

impairment of goodwill or other intangible assets.




Risks Related to Our Industry

the manufacturing (cultivation) and sale of cannabis is illegal under federal law;

our dependence on state law to conduct our business;

compliance with federal, state and local laws in the jurisdictions we operate;

uncertainty in the application of federal, state and local laws to our business;

future changes in federal, state and local laws and difficulty or inability to implement or comply with them;
unsafe concentration of heavy metals and other contaminants in our products;

risks related to agricultural processes;

our inability to source raw materials for our products;

uncertainty regarding the benefits, viability, safety, efficacy, dosing and social acceptance of cannabis;
uncertainty related to the regulation of vaporization products and related regulatory compliance burdens;
the lack of scientific studies of the long-term health effects of the use of vaporization products;

our ability to succeed as a relatively new player in a relative new industry;

negative publicity related to the cannabis industry or our brands or business;

our inability to deduct all of our business expenses;

changes in tax and accounting requirement and difficulty or inability to implement or comply with them;
opposition to the cannabis industry from other industries;

our ability to comply with laws regulating money laundering, record keeping and proceeds of crimes; and
our inability to protect our intellectual property or seek bankruptcy protection as a result of being in the cannabis industry.

Risks Related to Our Common Stock and Preferred Stock

dilution as a result of future issuance of shares of Common Stock and other securities;

the low trading volume of our Common Stock and potential future lack of a trading market for our Common Stock;

fluctuation in and volatility of the market price of our Common Stock;

limits of a stockholders’ ability to buy and sell Common Stock as a result of Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (“FINRA”) sales practice requirements;
variations in our future financial results and its impact on the market price of our Common Stock;

our Series A Preferred Stock, par value $0.001 per share (the “Preferred Stock™), our right to issue additional preferred stock, our classified Board of Directors and
provisions of our Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws (as defined below) may delay or prevent a take-over that may not be in the best interests of our stockholders;
the significant influence our management and principal stockholders have on matters requiring a stockholder vote;

strains on our resources, diversion of management’s attention and our ability to attract and retain executive management and qualified board members as a result of
being a public company;

the possibility that our Common stock and other securities are less attractive to investors as a result of being a “smaller reporting company;”

our lack of experience operating as a public reporting company;

our history of not paying dividend and not expecting to pay any dividends on our Common Stock for the foreseeable future;

decreases in the value of the Preferred Stock as a result of a decrease in the value of our Common stock;

We discuss these risks and factors that could cause actual events, results, performance or achievements to differ materially from our expectations in more detail under “Item 1.
Business”, “Item 1A. Risk Factors”, “Item 3. Legal Proceedings” and “Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Operations”.
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Although we believe that our plans, intentions and expectations reflected in or suggested by the forward-looking statements in this Report are reasonable, we cannot assure
stockholders and potential investors that these plans, intentions or expectations will be achieved. These cautionary statements qualify all forward-looking statements attributable
to us or persons acting on our behalf.

These forward-looking statements represent our intentions, plans, expectations, assumptions and beliefs about future events and are subject to risks, uncertainties and other
factors. Many of those factors are outside of our control and could cause actual results to differ materially from the results expressed or implied by those forward-looking
statements. Considering these risks, uncertainties and assumptions, the events described in the forward-looking statements might not occur or might occur to a different extent
or at a different time than we have described. You are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements. All subsequent written and oral forward-
looking statements concerning other matters addressed in this Report and attributable to us or any person acting on our behalf are expressly qualified in their entirety by the
cautionary statements contained or referred to in this Report.

All forward-looking statements speak only as of the date of this Report. Except to the extent required by law, we undertake no obligation to update or revise any forward-

looking statements, whether because of new information, future events, a change in events, conditions, circumstances or assumptions underlying such statements, or otherwise.
Stockholders and potential investors should not place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements.

iv




PART I
ITEM 1. BUSINESS.

HisTory

Medicine Man Technologies, Inc. (“we,” “us,” “our” or the “Company”) was incorporated in Nevada on March 20, 2014. On May 1, 2014, we entered into a non-exclusive
Technology License Agreement with Futurevision, Inc., f/k/a Medicine Man Production Corp., dba Medicine Man Denver (“Medicine Man Denver”) pursuant to which
Medicine Man Denver granted us a license to use all of the proprietary processes that they had developed, implemented and practiced at their cannabis facilities relating to the
commercial growth, cultivation, marketing and distribution of medical and recreational marijuana pursuant to relevant state laws and the right to use and to license such
information, including trade secrets, skills and experience (present and future) (the “License Agreement”) for 10 years.

In 2017, the Company acquired additional cultivation intellectual property through the acquisition of Success Nutrients™ and Pono Publications, including the rights to the
book titled “Three A Light” and its associated cultivation techniques, which have been part of the Company’s products and services offerings since the acquisition. The
Company acquired Two J’s LLC d/b/a The Big Tomato (“Big T or The Big Tomato”) in 2018, which operates a retail location in Aurora, Colorado. It has been a leading
supplier of hydroponics and indoor gardening supplies in the metro Denver area since May 2001. The Company was focused on cannabis dispensary and cultivation consulting
and providing equipment and nutrients to cannabis cultivators until its first plant touching acquisition in April of 2020. In 2019, due to the changes in Colorado law permitting
non-Colorado resident and publicly traded investment into “plant-touching” cannabis companies, the Company made a strategic decision to move toward direct plant-touching
operations. The Company developed a plan to roll up a number of direct plant-touching dispensaries, manufacturing facilities, and cannabis cultivations with a target to be one
of the largest seed to sale cannabis businesses in Colorado. In April 2020, the Company acquired its first plant-touching business, Mesa Organics Ltd. (“Mesa Organics”),
which consists of four dispensaries and one manufacturing infused products facility (“MIP”), d/b/a Purplebee’s.

On April 20, 2020, the Company rebranded and conducts its business under the trade name, Schwazze. The corporate name of the Company continues to be Medicine Man
Technologies, Inc. Effective April 21, 2020, the Company commenced trading under the OTC ticker symbol SHWZ.

On December 17, 2020, the Company closed on the acquisition of (i) Starbuds Pueblo LLC; and (ii) Starbuds Alameda LLC. On December 18, 2020, the Company closed on
the acquisition of (i) Starbuds Commerce City LLC; (ii) Lucky Ticket LLC; (iii) Starbuds Niwot LLC; and (iv) LM MJC LLC under the applicable APAs.

On February 4, 2021, the Company acquired the assets of Colorado Health Consultants LLC and Mountain View 44th LLC under the applicable APAs.

On March 2, 2021, the Company acquired the assets of (i) Starbuds Aurora LLC, (ii) SB Arapahoe LLC, (iii) Citi-Med LLC, (iv) Starbuds Louisville LLC and (v) KEW LLC
under the applicable APAs.

From December 2020 through March 2021 the Company completed a private placement of Series A Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock (“Preferred Stock™) for aggregate
gross proceeds of $57.7 million dollars. In the private placement, the Company issued and sold an aggregate of 57,700 shares of Preferred Stock at a price of $1,000 per share
under securities purchase agreement with Dye Capital and CRW managed funds as well as subscription agreements with unaffiliated investors. Among other terms, each share
of Preferred Stock (i) earns an annual dividend of 8% on the “preference amount,” which initially is equal to the $1,000 per-share purchase price and subject to increase, by
having such dividends automatically accrete to, and increase, the outstanding preference amount; (ii) is entitled to a liquidation preference under certain circumstances, (iii) is
convertible into shares of the Company’s Common Stock by dividing the preference amount by $1.20 per share under certain circumstances, and (iv) is subject to a redemption
right or obligation under certain circumstances.

In addition, on December 16, 2020, the Company issued and sold a Convertible Promissory Note and Security Agreement in the original principal amount of $5,000,000 to Dye
Capital & Company, LLC. On February 26, 2021, Dye Capital & Company, LLC converted all outstanding amounts under the note into 5,060 shares of Preferred Stock.

The Company is focused on growing through internal growth, acquisition, and new licenses in the Colorado cannabis market. The Company is focused on building the premier
vertically integrated cannabis company in Colorado. The company's leadership team has deep expertise in mainstream consumer packaged goods, retail, and product
development at Fortune 500 companies as well as in the cannabis sector. The Company has a high-performance culture and a focus on analytical decision making, supported by
data. Customer-centric thinking inspires the Company’s strategy and provides the foundation for the Company’s operational playbooks.




OUR CURRENT BUSINESS GROUPINGS
GROUP 1 - Products — This group currently includes our Success Nutrient, Big Tomato, Purplebee’s, and Retail dispensaries.
Success Nutrients

Success Nutrients was incorporated in Colorado on May 5, 2015. Since inception it has been engaged in the manufacturing and wholesale and retail distribution of nine
different plant nutrients for cannabis, each of which comes in three separate sizes and which has been primarily marketed to the cannabis industry, more specifically, cultivation
experts and other growers in the cannabis industry.

The Big Tomato Hydroponics Retail

Two JS LLC, dba The Big Tomato operates a retail location in Aurora, Colorado. It has been a leading supplier of hydroponics and indoor gardening supplies in the metro
Denver area since May 2001. It has established a reputation as a store that is fully stocked, has great pricing, and has a very knowledgeable staff. It has continued to provide
thousands of indoor gardeners and commercial growers with top quality hydroponic supplies at the best prices. The store maintains an extremely large inventory of hydroponic
and gardening supplies. The Big Tomato’s website, TheBigTomato.com was created for the discriminating indoor gardener who is looking for reliable gardening help and
customer service while at the same time enjoying great savings on the products they want to purchase. The website is supported by the Company’s brick-and-mortar store
located in Aurora, Colorado. Every sales staff member is an experienced grower that is trained to service customers and answer any questions. Products include indoor
gardening products, grow boxes, grow lights, hydroponic systems, ballasts, bulbs, nutrients and additives, and other high-end hydroponic items.

Purplebee’s

Purplebee’s is our pure CO2 and ethanol extraction and manufacturing facility in Pueblo, Colorado. It produces cannabis products used in some of the leading edible products
across the state. Purplebee’s also produces high-quality vape cartridges and syringes. The Company purchases cannabis biomass, and trim from a large variety of cultivators in
Colorado.

Dispensaries

As of the end of 2020, the Company had ten retail cannabis dispensaries under two banner names, Mesa Organics and Star Buds, in the greater Denver area and southeastern
Colorado. As of March 3, 2021, the Company had 17 retail cannabis dispensaries. Our dispensaries sell a wide variety of cannabis products directly to tens of thousands of
consumers. These products include loose flower, concentrates, edibles, pre-rolls, topicals, and other associated cannabis products produced by a large variety of cannabis
vendors in the state.

GROUP 2 —Consulting and Licensing Services

In prior years, we generated revenues from our consulting activities as well as seminars we conducted for prospective clients interested in entering the cannabis industry.
During 2016, we began to limit these seminars and devote our resources to what we consider to be higher upside activities, including private consultation services and related
matters. We expect these services to augment our existing seminar offerings and over time replace most of our local seminar offerings. The company offers private consulting
services, seminars on various cannabis topics, facility design, and new state licensing application support. The Company reserves the right to modify, offer new, delete, or
otherwise change any of the elements without further notice.

GROUP 3 — Corporate Infrastructure and Other

This area represents the new resources that have been added to the company in anticipation of various acquisition transactions and corporate related costs, as well as any
revenues from non-traditional sources.




MARKETING
We conduct our marketing efforts through web presence, loyalty programs, and promotions.

We are members of various industry groups and attend industry-based conferences which are helpful to advancing our brand and skill sets. We have also created a database of
marketing collateral materials and resources. We will continue to market our licensing and related services through direct referrals from satisfied licensees or past clients,
various web presence advertising options utilizing specific industry related web sites and Google ad words and additional measures we may choose to deploy from time to time.
We also continue to coalesce interest and a presence within the industry through participation in various events and through direct promotion.

We continue to enhance our web presence (http://www.schwazze.com), including providing updates to our home page, and links to our SEC reports (through OTC Markets,
Inc.) and industry partners.

In our retail spaces we promote products through our loyalty program and through product promotions.
GOVERNMENT REGULATIONS

Below is a discussion of the federal and state-level U.S. regulatory regimes in those jurisdictions where we are currently directly involved, through our subsidiaries, in the
cannabis industry. The Company is directly engaged in the manufacture, possession, sale, and distribution of cannabis in the adult-use cannabis marketplace in the State of
Colorado.

The United States federal government regulates drugs in large part through the Controlled Substances Act, or CSA. Marijuana, which is a form of cannabis, is classified as a
Schedule I controlled substance. As a Schedule I controlled substance, the federal Drug Enforcement Agency, or DEA, considers marijuana to have a high potential for abuse;
no currently accepted medical use in treatment in the United States; and a lack of accepted safety for use of the drug under medical supervision. According to the U.S. federal
government, cannabis having a concentration of tetrahydrocannabinol, or THC, greater than 0.3% is marijuana. Cannabis with a THC content below 0.3% is classified as hemp.

The scheduling of marijuana as a Schedule I controlled substance is inconsistent with what we believe to be widely accepted medical and recreational uses for marijuana by
physicians, researchers, patients, and consumers. Moreover, as of February 4, 2021 and despite the clear conflict with U.S. federal law, at least 36 states and the District of
Columbia have legalized marijuana for medical use, although Mississippi’s medical cannabis legalization measure is under challenge. Fifteen of those states and the District of
Columbia have legalized the adult-use of cannabis for recreational purposes, although South Dakota’s adult-use measure is subject to potential challenge. In November 2020,
voters in Arizona, Montana, New Jersey, and South Dakota voted by referendum to legalize marijuana for adult use, and voters in Mississippi and South Dakota voted to
legalized marijuana for medical use.

Unlike in Canada, which uniformly regulates the cultivation, distribution, sale, and possession of marijuana at the federal level under the Cannabis Act (Canada), marijuana is
largely regulated at the state level in the United States. State laws regulating marijuana are in conflict with the CSA, which makes marijuana use and possession federally
illegal. Although certain states and territories of the United States authorize medical or adult-use marijuana production and distribution by licensed or registered entities, under
United States federal law, the possession, use, cultivation, and transfer of marijuana and any related drug paraphernalia is illegal. Although our activities are compliant with the
applicable state and local laws in Colorado, strict compliance with state and local laws with respect to cannabis may neither absolve us of liability under United States federal
law nor provide a defense to any federal criminal action that may be brought against us. In 2013, as more and more states began to legalize medical and/or adult-use marijuana,
the federal government attempted to provide clarity on the incongruity between federal law and these state-legal regulatory frameworks.

Until 2018, the federal government provided guidance to federal agencies and banking institutions through a series of Department of Justice memoranda. The most notable of
this guidance came in the form of a memorandum issued by former U.S. Deputy Attorney General James Cole on August 29, 2013, which we refer to as the Cole
Memorandum. The Cole Memorandum offered guidance to federal agencies on how to prioritize civil enforcement, criminal investigations and prosecutions regarding
marijuana in all states and quickly set a standard for marijuana-related businesses to comply with. The Cole Memorandum put forth eight prosecution priorities:




. Preventing the distribution of marijuana to minors;

. Preventing revenue from the sale of marijuana from going to criminal enterprises, gangs and cartels;

. Preventing the diversion of marijuana from states where it is legal under state law in some form to other states;

. Preventing the state-authorized marijuana activity from being used as a cover or pretext for the trafficking of other illegal drugs or other illegal activity;

. Preventing violence and the use of firearms in the cultivation and distribution of marijuana;

. Preventing drugged driving and the exacerbation of other adverse public health consequences associated with marijuana use;

. Preventing the growing of marijuana on public lands and the attendant public safety and environmental dangers posed by marijuana production on public lands; and
. Preventing marijuana possession or use on federal property.
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On January 4, 2018, former U.S. Attorney General Sessions rescinded the Cole Memorandum by issuing a new memorandum to all United States Attorneys, which we refer to
as the Sessions Memo. Rather than establishing national enforcement priorities particular to marijuana-related crimes in jurisdictions where certain marijuana activity was legal
under state law, the Sessions Memo simply rescinded the Cole Memorandum and instructed that “[i]n deciding which marijuana activities to prosecute... with the [DOJ’s] finite
resources, prosecutors should follow the well-established principles that govern all federal prosecutions.” Namely, these include the seriousness of the offense, history of
criminal activity, deterrent effect of prosecution, the interests of victims, and other principles.”

On January 21, 2021, Joseph R. Biden, Jr. was sworn in as President of the United States. President Biden’s Attorney General, Merrick Garland, was confirmed by the United
States Senate on March 10, 2021. It is not yet known whether the Department of Justice under President Biden and Attorney General Garland, will re-adopt the Cole
Memorandum or announce a substantive marijuana enforcement policy. Attorney General Garland indicated at a confirmation hearing before the United States Senate that it did
not seem to him to be a useful use of limited resources to pursue prosecutions in states that have legalized and that are regulating the use of marijuana, either medically or
otherwise.

Nonetheless, there is no guarantee that state laws legalizing and regulating the sale and use of marijuana will not be repealed or overturned, or that local governmental
authorities will not limit the applicability of state laws within their respective jurisdictions. Unless and until the United States Congress amends the CSA with respect to
marijuana (and as to the timing or scope of any such potential amendments there can be no assurance), there is a risk that federal authorities may enforce current U.S. federal
law. Currently, in the absence of uniform federal guidance, as had been established by the Cole memorandum, enforcement priorities are determined by respective United States
Attorneys.

As an industry best practice, despite the rescission of the Cole Memorandum, we abide by the following standard operating policies and procedures, which are designed to
ensure compliance with the guidance provided by the Cole Memorandum:

1. Continuously monitor our operations for compliance with all licensing requirements as established by the applicable state, county, municipality, town, township,
borough, and other political/administrative divisions;

2. Ensure that our cannabis related activities adhere to the scope of the licensing obtained;

3. Implement policies and procedures to prevent the distribution of our cannabis products to minors;

4. Implement policies and procedures in place to avoid the distribution of the proceeds from our operations to criminal enterprises, gangs or cartels;

5. Implement an inventory tracking system and necessary procedures to reliably track inventory and prevent the diversion of cannabis or cannabis products into those
states where cannabis is not permitted by state law,

or across any state lines in general;

6. Monitor the operations at our facilities so that our state-authorized cannabis business activity is not used as a cover or pretense for trafficking of other illegal drugs
or engaging in any other illegal activity; and

7. Implement quality controls so that our products comply with applicable regulations and contain necessary disclaimers about the contents of the products to avoid
adverse public health consequences from cannabis use and discourage impaired driving.




In order to participate in either the medical or recreational sides of the marijuana industry in Colorado and elsewhere, all businesses and employees must obtain badges and
licenses from the state and, for businesses, local jurisdictions. Colorado issues six types of business licenses including cultivation, manufacturing, dispensing, transport,
research license and testing. In addition, all owners and employees must obtain an occupational license to be permitted to own or work in a facility. All applicants for licenses
undergo a background investigation, including a criminal record check for all owners and employees.

Colorado has also enacted stringent regulations governing the facilities and operations of marijuana businesses. All facilities are required to be licensed by the state and local
authorities and are subject to comprehensive security and surveillance requirements. In addition, each facility is subject to extensive regulations that govern its businesses
practices, which includes mandatory seed-to-sale tracking and reporting, health and sanitary standards, packaging and labeling requirements and product testing for potency and
contaminants.

Laws and regulations affecting the adult-use marijuana industry are constantly changing, which could detrimentally affect our proposed operations. Local, state, and federal
adult-use marijuana laws and regulations are broad in scope and subject to evolving interpretations, which could require us to incur substantial costs associated with compliance
or alter our business plan. In addition, violations of these laws, or allegations of such violations, could disrupt our business and result in a material adverse effect on our
operations. It is also possible that regulations may be enacted in the future that will be directly applicable to our business. These ever-changing regulations could even affect
federal tax policies that may make it difficult to claim tax deductions on our returns. We cannot predict the nature of any future laws, regulations, interpretations, or
applications, nor can we determine what effect additional governmental regulations or administrative policies and procedures, when and if promulgated, could have on our
business.

EMPLOYEES

As of the date of this Report, we employ 244 full time and 27 part time employees and several specialty contractors providing support for various elements including retail sales
in cannabis dispensaries, wholesale sales for our cannabis and non-cannabis products, manufacturing, cultivation, and general corporate.

None of our employees are represented by a labor union or a collective bargaining agreement. We consider our relations with our employees to be good.
COMPETITION

As we have expanded our business to cannabis cultivation, manufacturing and retail the number of competitors has increase. There are many competitors in each of these areas
in Colorado and throughout the United States. We currently operate in Colorado. At the beginning of 2020 there were 572 retail dispensaries and 438 licensed medical
marijuana stores in Colorado.

The Company and its subsidiaries will compete with a variety of different operators across the states in which it will operate. In the majority of such states, there are specific
license caps that create high barriers to entry. However, in some markets, such as Colorado, there are few caps on licenses creating a more open marketplace. Our most direct
competitors within Colorado include a number of operators such as The Green Solution ("TGS"), Native Roots, Green Dragon and LiveWell. The Company also views
operators that have vertical operations outside of Colorado as potential strategic competitors related to our growth strategy, including Green Thumb Industries, Inc., iAnthus
Capital Holdings, Inc., Acreage Holdings, Inc., and Curaleaf Holdings, Inc. Like the Company, these companies can realize centralized synergies to produce higher margins. In
addition to operators, we also have a number of manufacturing competitors, including Columbia Care Inc., Craft Concentrates, WHT LBL Cannabis, Colorado Cannabis
Company, and Spherex Inc.

Additionally, the Company competes with the unregulated black and grey markets. As the regulatory environment continues to be formalized and enforced, management
believes there will be a major reduction of these operators.

Related to our Consulting and Licensing Services, we currently face competition from an increasing number of consulting service providers in the cannabis industry. There are
at least twenty such consulting service providers in the market, not including law firms and other professional entities. We continually conduct competitive analysis, monitor
their progress and presence in the industry while we work to maintain a leading position in the industry.




TRADEMARKS - TRADENAMES

We rely upon our various trademarks, trade names and intellectual property and will, in the future and as appropriate, develop such elements as we may determine valuable to
our business. We also acknowledge that certain protections normally available to us related to design or other utility patents in the cannabis industry would not currently be
enforceable under federal law. We attempt to protect our intellectual property via the deployment of non-disclosure agreements with both prospects and licensees. There are no
assurances that these non-disclosure agreements will prevent a third party from infringing upon our rights.

The Company utilizes a combination of copyright, trade secret laws and confidentiality agreements to protect its proprietary intellectual property. We intend to aggressively
register for patent protection if and when the federal government eliminates the cannabis prohibition. Intellectual property counsel has advised that any effort to register a patent
relating to the cultivation of marijuana would currently be unsuccessful. (See Item 3).

INDUSTRY ANALYSIS

Nationally, the marijuana industry has continued to gain ground through the addition of many states and their passing of medical and or recreational provisions for the use of
cannabis. While there certainly appears to be a trend towards acceptance of cannabis, there are no assurances offered that this business will be able to sustain itself over time if
the Federal Government changes its current position related to state legalized operations.

As of February 4, 2021 at least 36 states and the District of Columbia have legalized marijuana for medical use, although Mississippi’s medical cannabis legalization measure is
under challenge. Fifteen of those states and the District of Columbia have legalized the adult-use of cannabis for recreational purposes, although South Dakota’s adult-use
measure is subject to potential challenge. In November 2020, voters in Arizona, Montana, New Jersey, and South Dakota voted by referendum to legalize marijuana for adult
use, and voters in Mississippi and South Dakota voted to legalized marijuana for medical use.

While there have been many observations and prognostications relative to the recent elections, there has been no specific laws passed by the federal government to change the
federal prohibition of marijuana.

Colorado has continued to set new sales growth-related records, generating about $2.22 billion in gross sales in FY 2020; up from the $1.79 billion recorded in FY 2019 noting
many of those sales were related to adult use and the robust tourist industry. It is noteworthy that these record sales occurred in a marketplace during lower tourism and
COVID-19.

While no assurances can be provided, we believe that over the next three to five years there will be many additional states adopting various types of cannabis legislation
(medical and/or adult use) and if this happens, we believe that there will occur a certain tipping point by which the Federal Government will have to take some sort of stand on
the legal status of cannabis. We also believe that due to the strong growth in the industry as a whole at the state level, the Federal Government will eventually de-schedule
cannabis, similar to the alcoholic beverage prohibition repeal in the mid 1930’s, and as motivated by its citizenry, decriminalize cannabis and regulate it under the auspices of
some existing or newly formed agency.

Our Website

Our principal executive offices are located at 4880 Havana St. Suite 201, Denver, CO 80239 and the Company’s telephone number is 303-371-0387. Our website address
is www.schwazze.com. Information found on our website or any other website referenced in this Report is not incorporated into this Report and does not constitute a part of this
Report. Website addresses referenced in this Report are intended to be inactive textual reference only and not active hyperlinks to the referenced websites. We make available
free of charge through our website our Securities and Exchange Commission, or SEC, filings furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange Act as soon as
reasonably practicable after we electronically file such material with, or furnish it to, the SEC.




ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

There are a number of risk factors affecting the Company, its business and holders of Common Stock or Preferred Stock. The risks and uncertainties described herein are not
the only ones the Company faces. Additional risks and uncertainties, including those that the Company does not know about now or that it currently deems immaterial, may
also adversely affect the Company s business. If any of the following risks actually occur, the Company's business may be harmed and its financial condition and results of
operations may suffer significantly.

Risks Related to our Operations
We have a relatively short operating history.

We have a relatively short operating history, which makes it difficult to evaluate our business and future prospects. We have encountered, and will continue to encounter, risks
and difficulties frequently experienced by growing companies in rapidly changing industries, including those related to:

market acceptance of our current and future products and services;

changing regulatory environments and costs associated with compliance;

our ability to compete with other companies offering similar products and services;

our ability to effectively market our products and services and attract new clients/customers;
existing client retention rates and the ability to upsell clients;

the amount and timing of operating expenses, particularly sales and marketing expenses, related to the maintenance and expansion of our business, operations and
infrastructure;

our ability to control costs, including operating expenses;

our ability to manage organic growth and growth fueled by acquisitions;

public perception and acceptance of cannabis-related products and services generally; and
general economic conditions and events.

If we do not manage these risks successfully, our business and financial performance will be adversely affected. Our long-term results of operations are difficult to predict and
depend on the commercial success of our products, services and clients, the continued growth of the cannabis industry generally (and public acceptance of cannabis-related
products) and the regulatory environment within which the cannabis industry operates. If the legalized cannabis marketplace does not continue to grow because the public does
not increasingly accept cannabis-related products or government regulators adopt laws, rules or regulations that terminate or diminish the ability for commercial businesses to
develop, market and sell cannabis-related products, our business and financial performance would be materially adversely affected. Additionally, even if the cannabis
marketplace continues to grow rapidly, and government regulation allows for the free-market development of this industry, products and services competitive with those offered
by us may enjoy better market acceptance. The legalized cannabis industry may not continue to grow and the regulatory environment may not remain favorable to participants
in the industry. More generally, our products and services may not experience growing market acceptance, which would adversely impact our ability to grow revenue.

We have incurred significant losses in prior periods and there is no assurance we can generate profits; future losses could cause the quoted price of our Common Stock to
decline or have a material adverse effect on our financial condition, our ability to pay our debts as they become due and on our cash flow.

We have incurred significant losses in prior periods. For the year ended December 31, 2020, we incurred a net loss of approximately $19.4 million and, as of that date, we had
an accumulated deficit of approximately $42.3 million. We cannot make any assurances that we will generate profits in any particular year or at all in the future. Our ability to
generate profits will depend on a number of factors and is subject to risks, many of which are beyond our control. Any losses in the future could cause the quoted price of our
Common Stock to decline or have a material adverse effect on our financial condition, our ability to pay our debts as they become due, and on our cash flow.




We are dependent on enforcement of proprietary rights.

When entering into confidentially agreements with our employees, consultants, and corporate clients, we take what we believe are commercially reasonable steps to control
access to and distribution of our technologies, documentation, and other proprietary information. Despite efforts to protect our proprietary rights from unauthorized use or
disclosure, parties may attempt to disclose, obtain, or use our products, solutions, or technologies. We cannot be certain that the steps we take will prevent misappropriation of
our solutions or technologies. Further, this is particularly difficult in foreign countries where the laws or law enforcement may not protect the Company’s proprietary rights as
fully as in the United States. As of the date of this report, we are shipping nutrients outside of the United States, but not conducting any operations outside of the United States
or any territory thereof and have no current plans to do so except for possibly licensing or services deployment in Canada.

There can be no assurance that third parties will not assert claims of infringement against us.
Others may claim rights to the same technology or trade secrets we utilize now or may utilize in the future.

From time to time we may be subject to claims in the ordinary course of our business, including claims of alleged infringement of the trademarks, patents and other intellectual
property rights of third parties by us or our clients. Any such claims, or any resultant litigation, should it occur, could subject us to significant liability for damages and could
result in the invalidation of our contractual proprietary rights. In addition, even if we were to win any such litigation, such litigation could be time-consuming and expensive to
defend and could result in the diversion of time and attention, any of which could have a material adverse effect on our prospects, business, financial condition and results of
operations. Any claims or litigation may also result in limitations on our ability to use such trademarks, patents and other intellectual property unless we enter into arrangement
with such third parties, which may be unavailable on commercially reasonable terms.

Our license agreement with Medicine Man Denver is non-exclusive.

On May 1, 2014, we entered into a non-exclusive License Agreement with Medicine Man Denver pursuant to which Medicine Man Denver granted us a license to use all of the
proprietary processes that it had developed, implemented and practiced at its cannabis facilities relating to the commercial cultivation, marketing and distribution of medical
and recreational marijuana pursuant to relevant state laws and the right to use and to license such information, including trade secrets, skills and experience (present and future)
for 10 years. Medicine Man Denver has the right in its sole discretion to authorize third parties to utilize the intellectual property rights granted to us. This may result in our
competing with third parties who are offering similar consulting services to prospective clients. If this were to occur, it could have a material adverse effect on our prospects,
business, financial condition, and results of operations.

Competition in our industry is intense.

The cannabis industry is highly fragmented, and we have many competitors, including many who offer similar products and services as those offered by us. There can be no
guarantees that in the future, other companies will not enter the market and develop products and services that are in direct competition with us. We anticipate the presence as
well as entry of other companies in this market space and acknowledge that we may not be able to establish or if established, to maintain a competitive advantage. Some of
these companies may have longer operating histories, greater name recognition, larger customer bases and significantly greater financial, technical, sales and marketing
resources. This may allow them to respond more quickly than us to market opportunities. It may also allow them to devote greater resources to the marketing, promotion and
sale of their products and/or services. These competitors may also adopt more aggressive pricing policies and make more attractive offers to existing and potential customers,
employees, strategic partners, distribution channels and advertisers. Increased competition is likely to result in price reductions, reduced gross margins and a potential loss of
market share.

Due to our limited financial resources, litigation could negatively impact our financial condition even if we have not caused damages to any potential claimant.

Litigation is used as a competitive tactic both by established companies seeking to protect their existing position in a market and by emerging companies attempting to gain
access to a market. In such litigation, complaints may be filed on a variety of grounds, including but not limited to antitrust violations, breach of contract, trade secret, patent or
copyright infringement, patent or copyright invalidity and unfair business practices. If we are forced to defend ourselves against such claims, whether or not meritorious, we are
likely to incur substantial expense and diversion of management attention and may encounter market confusion and the reluctance of licensees and distributors to commit
resources to us.




We have limited capitalization and limited funds available for operations and we will require additional financing to successfully implement our business strategy.

Expansion of our business will require capital expenditures. Our capital requirements will depend upon numerous factors, including the size and success of our marketing and
sales network and the demand for our products and services. If funds generated from our operations are insufficient to allow us to grow as we hope to do, we will need to raise
additional funds through public or private financing. No assurance can be given that additional financing will be available or that, if available, it will be obtained on terms
favorable to us. If adequate funds are not available, we may have to reduce or eliminate expenditures and curtail or delay our growth strategy, including the expansion of our
sales and marketing capabilities, which likely would have a material adverse effect on our prospects, business, financial condition and results of operations.

If we are unable to service or repay our term loan when due, the lender may execute on the collateral; we may be unable to satisfy the closing conditions to obtain the
additional advance under our term loan.

Several of our wholly owned subsidiaries are borrowers under a Loan Agreement with SHWZ Altmore, LLC, as lender, and GGG Partners LLC, as collateral agent. The loan is
secured by a security interest in substantially all current and future assets of the borrowers. We guaranty the payment and performance by the borrowers when due. If the
borrowers and we are unable to pay the debt service or repay the term loan when due, the lender may, among other remedies, sell the collateral and use the proceeds to satisfy
amounts owed under term loan. Further, the additional $5,000,000 advance under the term lean is subject to the satisfaction of certain closing conditions, including, but not
limited to, that the Company has completed the acquisition of substantially all of the assets of an identified company. There can be no assurance that the Company will be able
to satisfy the closing conditions and obtain the additional $5,000,000 advance.

The seller notes associated with the purchase of the Star Buds assets by SBUD LLC are secured by a security interest in substantially all of the current and future assets of
SBUD LLC. If SBUD LLC is unable to pay the debt service or repay the seller notes when due, the sellers may, among other remedies, sell the collateral and use the proceeds
to satisfy amounts owed under the seller notes.

Our officers or directors may have conflicts of interest.

Some of our executive officers or directors are employed on a full-time basis by or have financial interests in other businesses. Consequently, there are potential inherent
conflicts of interest in their acting as officers or directors of our Company. For example, Brian Ruden, one of our directors, is the owner Star Buds outside the state of Colorado.
Where a conflict of interest may arise, our Audit Committee and/or the full Board of Directors, with advice from outside counsel, reviews such conflicts. Although we believe
that our related party transaction policy is currently adequate in guarding against material conflicts of interests, we cannot give any assurance that we are able to identify all
material conflicts of interest.

Some of our current officers have other interests outside of our business.

While we have employment agreements for full-time employment with our executive officers, the employment agreements do not forbid our executive officers from allocating
their personal time to other ventures and commitments. If the other business affairs of our executive officers require them to devote substantial amounts of time to such affairs,
it could limit their ability to devote time to our affairs and could have a material adverse effect on our prospects, business, financial condition and results of operations.

We are dependent upon our management to continue our growth.

There are no assurances we will be able to grow or continue our growth. However, if we do grow and sustain our growth, we will need to significantly expand our
administrative facilities which will continue to be required in order to address potential market opportunities. The rapid growth will place a significant strain on our
management and operational and financial resources. Our success is principally dependent on our current management personnel for the operation of our business.

We may not be able to hire or retain qualified staff. If qualified and skilled staff are not attracted and retained, growth of our business may be limited. The ability to provide
high quality service will depend on attracting and retaining educated staff, as well as professional experiences that is relevant to our market, including for marketing,
technology, and general experience in this industry. There will be competition for personnel with these skill sets. Some technical job categories may experience severe shortages
in the United States.




Our ability to deliver quality services depends on our ability to manage and expand our marketing, operational and distribution systems, recruit additional qualified employees
and train and manage and motivate both current and new employees. Failure to effectively manage our growth would have a material adverse effect on our business.

We plan to expand our business and operations into jurisdictions outside of the current jurisdictions where we conduct business and there are risks associated with doing
so.

We plan in the future to expand our operations and business into jurisdictions outside of the jurisdictions where we currently carry on business. There can be no assurance that
any market for our products and services will develop in any such jurisdictions. We may face new or unexpected risks or significantly increase our exposure to one or more
existing risk factors if we expand into new jurisdictions, including, without limitation, economic instability, new competition, and additional, new or changes in laws and
regulations (including, without limitation, the possibility that we could be in violation of these laws and regulations as a result of such changes). These factors may limit our
ability to successfully expand our operations in, or export our products to or provide our services in, those other jurisdictions.

We may not be able to successfully identify and execute future acquisitions or dispositions or to successfully manage the impacts of such transactions on our operations.

A key element of our growth strategy in part involves identifying and making acquisitions of interests in, or the businesses of, suitable entities involved in the cannabis industry.
Our ability to identify such potential acquisition opportunities and successfully acquire them is not guaranteed. Further, achieving the benefits of future acquisitions will depend
in part on successfully identifying and capturing such opportunities in a timely and efficient manner and in structuring such arrangements to ensure a stable and growing stream
of revenues.

Material acquisitions, dispositions and other strategic transactions involve a number of risks, including: (i) the potential disruption of our ongoing business; (ii) the distraction
of management away from the ongoing oversight of our existing business activities; (iii) incurring indebtedness; (iv) the anticipated benefits and cost savings of those
transactions not being realized fully, or at all, or taking longer to realize than anticipated; (v) an increase in the scope and complexity of our operations; (vi) the loss or reduction
of control over certain of our assets; (vi) the integration of new operations, services and personnel; (vii) unforeseen or hidden liabilities; (viii) the diversion of resources from
our existing interests and business; (ix) potential inability to generate sufficient revenue to offset new costs; or (x) the expenses of acquisitions.

Further, there is no guarantee that acquisitions will be accretive. The existence of one or more material liabilities of an acquired company that are unknown to us at the time of
acquisition could result in our incurring those liabilities. A strategic transaction may result in a significant change in the nature of our business, operations and strategy, and we
may encounter unforeseen obstacles or costs in implementing a strategic transaction or integrating any acquired business into our operations. Additionally, we may issue
additional equity interests in connection with such transactions, which would dilute a stockholder’s holdings in the Company.

Resources spent researching acquisitions that are not consummated could materially adversely affect subsequent attempts to locate and acquire other businesses.

It is anticipated that the investigation of each specific acquisition target business and the negotiation, drafting, and execution of relevant transaction agreements and other
ancillary documents, disclosure documents, and other instruments, will require substantial management time and attention, as well as costs related to fees payable to counsel,
accountants, and other third parties. Any such event may result in a loss to us of the related costs incurred therein which could materially adversely affect subsequent attempts
to locate and acquire other businesses.

The general market conditions in the United States may have a significant impact on our business.

The success of our business is affected by general economic and market conditions. We will remain susceptible to future economic recessions or downturns, and any significant
adverse shift in general economic conditions, whether local, regional or national, could have a material adverse effect on our prospects, business, financial condition and results
of operations. During such periods of adverse economic conditions, we may experience reduced demand for our products and services, which will result in, among other things,
decreased revenues and financial losses. In addition, during periods of adverse economic conditions, we may have difficulty accessing financial markets or face increased
funding costs, which could make it more difficult or impossible for us to obtain additional funding if needed.
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Changes in consumer spending may harm our business.

Consumer spending patterns, particularly discretionary expenditures for cannabis products, are particularly susceptible to factors beyond our control that may reduce demand
for our products and our client’s products. These factors include:

¢ low consumer confidence;

* depressed housing prices;

» decreased corporate budgets and spending and cancellations, deferrals or renegotiations of group business (e.g., industry conventions);

* natural disasters, such as earthquakes, tornados, hurricanes and floods;

« outbreaks of pandemic or contagious diseases, such as avian flu, severe acute respiratory syndrome (SARS), HIN1(swine) flu, Zika fever and coronavirus (e.g.,
COVID-19);

* war, terrorist activities or threats and heightened travel security measures instituted in response to these events; and

+ the financial or operational conditions of the airline, automotive and other transportation-related industries and its impact on travel.

Reduced consumer spending could have a material adverse effect on our prospects, business, financial condition and results of operations.
Our success is dependent on consumer acceptance of cannabis products generally, and, specifically our products.

Our ability to generate revenue and be successful in the implementation of our business plan is significantly dependent on consumer acceptance of and demand for cannabis
products generally, and, specifically, our products. Consumer acceptance will depend on several factors, including federal regulation of cannabis, availability, cost, ease of use,
familiarity of use, convenience, effectiveness, safety, and reliability. If consumers do not accept cannabis products generally, or, specifically, our products, or if we fail to meet
customers’ needs and expectations adequately, our ability to continue generating revenues could be reduced.

We are subject to risks from products liability claims.

We face an inherent risk of product liability. For example, we could be sued if any product we sell allegedly causes injury or is found to be otherwise unsuitable during product
testing, manufacturing, marketing or sale. Any such product liability claims may include allegations of defects in manufacturing, defects in design, a failure to warn of dangers
inherent in the product, negligence, strict liability and a breach of warranties. Claims could also be asserted under state consumer protection acts.

If we cannot successfully defend against product liability claims, we may incur substantial liabilities or be required to limit sales of our products. Even a successful defense of
these hypothetical future cases would require significant financial and management resources. If we are unable to successfully defend these hypothetical future cases, we could
face at least the following potential consequences:

» decreased demand for our products;

* injury to our reputation;

» costs to defend the related litigation;

» diversion of management’s time and our resources;

* substantial monetary awards to users of our products;
* product recalls or withdrawals; and

* loss of revenue.

Our business is dependent on licensing.

Our business is dependent on us and our clients obtaining various licenses from various municipalities and state licensing agencies. There can be no assurance that any or all
licenses necessary for us or our clients to operate their businesses will be obtained, retained or renewed. If a licensing body were to determine that we or a client of ours had
violated applicable rules and regulations, there is a risk the license granted to us or a client could be revoked, which could adversely affect our operations. Further, in Colorado,
licenses for cannabis operations are tied to a specific location. We lease substantially all of our locations and if we are unable to renew a lease, we would lose the license for
such location. There can be no assurance that we or our existing clients will be able to retain their licenses going forward, or that new licenses will be granted to existing and
new market entrants.




We cannot ensure that we will always be able to maintain adequate internal controls.

Effective internal controls are necessary for us to provide reliable financial reports and to help prevent fraud. Although we will undertake a number of procedures and will
implement a number of safeguards, in each case, in order to help ensure the reliability of our financial reports, including those imposed under U.S. securities law, we cannot be
certain that such measures will ensure that we will always be able to maintain adequate internal controls over financial processes and disclosure. Failure to implement required
new or improved controls, or difficulties encountered in their implementation, could harm our results of operations or cause us to fail to meet our reporting obligations. If we or
our auditors discover a material weakness, the disclosure of that fact, even if quickly remedied, could reduce the market’s confidence in our consolidated financial statements
and materially adversely affect the value or trading price of our securities.

We may be subject to risks related to our information technology systems, including the risk that we may be the subject of a cyber-attack and the risk that we may be in
non-compliance with applicable privacy laws.

We have entered into agreements with third parties for hardware, software, telecommunications and other information technology, or IT, services in connection with our
operations. Our operations depend, in part, on how well we and our vendors protect networks, equipment, IT systems and software against damage from a number of threats,
including, but not limited to, cable cuts, damage to physical plants, natural disasters, intentional damage and destruction, fire, power loss, hacking, computer viruses, vandalism,
theft, malware, ransomware and phishing attacks. Any of these and other events could result in IT system failures, delays or increases in capital expenses. Our operations also
depend on the timely maintenance, upgrade and replacement of networks, equipment and IT systems and software, as well as preemptive expenses to mitigate the risks of
failures. The failure of IT systems or a component of IT systems could, depending on the nature of any such failure, adversely impact our reputation and have a material
adverse effect on our prospects, business, financial condition and results of operations.

We collect and store personal information about our consumers and are responsible for protecting that information from privacy breaches. Some of our consumers purchase our
product for medical use. There are a number of laws protecting the confidentiality of certain patient health information and other personal information, including patient
records, and restricting the use and disclosure of that protected information. In particular, in the U.S., the Privacy Act of 1974 (the “Privacy Act’), the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act
(the “GLBA”), the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (“HIPAA”), and the Children’s Online Privacy Protection Act (“COPPA” and together with the Privacy
Act, the GLBA, HIPAA, and COPPA the “U.S. Privacy Regulations”), the European Union’s General Data Protection Regulation (“GDPR”), the privacy rules under Canada’s
Personal Information Protection and Electronics Documents Act (the “PIPEDA”), and similar laws in other jurisdictions, protect medical records and other personal health
information by limiting their use and disclosure to the minimum level reasonably necessary to accomplish the intended purpose. A privacy breach may occur through a
procedural or process failure, an IT malfunction or deliberate unauthorized intrusions. Theft of data for competitive purposes, particularly patient lists and preferences, is an
ongoing risk whether perpetrated through employee collusion or negligence or through deliberate cyber-attack. Moreover, if we are found to be in violation of the U.S. Privacy
Regulations, the GDPR, the PIPEDA, or other laws, including as a result of data theft and privacy breaches, we could be subject to sanctions and civil or criminal penalties,
which could increase our liabilities and harm our reputation.

As cyber threats continue to evolve, we may be required to expend significant additional resources to continue to modify or enhance our protective measures or to investigate
and remediate any information security vulnerabilities. While we have implemented security resources to protect our data security and information technology systems, such
measures may not prevent such events. Significant disruption to our information technology system or breaches of data security could have a material adverse effect on our
prospects, business, financial condition and results of operations.

We may incur losses as a result of unforeseen or catastrophic events.
The occurrence of unforeseen or catastrophic events such as terrorist attacks, extreme terrestrial or solar weather events or other natural disasters, emergence or continuation of
a pandemic, or other widespread health emergencies (or concerns over the possibility of such an emergency), could create economic and financial disruptions, and could lead to

operational difficulties that could impair our ability to manage our business. Our industry is new and our business is novel, and there is no precedent to indicate how our
industry, or the Company, would be impacted by such an event.
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QOur insurance coverage may be inadequate to cover all significant risk exposures.

We will be exposed to liabilities that are unique to the products and services we provide. While we intend to maintain insurance for certain risks, the amount of our insurance
coverage may not be adequate to cover all claims or liabilities, and we may be forced to bear substantial costs resulting from risks and uncertainties of our business. It is also
not possible to obtain insurance to protect against all operational risks and liabilities. In particular, we may have difficulty obtaining insurance because we operate in the
cannabis industry because, compared to non-cannabis industries, (i) there are only a limited number of insurers willing to insure companies involved in the cannabis industry,
(ii) there are fewer insurance products available to companies involved in the cannabis industry, (iii) insurance coverage generally is more expensive for companies involved in
the cannabis industry, and (iv) available insurers and insurance products as well as price change frequently. The failure to obtain adequate insurance coverage on terms
favorable to us, or at all, could have a material adverse effect on our prospects, business, financial condition and results of operations. We do not have any business interruption
insurance. Any business disruption or natural disaster could result in substantial costs and diversion of resources.

The COVID-19 pandemic could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.

The global outbreak of the novel strain of the coronavirus known as COVID-19 has resulted in governments worldwide enacting emergency measures to combat the spread of
the virus. These measures, which include the implementation of travel bans, self-imposed quarantine periods and social distancing, have caused material disruption to
businesses globally, resulting in an economic slowdown. Global equity markets have experienced significant volatility and weakness. Governments and central banks have
reacted with significant monetary and fiscal interventions designed to stabilize economic conditions. The duration and impact of the COVID-19 outbreak is unknown at this
time, as is the efficacy of the government and central bank interventions. It is not possible to reliably estimate the length and severity of these developments or their impact on
our financial results and condition. Thus far, the COVID-19 pandemic has not had a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Nonetheless, our business could be materially and adversely affected by the risks, or the public perception of the risks, related to the continuing COVID-19 pandemic. The risk
of a pandemic, or public perception of such a risk, could cause customers to avoid public places, including retail properties, and could cause temporary or long-term disruptions
in our supply chains and/or delays in the delivery of our products. These risks could also adversely affect our customers' financial condition, resulting in reduced spending for
the products we sell. Moreover, any epidemic, pandemic, outbreak or other public health crisis, including COVID-19, could cause our employees to avoid our properties, which
could adversely affect our ability to adequately staff and manage our businesses. “Shelter-in-place” or other such orders by governmental entities could also disrupt our
operations if employees who cannot perform their responsibilities from home are not able to report to work. Risks related to an epidemic, pandemic or other health crisis, such
as COVID-19, could also lead to the complete or partial closure of one or more of our stores or other facilities. Although our dispensaries have been considered essential
services and therefore have been allowed to remain operational, our adult-use operations may not be allowed to remain open during the COVID-19 pandemic.

The ultimate extent of the impact of any epidemic, pandemic or other health crisis on our business, financial condition and results of operations will depend on future
developments, which are highly uncertain and cannot be predicted, including new information that may emerge concerning the severity of such epidemic, pandemic or other
health crisis and actions taken to contain or prevent its further spread, among others. These and other potential impacts of an epidemic, pandemic or other health crisis, such as
COVID-19, could therefore materially and adversely affect our business, financial condition, growth strategies and results of operations.

The estimates and judgments we make, or the assumptions on which we rely, in preparing our consolidated financial statements could prove inaccurate.

Our consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“U.S. GAAP”). The
preparation of these consolidated financial statements requires us to make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of our assets, liabilities, revenues and
expenses, the amounts of charges accrued by us and related disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. We base our estimates on historical experience and on various other
assumptions that we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances. We cannot assure, however, that our estimates, or the assumptions underlying them, will not change over
time or otherwise prove inaccurate. Any potential litigation related to the estimates and judgments we make, or the assumptions on which we rely, in preparing our consolidated
financial statements could have a material adverse effect on our financial results, harm our business, and cause our share price to decline.
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Failure to execute our strategies could result in impairment of goodwill or other intangible assets, which may negatively impact profitability.

As of December 31, 2020, we have goodwill of approximately $53,000,000 and other intangible assets of approximately $3,100,000, which represents approximately 79% of
our total assets as of that date. We evaluate goodwill for impairment on an annual basis or more frequently if impairment indicators are present based upon the fair value of each
reporting unit. We assess the impairment of other intangible assets on an annual basis, or more frequently if impairment indicators are present, based upon the expected future
cash flows of the respective assets. These valuations include management’s estimates of sales, profitability, cash flow generation, capital structure, cost of debt, interest rates,
capital expenditures, and other assumptions. Significant negative industry or economic trends, disruptions to our business, inability to achieve sales projections or cost savings,
inability to effectively integrate acquired businesses, unexpected significant changes or planned changes in use of the assets or in entity structure, and divestitures may
adversely impact the assumptions used in the valuations. If the estimated fair value of our reporting units changes in future periods, we may be required to record an impairment
charge related to goodwill or other intangible assets, which would reduce earnings in such period.

Risks Related to Our Industry
Cannabis remains illegal under federal law.

Despite the development of a cannabis industry legal under state laws, state laws legalizing medicinal and recreational adult cannabis use are in conflict with the federal
Controlled Substances Act, which classifies cannabis as a Schedule I controlled substance and makes cannabis use and possession illegal on a national level. The United States
Supreme Court has ruled that it is the federal government that has the right to regulate and criminalize cannabis, even for medical purposes, and thus federal law criminalizing
the use of cannabis preempts state laws that legalize its use.

A prior U.S. administration attempted to address the inconsistent treatment of cannabis under state and federal law in the Cole Memorandum which Deputy Attorney General
James Cole sent to all U.S. Attorneys in August 2013 that outlined certain priorities for the Department of Justice (“DOJ”) relating to the prosecution of cannabis offenses. The
Cole Memorandum provided that enforcing federal cannabis laws and regulations in jurisdictions that have enacted laws legalizing cannabis in some form and that have also
implemented strong and effective regulatory and enforcement systems to control the cultivation, processing, distribution, sale and possession of cannabis conduct in compliance
with those laws and regulations was not a priority for the DOJ. The DOJ did not provide (and has not provided since) specific guidelines for what regulatory and enforcement
systems would be deemed sufficient under the Cole Memorandum. On January 4, 2018, U.S. Attorney General Jeff Sessions formally issued the Sessions Memorandum, which
rescinded the Cole Memorandum effective upon its issuance. The Sessions Memorandum stated, in part, that current law reflects “Congress’ determination that cannabis is a
dangerous drug and cannabis activity is a serious crime”, and Mr. Sessions directed all U.S. Attorneys to enforce the laws enacted by Congress and to follow well-established
principles when pursuing prosecutions related to cannabis activities. There can be no assurance that the federal government will not enforce federal laws relating to cannabis in
the future. Jeff Sessions resigned as U.S. Attorney General on November 7, 2018. On February 14, 2019, William Barr was confirmed as U.S. Attorney General. It is unclear
what impact this development will have on federal government enforcement policy. The uncertainty of federal enforcement practices going forward and the inconsistency
between federal and state laws and regulations presents major risks for our business and operations. Any such change in the federal government’s enforcement of federal laws
could cause significant financial damage to us and our stockholders.

Under federal law, and more specifically the federal Controlled Substances Act, the possession, use, cultivation and transfer of cannabis is illegal. It is also federally illegal to
advertise the sale of cannabis, or to sell paraphernalia designed or intended primarily for use with cannabis, unless the paraphernalia is authorized by federal, state, or local law.
Our business involves the cultivation, production and sale of cannabis and cannabis products, and, therefore, violates federal law. Further, we provide services to customers that
are engaged in the business of possession, use, cultivation and/or transfer of cannabis. As a result, law enforcement authorities, in their attempt to regulate the illegal use of
cannabis, may seek to bring an action or actions against us, including, but not limited to, a claim of aiding and abetting another’s criminal activities. The federal aiding and
abetting statute provides that anyone who “commits an offense against the United States or aids, abets, counsels, commands, induces or procures its commission, is punishable
as a principal.” 18 U.S.C. §2(a). As a result of such an action, we may be forced to cease operations and our investors could lose their entire investment. Such an action would
have a material negative effect on our business and operations.

If the Federal Government were to change its enforcement practices, or were to expend its resources enforcing existing federal laws on those involved in the cannabis industry,
such action could have a materially adverse effect on our operations, our customers or the sales of our products up to and including a complete cessation of our business.
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It is possible that additional federal or state legislation could be enacted in the future that would prohibit us or our clients from selling cannabis, and if such legislation were
enacted, the demand for our products and services, and those of our clients, likely would decrease, causing revenues to decline. Further, additional government disruption in the
cannabis industry could cause potential customers and users to be reluctant to use our products and services, which would be detrimental to us. We cannot predict the nature of
any future laws, regulations, interpretations or applications, nor can we determine what effect additional governmental regulations or administrative policies and procedures,
when and if promulgated, could have on our business.

Our business is dependent on state laws pertaining to the cannabis industry.

The federal Controlled Substances Act classifies cannabis as a Schedule I controlled substance and makes cannabis use and possession illegal on a national level. The U.S.
Supreme Court has ruled that it is the federal government that has the right to regulate and criminalize cannabis, even for medical purposes, and thus federal law criminalizing
the use of cannabis preempts state laws that legalize its use. While there appears to be ample public support for favorable legislative action to legalize cannabis use and
possession, numerous factors may impact or negatively affect the legislative process(s) within the various states we have business interests in. Any one of these factors could
slow or halt use of cannabis, which would negatively impact our business up to possibly causing us to discontinue operations as a whole.

The voters or legislatures of states in which cannabis has already been legalized could potentially repeal applicable laws which permit the operation of both medical and retail
cannabis businesses. These actions might force businesses, including our own and those of our clients, to cease operations in one or more states entirely.

We are required to comply concurrently with federal, state and local laws in each jurisdiction where we operate or to which we export our products.

Various federal, state and local laws, regulations and guidelines govern our business in the jurisdictions in which we operate or propose to operate, or to which we export or
propose to export our products, including laws and regulations relating to health and safety, conduct of operations and the production, management, transportation, storage and
disposal of our products and of certain material used in our operations. Compliance with each set of these laws, regulations and guidelines requires concurrent compliance with
other complex federal, state and local laws, regulations and guidelines. These laws, regulations and guidelines change frequently and may be difficult to interpret and apply.
Compliance with these laws, regulations and guidelines requires the investment of significant financial and managerial resources, and a determination that we are not in
compliance with these laws, regulations and guidelines could harm our reputation and brand image and have a material adverse effect on our prospects, business, financial
condition and results of operations. Moreover, it is impossible for us to predict the cost or effect of such laws, regulations or guidelines upon our future operations. Changes to
these laws, regulations and guidelines could negatively affect our competitive position within our industry and the markets in which we operate, and there is no assurance that
various levels of government in the jurisdictions in which we operate will not pass legislation or regulation or issue guidelines that adversely impacts our business.

Our business is subject to a variety of U.S. laws, many of which are unsettled and still developing, and which could subject us to claims or otherwise harm our business.

We are subject to a variety of state and federal laws in the United States. In the United Stated, despite cannabis having been legalized for medical use in many states, and for
adult recreational use in a number of states, cannabis meeting the definition of “marijuana” continues to be categorized as a Schedule I controlled substance under the federal
Controlled Substances Act. Following the passage of HB19-1090 in Colorado, we have elected to move into plant-touching operations in addition to non-plant-touching
operations by acquiring several plant-touching businesses. As a public company involved in direct plant-touching activities, we may face additional scrutiny from the U.S.
federal government or other regulatory agencies. Such scrutiny, and any investigation of our operations related to plant-touching activities, could have a material adverse impact
on our prospects, business, financial condition and results of operations.

We are subject to risks related to unsafe concentration of heavy metals and other contaminants in our cannabis and nutrient products, and associated inconsistent
treatment under state law.

Cannabis plants may absorb heavy metals and other contaminants from the soil that they grow in. Nutrient products are made from ingredients that may contain heavy metals
and other contaminants. Heavy metals and contaminants are naturally found in the earth’s crust but may also be present as a result of, for example, pesticide use. Some
contaminants, like heavy metals, are toxic to humans at even low concentrations. If our raw materials contain contaminants, they may transfer to our products. If the level of
contaminants in our products exceeds permissible or safe levels, it may result in loss of inventory and possible harm to consumers of the products, which may expose us, among
other things, to monetary losses, product liability claims and reputational risk.
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In addition, state regulation of testing for, and permissible levels of, contaminants in cannabis products varies, making compliance difficult and costly.
We are subject to risks inherent in an agricultural business, including the risk of crop failure.

We work in the cannabis industry, which is an agricultural process. As such, our business is subject to the risks inherent in the agricultural business, including risks of crop
failure presented by weather, insects, plant diseases and similar agricultural risks that might affect us or our clients.

If we are unable to source raw materials in sufficient quantities, on a timely basis, and at acceptable costs, our ability to manufacture and sell our products may be harmed.

We rely on a limited number of suppliers of our raw materials used in manufacturing our products and they are all located in Colorado. We experience recurring cycles of
oversupply and undersupply, to some extent due to seasonality, and, as a result, the price and availability of raw materials fluctuate. If we are unable to maintain a reliable
supply of raw materials at competitive prices, we could experience disruptions in production or an increased cost of production. Market conditions may limit our ability to raise
selling prices to offset increases in our raw material costs. Any of the foregoing could have a material adverse impact on our prospects, business, financial condition and results
of operations.

There is uncertainty related to the regulation of vaporization products and certain other consumption accessories. Increased regulatory compliance burdens could have a
material adverse impact on our business development efforts and our operations.

There is uncertainty regarding whether and in what circumstances federal, state, or local regulatory authorities will seek to develop and enforce regulations relative to vaporizer
hardware and accessories that can be used to vaporize cannabis and/or tobacco. Further, it remains to be seen whether current or future regulations relating to tobacco
vaporization products would also apply to cannabis vaporization products and related consumption accessories.

There has been increasing activity on the federal, state, and local levels with respect to scrutiny of vaporizer products. Federal, state, and local governmental bodies across the
United States have indicated that vaporization products and certain other consumption accessories may become subject to new laws and regulations at the state and local levels.
For example, in September 2019, the Trump Administration announced a plan to ban the sale of most flavored e-cigarettes nationwide. At the state level, over 25 states have
implemented statewide regulations that prohibit vaping in public places. In January 2015, the California Department of Health declared electronic cigarettes and certain other
vaporizer products a health threat that should be strictly regulated like tobacco products, and in September 2019, California’s governor issued an executive order on vaping,
focused on enforcement and disclosure. Many states, provinces, and some cities have passed laws restricting the sale of electronic cigarettes and certain other tobacco vaporizer
products. Some cities have also implemented more restrictive measures than their state counterparts, such as San Francisco, which in June 2018, approved a new ban on the sale
of flavored tobacco products, including vaping liquids and menthol cigarettes.

The application of any new laws or regulations that may be adopted in the future, at a federal, state, or local level, directly or indirectly implicating cannabis vaporization
products or consumption accessories could limit our ability to sell such products, result in additional compliance expenses, and require us to change our labeling and methods of
distribution, any of which could have a material adverse effect on our prospects, business, financial condition and results of operations.

The scientific community has not yet extensively studied the long-term health effects of the use of vaporizer products.

Cannabis vaporizers and related products were recently developed and therefore the scientific community has not had a sufficient period of time to study the long-term health
effects of their use. If the scientific community were to determine conclusively that use of any or all of these products poses long-term health risks, market demand for these
products and their use could materially decline. Such a determination could also lead to litigation and significant regulation. Loss of demand for our product, product liability
claims, and increased regulation stemming from unfavorable scientific studies on these products could have a material adverse effect on our prospects, business, financial
condition and results of operations.
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The cannabis industry and market are relatively new in the United States, and this industry and market may not continue to exist or develop as anticipated or we may
ultimately be unable to succeed in this industry and market.

We are operating our current business in the relatively new cannabis industry and market, and our success depends on our ability to operate our business successfully and attract
and retain clients. In addition to being subject to general business risks applicable to a business involving an agricultural product and a regulated consumer product, we need to
continue to build brand awareness of our brand in the cannabis industry and make significant investments in our business strategy and production capacity. These investments
include introducing new products and services into the markets in which we operate, adopting quality assurance protocols and procedures and undertaking regulatory
compliance efforts. These activities may not promote our business as effectively as intended, or at all, and we expect that our competitors will undertake similar investments to
compete with us for market share. Competitive conditions, consumer preferences and spending patterns in this industry and market are relatively unknown and may have
unique characteristics that differ from other existing industries and markets and that may cause our efforts to further our business to be unsuccessful or to have undesired
consequences. As a result, we may not be successful in our efforts to operate our business or attract and retain clients or to develop new products and services and produce and
distribute these products and services to the markets in which we operate or to which we export in time to be effectively commercialized, or these activities may require
significantly more resources than we currently anticipate in order to be successful.

We, or the cannabis industry more generally, may receive unfavorable publicity or become subject to negative consumer or investor perception.

We believe that the cannabis industry is highly dependent upon positive consumer and investor perception regarding the benefits, safety, efficacy and quality of the cannabis
distributed to consumers. The perception of the cannabis industry and cannabis products, currently and in the future, may be significantly influenced by scientific research or
findings, regulatory investigations, litigation, political statements, media attention and other publicity (whether or not accurate or with merit) both in the United States and in
other countries relating to the consumption of cannabis products, including unexpected safety or efficacy concerns arising with respect to cannabis products or the activities of
industry participants. There can be no assurance that future scientific research, findings, regulatory proceedings, litigation, media attention or other research findings or
publicity will be favorable to the cannabis market or any particular cannabis product or will be consistent with earlier publicity. Adverse future scientific research reports,
findings and regulatory proceedings that are, or litigation, media attention or other publicity that is, perceived as less favorable than, or that questions, earlier research reports,
findings or publicity (whether or not accurate or with merit) could result in a significant reduction in the demand for our cannabis products or those of our clients, which would
affect our business. Further, adverse publicity reports or other media attention regarding the safety, efficacy and quality of cannabis or our products specifically, or associating
the consumption of cannabis with illness or other negative effects or events, could adversely affect us. This adverse publicity could arise even if the adverse effects associated
with cannabis products resulted from consumers’ failure to use such products legally, appropriately or as directed.

Certain events or developments in the cannabis industry more generally may impact our reputation.

Damage to our reputation can result from the actual or perceived occurrence of any number of events, including any negative publicity, whether true or not. As we and our
clients are producers and distributors of cannabis, which is a controlled substance in the United States that has previously been commonly associated with various other
narcotics, violence and criminal activities, there is a risk that our business might attract negative publicity. There is also a risk that the actions of other companies and service
providers in the cannabis industry may negatively affect the reputation of the industry as a whole and thereby negatively impact our reputation. The increased usage of social
media and other web-based tools used to generate, publish and discuss user generated content and to connect with other users has made it increasingly easier for individuals and
groups to communicate and share negative opinions and views in regards to our activities and the cannabis industry in general, whether true or not. We do not ultimately have
direct control over how we or the cannabis industry is perceived by others. Reputational issues may result in decreased investor confidence, increased challenges in developing
and maintaining community relations and present an impediment to our overall ability to advance our business strategy and realize on our growth prospects.

We are unable to deduct all of our business expenses.
Section 280E of the Internal Revenue Code prohibits cannabis businesses from deducting their ordinary and necessary business expenses, forcing us to pay higher effective

federal tax rates than similar companies in other industries. The effective tax rate on a cannabis business depends on how large its ratio of nondeductible expenses is to its total
revenues. Therefore, our cannabis business may be less profitable than it could otherwise be.
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Tax and accounting requirements may change in ways that are unforeseen to us and we may face difficulty or be unable to implement or comply with any such changes.

We are subject to numerous tax and accounting requirements, and changes in existing accounting or taxation rules or practices, or varying interpretations of current rules or
practices could have a significant adverse effect on our financial results, the manner in which we conduct our business or the marketability of any of our products. Our
operations, and any expansion thereto, will require us to comply with the tax laws and regulations of multiple jurisdictions, which may vary substantially. Complying with the
tax laws of these jurisdictions can be time consuming and expensive and could potentially subject us to penalties and fees in the future if we were to fail to comply.

The cannabis industry could face strong opposition from other industries.

We believe that established businesses in other industries may have a strong economic interest in opposing the development of the cannabis industry. Cannabis may be seen by
companies in other industries as an attractive alternative to their products, including recreational cannabis as an alternative to alcohol and medical cannabis as an alternative to
various commercial pharmaceuticals. Many industries that could view the emerging cannabis industry as an economic threat are well established, with vast economic and
federal and state lobbying resources. It is possible that companies within these industries could use their resources to attempt to slow or reverse legislation legalizing cannabis.
Any inroads these companies make in halting or impeding legislative initiatives that would not be beneficial to the cannabis industry could have a detrimental impact on our
business or our clients’ business and, in turn, on our operations.

Businesses involved in the cannabis industry, and investments in such businesses, are subject to a variety of laws and regulations related to money laundering, financial
recordkeeping and proceeds of crimes.

Investments in the U.S. cannabis industry are subject to a variety of laws and regulations that involve money laundering, financial recordkeeping and proceeds of crime,
including the Bank Secrecy Act, as amended by the USA Patriot Act, other anti-money laundering laws, and any related or similar rules, regulations or guidelines, issued,
administered or enforced by governmental authorities in the United States. In February 2014, the Financial Crimes Enforcement Network (“FinCEN”) of the Treasury
Department issued a memorandum (the “FinCEN Memo”) providing guidance to banks seeking to provide services to cannabis-related businesses. The FinCEN Memo outlines
circumstances under which banks may provide services to cannabis-related businesses without risking prosecution for violation of U.S. federal money laundering laws. It refers
to supplementary guidance that Deputy Attorney General Cole issued to U.S. federal prosecutors relating to the prosecution of U.S. money laundering offenses predicated on
cannabis-related violations of the federal Controlled Substances Act and outlines extensive due diligence and reporting requirements, which most banks have viewed as
onerous. The FinCEN Memo currently remains in place, but it is unclear at this time whether the current administration will continue to follow the guidelines of the FinCEN
Memo. Such requirements could negatively affect our ability and the ability of our clients to establish and maintain banking connections.

We may be unable to protect our intellectual property rights.

Because the manufacture (cultivation), sale, possession and use of cannabis is illegal under federal law, cannabis-related businesses may have restricted intellectual property
rights particularly with respect to obtaining trademarks and enforcing patents. If we are unable to register, or maintain, our trademarks or file for or enforce patents on any of
our inventions, such an inability could materially affect our ability to protect our name and proprietary technologies. In addition, cannabis businesses may face court action by
third parties under the Racketeer Influenced and Corrupt Organizations Act (“RICO”). Our intellectual property rights could be impaired as a result of our cannabis-related
business, and we could be named as a defendant in an action asserting a RICO violation.

We may be unable to seek the protection of the bankruptcy courts.

There is an argument that the federal bankruptcy courts cannot provide relief for parties who engage in cannabis or cannabis-related businesses. Recent bankruptcy rulings have
denied bankruptcies for cannabis dispensaries upon the justification that businesses cannot violate federal law and then claim the benefits of federal bankruptcy for the same
activity and upon the justification that courts cannot ask a bankruptcy trustee to take possession of, and distribute cannabis assets as such action would violate the federal
Controlled Substances Act. Therefore, due to our cannabis-related business, we may not be able to seek the protection of the bankruptcy courts and this could materially affect
our financial performance and/or our ability to obtain or maintain credit.
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Risks Related to our Common Stock and Preferred Stock
We may seek to raise additional funds, finance acquisitions or develop strategic relationships by issuing securities that would dilute your ownership.

We may raise additional capital in the future. Such capital raising transactions may take the form of equity issuances, debt raising, or a combination thereof. If we issues any
shares of Common Stock or securities convertible into or exercisable for shares of Common Stock in connection with any capital raising transaction, our existing stockholders
will experience immediate dilution upon such issuance or upon the future conversion or exercise of such securities.

Depending on the terms available to us, if these activities result in significant dilution, it may negatively impact the trading price of our shares of Common Stock. Any
additional financing that we secure, may require the granting of rights, preferences or privileges senior to, or pari passu with, those of our Common Stock. Any issuances by us
of equity securities may be at or below the prevailing market price of our Common Stock and in any event may have a dilutive impact on your ownership interest, which could
cause the market price of our stock to decline. We may also raise additional funds through the incurrence of debt or the issuance or sale of other securities or instruments senior
to our shares of Common Stock. We cannot be certain how the repayment of those obligations will be funded and we may issue further equity or debt in order to raise funds to
repay such obligations, including funding that may be highly dilutive. The holders of any securities or instruments we may issue may have rights superior to the rights of
holders of our Common Stock. If we experience dilution from the issuance of additional securities and we grant superior rights to new securities over holders of our Common
Stock, it may negatively impact the trading price of our shares of Common Stock, and you may lose all or part of your investment.

There is no assurance that there will continue to be an active trading market for our Common Stock.

Our Common Stock is quoted on the OTCQX operated by the OTC Markets Group. There is no assurance that a market for our Common Stock will continue. In the absence of
a public trading market, or sufficient trading volume in the public market, an investor may be unable to liquidate its investment in our Company.

Any adverse effect on the market price of our Common Stock could make it difficult for us to raise additional capital through sales of equity securities at a time and at a price
that we deem appropriate.

Sales of substantial amounts of our Common Stock, or in anticipation that such sales could occur, may materially and adversely affect prevailing market prices for our Common
Stock, if and when such market develops in the future.

The market price of our Common Stock may fluctuate significantly in the future.
We expect that the market price of our Common Stock may fluctuate in response to one or more of the following factors, many of which are beyond our control:

competitive pricing pressures;

our ability to market our products and services on a cost-effective and timely basis;
our inability to obtain working capital financing, if needed;

changing conditions in the market;

changes in market valuations of similar companies;

stock market price and volume fluctuations generally;

regulatory developments;

fluctuations in our quarterly or annual operating results;

additions or departures of key personnel;

future sales of our Common Stock or other securities; and

future issuances of shares of Common Stock upon exercise or conversion of shares of Preferred Stock, warrants, options or other securities.
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The price at which you purchase shares of our Common Stock may not be indicative of the price that will prevail in the trading market. You may be unable to sell your shares of
Common Stock at or above your purchase price, which may result in substantial losses to you and which may include the complete loss of your investment. In the past,
securities class action litigation has often been brought against a company following periods of stock price volatility. We may be the target of similar litigation in the future.
Securities litigation could result in substantial costs and divert management’s attention and our resources away from our business. Any of the risks described above could
adversely affect our sales and profitability and also the price of our Common Stock.

The market price for our Common Stock will be particularly volatile given our status as a relatively unknown company, with a limited operating history and lack of profits
which could lead to wide fluctuations in our share price. You may be unable to sell your Common Stock at or above your purchase price, which may result in substantial
losses to you.

While there is a market for our Common Stock, our price volatility in the future will be particularly volatile when compared to the shares of larger, more established companies
that trade on a national securities exchange and have large public floats. The volatility in our share price will be attributable to a number of factors. First, our Common Stock is,
compared to the shares of such larger, more established companies, sporadically and thinly traded. As a consequence of this limited liquidity, the trading of relatively small
quantities of shares by our stockholders may disproportionately influence the price of those shares in either direction. The price for our shares could decline precipitously in the
event that a large number of shares of our Common Stock are sold on the market without commensurate demand. Secondly, we are a speculative or “risky” investment due to
our limited operating history and lack of profits to date and uncertainty of future market acceptance for our potential products. As a consequence of this enhanced risk, more
risk-adverse investors may, under the fear of losing all or most of their investment in the event of negative news or lack of progress, be more inclined to sell their shares on the
market more quickly and at greater discounts than would be the case with the stock of a larger, more established company that trades on a national securities exchange and has a
large public float. Many of these factors are beyond our control and may decrease the market price of our Common Stock, regardless of our operating performance. We cannot
make any predictions or projections as to what the prevailing market price for our Common Stock will be at any time.

FINRA sales practice requirements may also limit a stockholder’s ability to buy and sell our Common Stock, which could depress the price of our Common Stock.

FINRA has adopted rules that require a broker-dealer to have reasonable grounds for believing that the investment is suitable for that customer before recommending an
investment to a customer. Before recommending speculative low-priced securities to their non-institutional customers, broker-dealers must make reasonable efforts to obtain
information about the customer’s financial status, tax status, investment objectives, and other information. Under interpretations of these rules, FINRA believes that there is a
high probability that speculative low-priced securities will not be suitable for at least some customers. Thus, the FINRA requirements make it more difficult for broker-dealers
to recommend that their customers buy our Common Stock, which may limit your ability to buy and sell our shares of Common Stock, have an adverse effect on the market for
our shares of Common Stock, and thereby depress the price per share of Common Stock.

Our future results may vary significantly which may adversely affect the price of our Common Stock.

It is possible that our quarterly revenues and operating results may vary significantly in the future and that period-to-period comparisons of our revenues and operating results
are not necessarily meaningful indicators of the future. You should not rely on the results of one quarter as an indication of our future performance. It is also possible that in
some future quarters, our revenues and operating results will fall below our expectations or the expectations of market analysts and investors. If we do not meet these

expectations, the price of our Common Stock may decline significantly.

Our Preferred Stock, our right to issue additional preferred stock, our classified Board of Directors and provisions of our Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws (as defined
below) may delay or prevent a take-over that may not be in the best interests of our stockholders.

Our Preferred Stock and provisions of our Articles of Incorporation and Amended and Restated Bylaws (the “Bylaws”) may be deemed to have anti-takeover effects, which
include when and by whom special meetings of our stockholders may be called, and may delay, defer or prevent a takeover attempt.
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The existence and terms of our Preferred Stock, such as the ability of a majority of the holders of the Preferred Stock to require payment of a liquidation preference upon a
change of control or the ability to convert into Common Stock and the resulting changes in ownership interests of the Company, may prevent or impede a change of control
transaction for the Company that could otherwise be in the best interests of the Company or its stockholders. Further, holders of Preferred Stock will be entitled to cast the
number of votes equal to the number of whole shares of Common Stock into which the shares of Preferred Stock held are convertible as of the record date for determining
stockholders entitled to vote on any matter presented to the Company’s stockholders for their action or consideration at any meeting (or by written consent in lieu of meeting),
voting together with the holder of Common Stock as a single class. As of March 24, 2021, holders of our Preferred stock control approximately 67% of the voting power of our
capital stock, based on the number of outstanding shares of Common Stock and Preferred Stock as of such date. Therefore, holders of Preferred Stock have the ability to
significantly influence the outcome on all matters requiring approval of our stockholders, including the election of directors and approval of a change of control transaction for
the Company.

Further, our authorized capital consists of 250,000,000 shares of Common Stock and 10,000,000 shares of preferred stock, par value $0.001 per share. Our Board of Directors,
without further vote by the stockholders, has the authority to issue shares of preferred stock and to determine the rights and preferences, price and restrictions, including but not
limited to voting and dividend rights, of any such shares of preferred stock. The rights of the holders of Common Stock or Preferred Stock may be affected by the rights of
holders of preferred stock that our Board of Directors may issue in the future.

In addition, we have a “classified” Board of Directors, which means that one-half of our directors are eligible for election each year. Therefore, if stockholders desire to change
the composition of the Board of Directors, it may take at least two years to remove a majority of the existing directors or to change all directors. Having a classified Board of
Directors may also, among other things, delay mergers, tender offers or other possible transactions that may be favored by some or a majority of stockholders, and may delay or
frustrate stockholder action to change the then-current Board of Directors and management.

Our management and principal stockholders could significantly influence or control matters requiring a stockholder vote and other stockholders may not have the ability
to influence corporate transactions.

Currently, our management and principal stockholders beneficially own a significant amount of our outstanding Common Stock and Preferred Stock. As a result, our
management and such principal stockholders have the ability to significantly influence the outcome on all matters requiring approval of our stockholders, including the election
of directors and approval of significant corporate transactions. As of March 24, 2021, our management and holders of our Preferred stock control approximately 67% of the
voting power of our capital stock, based on the number of outstanding shares of Common Stock and Preferred Stock as of such date. Therefore, holders of Preferred Stock have
the ability to significantly influence the outcome on all matters requiring approval of our stockholders, including the election of directors and approval of a change of control
transaction for the Company.

The requirements of being a public company may strain our resources, divert manag t’s attention and affect our ability to attract and retain executive management
and qualified board members.

As a public company, we are subject to the reporting requirements of the Exchange Act, the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer
Protection Act, and other applicable securities rules and regulations. Compliance with these rules and regulations will increase our legal and financial compliance costs, make
some activities more difficult, time-consuming or costly and increase demand on our systems and resources. The Exchange Act requires, among other things, that we file
annual, quarterly and current reports with respect to our business and operating results. The Sarbanes-Oxley Act requires, among other things, that we maintain effective
disclosure controls and procedures and internal control over financial reporting. In order to maintain and, if required, improve our disclosure controls and procedures and
internal control over financial reporting to meet this standard, significant resources and management oversight may be required. As a result, management’s attention may be
diverted from other business concerns, which could adversely affect our business and operating results. We may need to hire more employees in the future or engage outside
consultants, which will increase our costs and expenses.

In addition, changing laws, regulations and standards relating to corporate governance and public disclosure are creating uncertainty for public companies, increasing legal and
financial compliance costs and making some activities more time consuming. These laws, regulations and standards are subject to varying interpretations, in many cases due to
their lack of specificity, and, as a result, their application in practice may evolve over time as new guidance is provided by regulatory and governing bodies. This could result in
continuing uncertainty regarding compliance matters and higher costs necessitated by ongoing revisions to disclosure and governance practices. We intend to invest resources to
comply with evolving laws, regulations and standards, and this investment may result in increased general and administrative expenses and a diversion of management’s time
and attention from revenue-generating activities to compliance activities. If our efforts to comply with new laws, regulations and standards differ from the activities intended by
regulatory or governing bodies due to ambiguities related to their application and practice, regulatory authorities may initiate legal proceedings against us and our business may
be adversely affected.
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We also expect that being a public company and these new rules and regulations will make it more expensive for us to obtain director and officer liability insurance, and we
may be required to accept reduced coverage or incur substantially higher costs to obtain coverage once we put such coverages in place, which we intend to implement in the
near future. These factors could also make it more difficult for us to attract and retain qualified members of our Board of Directors, particularly to serve on our audit committee
and compensation committee, and qualified executive officers.

As a result of disclosure of information in filings required of a public company, our business and financial condition will become more visible, which we believe may result in
threatened or actual litigation, including by competitors and other third parties. If such claims are successful, our business and operating results could be adversely affected, and
even if the claims do not result in litigation or are resolved in our favor, these claims and the time and resources necessary to resolve them, could divert the resources of our
management and adversely affect our business and operating results.

We are classified as a “smaller reporting company” and we cannot be certain if the reduced disclosure requirements applicable to smaller reporting companies will make
our Common Stock and other securities less attractive to investors.

As a reporting company under the Exchange Act, we are classified as an “smaller reporting company,” as defined in Item 10 of Regulation S-K, and we may take advantage of
certain exemptions from various reporting requirements that are applicable to other public companies, including, but not limited to, not being required to comply with the
auditor attestation requirements of Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act and reduced disclosure obligations regarding executive compensation in our periodic reports and
proxy statements. We cannot predict if investors will find our Common Stock and other securities less attractive because we may rely on these exemptions. If some investors
find our Common Stock or other securities less attractive as a result, there may be a less active trading market for our Common Stock and our stock price may be more volatile.
Decreased disclosures in our SEC filings due to our status as a “smaller reporting company” may make it harder for investors to analyze our results of operations and financial
prospects.

We have not paid dividends in the past and do not expect to pay dividends for the foreseeable future and any return on investment may be limited to potential future
appreciation in the value of our Common Stock.

We currently intend to retain any future earnings to support the development and expansion of our business and do not anticipate paying cash dividends on our shares of
Common Stock in the foreseeable future. Our payment of any future dividends will be at the discretion of our Board of Directors after taking into account various factors,
including without limitation, our financial condition, operating results, cash needs, growth plans and the terms of any credit agreements that we may be a party to at the time. To
the extent we do not pay dividends, our shares of Common Stock may be less valuable because a return on investment will only occur if and to the extent our stock price
appreciates, which may never occur. In addition, investors must rely on sales of their Common Stock after price appreciation as the only way to realize their investment, and if
the price of our Common Stock does not appreciate, then there will be no return on investment. Investors seeking cash dividends should not purchase our Common Stock.

Our Common Stock price may be depressed due to Preferred Stock.

The value of the Preferred Stock may have only a low correlation, and may have no correlation, with the trading price of our Common Stock. Nevertheless, decreases in the
trading price of our Common Stock, which could occur as the result of developments in our business or from future sales of securities by us or by holders of our securities or
for other reasons, may cause the value of the Preferred Stock to decline. For example, In the future, we may sell or issue shares of our Common Stock or other securities to raise
capital, to acquire interests in other companies or to future lenders. Also, the existence of the Preferred Stock may encourage short selling by market participants because the
conversion of the Preferred Stock could depress the price of our Common Stock.

The Preferred Stock ranks senior to our Common Stock but junior to all of our existing and future liabilities in the event of a liquidation, winding up or dissolution of our
business.

In the event of our liquidation, winding up or dissolution, our assets would be available to make payments to holders of the Preferred Stock only after all of our liabilities have
been paid. In addition, the Preferred Stock ranks structurally senior to our Common Stock, but junior to all of our existing and future liabilities and those of our subsidiaries,
such as our term loan, as well as the capital stock of our subsidiaries held by third parties and employees holding shares of any other direct or indirect subsidiary of ours,
whether now existing or created in the future, which issues shares or other equity interests to employees. In the event of our bankruptcy, liquidation or winding up, there may
not be sufficient assets remaining, after paying our and our subsidiaries’ liabilities, to pay any amounts to the holders of the Preferred Stock then outstanding. Any liquidation,
winding up or dissolution of the Company or of any of our wholly or partially owned subsidiaries could have a material adverse effect on holders of the Preferred Stock.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS.

Not applicable.
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ITEM 2. PROPERTIES.

Business Location Segment Square Footage Monthly Rent [Expiration Date

IMedicine Man 4880 Havana Street, Consulting and Licensing |12,097 January 1, 2020 to February 29, 2020 = Three month rolling

Technologies Denver, Colorado Services $14,500 periods effective March

March 1, 2020 = $17,137 1, 2020
Schwazze Corporate Infrastructure
land Other

The Big Tomato 695 Billings Street, Products 12,800 January 1, 2020 to June 30, 2020 = $9,560 June 30, 2023
|Aurora, Colorado July 1, 2020 = $6,872

[Purplebee’s 30899 Hwy 50 East, Products Buildings A, B, C, and D [$17,250 April 19, 2025
Pueblo, Colorado 0.5 acres of land

$250

IMesa Organics Pueblo 30899 Hwy 50 East, Products 2,200 $2,250 |April 19, 2025
Pueblo, Colorado

Mesa Organics Ordway |611 E. 6t Street, Ordway, |[Products 1,584 $3,500 April 19, 2025
Colorado

IMesa Organics Rocky (1315 Elm Avenue, Rocky [Products 1,512 $3,500 April 19, 2025

IFord Ford, Colorado

IMesa Organics Las 420 Bent Avenue, Las Products ILand and building $3,500 |April 19, 2025

|JAnimas |JAnimas, Colorado

Star Buds Pueblo 4305 Thatcher Ave Products Building $3,500 January 31, 2025
Pueblo, Colorado

Star Buds Alameda 428 McCulloch St, Products 2,232 $5,000 INovember 30, 2023
Pueblo, Colorado

Star Buds Commerce [5844 Dahlia Street Products 1,200 $5,000 INovember 30, 2023

City Commerce City, Colorado

Star Buds Lucky Ticket {1451 Cortez Street, Unit |[Products 2,700 $6,246 May 31, 2025
IA, Denver, Colorado

Star Buds Niwot 6924 N 79t St Niwot,  [Products 4,282 $6,779 INovember 30, 2023
Colorado

Star Buds LM MJC 7521 Ute Highway, Products 3,506 $7,000 November 31, 2022
Longmont, Colorado

Star Buds Arapahoe 14655 E. Arapahoe Road, |Products 5,300 $12,367 March 2, 2024
|Aurora, Colorado

Star Buds Aurora 10100 Montview Blvd, |Products 1,296 $6,250 March 2, 2024
|Aurora, Colorado

Star Buds Citi-Med 4228 York Street, Unit  [Products 14,381 $5,750 March 2, 2024
100, Denver Colorado

Star Buds Citi-Med 1640 East Evans Avenue, |[Products 560 $3,167 March 2, 2024
Denver Colorado

Star Buds Louisville 1156 W Dillon Rd Products 087 $3,300 December 31, 2022
Louisville, Colorado

Star Buds KEW 9000 Unit B Federal Blvd [Products 1,080 $7,500 June 12, 2027
Denver, Colorado

Star Buds Colorado 4690 Brighton Blvd LLC [Products 4,574 $7,250 March 2, 2024

[Health Consultants Brighton, Colorado

Star Buds Mountain 5238 W 44th Ave., Products 1,860 $5,000 March 2, 2024

IView 44th

Denver Colorado

It is anticipated that our current leases shall be sufficient for our needs for the foreseeable future.
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ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS.

On June 7, 2019, the Company filed a complaint against ACC Industries Inc. (“ACC”) and Building Management Company B, L.L.C., in state district court located in Clark
County, Nevada, alleging, amongst other causes of action, breach of contract, conversion, and unjust enrichment and seeking general, special and punitive damages in the
amount of $3,876,850. On July 17, 2019, the parties stipulated to stay the case in favor of arbitration. On February 25, 2020 ACC filed a counterclaim alleging breach of
contract, which the Company believes is without merit. The Company discovered new facts that lead it to believe that a related entity not previously named as a party to the
arbitration should be brought in as a party to the arbitration. Based upon the new facts, the Company filed a motion to amend the complaint to add new claims and the related
entity as a party. On September 1, 2020, the court ruled in favor of the Company and permitted the Company to amend the complaint to add the related entity. On September 1,
2020, the Company filed an amended complaint naming the related entity a party and added intentional misrepresentation, fraudulent inducement, civil conspiracy, aiding and
abetting, successor liability and fraudulent concealment claims. The Company began arbitration proceedings on November 2, 2020. The Company completed arbitration in
February 2021 and expects a decision in early April 2021.

On July 6, 2018, the Company filed a complaint in the Eight Judicial Court, Clark County, Nevada against Vegas Valley Growers (“VVG”). In the complaint, the Company
alleges breach by VVG of the Technologies License Agreement dated April 27, 2017 between the parties and seeks general, special and punitive damages in the amount of
$3,876,850. On August 28, 2018, VVG filed an Answer and Counterclaim against the Company. On August 2, 2019, a jury found in favor of the Company and awarded the
Company damages totaling $2,773,321. In March 2020, VVG filed its opening appeal brief. The Company’s response brief was due on May 15, 2020. After VVG filed its
opening brief in March 2020, the Company filed a Motion to Strike portions of the brief and record. Because a successful ruling on the Company’s motion may strike portions
of VVG’s brief or require VVG to refile it, the Company asked the court for an extension of the deadline to file the Company’s answering brief until the court renders its
decision on the motion, which VVG did not oppose. The Company will have 30 days to file its answering brief once the court enters an order on the Motion to Strike or 30 days
from when VVG files an amended opening brief and record. On August 27, 2020, the court ordered VVG to supplement its brief and the record. The Company filed its
answering brief on October 15, 2020. On October 27, 2020, the Company, in a joint request with VVG, filed a motion to extend its time to file its answering brief. The
Company filed its answering brief in January 2021. VVG’s reply brief is due on or before February 4, 2021. Once VVG’s reply brief is filed, the appeal will be fully briefed and
the parties will await either a notice of oral argument or a decision on the appeal.

On March 6, 2020, the Company’s former Chief Operating Officer, Joe Puglise, issued an arbitration demand against the Company claiming breach of contract and seeking
equity compensation and cash damages. The Company counterclaimed with breach of contract and breach of fiduciary duty claims for unspecified damages. The ultimate
resolution of the matter could result in a Company loss of up to $3,500,000 in stock-based compensation. The parties commenced arbitration on January 25, 2021 and
concluded it in March 2021.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES.

Not Applicable.
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PART II

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY
SECURITIES.

MARKET INFORMATION

We have one class of publicly traded stock which is our Common Stock. Quotation of our Common Stock commenced on the OTCQB on or about January 25, 2016. On or
about October 5, 2018, our Common Stock commenced quotation on the OTCQX. On April 20, 2020, the Company rebranded and conducts its business under the trade name,
Schwazze. The corporate name of the Company continues to be Medicine Man Technologies, Inc. Effective April 21, 2020, the Company commenced trading under the OTC

ticker symbol SHWZ.

As of March 26, 2021, the closing bid price of our Common Stock was $2.04. Any over-the-counter market quotations for our Common Stock reflect inter-dealer prices,
without retail mark-up, mark-down or commission, and may not necessarily represent actual transactions.

Trading volume in our Common Stock varies from day to day. Because we do not have a high number of shares issued and outstanding, or eligible to trade, we believe we will
continue to experience light volume that will expand over time as our revenues and profitability grow to sustainable levels. As a result, the trading price of our Common Stock
is subject to significant fluctuations in both volume and pricing.

HoLbERs

As of March 23, 2021, we had 215 holders of record of our Common Stock. The number of beneficial owners is substantially greater than the number of record holders because
a portion of our common shares is held of record through brokerage firms in “street name.”

Stock TRANSFER AGENT

The stock transfer agent for our securities is Globex Transfer, LLC, 780 Deltona Boulevard, Suite 202, Deltona, Florida 32725, telephone number, including area code: (813)
344-4490.

DivipENDS

The Company has not declared or paid any cash dividends on its Common Stock, and the Company does not anticipate doing so in the foreseeable future. The Company
currently intend to retain future earnings, if any, to operate its business and support its growth strategies. Any future determination to pay dividends on the Common Stock will
be at the discretion of the Company’s Board of Directors and will depend on the Company’s financial condition, results of operations, contractual restrictions, restrictions
imposed by applicable law, capital requirements and other factors that the Company’s Board of Directors deems relevant. Dividends on the Preferred Stock are payable in kind
in the form of an annual increase of the Preference Amount, not cash.

REPORTS

We are subject to certain reporting requirements and furnish annual financial reports to our stockholders, certified by our independent accountants, and furnish unaudited
quarterly financial reports in our quarterly reports filed electronically with the SEC. All reports and information filed by us can be found at the SEC website, www.sec.gov, as
well as on our website, www.schwazze.com.

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA.

As a smaller reporting company as defined in Rule 12b-2 promulgated under the Exchange Act, and in Item 10(f) of Regulation S-K, we are electing scaled disclosure reporting
obligations and therefore are not required to provide the information required by this item.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS.

REesuLts OF OPERATIONS

Comparison of Results of Operations for our fiscal years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019

Revenues

Revenues for the year ended December 31, 2020 totaled $24,000,852 including (i) product sales of $22,541,806 (ii) consulting and licensing fees of $1,425,778, and (iii) other
operating revenues of $33,268, compared to revenues of $12,400,955 including (i) product sales of $7,819,808, (ii) consulting and licensing fees of $4,550,106, of which
includes $1,782,457 in revenue awarded in litigation, and (iii) other operating revenues of $31,041 during the year ended December 31, 2019 representing an increase of
$11,599,987 or 93.54%. This increase was due to increased sale of our products as well as growth through acquisition.

Cost of Services

Cost of services for the year ended December 31, 2020 totaled $17,226,486, compared to cost of services of $7,616,221 during the year ended December 31, 2019 representing
an increase of $9,610,265 or 126.18%. This increase was due to increased sales of our products as well as growth through acquisition.

Operating Expenses

Operating expenses for the year ended December 31, 2020 totaled $29,677,305, compared to operating expenses of $21,866,651 during the year ended December 31, 2019
representing an increase of $7,810,653 or 35.72%. This increase was due to increased selling, general and administrative expenses, professional service fees, salaries, benefits
and related employment costs and non-cash, stock-based compensation.

Other Income (Expense), Net

Other income, net for the year ended December 31, 2020 totaled $2,587,069, compared to other expense, net of $476,756 during the year ended December 31, 2019
representing an increase of $3,063,826 or 642.64%. The increase in other income, net was due to a gain on forfeiture of contingent consideration, an unrealized gain on the
change in fair value of certain derivative liabilities, offset in part by unrealized loss on investment and increased interest expense.

Net Income (Loss)

As a result, we generated a net loss for the year ended December 31, 2020 of $19,416,761 or approximately $0.47 per share, compared to net loss of $16,975,742 or $0.50 per
share during the year ended December 31, 2019.

LiQuipity AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
As of December 31, 2020, we had cash and cash equivalents of $1,231,235.

Net cash provided by operating activities was $9,799,690 during the year ended December 31, 2020, compared to net cash used in operating activities of $7,553,965 during the
year ended December 31, 2019, representing an increase of $2,245,725.

Net cash used in investing activities was $33,219,140 during the year ended December 31, 2020, compared to net cash used in investing activities of $1,116,756 during the year

ended December 31, 2019, representing a decrease of $32,102,384. $6,779,307 of cash was used for the acquisition of Mesa Organics and $25,180,421 of cash was used for the
acquisition of the Star Buds assets.
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Net cash provided by financing activities was $31,901,882 during the year ended December 31, 2020, compared to net cash provided by financing activities of $20,202,560
during the year ended December 31, 2019, representing an increase of $7,202,437. The Company received $29,351,759 to fund the acquisition of the Star Buds assets,
$13,901,759 of which was deferred cash. During the year ended December 31, 2018, the Company received proceeds of $19,600,000 from the private sale of our Common
Stock and $602,500 from the exercise of Common Stock purchase warrants.

Upon successfully consummating our acquisition of the Star Buds banners, which we achieved in March 2021, and merging those operations into our own operations, we
believe we will generate positive cash flow from our operations. If we are successful in achieving this objective, we do not believe we will need to raise additional capital for
the ongoing operations, as we anticipate that the revenue generated from the fully integrated acquisitions will be sufficient to allow us run those businesses. However, if we do
not experience a positive impact on our operations from these acquisitions, or if unforeseen developments occur that negatively impact our cash flow, we may need to raise
additional capital to fund ongoing operations.

We will likely need to raise additional capital to fund our growth acquisition strategy. We may explore capital raising transactions in the form of debt, equity or both. At this
time, we are unable to state how much additional capital we may need. As of the date of this Report, we have no commitment from any investor or investment-banking firm to
provide us with any further funding. Further, no assurance can be given that any future financing will be available or, if available, that it will be on terms that are satisfactory to
the Company. Even if the Company can obtain additional financing, it may contain undue restrictions on our operations, in the case of debt financing or cause substantial
dilution for our stockholders, in case of equity financing. Failure to obtain this additional financing may have a material negative impact on our ability growth the company at
the pace we anticipate.

Critical Accounting Estimates and Recent Accounting Pronouncements

The discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations are based upon our financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with U.S.
GAAP. The preparation of these financial statements requires us to make estimates and judgments that affect the amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, and
related disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. On an on-going basis, we evaluate our estimates based on historical experience and on various other assumptions that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions. The Company believes that of its significant
accounting policies (see Note 2 of Notes to Financial Statements), the ones that may involve a higher degree of uncertainty, judgment and complexity are revenue recognition,
stock based compensation, derivative instruments, income taxes, goodwill and commitments and contingencies are the most important to the portrayal of our financial condition
and results of operations and that require management’s most difficult, subjective or complex judgments, often as a result of the need to make estimates about the effects of
matters that are inherently uncertain.

Revenue Recognition and Related Allowances

Our revenue recognition policy is significant because the amount and timing of revenue is a key component of our results of operations. Certain criteria are required to be met
in order to recognize revenue. If these criteria are not met, then the associated revenue is deferred until is the criteria are met. When consideration is received in advance of the
delivery of goods or services, a contract liability is recorded. Revenue contracts are identified when accepted from customers and represent a single performance obligation to
sell our products to a customer.

We have three main revenue streams: (i) product sales; (ii) licensing and consulting fees; and (iii) other operating revenues from revenues from seminars, reimbursements and
other miscellaneous sources.

Product sales are recorded at the time that control of the products is transferred to customers. In evaluating the timing of the transfer of control of products to customers, we

consider several indicators, including significant risks and rewards of products, our right to payment, and the legal title of the products. Based on the assessment of control
indicators, sales are generally recognized when products are delivered to customers.
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Revenue from licensing and consulting services is recognized when our obligations to our client are fulfilled which is determined when milestones in the contract are achieved.
Revenue from seminar fees is related to one-day seminars and is recognized as earned upon the completion of the seminar. We also recognize expense reimbursement from
clients as revenue for expenses incurred during certain jobs.

Stock Based Compensation

We account for share-based payments pursuant to Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) Topic 718, Stock Compensation and, accordingly, we record compensation
expense for share-based awards based upon an assessment of the grant date fair value for stock and restricted stock awards using the Black-Scholes option pricing model.

Stock compensation expense for stock options is recognized over the vesting period of the award or expensed immediately under ASC 718 and Emerging Issues Task Force
(“EITF”) 96-18 when stock or options are awarded for previous or current service without further recourse.

Share based expense paid through direct stock grants is expensed as occurred. Since our stock has become publicly traded, the value is determined based on the number of
shares issued and the trading value of the stock on the date of the transaction.

On June 20, 2018, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) 2018-07 which simplifies the accounting for share-based
payments granted to nonemployees for goods and services. Under the ASU, most of the guidance on such payments to nonemployees would be aligned with the requirements
for share-based payments granted to employees. Previously, share-based payment arrangements to nonemployees were accounted for under ASC 718, while nonemployee
share-based payments issued for goods and services were accounted for under ASC 505-50. Before the amendment, the major difference for us (but not limited to) was the
determination of measurement date which generally is the date on which the measurement of equity classified share-based payments becomes fixed. Equity classified share-
based payments for employees was fixed at the time of grant. Equity-classified nonemployee share-based payment awards are no longer measured at the earlier of the date
which a commitment for performance by the counterparty is reached or the date at which the counterparty’s performance is complete. They are now measured at the grant date
of the award which is the same as share-based payments for employees. We adopted the requirements of the new rule as of January 1, 2019, the effective date of the new
guidance.

Income Taxes

ASC 740, Income Taxes requires the use of the asset and liability method of accounting for income taxes. Under the asset and liability method of ASC 740, deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to temporary differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and
liabilities and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those
temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets
Goodwill represents the future economic benefit arising from other assets acquired that could not be individually identified and separately recognized. The goodwill arising
from our acquisitions is attributable to the value of the potential expanded market opportunity with new customers. Intangible assets have either an identifiable or indefinite

useful life. Intangible assets with identifiable useful lives are amortized on a straight-line basis over their economic or legal life, whichever is shorter. We amortizable intangible
assets consist of licensing agreements, product licenses and registrations, and intellectual property or trade secrets. Their estimated useful lives range from 10 to 15 years.
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Goodwill and indefinite-lived assets are not amortized but are subject to annual impairment testing unless circumstances dictate more frequent assessments. We perform an
annual impairment assessment for goodwill during the fourth quarter of each year and more frequently whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the fair value
of the asset may be less than the carrying amount. Goodwill impairment testing is a two-step process performed at the reporting unit level. Step one compares the fair value of
the reporting unit to its carrying amount. The fair value of the reporting unit is determined by considering both the income approach and market approaches. The fair values
calculated under the income approach and market approaches are weighted based on circumstances surrounding the reporting unit. Under the income approach, we determine
fair value based on estimated future cash flows of the reporting unit, which are discounted to the present value using discount factors that consider the timing and risk of cash
flows. For the discount rate, we rely on the capital asset pricing model approach, which includes an assessment of the risk-free interest rate, the rate of return from publicly
traded stocks, our risk relative to the overall market, our size and industry and other risks specific to us. Other significant assumptions used in the income approach include the
terminal value, growth rates, future capital expenditures and changes in future working capital requirements. The market approaches use key multiples from guideline
businesses that are comparable and are traded on a public market. If the fair value of the reporting unit is greater than its carrying amount, there is no impairment. If the
reporting unit’s carrying amount exceeds its fair value, then the second step must be completed to measure the amount of impairment, if any. Step two calculates the implied
fair value of goodwill by deducting the fair value of all tangible and intangible net assets of the reporting unit from the fair value of the reporting unit as calculated in step one.
In this step, the fair value of the reporting unit is allocated to all of the reporting unit’s assets and liabilities in a hypothetical purchase price allocation as if the reporting unit
had been acquired on that date. If the carrying amount of goodwill exceeds the implied fair value of goodwill, an impairment loss is recognized in an amount equal to the
excess.

Determining the fair value of a reporting unit is judgmental in nature and requires the use of significant estimates and assumptions, including revenue growth rates, strategic
plans, and future market conditions, among others. There can be no assurance that our estimates and assumptions made for purposes of the goodwill impairment testing will

prove to be accurate predictions of the future. Changes in assumptions and estimates could cause us to perform an impairment test prior to scheduled annual impairment tests.

We performed our annual fair value assessment at December 31, 2020, on our subsidiaries with material goodwill and intangible asset amounts on their respective balance
sheets and determined that no impairment exists.

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

We have not entered into any off-balance sheet arrangements that have or are reasonably likely to have a current or future effect on our financial condition, changes in financial
condition, revenues or expenses, results of operations, liquidity, capital expenditures or capital resources and would be considered material to investors.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK.
Not applicable.
ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA.

MEDICINE MAN TECHNOLOGIES INC.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
To the shareholders and the board of directors of Medicine Man Technologies, Inc.
Opinion on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Medicine Man Technologies, Inc. (the “Company”) as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the related
statements of operations, stockholders' equity, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes (collectively referred to as the "financial statements"). In our
opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, and the results of its
operations and its cash flows for the years then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.

Basis for Opinion

These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's financial statements based on our
audit. We are a public accounting firm registered with the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) ("PCAOB") and are required to be independent with
respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the
PCAOB.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. The Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an
audit of its internal control over financial reporting. As part of our audits we are required to obtain an understanding of internal control over financial reporting but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.

Our audit included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that
respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. Our audit also included
evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe
that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

/s/ BF Borgers CPA PC
BF Borgers CPA PC

We have served as the Company's auditor since 2016

Lakewood, CO
March 31, 2021
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MEDICINE MAN TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
Expressed in U.S. Dollars

Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts
Accounts receivable — related party
Inventory
Notes receivable - related party
Prepaid expenses
Prepaid acquisition costs
Total current assets

Non-current assets
Fixed assets, net of accumulated depreciation of $872,579 and $159,354, respectively
Goodwill
Intangible assets, net of accumulated amortization of $200,456 and $19,811, respectively
Marketable securities, net of unrealized loss of $129,992 and $1,792,569, respectively
Accounts receivable — litigation
Deferred tax assets, net
Notes receivable — noncurrent, net
Other non-current assets
Operating lease right of use assets
Total non-current assets

Total assets

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity

Current liabilities
Accounts payable
Accounts payable - related party
Accrued expenses
Derivative liabilities
Deferred revenue
Notes payable — related party
Income taxes payable
Total current liabilities

Long-term liabilities

Long term debt
Lease liabilities
Total long-term liabilities

Total liabilities
Commitments and contingencies (Note 11)

Shareholders’ equity

Preferred stock $0.001 par value. 10,000,000 authorized, 19,716 shares issued and outstanding December 31,
2020 and zero shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 2019, respectively.

Common stock $0.001 par value. 250,000,000 authorized, 42,601,773 shares issued and 42,169,041 outstanding
at December 31, 2020 and 39,952,626 shares issued and 39,694,894 outstanding at December 31, 2019,
respectively.

Additional paid-in capital

Accumulated deficit

Common stock held in treasury, at cost, 432,732 shares held at December 31, 2020 and 257,732 shares held at
2019, respectively

Total shareholders' equity

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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(42,293,098)

December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019
1,231,235 $ 11,853,627
1,270,380 313,317

80,494 72,658
2,619,145 684,940
181,911 767,695
614,200 529,416
- 1,347,462
5,997,365 15,569,115
2,584,798 239,078
53,046,729 12,304,306
3,082,044 75,289
276,782 406,774
3,063,968 3,063,968
- 268,423
- 241,711
51,879 -
2,579,036 59,943
64,685,236 16,659,492
70,682,601 $ 32,228,607
3,508,479 $ 699,961
48,982 15,372
2,705,445 1,091,204
1,047,481 3,773,382
50,000 -
5,000,000 -
- 1,940
12,360,386 5,581,859
13,901,759
2,645,597 66,803
16,547,356 66,803
28,907,742 5,648,662
20 -
42,602 39,953
85,357,835 50,356,469

(22,816,477)

(1,332,500) (1,000,000)
41,774,859 26,579,945
70,682,601  $ 32,228,607




MEDICINE MAN TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS) AND INCOME

Operating revenues
Product sales, net
Product sales - related party, net
Litigation revenue
Licensing and consulting fees
Other operating revenues
Total operating revenues
Cost of goods and services
Cost of goods and services
Total cost of goods and services
Gross profit
Operating expenses
Selling, general and administrative expenses
Professional services
Salaries, benefits, and related expenses
Stock-based compensation
Derivative expense - contingent compensation
Total operating expenses
(Loss) Income from operations
Other income (expense)
Bad debt expense
Gain on forfeiture of contingent consideration
Unrealized gain on derivative liabilities
Unrealized loss on marketable securities
Other income (expense)
Interest (expense) income, net
Total other expense
(Loss) income before income taxes
Provision for income tax (benefit) expense
Net (loss) income

Basic (loss) earnings per common share
Diluted (loss) earnings per common share

Weighted-average number of common shares outstanding:

Basic
Diluted

Comprehensive (loss) income

For the Years Ended December 31, 2020 and 2019
Expressed in U.S. Dollars

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, December 31,
2020 2019
21,371,408 $ 6,468,230
1,170,398 1,351,578
- 1,782,457
1,425,778 2,767,649
33,268 31,041
24,000,852 12,400,955
17,226,486 7,616,221
17,226,486 7,616,221
6,774,366 4,784,734
4,523,603 2,261,317
8,545,300 3,357,877
8,377,889 3,567,535
8,230,513 7,279,363
— 5,400,559
29,677,305 21,866,651
(22,902,939) (17,081,917)
- (151,169)
1,462,636 -
1,263,264 1,627,177
(129,992) (1,792,569)
32,621 -
(41,460) (160,195)
2,587,069 (476,756)
(20,315,870) (17,558,673)
(899,109) (582,931)
(19,416,761)  $ (16,975,742)
047) $ (0.50)
0.47) $ (0.50)
41,217,026 33,740,557
41,217,026 33,740,557
(19,416,761)  $ (16,975,742)




MEDICINE MAN TECHNOLOGIES INC.

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

For the Years Ended December 31, 2020 and 2019
Expressed in U.S. Dollars

Balance, December 31, 2018

Net loss

Issuance of common stock in connection
with sales made under private or public
offerings

Issuance of common stock in connection
with the exercise of common stock
purchase warrants

Issuance of common stock as
compensation to employees, officers,
directors and/or contractors

Return of common stock in lieu of
collection of certain accounts receivable

Stock-based compensation expense
related to stock options

Balance, December 31, 2019

Balance at, December 31, 2019

Net income (loss)

Issuance of stock as payment for
acquisitions

Return of common stock as
compensation to employees, officers
and/or directors

Issuance of common stock as
compensation to employees, officers,
and/or directors

Issuance of stock in connection with sales
made under private or public offerings

Dividends declared

Return of common stock

Stock based compensation expense
related to common stock options

Balance, December 31, 2020

Additional Paid- Total
Preferred Stock C Stock in Acc lated Treasury Stock Stockholders’
Shares Value Shares Value Capital Deficit Shares Cost Equity
-3 = 27,753,310 $ 27,875 $ 22,886,624 $ (5,840,735) -3 -3 17,073,764
- - - - - (16,975,742) - - (16,975,742)
— — 9,800,000 9,800 19,590,200 - — - 19,600,000
- - 485,543 365 602,195 - - - 602,560
— — 1,913,775 1,913 3,220,488 - — — 3,222,401
- - - - - - 257,732 (1,000,000) (1,000,000)
- - - - 4,056,962 - — — 4,056,962
-3 = 39,952,628 $ 39,953 $ 50,356,469 $ (22,816,477 257,732 § (1,000,000) $ 26,579,945
Additional Paid- Total
Preferred Stock C Stock in A lated Treasury Stock Stockholders’
Shares Value Shares Value Capital Deficit Shares Cost Equity
— 39,952,628 $ 39,953 $ 50,356,469 $ (22,816,477 257,732 § (1,000,000) $ 26,579,945
— — — (19,416,761) — — (19,416,761)
9,266 9 2,554,750 2,555 13,435,085 - - - 13,437,649
- - (500,000) (500) - - - - (500)
- - 406,895 407 496,895 - - - 497,301
10,450 11 187,500 187 12,838,873 — - - 12,839,071
= = = = = (59,860) = = (59,860)
- - - - - 175,000 (332,500) (332,500)
= = = 8,230,513 = = = 8,230,513
19,716 20 42,601,773 § 42,602 85,357,835 $  (42,099,098) 432,732 § (1,332,500) $ 41,774,859

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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MEDICINE MAN TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the Years Ended December 31, 2020 and 2019
Expressed in U.S. Dollars

Cash flows from operating activities of continuing operations:
Net (loss) income
Adjustments to reconcile net (loss) income to cash used in operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Deferred taxes
Derivative expense
Unrealized gain on derivative liabilities
Unrealized loss on marketable securities
Stock-based compensation
Other
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Inventory
Prepaid expenses
Other assets
Operating leases right of use assets and liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Deferred revenue
Income taxes payable
Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired
Repayment (issuance) of notes receivable
Purchase of fixed assets

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from issuance of stock, net of issuance costs and returns
Proceeds from issuance of notes payable, net
Proceeds from issuance of long term debt, net
Proceeds from exercise of common stock purchase warrants, net of issuance costs
Net cash provided by financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Cash paid for interest
Cash paid for income taxes

Supplemental disclosure of non-cash investing and financing activities:
Common stock issued in connection with long term service contracts
Return of common stock

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

F-5

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, December 31,
2020 2019
(19,416,761)  $ (16,975,742)
476,592 61,708
268,423 (268,423)
- 5,400,559
(2,725,901) (1,627,176)
129,992 1,792,569
8,230,513 7,184,363
- 151,169
874,616 (3,361,194)
781,512 (195,701)
(84,784) (383,592)
(51,879) -
59,701 6,860
1,610,226 1,241,626
50,000 -
(1,940) (580,991)
(9,799,690) (7,553,965)
(33,278,462) -
827,495 (916,518)
(768,173) (200,238)
(33,219,140) (1,116,756)
12,625,312 19,600,000
5,000,000 -
13,901,759 -
374,810 602,560
31,901,882 20,202,560
(11,116,948) 11,531,839
12,348,183 321,788
1,231,235 $ 11,853,627
41,565 $ 192,107
= $ 268,423
- $ 95,000
332,500 $ 1,000,000




MEDICINE MAN TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Organization and Nature of Operations

Business Description — Business Activity

We were incorporated in Nevada on March 20, 2014. On May 1, 2014, we entered into an exclusive Technology License Agreement with Medicine Man Denver whereby
Medicine Man Denver granted us a license to use all of their proprietary processes they have developed, implemented and practiced at their cannabis facilities relating to the
commercial growth, cultivation, marketing and distribution of medical marijuana and recreational marijuana pursuant to relevant state laws and the right to use and to license
such information, including trade secrets, skills and experience (present and future).

In 2017, the Company acquired additional cultivation intellectual property through the acquisition of Success Nutrients™ and Pono Publications, including the rights to the
book titled “Three A Light” and its associated cultivation techniques, which have been part of the Company’s products and services offerings since the acquisition. The
Company acquired Two J’s LLC d/b/a The Big Tomato (“Big T or The Big Tomato”) in 2018, which operates a retail location in Aurora, Colorado. It has been a leading
supplier of hydroponics and indoor gardening supplies in the metro Denver area since May 2001. The Company was focused on cannabis dispensary and cultivation consulting
and providing equipment and nutrients to cannabis cultivators until its first plant touching acquisition in April of 2020. In 2019, due to the changes in Colorado law permitting
non-Colorado resident and publicly traded investment into “plant-touching” cannabis companies, the Company made a strategic decision to move toward direct plant-touching
operations. The Company developed a plan to roll up a number of direct plant-touching dispensaries, manufacturing facilities, and cannabis cultivations with a target to be one
of the largest seed to sale cannabis businesses in Colorado. In April 2020 the Company acquired its first plant-touching business, Mesa Organics, which consists of four
dispensaries and one MIP, d/b/a Purplebee’s.

On April 20, 2020, the Company rebranded and conducts its business under the trade name, Schwazze. The corporate name of the Company continues to be Medicine Man
Technologies, Inc. Effective April 21, 2020, the Company commenced trading under the OTC ticker symbol SHWZ.

On December 17, 2020, the Company closed on the acquisition of (i) Starbuds Pueblo LLC; and (ii) Starbuds Alameda LLC. On December 18, 2020, the Company closed on
the acquisition of (i) Starbuds Commerce City LLC; (ii) Lucky Ticket LLC; (iii) Starbuds Niwot LLC; and (iv) LM MJC LLC under the applicable APAs.

On February 4, 2021, the Company acquired the assets of Colorado Health Consultants LLC and Mountain View 44th LLC under the applicable APAs.

On March 2, 2021, the Company acquired the assets of (i) Starbuds Aurora LLC, (ii) SB Arapahoe LLC, (iii) Citi-Med LLC, (iv) Starbuds Louisville LLC and (v) KEW LLC
under the applicable APAs.

From December 2020 through March 2021 the Company completed a private placement of Series A Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock (“Preferred Stock™) for aggregate
gross proceeds of $57.7 million dollars. In the private placement, the Company issued and sold an aggregate of 57,700 shares of Preferred Stock at a price of $1,000 per share
under securities purchase agreement with Dye Capital and CRW managed funds as well as subscription agreements with unaffiliated investors. Among other terms, each share
of Preferred Stock (i) earns an annual dividend of 8% on the “preference amount,” which initially is equal to the $1,000 per-share purchase price and subject to increase, by
having such dividends automatically accrete to, and increase, the outstanding preference amount; (ii) is entitled to a liquidation preference under certain circumstances, (iii) is
convertible into shares of the Company’s Common Stock by dividing the preference amount by $1.20 per share under certain circumstances, and (iv) is subject to a redemption
right or obligation under certain circumstances.

In addition, on December 16, 2020, the Company issued and sold a Convertible Promissory Note and Security Agreement in the original principal amount of $5,000,000 to Dye
Capital & Company, LLC. On February 26, 2021, Dye Capital & Company, LLC converted all outstanding amounts under the note into 5,060 shares of Preferred Stock.

The Company is focused on growing through internal growth, acquisition, and new licenses in the Colorado cannabis market. The Company is focused on building the premier
vertically integrated cannabis company in Colorado. The company's leadership team has deep expertise in mainstream consumer packaged goods, retail, and product
development at Fortune 500 companies as well as in the cannabis sector. The Company has a high-performance culture and a focus on analytical decision making, supported by
data. Customer-centric thinking inspires the Company’s strategy and provides the foundation for the Company’s operational playbooks.

F-6




1. Liquidity and Capital Resources

During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Company primarily used revenues from its operations supplemented by cash to fund its operations.

Cash and cash equivalents are carried at cost or amortized cost and represent cash on hand, deposits placed with banks or other financial institutions and all highly liquid
investments with an original maturity of three months or less as of the purchase date. The Company had $1,231,235 and $11,853,627 classified as cash and cash equivalents as

of December 31, 2020, and December 31, 2019, respectively.

The Company maintains its cash balances with high-credit-quality financial institutions. At times, such cash may be more than the insured limit of $250,000. The Company has
not experienced any losses in such accounts, and management believes the Company is not exposed to any significant credit risk on its cash and cash equivalents.

The following table depicts the composition of the Company’s cash and cash equivalents as of December 31, 2020 and 2019:

December 31, December 31,
2019 2019
Deposits placed with banks $ 1,231,235 $ 736,101
United States Treasury Bill - 11,117,526
Total cash and cash equivalents $ 1,231,235 $ 11,853,627
2. Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Basis of Presentation

These accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP and pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange
Commission (“SEC”) for annual financial statements.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported therein. Due
to the inherent uncertainty involved in making estimates, actual results reported in future periods may be based upon amounts that differ from these estimates.

Reclassifications

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation. These reclassifications had no impact on the Company’s net (loss) earnings and
financial position.

Fair Value Measurements
Fair value is defined as the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an exit price) in the principal or most advantageous market for the
asset or liability, in an orderly transaction between market participants on the measurement date. Valuation techniques used to measure fair value must maximize the use of

observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. The fair value hierarchy is based on three levels of inputs, of which the first two are considered observable and
the last unobservable, as follows:
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Level 1 — Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — Inputs other than Level 1 that are observable, either directly or indirectly, such as quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities; quoted prices in markets that
are not active; or other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data for substantially the full term of the assets or liabilities.

Level 3 — Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are significant to the measurement of the fair value of the assets or liabilities.

The Company’s financial instruments include cash, accounts receivable, note receivable, accounts payables and tenant deposits. The carrying values of these financial
instruments approximate their fair value due to their short maturities. The carrying amount of the Company’s debt approximates fair value because the interest rates on these
instruments approximate the interest rate on debt with similar terms available to us. The Company’s derivative liability was adjusted to fair market value at the end of the year,
using Level 3 inputs.

The following is the Company’s assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring and nonrecurring basis at December 31, 2020 and 2019, using quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets (Level 1), significant other observable inputs (Level 2), and significant unobservable inputs (Level 3):

December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019
Level 1 — Marketable Securities Available-for-Sale — Recurring $ 276,782 $ 406,774

Marketable Securities at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis

Certain assets are measured at fair value on a recurring basis. The Level 1 position consists of an investment in equity securities held in Canada House Wellness Group, Inc., a
publicly-traded company whose securities are actively quoted on the Toronto Stock Exchange.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying amounts of cash and current assets and liabilities approximate fair value because of the short-term maturity of these items. These fair value estimates are
subjective in nature and involve uncertainties and matters of significant judgment and, therefore, cannot be determined with precision. Changes in assumptions could
significantly affect these estimates. Available-for-sale securities are recorded at current market value as of the date of this report.

Accounts Receivable
The Company extends unsecured credit to its customers in the ordinary course of business. Accounts receivable related to consulting revenues are recorded when a milestone is
reached at a point in time resulting in funds being due for delivered services, and where payment is reasonably assured. Accounts receivable related to consulting revenues are

recorded based on cultivation yields over time on harvested cannabis. Consulting revenues are generally collected from 30 to 60 days after the invoice is sent.

The following table depicts the composition of our accounts receivable as of December 31, 2020 and 2019:

December 31, December 31,
2020 2019
Accounts receivable — trade $ 1,315,188 $ 384,202
Accounts receivable — related party 80,494 72,658
Accounts receivable — litigation, non-current 3,063,968 3,063,968
Allowance for doubtful accounts (44,808) (70,885)
Total accounts receivable $ 4,414,842 $ 3,449,943

F-8




The Company establishes an allowance for doubtful accounts based on management’s assessment of the collectability of trade receivables. A considerable amount of judgment
is required in assessing the amount of the allowance. The Company makes judgments about the creditworthiness of each customer based on ongoing credit evaluations and
monitors current economic trends that might impact the level of credit losses in the future. If the financial condition of the customers were to deteriorate, resulting in their
inability to make payments, a specific allowance will be required. At December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Company recorded an allowance for doubtful accounts of $44,808 and
$70,885, respectively.

Recovery of bad debt amounts previously written off is recorded as a reduction of bad debt expense in the period the payment is collected. If the Company’s actual collection
experience changes, revisions to its allowance may be required. After all attempts to collect a receivable have failed, the receivable is written off against the allowance. The
Company wrote-off $16,798 of its accounts receivable during the year ended December 31, 2020. The Company wrote-off $80,284 of its accounts receivable during the year
ended December 31, 2019.

In July 2018, the Company commenced legal action against a customer in Clark County, Nevada for breach of contract, adding a significant value to its receivables for fees that
had been booked, due to forbearance grants by the Company that were subsequently violated, causing the Company to increase its receivables accordingly. The Company
provided services to this customer for a period of thirteen months, agreeing conditionally to three modifications in December 2017, March 2018 and May 2018 to forego certain
revenue sharing payments in accordance with the agreement with the customer, which were subsequently breached by the customer. As a result, the Company engaged legal
counsel and filed a complaint in Clark County, Nevada, which alleged breach of contract and sought general, special and punitive damages in the amount of $3,876,850.

On August 2, 2019, a jury in the District Court of Clark County, Nevada found in favor of the Company and awarded the Company damages totaling $2,773,321 (See Part II,
Item 1, Legal Proceedings for more information). The Company has classified the awarded amount receivable as a non-current asset since the customer has subsequently filed
an appeal. Considering this customer’s appeal, the Company sought to compel the customer to obtain and produce a bond securing the award. On December 13, 2019, proof of
the bond was posted through United States Fire Insurance Company, naming the Company as the obligee.

At December 31, 2020 and 2019, the accounts receivable for this matter totaled $2,773,321, and the related revenue recorded totaled $0 and $1,782,457 for the years ended
December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

The Company analyzed the contract, associated revenue and litigation process under Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers.
As detailed above, the Company had a contract with the customer that identified distinct performance obligations to be satisfied over time. Additionally, it determined that the

litigation process and subsequent award represented a contract modification.

Paragraph 606-10-25 states that an entity transfers control of a good or service over time and, therefore, satisfies a performance obligation and recognizes revenue over time if
one of the following criteria is met:

The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the entity’s performance as the entity performs.
The entity’s performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced.

The entity’s performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the entity, and the entity has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date.
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Paragraph 606-10-25 further states that the process for determining the proper treatment for a contract modification includes three steps:
Determine whether a change to a contract qualifies as a contract modification.

Determine whether the modification should be treated as a separate, standalone contract or as a modification of the original contract. If the contract is a separate contract,
the entity follows the five-step model to determine how to recognize revenue. If the modification is not treated as a separate contract, the entity continues to Step 3.

Determine appropriate accounting treatment for contract modification not accounted for as a separate contract.

ASC 606 defines a contract modification as a change in scope and/or price to an original contract or any change to the enforceable rights and obligations of the parties to the
original contract. Enforceable rights and obligations are those that are approved by both parties and legally required. A contract modification does not need to be written;
enforceable changes can be the result of oral agreements or implied through customary business practices.

The effect that the modification has on the transaction price and on the entity’s measure of progress towards satisfaction of the performance obligation is recognized as an
adjustment to revenue either as an increase in or a reduction of revenue at the date of the modification. The adjustment to revenue is made on a cumulative catch-up basis.

As management determined that the litigation process constituted a contract modification, and that the contract was upheld judicially, the Company recognized and recorded
$1,782,457 on a cumulative catch-up basis as of August 2, 2019.

On June 7, 2019, the Company filed a complaint against a second customer in Clark County, Nevada, for, amongst other causes of action, breach of contract. On July 17, 2019,
the parties stipulated to stay the case in favor of arbitration. On February 25, 2020 ACC Industries Inc. filed a counterclaim alleging breach of contract, which the Company
believes is without merit. The Company discovered new facts that lead it to believe that a related entity not previously named as a party to the arbitration should be brought in
as a party to the arbitration. Based upon the new facts, the Company filed a motion to amend the complaint to add new claims and the related entity as a party. On September 1,
2020, the court ruled in favor of the Company and permitted the Company to amend the complaint to add the related entity. On September 1, 2020, the Company filed an
amended complaint naming the related entity a party and added intentional misrepresentation, fraudulent inducement, civil conspiracy, aiding and abetting, successor liability
and fraudulent concealment claims. The Company began arbitration proceedings on November 2, 2020. The Company completed arbitration in February 2021 and expects a
decision in early April 2021. As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the accounts receivable for this matter totaled $290,648.

Notes Receivable

On July 17, 2018, the Company entered into an intellectual property license agreement with Abba Medix Corp. (AMC), a wholly-owned subsidiary of publicly-traded Canada
House Wellness Group, Inc. (CHV). The Company agreed to provide a lending facility to AMC in CAD$125,000 increments of up to CAD$500,000. The lending facility is for
a term of 36 months and bears interest at a rate of 2%. As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Company had loaned to AMC a total of $246,765 and $241,711, respectively.
The Company classified these loans as long-term notes receivable on its consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2019. As of December 31, 2020, the Company has
recorded a full allowance on the note receivable balance.

Other Assets (Current and Non-Current)

Other assets at December 31, 2020 and 2019 were $666,079 and $529,416, respectively.

At December 31, 2020, other assets included $345,777 in prepaid expenses, $268,423 in tax receivable, and $51,879 in security deposits. Prepaid expenses were primarily
comprised of insurance premiums, vendor prepayments, and prepaid software costs.

F-10




At December 31, 2019, other assets included $480,881 in prepaid expenses, $21,085 in interest receivable and $27,450 in security deposits.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Goodwill represents the future economic benefit arising from other assets acquired that could not be individually identified and separately recognized. The goodwill arising
from the Company’s acquisitions is attributable to the value of the potential expanded market opportunity with new customers. Intangible assets have either an identifiable or
indefinite useful life. Intangible assets with identifiable useful lives are amortized on a straight-line basis over their economic or legal life, whichever is shorter. The Company’s
amortizable intangible assets consist of licensing agreements, product licenses and registrations, and intellectual property or trade secrets. Their estimated useful lives range
from 10 to 15 years.

Goodwill and indefinite-lived assets are not amortized but are subject to annual impairment testing unless circumstances dictate more frequent assessments. The Company
performs an annual impairment assessment for goodwill at the end of each calendar year and more frequently whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the fair
value of the asset may be less than the carrying amount. Goodwill impairment testing is a two-step process performed at the reporting unit level. Step one compares the fair
value of the reporting unit to its carrying amount. The fair value of the reporting unit is determined by considering both the income approach and market approaches. The fair
values calculated under the income approach and market approaches are weighted based on circumstances surrounding the reporting unit. Under the income approach, the
Company determines fair value based on estimated future cash flows of the reporting unit, which are discounted to the present value using discount factors that consider the
timing and risk of cash flows. For the discount rate, the Company relies on the capital asset pricing model approach, which includes an assessment of the risk-free interest rate,
the rate of return from publicly traded stocks, the Company’s risk relative to the overall market, the Company’s size and industry and other Company-specific risks. Other
significant assumptions used in the income approach include the terminal value, growth rates, future capital expenditures and changes in future working capital requirements.
The market approaches use key multiples from guideline businesses that are comparable and are traded on a public market. If the fair value of the reporting unit is greater than
its carrying amount, there is no impairment. If the reporting unit’s carrying amount exceeds its fair value, then the second step must be completed to measure the amount of
impairment, if any. Step two calculates the implied fair value of goodwill by deducting the fair value of all tangible and intangible net assets of the reporting unit from the fair
value of the reporting unit as calculated in step one. In this step, the fair value of the reporting unit is allocated to all of the reporting unit’s assets and liabilities in a hypothetical
purchase price allocation as if the reporting unit had been acquired on that date. If the carrying amount of goodwill exceeds the implied fair value of goodwill, an impairment
loss is recognized in an amount equal to the excess.

Determining the fair value of a reporting unit is judgmental in nature and requires the use of significant estimates and assumptions, including revenue growth rates, strategic
plans and future market conditions, among others. There can be no assurance that the Company’s estimates and assumptions made for purposes of the goodwill impairment
testing will prove to be accurate predictions of the future. Changes in assumptions and estimates could cause the Company to perform an impairment test prior to scheduled
annual impairment tests.

The Company performed its annual fair value assessment at December 31, 2020 on its reporting units and subsidiary with material goodwill and intangible asset amounts on
their respective balance sheets and determined that no impairment exists.

Long-Lived Assets
The Company evaluates the recoverability of its long-lived assets whenever events or changes in circumstances have indicated that an asset may not be recoverable. Long-lived
assets are grouped with other assets at the lowest level for which identifiable cash flows are largely independent of the cash flows of other groups of assets and liabilities. If the

sum of the projected undiscounted cash flows is less than the carrying value of the assets, the assets are written down to the estimated fair value.

The Company evaluated the recoverability of its long-lived assets at December 31, 2020 on its reporting units and subsidiary with material amounts on their respective balance
sheets and determined that no impairment exists.
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Accounts Payable

Accounts payable at December 31, 2020 and 2019 were $3,557,461 and $699,961, respectively, and were comprised of trade payables for various purchases and services
rendered during the ordinary course of business.

Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilities

Accrued expenses and other liabilities at December 31, 2020 and 2019 were $2,705,445 and $1,091,204, respectively.

At December 31, 2020, accrued expenses and other liabilities was comprised of customer deposits of $26,826, accrued payroll of $1,154,887, and operating expenses of
$1,523,732.

At December 31, 2019, accrued expenses and other liabilities was comprised of customer deposits of $148,109, accrued payroll of $714,220, and operating expenses of
$228,875.

Revenue Recognition and Related Allowances

The Company’s revenue recognition policy is significant because the amount and timing of revenue is a key component of its results of operations. Certain criteria are required
to be met in order to recognize revenue. If these criteria are not met, then the associated revenue is deferred until the criteria are met. When consideration is received in advance
of the delivery of goods or services, a contract liability is recorded. Revenue contracts are identified when accepted from customers and represent a single performance
obligation to sell the Company’s products to a customer.

The Company has three main revenue streams: (i) product sales; (ii) licensing and consulting fees; and (iii) other operating revenues from seminars, reimbursements and other
miscellaneous sources.

Product sales are recorded at the time that control of the products is transferred to customers. In evaluating the timing of the transfer of control of products to customers, the
Company considers several indicators, including significant risks and rewards of products, its right to payment, and the legal title of the products. Based on the assessment of

control indicators, sales are generally recognized when products are delivered to customers.

Revenue from licensing and consulting fees are recognized when the obligations to the client are fulfilled which is determined when milestones in the contract are achieved and
target harvest yields are exceeded.

Revenue from seminar fees is related to one-day seminars and is recognized as earned upon the completion of the seminar. The Company also recognizes expense
reimbursement from clients as revenue for expenses incurred during certain jobs.

Costs of Goods and Services Sold

Costs of goods and services sold are comprised of related expenses incurred while supporting the implementation and sales of Company’s products and services.
General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expense are comprised of all expenses not linked to the production or advertising of the Company’s products or services.
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Advertising and Marketing Costs

Advertising and marketing costs are expensed as incurred and totaled $1,040,671 and $455,047 for years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company accounts for share-based payments pursuant to ASC 718, Stock Compensation and, accordingly, the Company records compensation expense for share-based
awards based upon an assessment of the grant date fair value for stock and restricted stock awards using the Black-Scholes option pricing model.

Stock compensation expense for stock options is recognized over the vesting period of the award or expensed immediately under ASC 718 and Emerging Issues Task Force
(“EITF”) 96-18 when stock or options are awarded for previous or current service without further recourse.

Share-based expense paid to through direct stock grants is expensed as occurred. Since the Company’s stock is publicly traded, the value is determined based on the number of
shares issued and the over-the-counter quoted value of the stock on the date of the transaction.

On June 20, 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-07 which simplifies the accounting for share-based payments granted to nonemployees for goods and services. Under the ASU,
most of the guidance on such payments to nonemployees would be aligned with the requirements for share-based payments granted to employees. Previously, share-based
payment arrangements to nonemployees were accounted for under ASC 718, while nonemployee share-based payments issued for goods and services were accounted for under
ASC 505-50. Before the ASU, the major difference for the Company (but not limited to) was the determination of measurement date, which generally is the date on which the
measurement of equity classified share-based payments becomes fixed. Equity classified share-based payments for employees was fixed at the time of grant. Equity-classified
nonemployee share-based payment awards are no longer measured at the earlier of the date which a commitment for performance by the counterparty is reached or the date at
which the counterparty’s performance is complete. They are now measured at the grant date of the award, which is the same as share-based payments for employees. The
Company adopted the requirements of the new rule as of January 1, 2019, the effective date of the new guidance.

The Company recognized $8,230,513 and $7,279,363 in expense for stock-based compensation to directors, employees and consultants during the years ended December 31,
2020 and 2019, respectively.

Income Taxes

ASC 740, Income Taxes requires the use of the asset and liability method of accounting for income taxes. Under the asset and liability method of ASC 740, deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to temporary differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and
liabilities and their respective tax bases.

Deferred tax assets are regularly assessed to determine the likelihood they will be recovered from future taxable income. A valuation allowance is established when we believe
it is more likely than not the future realization of all or some of a deferred tax asset will not be achieved. In evaluating our ability to recover deferred tax assets within the
jurisdiction which they arise, we consider all available positive and negative evidence. Factors reviewed include the cumulative pre-tax book income for the past three years,
scheduled reversals of deferred tax liabilities, our history of earnings and reliability of our forecasts, projections of pre-tax book income over the foreseeable future, and the
impact of any feasible and prudent tax planning strategies.

The Company assesses all material positions taken in any income tax return, including all significant uncertain positions, in all tax years that are still subject to assessment or
challenge by relevant taxing authorities. Assessing an uncertain tax position begins with the initial determination of the position’s sustainability, and the tax benefit to be
recognized is measured at the largest amount of benefit that is greater than 50 percent likely of being realized upon ultimate settlement. We recognize the impact of a tax
position in our financial statements only if that position is more likely than not of being sustained upon examination by taxing authorities, based on the technical merits of the
position. Tax authorities regularly examine our returns in the jurisdictions in which we do business and we regularly assess the tax risk of our return filing positions. Due to the
complexity of some of the uncertainties, the ultimate resolution may result in payments that are materially different from our current estimate of the tax liability. These
differences, as well as any interest and penalties, will be reflected in the provision for income taxes in the period in which they are determined.
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As the Company operates in the cannabis industry, it is subject to the limits of the Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section 280E under which the Company is only allowed to
deduct expenses directly related to sales of product. This results in permanent differences between ordinary and necessary business expenses deemed non-allowable under IRC
Section 280E.

Right of Use Assets and Lease Liabilities

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842). The standard requires lessees to recognize almost all leases on the balance sheet as a Right-of-Use
(“ROU”) asset and a lease liability and requires leases to be classified as either an operating or a finance type lease. The standard excludes leases of intangible assets or
inventory. The standard became effective for the Company beginning January 1, 2019. The Company adopted ASC 842 using the modified retrospective approach, by applying
the new standard to all leases existing at the date of initial application. Results and disclosure requirements for reporting periods beginning after January 1, 2019 are presented
under ASC 842, while prior period amounts have not been adjusted and continue to be reported in accordance with our historical accounting under ASC 840. The Company
elected the package of practical expedients permitted under the standard, which also allowed the Company to carry forward historical lease classifications. The Company also
elected the practical expedient related to treating lease and non-lease components as a single lease component for all equipment leases as well as electing a policy exclusion
permitting leases with an original lease term of less than one year to be excluded from the ROU assets and lease liabilities.

Under ASC 842, the Company determines if an arrangement is a lease at inception. ROU assets and liabilities are recognized at commencement date based on the present value
of remaining lease payments over the lease term. For this purpose, the Company considers only payments that are fixed and determinable at the time of commencement. As
most of the Company's leases do not provide an implicit rate, the Company estimated the incremental borrowing rate in determining the present value of lease payments. The
ROU asset also includes any lease payments made prior to commencement and is recorded net of any lease incentives received. The Company’ lease terms may include options
to extend or terminate the lease when it is reasonably certain that the Company will exercise such options.

Operating leases are included in operating lease Right-of-Use assets and operating lease liabilities, current and non-current, on the Company's consolidated balance sheets.
3. Recent Accounting Pronouncements

The Company has implemented all new accounting pronouncements that are in effect and that may impact its financial statements and does not believe that there are any other
new pronouncements that have been issued that might have a material impact on its financial position or results of operations except as noted below:

FASB ASU 2017-01, Clarifying the Definition of a Business (Topic 805) — In January 2017, the FASB issued 2017-01. The new guidance that changes the definition of a
business to assist entities with evaluating when a set of transferred assets and activities is a business. The guidance requires an entity to evaluate if substantially all of the fair
value of the gross assets acquired is concentrated in a single identifiable asset or a group of similar identifiable assets; if so, the set of transferred assets and activities is not a
business. The guidance also requires a business to include at least one substantive process and narrows the definition of outputs by more closely aligning it with how outputs
are described in ASC 606. The ASU is effective for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2017, and for interim periods within those years. Adoption of this
ASU did not have a significant impact on the Company’s consolidated results of operations, cash flows and financial position.

In December 2019, the FASB issued ASU 2019-12, Income Taxes (Topic 740), which enhances and simplifies various aspects of the income tax accounting guidance, including
requirements such as tax basis step-up in goodwill obtained in a transaction that is not a business combination, ownership changes in investments, and interim-period
accounting for enacted changes in tax law. The amendment will be effective for public companies with fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2020; early adoption is
permitted. The Company is evaluating the impact of this amendment on its consolidated financial statements.

In February 2020, the FASB issued ASU 2020-02, Financial Instruments-Credit Losses (Topic 326) and Leases (Topic 842) - Amendments to SEC Paragraphs Pursuant to SEC
Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 119 and Update to SEC Section on Effective Date Related to Accounting Standards Update No. 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842), which amends the
effective date of the original pronouncement for smaller reporting companies. ASU 2016-13 and its amendments will be effective for the Company for interim and annual
periods in fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2022. The Company believes the adoption will modify the way the Company analyzes financial instruments, but it does
not anticipate a material impact on results of operations. The Company is in the process of determining the effects adoption will have on its consolidated financial statements.
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4. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and are comprised of the following:

December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019

Furniture and fixtures $ 228,451 $ 98,903
Leasehold improvements 90,314 40,953
Machinery and tools 1,456,752 34,000
Office equipment 104,059 33,833
Software 1,308,387 -
Work in process 269,414 190,743

3,457,377 398,432
Less: accumulated depreciation (872,579) (159,354)
Total property and equipment, net of depreciation $ 2,584,798 $ 239,078
Depreciation on equipment is recorded on a straight-line basis over the following expected useful:
Furniture and fixtures 3 years
Leasehold improvements Lesser of the lease term or estimated useful life
Marketing display 3 years
Vehicles 3 years
Office equipment 3 years
Software 3-5 years

Depreciation expense for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 was $295,947 and $55,800, respectively.
S. Intangible Asset
Intangible assets at December 31, 2020 and 2019 were comprised of the following:

December 31,

December 31,

2020 2019

License agreement $ 1,667,000 $ 5,300
Tradename 350,000 -
Customer relationships 1,055,000 -
Non-compete 120,000 -
Product license and registration 57,300 57,300
Trade secret — intellectual property 32,500 32,500

3,282,500 95,100
Less: accumulated amortization (200,456) (19,811)
Total intangible assets, net of amortization $ 3,082,044 $ 75,289

Amortization expense for years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 was $180,644 and $5,908, respectively.
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6. Derivative Liabilities

During the year ended December 31, 2019, the Company entered into employment agreements with certain key officers that contained contingent consideration provisions
based upon the achievement of certain market condition milestones. The Company determined that each of these vesting conditions represented derivative instruments.

On January 8, 2019, the Company granted the right to receive 500,000 shares of restricted Common Stock to an officer, which will vest at such time that that the Company’s
stock price appreciates to $8.00 per share with defined minimum average daily trading volume thresholds.

On April 23, 2019, the Company granted the right to receive 1,000,000 shares of restricted Common Stock to an officer, which will vest at such time that that the Company’s
stock price appreciates to $8.00 per share with defined minimum average daily trading volume thresholds. On February 25, 2020, the officer resigned from his remaining
positions with the Company and forfeited his right to the contingent consideration. As a result, the Company recorded a gain of $1,462,636 as a component of other income
(expense), net on its financial statements.

On June 11, 2019, the Company granted the right to receive 1,000,000 shares of restricted Common Stock to an officer, which will vest at such time that the Company’s stock
price appreciates to $8.00 per share with defined minimum average daily trading volume thresholds.

The Company accounts for derivative instruments in accordance with the U.S. GAAP accounting guidance under ASC 815 Derivatives and Hedging Activities. The Company
estimated the fair value of these derivatives at the respective balance sheet dates using the Black-Scholes option pricing model based upon the following inputs: (i) stock price
on the date of grant ranging between $1.32 - $3.75, (ii) the contractual term of the derivative instrument ranging between 2.25 - 3 years, (iii) a risk-free interest rate ranging
between 1.87% - 2.57% and (iv) an expected volatility of the price of the underlying Common Stock ranging between 145% - 158%.

As of December 31, 2020, the fair value of these derivative liabilities is $1,047,481. The change in the fair value of derivative liabilities for the year ended December 31, 2020
was $1,263,264, resulting in an aggregate unrealized gain on derivative liabilities.

7. Related Party Transactions
For the year ended December 31, 2020

During the year ended December 31, 2019, the Company’s Chief Cultivation Officer, Joshua Haupt, who currently owns 20% of both Super Farm and De Best, customers of the
Company, was an Officer of the Company and therefore a related party. Effective December 4, 2019, he was no longer an Officer and therefore no longer a related party. As
such, he is not included as a related party with respect to sales and accounts receivable to Super Farm or De Best during the period ended December 31, 2020.

During the year ended December 31, 2020, the Company had sales from Medicine Man Denver, a customer of the Company, totaling $997,262. As of December 31, 2020, the
Company had an accounts receivable balance with Medicine Man Denver totaling $72,109. The Company’s former Chief Executive Officer, Andy Williams, maintains an
ownership interest in Medicine Man Denver.

During the year ended December 31, 2020, the Company had sales from MedPharm Holdings LLC (“MedPharm™), a customer of the Company, totaling $73,557. As of
December 31, 2020, the Company had a net accounts receivable balance with MedPharm totaling $5,885. On August 1, 2020, the Company entered into a Settlement
Agreement and Mutual Release (the “Settlement Agreement”) with MedPharm. Pursuant to the terms of the Settlement Agreement, the Company and MedPharm agreed that
the amount of the settlement to be furnished to the Company by MedPharm shall be $767,695 in principal and $47,161 in accrued interest. The Company received a $100,000
cash payment from MedPharm on August 1, 2020. On September 4, 2020, Andrew Williams, a member of the MedPharm Board of Directors and the Company’s former Chief
Executive Officer, returned 175,000 shares of the Company’s Common Stock to the Company, as equity consideration at a price of $1.90 per share, a mutually agreed upon
price per share. These shares are held in treasury. The remaining outstanding principal and interest of $181,911 due and payable by MedPharm under the Settlement Agreement
will be paid out in bi-weekly installments of product by scheduled deliveries through March 31, 2021.
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During the year ended December 31, 2020, the Company recorded sales from Baseball 18, LLC totaling $14,605, Farm Boy, LLC totaling $16,125, Emerald Fields LLC
totaling $16,605, and Los Suefios Farms totaling $52,244. During the year ended December 31, 2020, the Company had a net accounts payable balance of $31,250 with
Baseball and $93,944 with Farm Boy. One of the Company’s former directors, Robert DeGabrielle, owns the Colorado retail marijuana cultivation licenses for Farm Boy, LLC,
Emerald Fields LLC, Baseball 18, LLC, and Los Suefios Farms.

Justin Dye, the Company’s Chief Executive Officer, one of our directors and the largest beneficial owner of the Common Stock, controls Dye Capital & Company, LLC (“Dye
Capital”). Dye Capital controls Dye Capital Cann Holdings, LLC (“Dye Cann I"’) and Dye Capital Cann Holdings II, LLC (“Dye Cann II"’). Dye Cann I is a significant holder
of the Company’s common stock. Dye Cann II is one of the Company’s holders of Preferred Stock. Mr. Dye has sole voting and dispositive power over the securities held by
Dye Capital, Dye Cann I, and Dye Cann II.

On May 20, 2020, the Company entered into a second amendment (the “Amendment”) to that certain securities purchase agreement (the “Agreement”) dated as of June 5, 2019
by and between the Company and Dye Capital Cann Holdings, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (the “Investor” and together with the Company the “Parties™) as
described in a Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) on June 6, 2019, as amended by the first amendment to the
Agreement dated as of July 15, 2019 (the “First Amendment”) and as described in a Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on July 17, 2019. The Agreement, as
amended by the First Amendment, contemplated, among other things, the sale by the Company to the Investor in three separate tranches of shares of the Company’s Common
Stock, par value $0.001 per share (the “Common Stock”™), together with warrants to purchase the number of shares of Common Stock purchased in each tranche closing (the
“Warrants”). At the time of the closing of the initial transactions contemplated in the Agreement, Justin Dye, principal of the Purchaser, became a Director and Chief Executive
Officer of the Company; the Purchaser is currently the Company’s largest shareholder and Mr. Dye has voting and dispositive power over the securities held by the Purchaser.
The Amendment provides, pursuant to the terms and subject to the conditions set forth therein, that in addition to the shares of Common Stock and Warrants previously
purchased by the Investor in connection with the Agreement as amended by the First Amendment, the Investor shall purchase in a private placement 187,500 shares of
Common Stock at a price of $2.00 per share together with 187,500 Warrants at an exercise price of $3.50 per share (the “Transaction”). The Transaction closed on May 21,
2020.

On December 16, 2020, the Company entered into an Amendment to Securities Purchase Agreement with Dye Capital Cann Holdings II, LLC (the “Investor”) to change the
number of shares of the Company’s Series A Preferred Stock, par value $0.001 per share (the “Preferred Stock”) the Investor would purchase under the Securities Purchase
Agreement, dated November 16, 2020 (as amended, the “SPA”), between the Company and the Investor from 12,400 to up to 13,000 in one or more closings, among other
changes. The Company issued and sold to the Investor 7,700 shares of Preferred Stock on the same date, 1,450 shares of Preferred Stock on December 18, 2020, and 1.300
shares of Preferred Stock on December 22, 2020. The purchase price was $1,000 per share of Preferred Stock, for aggregate gross proceeds of $10,450,000 and aggregate net
proceeds of approximately $8,205,500 after deducting placement agent fees and estimated offering expenses.

In addition, on December 16, 2020, the Company entered into a Secured Convertible Note Purchase Agreement with Dye Capital & Company, LLC and issued and sold to Dye
Capital a Convertible Note and Security Agreement in the principal amount of $5,000,000.

Mr. Brian Ruden, a member of the Company’s Board of Directors, has an ownership interest in each Star Buds Company that sold assets to us on December 17, 2020 and
December 18, 2020. Brain is also the owner of Star Buds outside the state of Colorado. He is also the landlord of 5844 Ventures LLC, CO Real Estate Holdings LLC, and 428
McCulloch St LLC, two of the Star Buds retail locations in which we lease.

For the year ended December 31, 2019

During the year ended December 31, 2019, the Company had sales from Super Farm totaling $578,655 and sales from De Best totaling $191,915. The Company gives a larger
discount on nutrient sales to related parties than non-related parties. During the year ended December 31, 2019, the Company had sales discounts associated with Super Farm
totaling $291,823 and sales discounts associated with De Best totaling $95,957. As of December 31, 2019, the Company had an accounts receivable balance from Super Farm
totaling $33,127 and an accounts receivable balance from De Best totaling $2,180. The Company’s former Chief Cultivation Officer, Joshua Haupt, currently owns 20% of both
Super Farm and De Best.




During the year ended December 31, 2019, the Company recorded sales from Medicine Man Denver totaling $402,839 and sales discounts totaling $143,473. As of December
31, 2019, the Company had an accounts receivable balance with Medicine Man Denver totaling $34,748. Also, during the year ended December 31, 2019, the Company
incurred expenses from Medicine Man Denver totaling $125,897 for contract labor and other related administrative costs. The Company’s former Chief Executive Officer,
Andy Williams, currently owns 38% of Medicine Man Denver.

During the year ended December 31, 2019, the Company recorded sales from MedPharm Holdings totaling $64,378 and sales discounts totaling $7,498. As of December 31,
2019, the Company had an accounts receivable balance with MedPharm Holdings totaling $2,604. Also, during the year ended December 31, 2019, the Company issued various
notes receivable to MedPharm Holdings totaling $767,695 with original maturity dates ranging from September 21, 2019 through January 19, 2020 and all bearing interest at
8% per annum. Certain notes extended to 2020 by mutual agreement between the Company and noteholder. The Company’s former Chief Executive Officer, Andy Williams,
currently owns 29% of MedPharm Holdings.

During the year ended December 31, 2019, the Company recorded sales from Baseball 18, LLC totaling $165,617. The revenue is included under product sales - related party,
net, in the Company’s consolidated financial statements. As of December 31, 2019, the Company had an accounts receivable balance with Baseball 18, LLC totaling $169,960.
During the year ended December 31, 2019, the Company recorded sales from Farm Boy, LLC totaling $321,307. The revenue is included under product sales - related party,
net, in the Company’s consolidated financial statements. As of December 31, 2019, the Company had an accounts receivable balance with Farm Boy, LLC totaling $330,911.

8. Goodwill and Acquisition Accounting

On June 3, 2017, the Company issued an aggregate of 7,000,000 shares of its Common Stock for 100% ownership of both Success Nutrients and Pono Publications. The
Company utilized purchase price accounting stating that net book value approximates fair market value of the assets acquired. The purchase price accounting resulted in
$6,301,080 of goodwill.

On July 21, 2017, the Company issued 2,258,065 shares of its Common Stock for 100% ownership of Denver Consulting Group (“DCG”). The Company utilized purchase
price accounting stating that net book value approximates fair market value of the assets acquired. The purchase price accounting resulted in $3,003,226 of goodwill.

On September 17, 2018, we closed the acquisition of Two JS LLC, dba The Big Tomato, a Colorado limited liability company. (“Big T or “Big Tomato”). The Company
issued an aggregate of 1,933,329 shares of its Common Stock for 100% ownership of Big Tomato. The Company utilized purchase price accounting stating that net book value
approximates fair market value of the assets acquired. The purchase price accounting resulted in the Company valuing the investment as $3,000,000 of goodwill.

On April 20, 2020, the Company closed the acquisition of Mesa Organics. The aggregate purchase price after working capital adjustments was $2,609,500 of cash and
2,554,750 shares of the Company’s Common Stock. The Company accounted for the transaction utilizing purchase price accounting stating that the book value approximates
the fair market value of the assets acquired. The purchase price accounting resulted in the Company valuing the investment as $2,147,613 of goodwill. The purchase price
allocation is preliminary. The purchase price allocation will continue to be preliminary until a third-party valuation is finalized and the fair value and useful life of the assets
acquired is determined. The amounts from the final valuation may significantly differ from the preliminary allocation.

On December 17, 2020 and December 18, 2020, the Company closed the acquisition of six SBUD LLC dispensaries. The aggregate purchase price was $39,082,180. The
Company accounted for the transaction utilizing purchase price accounting stating that the book value approximates the fair market value of the assets acquired. The purchase
price accounting resulted in the Company valuing the investment as $38,594,810 of goodwill. The purchase price allocation is preliminary. The purchase price allocation will
continue to be preliminary until a third-party valuation is finalized and the fair value and useful life of the assets acquired is determined. The amounts from the final valuation
may significantly differ from the preliminary allocation.

As of December 31, 2020, the Company had $53,046,729 of goodwill which consisted of $6,301,080 from Success Nutrients and Pono Publications, $3,003,226 from DCG,
$3,000,000 from Big Tomato, $2,147,613 from Mesa Organics, and $38,594,810 from SBUD.




9. Inventory

As of December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019, the Company had $2,090,887 and $684,940 of finished goods inventory, respectively. As of December 31, 2020, the
Company had $500,917 of work in process and $27,342 of raw materials. The Company did not have any work in process or raw materials at December 31, 2019. The
inventory valuation method that the Company uses is the FIFO method. During the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Company did not recognize any impairment
for obsolescence within its inventory.

10. Leases

Leases with an initial term of one year or less are not recorded on the balance sheet; we recognize lease expense for these leases on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Leases with a term greater than one year are recognized on the balance sheet at the time of lease commencement or modification by recording an ROU operating lease asset and
a lease liability, initially measured at the present value of the lease payments. Lease costs are recognized in the income statement over the lease term on a straight-line basis.
ROU assets represent the Company’s right to use an underlying asset for the lease term and lease liabilities represent the Company’s obligation to make lease payments arising
from the lease.

The Company's leases consist of real estate leases for office, retail and warehouse spaces. The Company elected to combine the lease and related non-lease components for its
operating leases.

The Company’s operating leases may include options to extend or terminate the leases, which are not included in the determination of the ROU asset or lease liability unless it
is reasonably certain to be exercised. The Company's operating leases have remaining lease terms of less than one year. The Company’s lease agreements do not contain any

material residual value guarantees or materially restrictive covenants.

As the Company's leases do not provide an implicit rate, the Company used an incremental borrowing rate based on the information available at the lease commencement date
in determining the present value of lease payments. The discount rate used in the computations was 6-12%.

Balance Sheet Classification of Operating Lease Assets and Liabilities

Balance Sheet Line December 31, 2020
Asset
Operating lease asset Non-Current Assets $ 2,579,036
Liabilities
Operating lease liability Non-Current Liabilities $ 2,645,597

Lease Costs

The table below summarizes the components of lease costs for the year ended December 31, 2019.

Year Ended

December 31, 2020
Operating lease costs $ 359,564
Maturities of Lease Liabilities
Maturities of lease liabilities as of December 31, 2020 are as follows:
2020 fiscal year $ 2,730,205
Total lease payments 2,730,205
Less: Interest (84,608)
Present value of lease liabilities $ 2,645,597
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The following table presents the Company’s future minimum lease obligation under ASC 840 as of December 31, 2020:

2021 fiscal year 854,870
2022 fiscal year 849,792
2023 fiscal year 717,539
2024 fiscal year 495,175
2025 fiscal year 162,182
Total $ 3,079,559
11. Commitments and Contingencies

Over the past three years, the Company has supported legislation in Colorado to allow licensed cannabis companies in Colorado to trade their securities, provided they are
reporting companies under the Exchange Act. HB19-1090 titled, “Publicly Licensed Marijuana Companies” was signed into Colorado legislature on May 29, 2019 and went
into effect on November 1, 2019. The bill repeals the provision that prohibits publicly traded corporations from holding a marijuana license in Colorado.

Definitive Agreement to Acquire the Colorado-Based Star Buds Branded Dispensaries

On June 5, 2020, the Company and SBUD, LLC, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, on the one hand, entered into 13 separate purchase agreements with, on the other
hand, each of Colorado Health Consultants, LLC, CitiMed, LLC, Lucky Ticket LLC, Kew LLC, SB Aurora LLC, SB Arapahoe LLC, SB Alameda LLC, SB 44th LLC,
Starbuds Pueblo LLC, Starbuds Louisville LLC, Starbuds Niwot LLC, Starbuds Longmont LLC, and Starbuds Commerce City LLC (each, a “Star Buds Company” and
collectively “Star Buds”) whereby SBUD, LLC agreed to purchase substantially all of the assets of Star Buds from each individual Star Buds Company pursuant to the
agreements. In addition, SBUD, LLC entered into a Trademark License Agreement with Star Brands LLC under which Star Brands LLC will license certain trademarks to
SBUD, LLC effective as of the closing of the Star Buds acquisitions in exchange for license payments on use of such trademarks outside of Colorado. The parties entered into
an Omnibus Amendment No. 1 to Asset Purchase Agreements on September 15, 2020. The description below describes the terms of the transactions as amended.

On December 17, 2020, the Company and SBUD, LLC entered into an Omnibus Amendment No. 2 with each Star Buds Company. Omnibus Amendment No. 2 revised certain
material terms originally set forth in the Agreements, as amended by Omnibus Amendment No. 1.

The aggregate purchase price for Star Buds’ assets is approximately $118,000,000, subject to adjustment upon the closing of each of the purchases based on, among other
things, the target inventory as opposed to actual inventory and target working capital as opposed to net working capital of each Star Buds Company, and will be payable to Star
Buds 75% in cash and 25% in shares of Preferred Stock, valued at $1,000 per share, estimated to be an aggregate of approximately 29,500 shares (which would be convertible
into approximately 24,583,333 shares of Common Stock (based on the initial Preference Amount and an initial Conversion Price equal to $1.20 per share)). Two-thirds of the
cash payment is payable at the applicable closing and one-third is deferred and payable 30 months after the applicable closing. 15% of the shares of Preferred Stock will be held
in escrow and released post-closing to either the seller or the buyer depending on post-closing adjustments to the purchase price. The Company will make quarterly interest
payments on the deferred cash amount at a rate of 4% per annum during the first year after each closing, 6% per annum during the second year after each closing, and 8% per
annum during the last 6 months of the 30-month period after each closing. The Company may prepay the deferred cash amount at any time. Payment of the deferred cash
amount and the interest will be secured by a security interest in the purchased Star Buds assets, subject to subordination to any security interest in favor of the Company’s future
lenders. SBUD, LLC will not assume any of Star Buds’ liabilities other than accounts payable by Star Buds, liabilities in respect of any contractual arrangements assigned to
SBUD, LLC by Star Buds, and liabilities in connection with administrative fees associated with obtaining necessary governmental approvals or waivers of such approvals.
SBUD, LLC has also agreed to pay certain transfer taxes in connection with the purchases. The closing of each purchase is subject to customary closing conditions, such as the
parties obtaining all necessary governmental approvals and licenses for the transactions.

On December 17, 2020, pursuant to the applicable APA, the Company and SBUD, LLC closed on the acquisition of (i) Starbuds Pueblo LLC; and (ii) Starbuds Alameda LLC.
On December 18, 2020, pursuant to the applicable APA, the Company and SBUD LLC closed on the acquisition of (i) Starbuds Commerce City LLC; (ii) Lucky Ticket LLC;
(iii) Starbuds Niwot LLC; and (iv) LM MJC LLC. The aggregate purchase price for the assets of the Star Buds Companies acquired on December 17, 2020 and December 18,
2020 was approximately $37.1 million and was paid to each applicable Star Buds Company and its members as a combination of cash and deferred cash, an aggregate of 7,877
shares of Preferred Stock together with an aggregate of 1,389 shares of Preferred Stock to be held in escrow pursuant to the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in
Omnibus Amendment No. 2 (the “Transaction Shares”) and warrants to purchase an aggregate of 1,737,719 shares of the Company’s Common Stock at exercise price equal to
$1.20 per share (the “Transaction Warrants”). The Company funded the aggregate cash portion of the purchase price for the assets acquired on December 17, 2020 and
December 18, 2020 from proceeds received as disclosed in its December 22, 2020 8-K filing.
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Departure and Appointment of Officers

On February 25, 2020, Andy Williams resigned from the positions of President and member of the Board of Directors of the Company. Mr. Williams’s resignation was not the
result of any disagreement with the Company on any matter relating to the company’s operations, policies or practices. Simultaneously, the Company entered into a Severance
Agreement and Release (the “Severance Agreement”) with Mr. Williams.

The Severance Agreement provides that as severance and in consideration of a customary release against the Company and other customary covenants, Mr. Williams will
receive (i) continued salary in the amount of $300,000, half of which to be paid within ten days of the execution of the Severance Agreement, and the remaining half is to be
paid in 26 equal disbursements in accordance with the Company’s regular payroll periods, (ii) a bonus payment in the amount of $25,000, (iii) one year family health care
coverage, (iv) stock options to purchase 350,000 shares of the Company’s Common Stock, which may be exercised on a cashless basis and vested immediately on the date of
termination at a price of $1.80 per share and valued at $582,228, and (v) stock options to purchase 15,000 shares of the Company’s Common Stock, which may be exercised on
a cashless basis at a price of $1.80 per share, valued at $27,000, at the one year anniversary of the termination date if Mr. Williams is compliant with the terms of the Severance
Agreement.

On June 19, 2020, the Company received the resignation of Robert DeGabrielle from the positions of Chief Operating Officer and member of the Board of Directors of the
Company. Mr. DeGabrielle’s resignation was not the result of any disagreement with the Company on any matters relating to the Company’s operations, policies, or practices.

On September 9, 2020 the Company appointed Nirup Krishnamurthy as Chief Operating Officer and appointed Jeff Garwood as a member of the Company’s Board of
Directors (the “Board”). Mr. Krishnamurthy and the Company entered an Employment Agreement effective March 1, 2020 (the “CIO Agreement”). The CIO Agreement
provides that Mr. Krishnamurthy shall be paid a base salary of $264,000 per annum, in accordance with the Company’s usual payroll practices (the “Salary”). In addition to the
Salary, on the effective date of the CIO Agreement, the Company issued an aggregate of 600,000 options to purchase shares of Common Stock, at a purchase price equal to
$1.71 per share (the “CIO Option™). The CIO Option shall vet one-fourth on an annual basis beginning on the first anniversary of the date of grant, such that the CIO Option
shall vest and shall be exercisable in full on the fourth anniversary of the date of grant. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the CIO Option shall vest in full and become exercisable
upon the occurrence of a “Change in Control” as defined in the CIO Agreement. All shares of Common Stock issuable upon exercise of the CIO Option are subject to a
limitation whereby Mr. Krishnamurthy may sell no more than 5% of the preceding day average volume of the Common Stock on any given trading day. In connection with Mr.
Garwood’s appointment, Mr. Garwood is expected to be granted an inaugural award of $50,000 value in shares of Common Stock within 90 days of board service.

12. Stockholders’ Equity

On December 10, 2019, the shareholders approved an amendment to the Company’s articles of incorporation increasing the number of authorized shares of Common Stock
from 90,000,000 shares to 250,000,000 shares.
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The Company is authorized to issue two classes of shares, designated preferred stock and Common Stock.

Preferred Stock

The number of shares of preferred stock authorized is 10,000,000, par value $0.001 per share. The preferred stock may be divided into such number of series as the Board may
determine. The Board is authorized to determine and alter the rights, preferences, privileges and restrictions granted and imposed upon any wholly unissued series of preferred
stock, and to fix the number and designation of shares of any series of preferred stock. The Board, within limits and restrictions stated in any resolution of the Board, originally
fixing the number of shares constituting any series may increase or decrease, but not below the number of such series then outstanding, the shares of any subsequent series.

At December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Company had 19,716 and 0 shares of Preferred Stock, respectively, issued and outstanding.

Common Stock

The Company is authorized to issue 250,000,000 shares of Common Stock at a par value of $0.001 and had 42,601,773 shares of Common Stock issued and 42,169,041 shares
of Common Stock outstanding as of December 31, 2020, and 39,952,628 shares of Common Stock issued and 39,694,896 shares of Common Stock outstanding as of December
31, 2019.

Common Stock Issued in Private Placements

During the year ended December 31, 2019, the Company issued and sold 9,800,000 shares of Common Stock and warrants to purchase 9,800,000 shares of Common Stock, for
gross proceeds of $19,600,000.

During the year ended December 31, 2020, the Company issued 187,500 shares of Common Stock and warrants to purchase 187,500 shares of Common Stock, for gross
proceeds of $375,000.

Common Stock Issued in Connection with the Exercise of Warrants

During the year ended December 31, 2019, the Company issued 485,543 shares of Common Stock for proceeds of $602,560 under a series of stock warrant exercises with an
exercise price of $1.33 per share.

Common Stock Issued as Compensation to Employees, Officers and Directors

During the year ended December 31, 2019, the Company issued 1,740,000 shares of Common Stock valued at $2,916,880 to employees, officers and directors as compensation.
During the year ended December 31, 2019, the Company issued an additional 173,775 shares of Common Stock valued at $305,521 to contractors and professionals in
exchange for services provided.

On April 3, 2020, the Company cancelled 500,000 shares of Common Stock, with vesting conditions represented as derivative instruments. These shares were incorrectly
issued as restricted shares instead of restricted stock units to an officer of the Company, Paul Dickman, on January 8, 2019.

During the year ended December 31, 2020, the Company issued an additional 406,895 shares of Common Stock valued at $497,301 to employees, officers, and directors as
compensation.

Common and Preferred Stock Issued as Payment for Acquisition

On April 20, 2020, the Company issued 2,554,750 shares of Common Stock valued at $4,167,253 for the acquisition of Mesa Organics, Ltd.

On December 17, 2020, the Company issued 2,862 shares of Preferred Stock valued at $2,861,994 and on December 18, 2020, the Company issued 6,404 shares of Preferred
Stock valued at 6,403,987 for the acquisition of the Star Buds assets.
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Warrants

The Company accounts for Common Stock purchase warrants in accordance with FASB ASC 480, Accounting for Derivative Financial Instruments Indexed to, and Potentially
Settled in, a Company’s Own Stock, Distinguishing Liabilities from Equity. The Company estimates the fair value of warrants at date of grant using the Black-Scholes option
pricing model. There is a moderate degree of subjectivity involved when using option pricing models to estimate the warrants, and the assumptions used in the Black Scholes
option-pricing model are moderately judgmental.

During the year ended December 31, 2020, the Company issued 187,500 Common Stock purchase warrants to an accredited investor with an exercise price of $3.50 per share
with an expiration date of three years from the date of issuance. The Company also issued 1,737,719 Common Stock purchase warrants as purchase consideration for the
acquisition of SBUD LLC. These warrants have an exercise price of $1.20 per share and expiration date of five years from the date of issuance. The Company estimated the fair
value of these warrants at date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model using the following inputs: (i) stock price on the date of grant of $3.50 or $1.20,
respectively, (ii) the contractual term of the warrant of 3 or 5 years, respectively, (iii) a risk-free interest rate ranging between 0.21% - 0.38% and (iv) an expected volatility of
the price of the underlying Common Stock ranging between 173.07% - 187.52%.

Number of shares

Balance as of January 1, 2020 9,800,000
Warrants exercised -
Warrants forfeited -

Warrants issued 1,925,220
Balance as of December 31, 2020 11,725,220
Option Repricing

On December 15, 2020, the Board repriced certain outstanding stock options issued to the Company’s employees. The repriced stock options had original exercise prices
ranging from $1.52 per share to $3.83 per share. All of these stock options were repriced to have an exercise price of $1.26 per share, which was the closing price of the
Company’s Common Stock on December 15, 2020.

13.  Tax Provision

In April 2020, the Company acquired its first cannabis plant-touching business, Mesa Organics, which consists of four dispensaries and one MIP, d/b/a Purplebee’s. The
Company also acquired six additional cannabis dispensaries in December 2020. The activity of these acquired operations is subject to the limitations of IRC Section 280E.
Under Section 280E, no deduction or credit is allowed for any amount paid or incurred during the taxable year in carrying on business if the business (or the activities which
comprise the trade or business) consists of trafficking in controlled substances (within the meaning of Schedules I and II of the CSA) except the expenses directly related to
sales of product. The IRS has applied this provision to cannabis operations, prohibiting them from deducting expenses associated with cannabis businesses.

The following table sets forth the components of income tax (benefit) expense for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019:

December 31, December 31,
2020 2019
Current:
Federal $ -3 -
State and local - -
Total current tax expense $ - 38 -

F-23




Deferred:

Federal

State and local

Total deferred tax expense (benefit)

December 31,

December 31,

2020 2019
$ (796,353) (477,625)

(102,756) (105,305)
$ (899,109) (582,930)

The following table sets forth a reconciliation of income tax expense (benefit) at the federal statutory rate to recorded income tax expense (benefit) for the years ended

December 31, 2020 and 2019:

Federal taxes at U.S. statutory rate
State income taxes

Permanent and temporary differences
Change in valuation allowance
Change in state rate

Return to provision adjustment/other
Effective tax rate

December 31,

December 31,

The following tables set forth the components of deferred income taxes as of December 31, 2020 and 2019:

Deferred tax assets:
Bad debt allowance
Accrued expenses
Share based compensation accruals
Net operating loss carryforwards
Capitalized transaction costs
Unrealized losses
Other carryforwards
Operating leases
Total deferred tax assets
Less: valuation allowance
Net deferred tax assets

Deferred tax liabilities:
Prepaid expenses
Fixed assets
Goodwill and intangible assets
Unrealized gains
Net deferred tax liabilities

Total deferred tax assets, net

2020 2019

21.0% 21.0%

2.3% 4.6%
(3.4%) (15.5%)
(14%) (6.8%)

(1.7%) 0.0%

0.4% 0.0%

4.6% 3.3%

December 31, December 31,
2020 2019

$ 69,132 18,168
197,958 38,413

3,505,290 3,528,726

4,357,600 1,703,425

222,360 -

245,862 161,155

13,357 -

240,278 -

8,851,837 5,449,887
(7,233,123) (4,411,110)

$ 1,618,714 1,038,777
$ = 121,777
269,443 12,388

1,116,546 636,188

232,725 -

$ 1,618,714 770,354
$ = 268,423
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The Company has gross Federal net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $19.7 million, which can be carried forward indefinitely. State net operating losses of
approximately $12.2 million, which begin to expire in 2039. The Company plans to carryback approximately $1.3M of gross Federal net operating losses to the 2018 tax year,
as a result of the CARES Act, which was enacted in response to the COVID-19 pandemic on March 27, 2020. The resulting tax benefit from this carryback is approximately
$270k.

Federal and State tax laws impose significant restrictions on the utilization of net operating loss carryforwards in the event of a change in ownership of the Company, as defined
by Internal Revenue Code Section 382 (Section 382). The Company has not completed a formal Section 382 analysis but plans to do so prior to utilizing any net operating
losses in future tax years or releasing the full valuation allowance against its net operating loss carryforwards.

In assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets, management considers whether it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be
realized. The Company's valuation allowance represents the amount of tax benefits that are likely to not be realized. The Company has recorded a valuation allowance of
$7,233,123 on its deferred tax asset balances as of 12/31/2020. The net change in the valuation allowance for 12/31/2020 was $2,822,013.

As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Company had no unrecognized tax benefits. The Company does not anticipate the total amount of unrecognized tax benefits to

significantly change within the next twelve months. The Company recognized no interest expense or penalties on income tax assessments during 2019 or 2018 and there was no
interest related to income tax assessments accrued as of December 31, 2020 or 2019.

14. Major Customers and Accounts Receivable

The Company had certain customers whose revenue individually represented 10% or more of the Company’s total revenue, or whose accounts receivable balances individually
represented 10% or more of the Company’s total accounts receivable.

As of December 31, 2019, two customers accounted for 68% of accounts receivable, one with 57% and another with 11%. As of December 31, 2020, two customers accounted
for 22% of accounts receivable, both with 11%.

For the year ended December 31, 2019, one customer accounted for 14% of revenue. For the year ended December 31, 2020, there were no customers that accounted for 10%
or more of revenue.

15. Segment Information

The Company has three identifiable segments as of December 31, 2020; (i) products, (ii) licensing and consulting and (iii) corporate, infrastructure and other. The products
segment sells merchandise directly to customers via e-commerce portals, through the Company’s proprietary websites and retail location. The licensing and consulting segment
sales derives its revenue from licensing and consulting agreements with cannabis related entities. The corporate, infrastructure and other segment represents new resources
added in anticipation of various acquisition transactions and other corporate related costs.

The following information represents segment activity for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019:

For the Years Ended December 31,

2020 2019
Corporate, Corporate,
Licensing and Infrastructure Licensing and Infrastructure
Products Consulting and Other Total Products Consulting and Other Total
Revenues 3 22,506,393 3 1,494,459 $ - 3 24,000,852 $ 7,820,518  $ 4,580,437 $ - 3 12,400,955
COGS $  (16,359,011) $ (867,476)  $ - % (17,226,486) $ (6,354,100) $ (1,262,121)  $ - 3 (7,616,221)
Gross profit 3 6,147,382 $ 626,983 $ - 3 6,774,365  $ 1,466,418  § 3318316 § - 3 4,784,734
Intangible assets amortization $ 180,106 $ 539 $ — $ 180,644  $ 5465 $ 443§ - $ 5,908
Depreciation 3 76,310 $ 219,637 $ - 3 295,947 8 7,186 § 48,614  § - 3 55,800
Net income (loss) $ 3,201,757 $ 345,312 $  (22,963,830) $  (19,416,761) $ 794,747  $ 1,688,147  $  (19,458,636) $  (16,975,742)
Segment assets 3 61,591,952 $ 187,601 3 8,803,419 $ 70,682,601 $ 12,406,230  § 6,081,485  § 13,740,892  § 32,228,607
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16. Earnings per share (Basic and Dilutive)

The Company computes net (loss) income per share in accordance with ASC 260, Earnings per Share. ASC 260 requires presentation of both basic and diluted Earnings Per
Share (“EPS”) on the face of the income statement. Basic EPS is computed by dividing net income (loss) available to Common Stockholders (numerator) by the weighted
average number of shares outstanding (denominator) during the period. Diluted EPS gives effect to all dilutive potential common shares outstanding during the period using the
treasury stock method and convertible preferred stock using the if-converted method. These potential dilutive shares include 6,627,000 vested stock options, 11,725,220 stock
purchase warrants, and 19,716 of preferred shares. In computing diluted EPS, the average stock price for the period is used in determining the number of shares assumed to be
purchased from the exercise of stock options or warrants. Diluted EPS excludes all dilutive potential shares if their effect is anti-dilutive.

The following is a reconciliation of the numerator and denominator used in the basic and diluted EPS calculations for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019.

2020 2019

Numerator:

Net income (loss) $ (19,416,761)  $ (16,975,742)
Denominator:

Weighted-average shares of common stock 41,217,026 33,740,557

Dilutive effect of warrants - -

Diluted weighted-average shares of common stock 41,217,026 33,740,557
Net income (loss) per common share from:

Basic $ 0.47) $ (0.50)

Diluted $ ©047) $ (0.50)

Dilutive-potential common share equivalents are excluded from the computation of net loss per share in loss periods, as their effect would be antidilutive. As the Company has
incurred a loss from operations in 2020 and 2019, shares issuable pursuant to equity awards were excluded from the computation of diluted net loss per share in the
accompanying consolidated statements of operations, as their effect is anti-dilutive.

17.  Subsequent events

In accordance with FASB ASC 855-10, Subsequent Events, the Company has analyzed its operations subsequent to December 31, 2020 to the date these consolidated financial
statements were issued, and has determined that it does not have any material subsequent events to disclose in these consolidated financial statements, except as follows:

On January 27, 2021, the Company appointed Pratap Mukharji to the Board of the Company. Mr. Mukharji will serve as Chairman of the Board’s Audit Committee.

On January 27, 2021, the Company received the resignation of Leonard Riera as a member of the Board. Mr. Riera was Chairman of the Board’s Audit Committee. Mr. Riera’s
resignation is not the result of any disagreement with the Company on any matters relating to the Company’s operations, policies, or practices.

On February 3, 2021, the Company issued and sold 6,100 shares of Preferred Stock.
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On February 4, 2021, pursuant to the applicable APA, the Company and SBUD, LLC closed on the acquisition of (i) Colorado Health Consultants LLC; and (ii) Mountain View
44th LLC. The aggregate purchase price for the assets of the Star Buds Companies acquired on February 4, 2021 was approximately $9.3 million and was paid to each
applicable Star Buds Company and its members as a combination of cash, an aggregate of 1,969 shares of Preferred Stock together with an aggregate of 347 shares of Preferred
Stock to be held in escrow pursuant to the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in Omnibus Amendment No. 2 and warrants to purchase an aggregate of 434,315 shares
of the Company’s Common Stock at exercise price equal to $1.20 per share.

On February 9, 2021, the Company issued and sold 100 shares of Preferred Stock, on February 10, 2021, 250 shares of Preferred Stock, on February 23, 2021, 500 shares of
Preferred Stock, on February 25, 2021, 1,300 shares of Preferred Stock, on February 26, 2021, 23,900 shares of Preferred Stock on March 1, 2021, 1,500 shares of Preferred
Stock, and on March 3, 2021, 2,100 shares of Preferred Stock.

On February 26, 2021, the Company received a Conversion Notice and Agreement (the “Conversion Agreement”) from Dye Capital pursuant to which Dye Capital elected to
convert all outstanding amounts owed by the Company to Dye Capital under the Convertible Promissory Note and Security Agreement in the original principal amount of
$5,000,000 issued by the Company to Dye Capital on December 16, 2020 pursuant to the terms thereof. On the same date, the Company executed the Conversion Agreement
and issued 5,060 shares of Preferred Stock to Dye Capital and also paid Dye Capital an immaterial amount in cash in lieu of issuing any fractional shares of Preferred Stock to
Dye Capital upon conversion.

On February 26, 2021, the Company’s wholly owned subsidiaries Mesa Organics Ltd., Mesa Organics II Ltd., Mesa Organics III Ltd., Mesa Organics IV Ltd, SCG Holding,
LLC and PBS Holdco LLC, as borrowers (collectively, the “Borrowers”), entered into a Loan Agreement (the “Loan Agreement”) with SHWZ Altmore, LLC, as lender (the
“Lender”), and GGG Partners LLC, as collateral agent (the “Collateral Agent”). Upon execution of the Loan Agreement and the associated loan documents described below,
the Lender made an initial advance of $10,000,000 to the Borrowers. Under the Loan Agreement, the Lender has agreed to make one additional advance of $5,000,000 to the
Borrowers on or before June 26, 2021 upon the satisfaction of certain closing conditions customary for this type of transaction as well as a requirement that the Company has
completed the acquisition of substantially all of the assets of an identified company.

On March 2, 2021, pursuant to the applicable APA, the Company and SBUD, LLC closed on the acquisition of (i) Starbuds Aurora LLC, (ii) SB Arapahoe LLC, (iii) Citi-Med
LLC, (iv) Starbuds Louisville LLC and (v) KEW LLC. The aggregate purchase price for the assets of the Star Buds Companies acquired on March 2, 2021 was approximately
$71.8 million and was paid to each applicable Star Buds Company and its members as a combination of cash, an aggregate of 15,228.45 shares of Preferred Stock, together
with an aggregate of 2,687.37 shares of Preferred Stock to be held in escrow pursuant to the terms, and subject to the conditions, set forth in Omnibus Amendment No. 2 and
warrants to purchase an aggregate of 3,359,215.32 shares of the Company’s Common Stock at exercise price equal to $1.20 per share. The Company funded the aggregate cash
portion of the purchase price for the assets acquired on March 2, 2021 from the net proceeds of the transactions disclosed in the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed
with the SEC on March 4, 2021.

Mr. Brian Ruden, a member of the Company’s Board of Directors, has an ownership interest in each Starbuds Company that was acquired on February 4, 2021 and March 2,
2021

On March 14, 2021, the Company increased the size of the Board from five to seven directors, designated the two new directorships as Class A, and appointed Jeffrey A. Cozad
and Salim Wahdan as Class A directors. Mr. Cozad will serve as a member of the Board’s Audit Committee, Compensation Committee and Nominating and Corporate
Governance Committee. Mr. Wahdan will serve as a member of the Board’s Audit Committee.

On March 30, 2021, the Company entered into a Third Amendment to Securities Purchase Agreement (the “Third Amendment”) with Dye Capital Cann II to amend the terms
of the Securities Purchase Agreement, dated November 16, 2020, as previously amended by the Amendment to Securities Purchase Agreement, dated December 16, 2020, and
the Second Amendment to Securities Purchase Agreement, dated February 3, 2021 (as amended, the “Cann II SPA”). The Third Amendment increased the number of shares of
Preferred Stock the Company may sell and Dye Capital Cann II may purchase under the Cann II SPA from 17,000 to 21,350, and also extended the time during which the
parties may agree to do so from February 23, 2021 to March 30, 2021. On the same date, the Company issued and sold 4,000 shares of Preferred Stock to Dye Capital Cann 11
at a purchase price of $1,000 per share for aggregate gross proceeds of $4,000,000 and aggregate net proceeds of approximately $3,900,000, after deducting placement agent
fees and estimated offering expenses.
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE.
None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES.

DiscLoSURE CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Disclosure Controls and Procedures — Our management, with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, has evaluated the effectiveness of
our disclosure controls and procedures (as such term is defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act as of the end of the period covered by this Report.

These controls are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in the reports we file or submit pursuant to the Exchange Act is recorded, processed,
summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the rules and forms of the Securities and Exchange Commission, and that such information is accumulated and
communicated to our management, including our CFO and CEO to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Based on this evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of December
31, 2020, at the reasonable assurance level.

Inherent Limitations — Our management, including our Chief Financial Officer and Chief Executive Officer, does not expect that our disclosure controls and procedures will
prevent all error and all fraud. A control system, no matter how well conceived and operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the objectives of the
control system are met. The design of any system of controls is based in part upon certain assumptions about the likelihood of future events, and there can be no assurance that
any design will succeed in achieving its stated goals under all potential future conditions. Further, the design of a control system must reflect the fact that there are resource
constraints, and the benefits of controls must be considered relative to their costs. Because of the inherent limitations in all control systems, no evaluation of controls can
provide absolute assurance that all control issues and instances of fraud, if any, within our company have been detected. These inherent limitations include the realities that
judgments in decision-making can be faulty, and that breakdown can occur because of simple error or mistake. In particular, many of our current processes rely upon manual
reviews and processes to ensure that neither human error nor system weakness has resulted in erroneous reporting of financial data.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting — There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting during our fiscal fourth quarter ended December
31, 2020, which were identified in conjunction with management’s evaluation required by paragraph (d) of Rules 13a-15 and 15d-15 under the Exchange Act, that have
materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

This Annual Report does not include an attestation report of our registered public accounting firm regarding internal control over financial reporting. Management’s report was
not subject to attestation by our registered public accounting firm pursuant to temporary rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission that permit us to provide only
management’s report in this Annual Report.

MANAGEMENT ANNUAL REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) or 15d-15(f) promulgated under
the Exchange Act. Those rules define internal control over financial reporting as a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial

reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and includes those policies and
procedures that:
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Pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and the receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors
of the Company; and

Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisitions, use or disposition of the company’s assets that could have
a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal controls over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future
periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Management assessed the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2020. In making this assessment, our management used the criteria
established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the 2013 Treadway Commission (COSO).

Based on this assessment, management concluded that, as of December 31, 2020, our internal control over financial reporting was effective.
ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION.

On March 30, 2021, the Company entered into a Third Amendment to Securities Purchase Agreement (the “Third Amendment”) with Dye Capital Cann II to amend the terms
of the Securities Purchase Agreement, dated November 16, 2020, as previously amended by the Amendment to Securities Purchase Agreement, dated December 16, 2020, and
the Second Amendment to Securities Purchase Agreement, dated February 3, 2021 (as amended, the “Cann II SPA”). The Third Amendment increased the number of shares of
Preferred Stock the Company may sell and Dye Capital Cann II may purchase under the Cann II SPA from 17,000 to 21,350, and also extended the time during which the
parties may agree to do so from February 23, 2021 to March 30, 2021. On the same date, the Company issued and sold 4,000 shares of Preferred Stock to Dye Capital Cann 11
at a purchase price of $1,000 per share for aggregate gross proceeds of $4,000,000 and aggregate net proceeds of approximately $3,900,000, after deducting placement agent
fees and estimated offering expenses.

The Company will use the proceeds from the sale to for general corporate purposes, including working capital and the payment of outstanding accounts payable.

The Company previously reported the terms of the Cann II SPA, including all amendments in the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with the SEC on November
16, 2020, and the Company’s Current Reports on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on December 23, 2020, February 9, 2021 and March 4, 2021. The Company previously reported
the terms of the Preferred Stock in the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on December 22, 2020. A copy of the Third Amendment is attached hereto as Exhibit
10.25 and incorporated herein by reference.

SDDco-Brokerage LLC, and DelMorgan Group, LLC, each acted as a placement agent in connection with the transaction described above, and will each receive $20,000.00 as
the Company’s placement agents.

Justin Dye, the Company’s Chief Executive Officer, one of its directors and the largest beneficial owner of the Common Stock, controls Dye Capital Cann II. Mr. Dye has sole
voting and dispositive power over the securities held by Dye Capital Cann II. Mr. Dye, the Company’s Chief Operating Offering, Nirup Krishnamurthy, and two of the
Company’s directors, Jeffrey Garwood and Pratap Mukharji, are part owners of Dye Capital Cann II. Mr. Krishnamurthy, Mr. Garwood and Mr. Mukharji do not beneficially
own any of the securities held by Dye Capital Cann II.

The issuance of the shares of Preferred Stock to Dye Capital Cann II was exempt from registration under Securities Act Section 4(a)(2) and Securities Act Rule 506(b). Dye
Capital Cann II is sophisticated and represented in writing that it is an accredited investor and acquired the securities for its own accounts for investment purposes. A legend
will be placed on the certificates representing shares of Preferred Stock, subject to the terms of the Cann II SPA stating that the securities in question have not been registered
under the Securities Act and cannot be sold or otherwise transferred without registration or an exemption therefrom.
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PART III
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE.
The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to our proxy statement for our 2021 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.
ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION.
The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to our proxy statement for our 2021 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.
ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS.
The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to our proxy statement for our 2021 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.
ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE.
The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to our proxy statement for our 2021 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.
ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES.

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to our proxy statement for our 2021 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.
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ITEM 15.

PART IV

EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES.

The following exhibits are included herewith:

Exhibit No.

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

29

2.10

2.11

2.12

2.13

2.14

2.15

2.16

Description

Merger Agreement dated November 23, 2019, by and among Medicine Man Technologies, Inc., PBS Merger Sub, LLC, Mesa Organics Ltd., James Parco,
and Pamela Parco (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to Medicine Man Technologies, Inc.’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed November 29, 2019
(Commission File No. 001-55450)),

First Amendment dated April 16, 2020 to Merger Agreement dated November 23, 2019, by and among Medicine Man Technologies, Inc., PBS Merger
Sub, LL.C, Mesa Organics Ltd., James Parco, and Pamela Parco (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.2 to Medicine Man Technologies, Inc.’s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed April 24, 2020 (Commission File No. 001-55450))

Asset Purchase Agreement entered into by and among Medicine Man Technologies, Inc., SBUD LLC, and Colorado Health Consultants, LLC, dated June
5,2020 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to Medicine Man Technologies, Inc.’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed June 8, 2020 (Commission File
No. 001-55450)),

Asset Purchase Agreement entered into by and among Medicine Man Technologies, Inc., SBUD LLC, and CitiMed, LLC, dated June 5, 2020

001-55450))
Asset Purchase Agreement entered into by and among Medicine Man Technologies, Inc., SBUD LLC, and Lucky Ticket LLC, dated June 5, 2020

001-55450))
Asset Purchase Agreement entered into by and among Medicine Man Technologies, Inc., SBUD LLC, and SB Arapahoe LLC, dated June 5, 2020

001-55450)),
Asset Purchase Agreement entered into by and among Medicine Man Technologies, Inc., SBUD LLC, and SB 44th LLC, dated June 5, 2020 (Incorporated

001-55450))
Asset Purchase Agreement entered into by and among Medicine Man Technologies, Inc., SBUD LLC, and Starbuds Louisville LLC, dated June 5, 2020

001-55450))
Asset Purchase Agreement entered into by and among Medicine Man Technologies, Inc., SBUD LLC, and Starbuds Niwot LLC, dated June 5, 2020

001-55450))
Asset Purchase Agreement entered into by and among Medicine Man Technologies, Inc., SBUD LLC, and Alameda LLC, dated June 5, 2020

001-55450))
Asset Purchase Agreement entered into by and among Medicine Man Technologies, Inc., SBUD LLC, and Starbuds Longmont LLC, dated June 5, 2020

001-55450))
Asset Purchase Agreement entered into by and among Medicine Man Technologies, Inc., SBUD LLC, and Starbuds Commerce City LLC, dated June 5,
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http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1622879/000168316819003857/medman_8k-ex0201.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1622879/000168316820001284/medman_ex0202.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1622879/000168316820001894/medman_ex0201.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1622879/000168316820001894/medman_ex0202.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1622879/000168316820001894/medman_ex0203.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1622879/000168316820001894/medman_ex0204.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1622879/000168316820001894/medman_ex0205.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1622879/000168316820001894/medman_ex0206.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1622879/000168316820001894/medman_ex0207.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1622879/000168316820001894/medman_ex0208.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1622879/000168316820001894/medman_ex0209.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1622879/000168316820001894/medman_ex0210.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1622879/000168316820001894/medman_ex0211.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1622879/000168316820001894/medman_ex0212.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1622879/000168316820001894/medman_ex0213.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1622879/000168316820003214/medman-ex0201.htm

Exhibit No.

2.17

3.1

3.2

33

3.4%*

3.5

3.6%*

3.7

4.1%*
4.2%

43%
4.4*
4.5%+
4.6+
47

4.8
10.1

10.4

Description

Omnibus Amendment No. 2 to Asset Purchase Agreement, dated as of December 17, 2020, by and among SBUD LLC, Medicine Man Technologies, Inc.,
and each signatory thereto designated as a seller (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to Medicine Man Technologies, Inc.’s Current Report on Form
8-K filed December 23, 2020 (Commission File No. 001-55450)),

Articles of Incorporation of Medicine Man Technologies filed with the Secretary of State of Nevada on March 20, 2014 (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 3.1 to Medicine Man Technologies, Inc.’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed April 14, 2015 (Commission File No. 333-203424))
Certificate of Amendment to Articles of Incorporation filed with the Secretary of State of Nevada on August 25, 2014 (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 3.1 to Medicine Man Technologies, Inc.’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed April 14, 2015 (Commission File No. 333-203424))
Certificate of Amendment to Articles of Incorporation filed with the Secretary of State of Nevada on December 13, 2019 (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 3.1 to Medicine Man Technologies, Inc.’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed December 16, 2019 (Commission File No. 001-55450))

Certificate of Designation of Series A Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock filed with the Secretary of State of Nevada on December 16, 2020
Certificate of Amendment to Designation of Series A Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock filed with the Secretary of State of Nevada on March 1,
2021 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Medicine Man Technologies, Inc.’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed March 4, 2021 (Commission File
No. 001-55450))

Complete Articles of Incorporation together with all Certificates of Amendment and the Certificate of Designation of Series A Cumulative Convertible
Preferred Stock, as amended

Medicine Man Technologies, Inc. 2017 Equity Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Medicine Man Technologies, Inc.’s Registration
Statement on Form S-8 filed June 12, 2017 (Commission File No. 333-218662)),

Inc.’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed December 16, 2020 (Commission File No. 001-55450))
Form of Warrant to Purchase Common Stock of Medicine Man Technologies, Inc.
Warrant to Purchase Common Stock of Medicine Man Technologies, Inc.

Form of Warrant to Purchase Common Stock of Medicine Man Technologies, Inc. issued to Star Buds Sellers and Members
Technology License Agreement effective as of May 1, 2014 between Medicine Man Production Corporation and Medicine Man Technologies Inc.

(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Medicine Man Technologies, Inc.’s Amendment to Registration Statement on Form S-1/A filed September
11. 2015 (Commission File No. 333-203424))
Share Exchange Agreement as of February 27, 2017 among Medicine Man Technologies, Inc., Success Nutrients, Inc. and the shareholders of Success

(Commission File No. 000-55450))
Agreement and Plan of Merger as of February 27, 2017 among Medicine Man Technologies, Inc., Medicine Man Consulting, Inc. and Pono Publications

Annual Report on Form 10-K filed April 17, 2017 (Commission File No. 000-55450))
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http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1622879/000168316820004436/medman_ex0201.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1622879/000101968715001435/medman_s1-ex0301.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1622879/000101968715001435/medman_s1-ex0301.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1622879/000168316819003992/medman_ex0301.htm
https://s3.amazonaws.com/content.stockpr.com/sec/0001683168-21-001161/medman_ex0304.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1622879/000168316821000784/medman_ex0301.htm
https://s3.amazonaws.com/content.stockpr.com/sec/0001683168-21-001161/medman_ex0306.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1622879/000168316819003950/medman_8k-ex0301.htm
https://s3.amazonaws.com/content.stockpr.com/sec/0001683168-21-001161/medman_ex0401.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1622879/000168316817001546/medman_s8-0401.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1622879/000168316819003992/medman_ex1001.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1622879/000168316820004302/medicineman_ex1001.htm
https://s3.amazonaws.com/content.stockpr.com/sec/0001683168-21-001161/medman_ex0405.htm
https://s3.amazonaws.com/content.stockpr.com/sec/0001683168-21-001161/medman_ex0406.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1622879/000168316820004429/medman_ex0401.htm
https://s3.amazonaws.com/content.stockpr.com/sec/0001683168-21-001161/medman_ex0408.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1622879/000101968715001435/medman_s1-ex1001.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1622879/000101968715001435/medman_s1-ex1002.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1622879/000101968715003428/medicinemand_s1a-ex1003.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1622879/000168316817000950/medman_ex1004.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1622879/000168316817000950/medman_ex1005.htm

Exhibit No.

10.10

10.11

10.12*

10.13*

10.14*

10.15%

10.16*

10.17*

10.18*

10.19

10.20

10.21%*
10.22

10.23

10.24%*
10.25%*

Description

Office Building Lease as of January 31, 2017 by and between Havana Gold LLC and Medicine Man Technologies, Inc. (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.6 to Medicine Man Technologies, Inc.’s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed April 17, 2017 (Commission File No. 000-55450)),

Share Exchange Agreement as of July 21, 2017 by and among Medicine Man Technologies, Inc., Denver Consulting Group LLC and the members of
Denver Consulting Group, LLC (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 of Medicine Man Technologies, Inc.’s current report on Form 8-K filed July 26
2017 (Commission File No. 000-55450))

Exhibit 10.1 of Medicine Man Technologies, Inc.’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed June 6, 2019 (Commission File No. 001-55450)),

Amendment to Securities Purchase Agreement by and between Medicine Man Technologies, Inc. and Dye Capital Cann Holdings, LLC (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 of Medicine Man Technologies, Inc.” s Current Report on Form 8-K filed July 17, 2019 (Commission File No. 001-55450))
Amendment to Securities Purchase Agreement by and between Medicine Man Technologies, Inc. and Dye Capital Cann Holdings, LLC (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 of Medicine Man Technologies, Inc.” s Current Report on Form 8-K filed May 22, 2020 (Commission File No. 001-55450))
Binding Term Sheet between Medicine Man Technologies, Inc. and Cold Baked, LLC/Golden Works, LLC (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of
Medicine Man Technologies, Inc.’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed August 12, 2019 (Commission File No. 001-55450))

Employment Agreement dated December 5, 2019 by and between Justin Dye and Medicine Man Technologies, Inc. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.10 of Medicine Man Technologies, Inc.’s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed March 30, 2020 (Commission File No. 001-55450))

001-55450)),
Securities Purchase Agreement, dated November 16, 2020, by and between Medicine Man Technologies, Inc. and Dye Capital Cann Holdings II, LLC

(Commission File No. 000-55450))
Letter Agreement, dated December 16, 2020, by and between Medicine Man Technologies, Inc. and Dye Capital Cann Holdings II, LLC

No. 000-55450)),

Paul Dickman Restricted Stock Unit Agreement

Third Amendment to Securities Purchase Agreement, dated March 30, 2021, between Medicine Man Technologies, Inc. and Dye Capital Cann Holdings
II,LLC
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http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1622879/000168316817000950/medman_ex1006.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1622879/000168316817001861/medman_ex1007.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1622879/000168316819001810/medman_8k-ex1001.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1622879/000168316819002228/medman_ex1001.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1622879/000168316820001721/medman_ex1001.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1622879/000168316819002546/medman_ex1001.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1622879/000168316820001021/mdcl_ex1010.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1622879/000168316820001021/mdcl_ex1011.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1622879/000168316820001021/mdcl_ex1012.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1622879/000168316820001021/mdcl_ex1013.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1622879/000168316820001021/mdcl_ex1014.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1622879/000168316820003136/medman_ex1001.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1622879/000168316820000657/medicineman_ex1001.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1622879/000168316820003969/medicineman_10q-ex1001.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1622879/000168316820004429/medman_ex1002.htm
https://s3.amazonaws.com/content.stockpr.com/sec/0001683168-21-001161/medman_ex1021.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1622879/000168316820004429/medman_ex1004.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1622879/000168316820004429/medman_ex1005.htm
https://s3.amazonaws.com/content.stockpr.com/sec/0001683168-21-001161/medman_ex1024.htm
https://s3.amazonaws.com/content.stockpr.com/sec/0001683168-21-001161/medman_ex1025.htm

Exhibit No. Description

14.1 Code of Business Conduct and Ethics (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 14.1 to Medicine Man Technologies, Inc.’s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed
April 14, 2016 (Commission File No. 000-55450))

21.1%* List of Subsidiaries

23.1%* Consent of BF Borgers CPA PC

31.1%* Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

31.2%* Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.1%* Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350

101.INS XBRL Instance Document.

101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema.

101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase.

101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase.

101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase.

101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase.

104 Cover Page Interactive Date File (formatted in iXBRL in Exhibit 101)

*  Indicates management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.

** Filed herewith.

ITEM 16. FORM 10-K SUMMARY.
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http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1622879/000101968716005856/mman_10k-ex1401.htm
https://s3.amazonaws.com/content.stockpr.com/sec/0001683168-21-001161/medman_ex2101.htm
https://s3.amazonaws.com/content.stockpr.com/sec/0001683168-21-001161/medman_ex2301.htm
https://s3.amazonaws.com/content.stockpr.com/sec/0001683168-21-001161/medman_ex3101.htm
https://s3.amazonaws.com/content.stockpr.com/sec/0001683168-21-001161/medman_ex3102.htm
https://s3.amazonaws.com/content.stockpr.com/sec/0001683168-21-001161/medman_ex3201.htm

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this Annual Report to be signed on its
behalf by the undersigned thereunder duly authorized.

Dated: March 31, 2021 MEDICINE MAN TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

By: /s/ Justin Dye

Justin Dye

Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

By: /s/ Nancy Huber

Nancy Huber

Chief Financial Officer

(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities
and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date
/s/ Justin Dye Chief Executive Officer and Director March 31, 2021
Justin Dye (Principal Executive Officer and Director)
/s/ Nancy Huber Chief Financial Officer March 31, 2021
Nancy Huber (Principal Financial Officer)
/s/ Dan Pabon General Counsel and Chief Government Affairs Officer March 31, 2021
Dan Pabon
/s/ Nirup Krishnamurthy Chief Operating Officer March 31, 2021
Nirup Krisnamurthy
/s/ Jeffrey A. Cozad Director March 31, 2021
Jeffrey A. Cozad
/s/ Salim Wahdan Director March 31, 2021
Salim Wahdan
/s/ Brian Ruden Director March 31, 2021
Brian Ruden
/s/ Jeff Garwood Director March 31, 2021
Jeff Garwood
/s/ Pratap Mukharji Director March 31, 2021
Pratap Mukhariji
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BARBARA K. CEGAVSKE

Secretary of State

KIMBERLEY PERONDI

Deputy Secretary for

Commercial Recordings

STATE OF NEVADA

OFFICE OF THE
SECRETARY OF STATE

Commercial Recordings Division
202 N Carzon Street
Carson City, NV 59701
Telgphone (773) 654-3708
Fax (773) 684-7138
North Las Fegar Cigr Hall
21250 Las Fegar Bivd North, Suite 400
North Las Fegas, NT 59030
Telophone (T02) 454-2550
Fare (702 486-2888

Certified Copy
2/18/2021 9:48:51 AM
Work Order Number: W2021021800422
Reference Number: 20211243619
Through Date: 21872021 9:48:51 AM
Corporate Name: MEDICINE MAN

TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

The undersigned filing officer hereby certifies that the attached copies are true and exact
copies of all requested statements and related subsequent documentation filed with the
Secretary of State’s Office, Commercial Recordings Division listed on the attached report.

Document Number
20201103858

Description [Number of Pages
(Certificate of Designation 17

Bespectfully,

m«%

BARBARA K. CEGAVSKE
Nevada Secretary of State

Cestified By: Rhonda Tmn

Certificate NMumber- B202102181439277
You may venify thes certificate

online at hitpy//WWw.nvsos.cov
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Secratary of State
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2 Morth Carson Street

Carson City, Nevada B9701-4201
(775) 684-5708
Website: www.nvsos.gov

Certificate, Amendment or Withdrawal of Designation

Certificate of Amendment to Designation - Before Issuance of Class or Series
Certificate of Amendment to Designation - After Issuance of Class or Series

MRS 78.1955, 78.1955(6)
® Certificate of Designation

Certificate of Withdrawal of Certificate of Designation

TYPE OR PRINT - USE DARK INK ONLY - DO NOT HIGHLIGHT

1. Entity information:

Mame of entity:
Medicine Man Technologies, Inc.

Entity or Mevada Business Identification Mumber (NVID):  E0149142014-4

2. Effective date and
time:

For Certificate of Designation or
Amendment to Designation Only
{Optional):

Dante: Time:

{musi not ba later than 80 days after the certificate is filed)

3. Class or series of
stock: (Cerlificate of
Designation andy)

The class or series of stock being designated within this filing:
Series A Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock

4, Infermation for
amendment of class
or series of stock:

Tha original class or series of stack being amended within this filing:

5. Amendment of
class or series of

Certificate of Amendment to Designation- Before lssuance of Class or Series
As of the dale of this certificate no shares of the dass or serles of stock hava been issued

stock:

Certificate of Amendment to Designation- After Issuance of Class or Series
The amandment has been approved by the vote af stockholders halding shares in the corporation
entiting them fo exercise a majority of the vating power, or such greater proportion of the vating
POwWer as may be required by the articles of incorporation or the certificate of designation.

6. Resolution:
Cartificate of Designation
and Amendment fo
Designation only)

By resolution of the board of directors pursuant to a provision in the articles of incorporation this

carificate establishes OR amends the fellowing regarding the veting powers, designations,

preferences, limitations, restrictions and relative rights of the following class or series of stock *
The board of directors hereby designates the corporation's "Series A
Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock” as set forth in the attached pages.

T. Withdrawal:

Date of
Designation:

Designation baing
Withdrawn:

No shares of the class or series of stock being withdrawn are outstanding,

The resolution of the board of directors authorizing the withdrawal of the cerlificate of
designation establishing the class or series of stock: *

B. Signature: (Reguirad)

x_MmB—

Data: 12/16/2020

Slgnature of Officer

* Attach additional page(s) if necessary
This form must be accompanied by appropriate fees.

1al1
Fendged: 1/1/201%




MEDICINE MAN TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

CERTIFICATE OF DESIGNATION
OF
SERIES A CUMULATIVE CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED STOCK

Pursuant to Nevada Revised Statutes ("NRS") 78.195 and 78.1955, the undersigned officer of Medicine Man Technologies, Inc., a Nevada corporation (the
"Corporation"), hereby certifies:

The Articles of Incorporation of the Corporation, as amended to date (and as further amended from time to time, the "Articles of Incorporation"), confer upon the
Corporation's Board of Directors (the "Board of Directors") the authority to provide for the designation and issuance of shares of preferred stock, par value $0.001 per share, in
a series and to establish the number of shares to be included in such series and to fix the designation, rights, preferences, privileges and restrictions granted and imposed upon
any of the shares of such series. The Board of Directors has duly adopted the following resolution creating a series of the Corporation's preferred stock designated as the Series
A Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock:

RESOLVED, that pursuant to the authority vested in the Board of Directors in accordance with the provisions of the Articles of Incorporation, such series of preferred
stock, par value $0.001 per share, of the Corporation is hereby created, and that the designation and number of shares thereof and the rights, preferences, privileges and
restrictions of the shares of such series, and the qualifications, limitations and restrictions thereof are as follows:

1. Definitions. For the purposes hereof, the following terms shall have the following meanings:
"Anticipated Change of Control Notice" shall have the meaning set forth in Section 6(b).

"Business Day" means any day other than Saturday, Sunday or other day on which commercial banks in The City of New York are authorized or required by law to
remain closed.

"Change of Control Transaction" means the occurrence after the date hereof of any of: (a) the acquisition by any Person, including any syndicate or group deemed to
be a "person" under Section 13(d)(3) of the Exchange Act, of beneficial ownership, directly or indirectly, through a purchase, merger or other acquisition transaction or series of
related purchases, mergers or other acquisition transactions of shares of the Corporation, in each case, which such transaction or transactions are with the Corporation or
approved by the Board of Directors, entitling that person to exercise more than a majority of the total voting power of all shares of the Corporation entitled to vote generally in
elections of directors (except that such Person will be deemed to have beneficial ownership of all securities that such Person has the right to acquire, whether such right is
currently exercisable or is exercisable only upon the occurrence of a subsequent condition); (b) the Corporation merges into or consolidates with any other Person, or any
Person merges into or consolidates with the Corporation and, after giving effect to such transaction, the stockholders of the Corporation immediately prior to such transaction
own less than a majority of the aggregate voting power of the Corporation or the successor entity of such transaction immediately after such transaction; (c) the Corporation
voluntarily sells, leases, transfers or otherwise disposes, in a single transaction or a series of related transactions, all or substantially all of its assets to another Person and the
stockholders of the Corporation immediately prior to such transaction own less than a majority of the aggregate voting power of the acquiring entity immediately after such
transaction; or (d) the Common Stock ceases to be listed on any Trading Market.

"Common Stock" means the Corporation's common stock, par value $0.001 per share, and stock of any other class of securities into which such securities may
hereafter be reclassified or changed.




"Conversion Shares" means, collectively, the shares of Common Stock issuable upon conversion of the shares of Preferred Stock in accordance with the terms hereof.

"Cumulative Dividend" shall have the meaning set forth in Section 4(a).

"Deemed Liquidation" shall have the meaning set forth in Section 6(b).

“Deemed Liquidation Election" shall have the meaning set forth in Section 6(b).

"Dividend Payment Date" shall have the meaning set forth in Section 4(a).

"Forced Redemption Notice" shall have the meaning set forth in Section 9(b).

"Holder" shall have the meaning given such term in Section 4(a).
"Junior Securities" shall have the meaning set forth in Section 3.

"Liquidation" shall have the meaning set forth in Section 6(a).

"Listing Event" means the listing of the Corporation's Common Stock on the Nasdaq Capital Market, the Nasdaq Global Market, the Nasdaq Global Select Market, the
New York Stock Exchange, followed within 90 days thereafter by a public offering of Common Stock that generates gross proceeds to the Corporation of no less than $100
million.

"MNPI" shall have the meaning set forth in Section 11(h).

"Original Issue Date" means the date of the first issuance by the Corporation of any share of the Preferred Stock.
"Parity Securities" shall have the meaning set forth in Section 3.

"Person" means an individual or corporation, partnership, trust, incorporated or unincorporated association, joint venture, limited liability company, joint stock
company, government (or an agency or subdivision thereof) or other entity of any kind.

"Preference Amount" shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2, as the same may be increased pursuant to Section 4.




"Preferred Stock" shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2.
"Redemption Price" shall have the meaning set forth in Section 9(c).
"Representatives" shall have the meaning set forth in Section 11(h).
"Senior Securities" shall have the meaning set forth in Section 3.

"Share Delivery Date" shall have the meaning set forth in Section 7(c).

"Trading Day" means a day on which the principal Trading Market is open for business.

"Trading Market" means any of the following markets or exchanges on which the Common Stock is listed or quoted for trading on the date in question: the NYSE
MKT, the Nasdaq Capital Market, the Nasdaq Global Market, the Nasdaq Global Select Market, the New York Stock Exchange, OTC Bulletin Board, OTCQB, OTCQX or any
recognized stock exchange in North America (or any successors to any of the foregoing).

2. Designation, Par Value and Preference Amount. The series of preferred stock is hereby designated as Series A Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock
(the "Preferred Stock") and the number of shares so designated shall be 60,000. Each share of Preferred Stock shall have a par value of $0.001 per share and a preference
amount equal to $1,000, subject to increase as set forth in Section 4 below (the "Preference Amount")

3. Ranking, Unless provided otherwise in this Certificate of Designation, the Preferred Stock, with respect to conversion rights, redemption payments, and
rights upon liquidation, dissolution or winding-up of the affairs of the Corporation or a Change of Control Transaction, shall rank: (a) senior to the Common Stock and any
other class of capital stock or other securities the Corporation issued after the effective date of this Certificate of Designation, the terms of which do not provide that they rank
senior to the Preferred Stock (collectively, "Junior Securities"); (b) on parity with any class of capital stock or other securities the Corporation issues after the effective date of
this Certificate of Designation, the terms of which provide that they rank on parity with the Preferred Stock (collectively, "Parity Securities"); (c) junior to each class of capital
stock or other securities the Corporation issues after the effective date of this Certificate of Designation, the terms of which provide that such securities rank senior to the
Preferred Stock (collectively, "Senior Securities"); and (d) junior to all of the Corporation's existing and future indebtedness.

4. Dividends.

(a) Dividends in Kind. Holders of Preferred Stock (each, a "Holder," and collectively, the "Holders") shall be entitled to receive, and the Corporation
shall pay, a cumulative dividend (each, a ""Cumulative Dividend" and collectively, "Cumulative Dividends") at the rate of 8% per annum on the Preference Amount per share,
payable annually on each anniversary of the Original Issue Date, to Holders of record on each such payment date (each such date, a "Dividend Payment Date"), by having each
such Cumulative Dividend automatically accrete as of the relevant Dividend Payment Date to, and increase, the outstanding Preference Amount, and shall thereafter be
considered fully paid and no longer accrued and unpaid Cumulative Dividends.

(b) Dividend Calculations. Cumulative Dividends ¢ on the Preferred Stock shall be calculated on the basis of a 360-day year, consisting of twelve 30-
calendar-day periods, and shall accrue daily commencing on the Original Issue Date, and shall be deemed to accrue from such date whether or not earned or declared and
whether or not there are funds of the Corporation legally available for the payment of dividends in accordance with NRS 78.288 or otherwise. Cumulative Dividends shall cease
to accrue with respect to any share of Preferred Stock upon the conversion or redemption of such share.




5. Voting Rights. On any matter presented to the Corporation's stockholders for their action or consideration at any meeting of the Corporation's
stockholders (or by written consent of stockholders in lieu of meeting), each Holder of outstanding shares of Preferred Stock shall be entitled to cast the number of votes equal
to the number of whole shares of Common Stock into which the shares of Preferred Stock held by such Holder would convert into as of the record date for determining
stockholders entitled to vote on such matter as if such shares of Preferred Stock were convertible as of such date. Except as provided by law or by the other provisions of the
Articles of Incorporation, Holders shall vote together with the holders of Common Stock as a single class.

6. Liquidation.

(a) General. In the event of any voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution or winding-up of the Corporation (each, a "Liquidation"), the Holders
shall be entitled, together and pro rata with the holders of Parity Securities, to be paid out of the Corporation's assets available for distributions to its stockholders, before any
payment shall be made to the holders of Junior Securities by reason of their ownership thereof, an amount in cash equal to the Preference Amount for each share of Preferred
Stock plus the pro rata portion of the amount of the next Cumulative Dividend for the period between the previous Dividend Payment Date and the date of such Liquidation,
and if the assets of the Corporation shall be insufficient to pay such amounts in full, then the entire assets to be distributed to the Holders shall be ratably distributed among the
Holders in accordance with the respective amounts that would be payable on such shares if all amounts payable thereon were paid in full. The Corporation shall mail written
notice of any such Liquidation, not less than 45 days prior to the payment date stated therein, to each Holder.

(b) Change of Control Transaction. In the event the Corporation anticipates consummating a Change of Control Transaction, at least 21 days prior to
the consummation of such Change of Control Transaction, the Corporation shall provide written notice to the Holders disclosing the material terms of such Change of Control
Transaction and the anticipated consummation date (an "Anticipated Change of Control Notice"). At the written election of the Corporation to the Holders or the Holders
holding not less than a majority of the then issued and outstanding shares of Preferred Stock to the Corporation, in each case, no more than 10 days after the Anticipated
Change of Control Notice is deemed delivered hereunder (a "Deemed Liquidation Election"), such Change of Control Transaction shall be deemed a Liquidation for purposes
of this Section 6 (a "Deemed Liquidation"). Upon the consummation of a Deemed Liquidation, the Holders shall, in consideration of cancellation of their shares of Preferred
Stock, be entitled, together and pro rata with the holders of Parity Securities, to the same rights such Holders are entitled to under this Section 6 upon the occurrence of a
Liquidation. The amount deemed paid or distributed to the Holders under Section 6(a) upon a Deemed Liquidation in consideration of cancellation of their shares of Preferred
Stock shall be the cash or the value of the property, rights or securities paid or distributed to the Holders in such Deemed Liquidation. The value of such property, rights or
securities shall be equal to the fair market value, as determined in good faith by the Board of Directors.

7. Conversion.
(a) Voluntary Conversions at Option of Holder.
) General. Each share of Preferred Stock shall be convertible at the option of the Holder thereof (1) after the occurrence of a Listing Event,

(2) after the receipt of an Anticipated Change of Control Notice (even if the Corporation shall have sent a Deemed Liquidation Election), but solely in the event the Change of
Control Transaction that is the subject of such Anticipated Change of Control Notice is consummated, (3) after the receipt by the Holders of a Forced Redemption Notice, but
solely with respect to the shares of Preferred Stock that are the subject of such Forced Redemption Notice, and (4) at any time after the first anniversary of the Original Issue
Date, in each case, into that number of shares of Common Stock determined by dividing (x) the Preference Amount of such share of Preferred Stock, plus the pro rata portion
of the amount of the next Cumulative Dividend for the period between the previous Dividend Payment Date and the date of such conversion, by (y) $1.20, subject to adjustment
as provided herein (as adjusted, the "Conversion Price"); provided that, in each Notice of Voluntary Conversion, a Holder must request conversion of (X) a number of shares of
Preferred Stock having an aggregate Preference Amount equal to or exceeding $100,000, or, (Y) if less, all of the shares of Preferred Stock held by such Holder.




(ii) Notice of Voluntary Conversion. Holders shall effect any conversion under Section 7(a) by providing the Corporation (or its agent
appointed to administer conversion of the Preferred Stock) with a notice in the form attached hereto as Annex A (each, a "Notice of Voluntary Conversion"), (1) in the case of
the occurrence of a Listing Event, within 90 days thereafter, (2) in the case of an Anticipated Change of Control Notice, no more than 14 days after such Anticipated Change of
Control Notice is deemed delivered hereunder, and (3) in the case of a Forced Redemption Notice, no more than 10 days after such Forced Redemption Notice is deemed
delivered hereunder. Each Notice of Voluntary Conversion shall specify the number of shares of Preferred Stock a Holder elects to be converted and, in the case of a Listing
Event or a Forced Redemption Notice, the date on which such conversion is to be effected, which date may not be prior to the date the applicable Notice of Voluntary
Conversion is delivered to the Corporation or its agent appointed to administer conversion of the Preferred Stock (such date, the "Voluntary Conversion Date"). If no number of
shares of Preferred Stock is specified as elected to be converted in a Notice of Voluntary Conversion, all shares of Preferred Stock held by the Holder shall be deemed to be
elected to be converted. If no Voluntary Conversion Date is specified in a Notice of Voluntary Conversion, in the case of a Listing Event or a Forced Redemption Notice, the
Voluntary Conversion Date shall be the date that such Notice of Voluntary Conversion to the Corporation is deemed delivered hereunder. The Voluntary Conversion Date in the
case of an Anticipated Change of Control Notice shall be the date of the consummation of the Change of Control Transaction that is the subject of such Anticipated Change of
Control Notice. Upon delivery of the Notice of Voluntary Conversion by a Holder, -in the case of a Listing Event, a Forced Redemption Notice or voluntary conversion after
the second anniversary of the Original Issue Date, such Holder shall be deemed for all purposes to have become the holder of record of the Conversion Shares with respect to
which the Preferred Stock has been converted, irrespective of the date of delivery of the certificates evidencing such Conversion Shares. No ink-original Notice of Voluntary
Conversion shall be required, nor shall any medallion guarantee (or other type of guarantee or notarization) of any Notice of Voluntary Conversion form be required. The
calculations and entries set forth in the Notice of Voluntary Conversion shall control in the absence of manifest or mathematical error. Further, the calculations made by the
Corporation or its agent appointed to administer conversion of the Preferred Stock concerning information required in a Notice of Voluntary Conversion in the form attached
hereto as Annex A that is not actually provided in a Notice of Voluntary Conversion, shall control in the absence of manifest or mathematical error. To effect any conversion of
shares of Preferred Stock, a Holder shall not be required to surrender the certificate(s) representing the shares of Preferred Stock to the Corporation unless all of the shares of
Preferred Stock represented thereby are so converted, in which case such Holder shall deliver the certificate representing such shares of Preferred Stock promptly following the
Voluntary Conversion Date at issue. With respect to Preferred Stock held in electronic form through a broker, bank or other nominee, if required by the transfer agent, Holder
shall cause its broker, bank or nominee to return to the Corporation, in electronic form, the number of shares of Preferred Stock being converted.

(b)  Forced Conversion by Corporation.

@) General. At the election of the Corporation (1) within 90 days after the occurrence of a Listing Event, or (2) subject to Holders' rights
under Section 6(b) and 9(a), within 14 days after an Anticipated Change of Control Notice is deemed delivered hereunder, in each case, each share of Preferred Stock shall be
convertible, at the option of the Corporation, into that number of shares of Common Stock determined by dividing (x) the Preference Amount of such share of Preferred Stock
plus the pro rata portion of the amount of the next Cumulative Dividend for the period between the previous Dividend Payment Date and the date of such conversion, by (y) the
Conversion Price. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Corporation shall not have the option to force conversion of the Preferred Stock under this Section 6(b)
in the event that the Common Stock ceases to be listed on any Trading Market.

(ii) Notice of Forced Conversion. The Corporation shall effect any conversion under Section 7(b)(i) by delivering a written notice to all
Holders (a "Notice of Forced Conversion," and the date such notice is delivered to all Holders, the "Notice of Forced Conversion Date"). Each Notice of Forced Conversion
shall specify the number of shares of Preferred Stock the Corporation elects to be converted. If no number of shares of Preferred Stock is specified as elected to be converted in
a Notice of Forced Conversion, all shares of Preferred Stock held by the Holder shall be deemed to be elected to be converted. Each conversion under Section 7(b)(i) shall be
deemed to occur (1) in the case of a Listing Event, on the second Trading Day following the Notice of Forced Conversion Date is deemed delivered hereunder, and (2) in the
case of an Anticipated Change of Control Notice, on the date of the consummation of the Change of Control Transaction that is the subject of such Anticipated Change of
Control Notice (such date, the "Forced Conversion Date"). Notwithstanding the foregoing, for any Notice of Forced Conversion in connection with an Anticipated Change of
Control Notice to be effective, the Change of Control Transaction that is the subject of such Anticipated Change of Control Notice must not be or become subject to a Deemed
Liquidation Election. No ink-original Notice of Forced Conversion shall be required, nor shall any medallion guarantee (or other type of guarantee or notarization) of any
Notice of Forced Conversion form be required. The calculations and entries set forth in the Notice of Forced Conversion shall control in the absence of manifest or
mathematical error. Further, the calculations made by the Corporation or its agent appointed to administer conversion of the Preferred Stock concerning information required in
a Notice of Forced Conversion that is not actually provided in a Notice of Forced Conversion, shall control in the absence of manifest or mathematical error. Upon receipt of a
Notice of Forced Conversion, each Holder shall (i) surrender the certificate(s) representing the shares of Preferred Stock to be converted to the Corporation, and (ii) with
respect to Preferred Stock held in electronic form through a broker, bank or other nominee, if required by the transfer agent, cause its broker, bank or nominee to return to the
Corporation, in electronic form, the number of shares of Preferred Stock being converted.




(¢)  Mechanics of Conversion.

(1) Delivery of Conversion Shares Upon Conversion. Not later than five Trading Days after any Voluntary Conversion Date or Forced
Conversion Date (the "Share Delivery Date"), the Corporation shall deliver, or cause to be delivered, to the converting Holder: (A) the number of Conversion Shares being

Conversion Shares in certificated form if the converted shares of Preferred Stock were held in certificated form and electronically through the Depository Trust Company or
another established clearing corporation performing similar functions if the converted shares of Preferred Stock were held in electronic form.

(ii) Reservation of Shares Issuable Upon Conversion. The Corporation covenants that it will at all times reserve and keep available out of its
authorized and unissued shares of Common Stock, for the sole purpose of issuance upon conversion of the Preferred Stock and free from preemptive rights or any other actual
contingent purchase rights of Persons other than the Holders, not less than such aggregate number of shares of the Common Stock then issuable (taking into account the
adjustments of Section 8) upon the conversion of the then outstanding shares of Preferred Stock. The Corporation covenants that all shares of Common Stock issued in
accordance with the terms of this Certificate of Designation shall, upon such issuance, be duly authorized, validly issued, fully paid and nonassessable.

(iii) Fractional Shares. No fractional shares or scrip representing fractional shares shall be issued upon the conversion of the Preferred Stock.
As to any fraction of a share which the Holder would otherwise be entitled upon such conversion, the Corporation shall at its election, either pay a cash adjustment in respect of
such final fraction in an amount equal to such fraction multiplied by the Conversion Price or round up to the next whole share.

@iv) Transfer Taxes and Expenses. The issuance of Conversion Shares on conversion of this Preferred Stock shall be made without charge to
any Holder for any documentary stamp or similar taxes or transfer taxes that may be payable in respect of the issue or delivery of such Conversion Shares, provided that the
Corporation shall not be required to pay any tax that may be payable in respect of any transfer involved in the issuance and delivery of any such Conversion Shares upon
conversion in a name other than that of the Holders of such shares of Preferred Stock and the Corporation shall not be required to issue or deliver such Conversion Shares
unless or until the Person or Persons requesting the issuance thereof shall have paid to the Corporation the amount of such tax or shall have established to the satisfaction of the
Corporation that such tax has been paid. The Corporation shall pay all transfer agent fees required for same-day processing of any Notice of Conversion and all fees to the
Depository Trust Company (or another established clearing corporation performing similar functions) required for same-day electronic delivery of the Conversion Shares, if
applicable.

8. Certain Adjustments.
(a) Stock Splits and Combinations.
) If the Corporation shall at any time or from time to time after the Original Issue Date increase the number of outstanding shares of
Preferred Stock by means of a subdivision (including by way of a stock split), reclassification or other similar event of the outstanding shares of Preferred Stock, the applicable
Preference Amount in effect immediately before that subdivision, reclassification or other similar event shall be proportionately reduced.
(ii) If the Corporation shall at any time or from time to time after the Original Issue Date decrease the number of outstanding shares of

Preferred Stock by means of a combination (including by way of a reverse stock split), reclassification or other similar event of the outstanding shares of Preferred Stock, the
applicable Preference Amount in effect immediately before that combination, reclassification or other similar event shall be proportionately increased.




(iii) If the Corporation shall at any time or from time to time after the Original. Issue Date increase the number of outstanding shares of
Common Stock by means of a subdivision (including by way of a stock split), reclassification or other similar event, of the outstanding Common Stock, the applicable
Conversion Price in effect immediately before that subdivision, reclassification or other similar event shall be proportionately decreased so that the number of shares of
Common Stock issuable upon conversion of each share of Preferred Stock shall be increased in proportion to such increase in the aggregate number of shares of Common Stock
outstanding.

@iv) If the Corporation shall at any time or from time to time after the Original Issue Date decrease the number of outstanding shares of
Common Stock by means of a combination (including by way of a reverse stock split), reclassification or other similar event, of the outstanding Common Stock, the applicable
Conversion Price in effect immediately before that combination, reclassification or other similar event shall be proportionately decreased so that the number of shares of
Common Stock issuable upon conversion of each share of Preferred Stock shall be increased in proportion to such increase in the aggregate number of shares of Common Stock
outstanding.

) Any adjustment under this subsection shall become effective at the close of business on the date the subdivision, combination,
reclassification or other similar event becomes effective.

(b) Stock Dividends.

1) If the Corporation at any time or from time to time after the Original Issue Date makes or issues, or fixes a record date for the
determination of holders of Common Stock entitled to receive, a dividend or other distribution payable on the Common Stock in additional shares of Common Stock, then, in
each such event the applicable Conversion Price in effect immediately before such event shall be decreased as of the time of such issuance or, in the event such a record date
shall have been fixed, as of the close of business on such record date, by multiplying the applicable Conversion Price then in effect by a fraction (1) the numerator of which
shall be the total number of shares of Common Stock issued and outstanding immediately before the time of such issuance or the close of business on such record date, and (2)
the denominator of which shall be the total number of shares of Common Stock issued and outstanding immediately before the time of such issuance or the close of business on
such record date plus the number of shares of Common Stock issuable in payment of such dividend.

(ii) Notwithstanding the foregoing, (1) if such record date shall have been fixed and such dividend is not fully paid or if such distribution is
not fully made on the date fixed therefor, the applicable Conversion Price shall be recomputed accordingly as of the close of business on such record date and thereafter the
applicable Conversion Price shall be adjusted pursuant to this subsection as of the time of actual payment of such dividends or distributions; and (2) that no such adjustment
shall be made if the holders of Preferred Stock simultaneously receive a dividend or other distribution of shares of Common Stock in a number equal to the number of shares of
Common Stock as they would have received if all outstanding shares of Preferred Stock had been converted into Common Stock on the date of such event.

(c) Calculations. All calculations under this Section 8 shall be made to the nearest cent or the nearest 1/100th of a share, as the case may be. For
purposes of this Section 8, the number of shares of Common Stock deemed to be issued and outstanding as of a given date shall be the sum of the number of shares of Common
Stock (excluding any treasury shares of the Corporation) issued and outstanding.

(d) Notice of Adjustment to Conversion Price. Whenever the Conversion Price or Preference Amount is adjusted pursuant to any provision of this
Section 8, the Corporation shall promptly deliver to each Holder a written notice setting forth the Conversion Price or Preference Amount, as applicable, after such adjustment
and setting forth a brief statement of the facts requiring such adjustment.




9. Redemption.

(a) Voluntary Redemption. At the written election of any Holder (i) within 90 days after a Listing Event, (ii) at any time after the fifth anniversary of
the Original Issue Date, (iii) within 14 days after an Anticipated Change of Control Notice is deemed delivered hereunder, or (iv) within 5 days after a Notice of Forced
Conversion shall be deemed to have been sent, such Holder may elect to have the Corporation redeem all or any portion of such Holder's shares of Preferred Stock for the
Redemption Price per share. Notwithstanding the foregoing, for any redemption request in connection with an Anticipated Change of Control Notice to be effective, the Change
of Control Transaction that is the subject of such Anticipated Change of Control Notice (x) must not be or become subject to a Deemed Liquidation Election, and (y) must be
consummated. Notice of redemption must be given by a Holderoto the Corporation at least 20 Business Days before the desired redemption date. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, after receipt of a redemption notice from a Holder, the Corporation may elect to defer such redemption by deferring the redemption date one or more times until no
later than the date that is 12 months (the "Deferral Period") from the redemption date originally requested by such Holder by providing written notice to such Holder of such
deferral within 20 Business Days before the redemption date originally requested by such Holder; provided that the Cumulative Dividends on the Preferred Stock during such
deferred redemption period shall be increased to a rate of 10% per annum on the Preference Amount per share for the first 6 months of the Deferral Period and shall thereafter
increase to a rate of 15% per annum on the Preference Amount per share. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, during the Deferral Period the Corporation shall act
in good faith, use all commercially reasonable efforts to pay the full redempti amount as soon as practicable, and shall not take any actions that are intended to del4"reduce the
payment of the full redemption amount as soon as practicable.

(b) Forced Redemption. At the option of the Corporation, at any time within 90 days after a Listing Event, the Corporation may elect to redeem all or
any portion of Preferred Stock for the Redemption Price per share. Notice of redemption (a "Forced Redemption Notice") shall be given by the Corporation to the Holders as
provided in Section 11(a), and must be given at least 20 days before the desired redemption date.

(c) Redemption Price; Miscellaneous. The redemption price for any shares of Preferred Stock to be redeemed shall be payable in cash, out of funds
legally available therefor, and shall be equal to the Preference Amount per share plus the pro rata portion of the amount of the next Cumulative Dividend for the period
between the previous Dividend Payment Date and the date of such redemption (the "Redemption Price"). If fewer than all of the outstanding shares of Preferred Stock are to be
redeemed at any time, the Corporation shall redeem shares proportionally from all Holders. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, the Corporation may repurchase
shares of Preferred Stock in the open market or in privately negotiated transactions at any time.

10. Cannabis Law Compliance and Unsuitability Redemption. Each Holder shall (a) take all action reasonably required by such Holder in such Holder's
capacity as a holder of Preferred Stock to comply with applicable state cannabis laws and regulations, including, without limitation, making all requisite filings under such laws
and regulations as and when required and reasonably keep the Corporation apprised of the same, and (b) upon the Corporation's reasonable request, at the Corporation's sole
cost and expense, reasonably cooperate with the Corporation with respect to any Corporation report, filing, notification or other communication with or to any state
governmental authority related to the Corporation's licenses, approvals, consents or obligations under state cannabis laws and regulations related to such Holder's capacity as a
holder of Preferred Stock, including, without limitation, any investigation or inquiry by a state governmental authority related to any of the foregoing. The Corporation shall
have the right but not the obligation to redeem all or any portion of the shares of Preferred Stock held by such Holder for cash at a per share purchase price equal, to the greater
of (i) the Preference Amount plus the pro rata portion of the amount of the next Cumulative Dividend for the period between the previous Dividend Payment Date and the date
of such redemption per share, and (ii) (x) the Preference Amount plus the pro rata portion of the amount of the next Cumulative Dividend for the period between the previous
Dividend Payment Date and the date of such redemption per share divided by (y) the Conversion Price, and then multiplying the quotient by (z) the average closing price of the
Common Stock as reported on the Trading Market for the Common Stock for the 45 Trading Days immediately preceding the date of such redemption notice, on not less than
five days' written notice, if such Holder or one of its affiliates is determined to be unsuitable or disqualified to own a direct or indirect interest in the Corporation by a state
governmental authority, including, without limitation, the Colorado Marijuana Enforcement Division; provided, that, (A) to the extent permitted by the applicable state
governmental authority without jeopardizing the Corporation's licenses, approvals, consents or obligations under state cannabis laws and regulations, the Corporation shall
provide such Holder with a reasonable period to cure the cause for such determination or disqualification prior to such redemption, (B) the Corporation shall only redeem the
Holder's shares of Preferred Stock to the extent necessary to comply with applicable state cannabis laws and regulations, and (C) the redemption price per share shall be equal
to such Holder's original purchase price per share if such Holder or one of its affiliates is determined by a state governmental authority to have been unsuitable or disqualified at
the time of such Holder's acquisition of shares of Preferred Stock.
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11. Miscellaneous.

(a) Notices. Notices, consents, waivers or other communications required or permitted to be given hereunder including, without limitation, any
Notice of Voluntary Conversion or Notice of Forced Conversion must be in writing (other than a Notice of Voluntary Conversion or Notice of Forced Conversion required .to
be submitted electronically through the Depository Trust Company) and will be deemed to have been delivered: (i) upon receipt, when delivered personally; (ii) upon delivery,
when sent by facsimile (provided confirmation of transmission is mechanically or electronically generated and kept on file by the sending party); (iii) upon delivery, when sent
by electronic mail (provided that the sending party does not receive an automated rejection notice); or (iv) upon receipt, when sent by overnight courier service, in each case
properly addressed to the party to receive the same. The addresses, facsimile numbers and e-mail addresses for such communications shall be: If to the Corporation: Medicine
Man Technologies, Inc., 4880 Havana Street, Suite 201, Denver, CO 80239, Telephone: (303) 371-0387, Facsimile: (303) 371-0598, Attention: General Counsel, E-mail:
dan@schwazze.com. If to a Holder, to such Holder's address and e-mail address then appearing in the books of the Corporation, with copies to such Holder's representatives, if
any, then appearing in the books of the Corporation. Any notice address, facsimile number or email address for a party may be changed by delivering such other address,
facsimile number and/or email address and/or to the attention of such other Person as the specified by written notice given to the Corporation or the Holders, as applicable, five
calendar days prior to the effectiveness of such change. Written confirmation of receipt (A) given by the recipient of such notice, consent, waiver or other communication, (B)
mechanically or electronically generated by the sender's facsimile machine or e-mail containing the time, date, recipient facsimile number and an image of the first page of such
transmission or (C) provided by an overnight courier service shall be rebuttable evidence of personal service, receipt by facsimile or receipt from an overnight courier service in
accordance with clause (i), (ii) or (iii) above, respectively.

(b) Lost or Mutilated Preferred Stock Certificate. Upon receipt by the Corporation of evidence reasonably satisfactory to the Corporation of the loss,
theft, destruction or mutilation of a Holder's Preferred Stock certificate, and, in the case of loss, theft or destruction, of any indemnification undertaking by the Holder to the
Corporation in customary form and, in the case of mutilation, upon surrender and cancellation of the mutilated certificate, the Corporation shall execute and deliver, in
exchange and substitution for and upon cancellation of a mutilated certificate, or in lieu of or in substitution for a lost, stolen or destroyed certificate, a new certificate for the
shares of Preferred Stock so mutilated, lost, stolen or destroyed.

(c) Amendment and Waiver. No provision of this Certificate of Designation may be amended, modified or waived except upon approval of such
amendment, modification or waiver pursuant to an instrument in writing executed by the Corporation and the Holders of a majority of the then outstanding shares of the
Preferred Stock (and, if required pursuant to the NRS, the filing of certificate of amendment to this Certificate of Designation in accordance with NRS 78.1955), and any such
written amendment, modification or waiver shall be binding upon the Corporation and each holder of Preferred Stock; provided that no such action shall modify or waive (i) the
definition of Preference Amount, (ii) the rate at which or the manner in which Cumulative Dividends accrue or accumulate or the times at which such Cumulative Dividends
become payable pursuant to Section. 4, or (iii) this Section 11(c), without the prior written consent of each holder of the then outstanding shares of Preferred Stock.
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth in this Certificate of Designation or the NRS (including, without limitation, NRS 78.1955), no consent or approval of the
holders of any Senior Securities, Parity Securities or Junior Securities shall be required in connection with any amendment, modification or waiver of this Certificate of
Designation.

(d) Waiver. Any waiver by the Corporation or a Holder of a breach of any provision of this Certificate of Designation shall not operate as or be
construed to be a waiver of any other breach of such provision or of any breach of any other provision of this Certificate of Designation or a waiver by any other Holders. The
failure of the Corporation or a Holder to insist upon strict adherence to any term of this Certificate of Designation on one or more occasions shall not be considered a waiver or
deprive that party (or any other Holder) of the right thereafter to insist upon strict adherence to that term or any other term of this Certificate of Designation on any other
occasion. Any waiver by the Corporation or a Holder must be in writing.

(e) Severability. If any provision of this Certificate of Designation is invalid, illegal or unenforceable, the balance of this Certificate of Designation
shall remain in effect, and if any provision is inapplicable to any Person or circumstance, it shall nevertheless remain applicable to all other Persons and circumstances. If it
shall be found that any interest or other amount deemed interest due hereunder violates the applicable law governing usury, the applicable rate of interest due hereunder shall
automatically be lowered to equal the maximum rate of interest permitted under applicable law.




® Next Business Day. Whenever any payment or other obligation hereunder shall be due on a day other than a Business Day, such payment shall be
made on the next succeeding Business Day.

(g) Status of Converted or Redeemed Preferred Stock. If any shares of Preferred Stock shall be converted, redeemed or reacquired by the Corporation,
such shares shall resume the status of authorized and unissued shares of the Corporation's preferred stock, shall no longer be designated as Series A Cumulative Convertible
Preferred Stock, and thereafter may be designated and issued as part of another series of the Corporation's preferred stock.

(h) Material Non-Public Information. In the event that the Corporation believes that a notice provided by the Corporation to any Holder under this
Certificate of Designation contains material, nonpublic information relating to the Corporation or its subsidiaries ("MNPI"), the Corporation shall so indicate to such Holder
contemporaneously with delivery of such notice. Each Holder agrees that such Holder will not disclose any MNPI it receives under the terms of this Certificate of Designation
to any individual or entity, except to such Holder's affiliates, employees, officers, directors, partners, managers, shareholders, members, equity owners, agents, attorneys,
accountants or advisors (collectively, "Representatives") who: (1) need to know such MNPI to assist such Holder, or act on its behalf, in such Holder's capacity as a Holder or to
exercise its rights under this Certificate of Designation; (2) are informed by such Holder of the confidential nature of such MNPI; and (3) are subject to confidentiality duties or
obligations to such Holder that are no less restrictive than the terms and conditions of this Section 11(h). Each Holder agrees that it shall be responsible for any breach of this
Section 11(h) caused by any of its Representatives, unless such Representatives entered into a separate confidentiality agreement with the Corporation.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, this Section 11(h) does not prohibit a Holder from reporting, or communicating or participating in any investigation or proceeding with
respect to, possible violations of U.S. federal securities laws or regulation to any U.S. federal governmental agency or entity, including, without limitation, the U.S.
Department of Justice, the Securities and Exchange Commission, the U.S. Congress and any U.S. agency inspector general, or making other disclosures that are protected
under the whistleblower provisions of federal law or regulation. No prior authorization from the Corporation is required for such reports, communications or participation nor
does a Holder need to notify the Corporation that such Holder has made such report or communication or is participating in any such investigation or proceeding.

s sfesfe s s s sk sk s sfe sk sk sk steskoskokokoskok
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned officer of Medicine Man Technologies, Inc. has executed this Certificate of Designation as of December 16, 2020.
MEDICINE MAN TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
By: /s/ Nancy Huber

Name: Nancy Huber
Title: Chief Financial Officer
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ANNEX A
NOTICE OF VOLUNTARY CONVERSION

(TO BE EXECUTED BY THE REGISTERED HOLDER IN ORDER TO CONVERT SHARES OF PREFERRED STOCK)
The undersigned hereby elects to convert the number of shares of Series A Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock indicated below into shares of common stock, par value
$0.001 per share (the "Common Stock"), of Medicine Man Technologies, Inc., a Nevada corporation (the "Corporation"), according to the conditions hereof, as of the date
written below. If shares of Common Stock are to be issued in the name of a Person other than the undersigned, the undersigned will pay all transfer taxes payable with respect
thereto and is delivering herewith such certificates and opinions as may be required by the Corporation. No fee will be charged to the Holders for any conversion, except for
any such transfer taxes.

Conversion calculations:

Date to Effect Conversion:

Number of shares of Preferred Stock owned prior to Conversion:

Number of shares of Preferred Stock to be Converted:

Preference Amount of shares of Preferred Stock to be Converted:

Number of shares of Common Stock to be Issued:

Applicable Conversion Price:

Number of shares of Preferred Stock subsequent to Conversion:

Address for Delivery:

or

DWAC Instructions:

Broker no:

Account no:
HOLDER
By:
Name:
Title:

14




Exhibit 3.6

STATE OF NEVADA

SCOTT W, ANDERSON
S T
Jor Cupsmerelal Brcondings

ROSS MILLER

Srereiary of Siate

OFFICE OF THE
SECRETARY OF STATE

Certified Copy
March 20, 2014
Job Number: C20140320-2324
Reference Number:
Expedite:
Through Date:

The undersigned filing officer hereby cenifies that the anached copics are true and exact
copies of all requesied statements and related subsequent documentation [led with the
Secretary of Stte's Office, Commercial Recordings Ihvision listed on the auached
teport.

Document Number(s)  Description MNumber of Pages
20140203763-38 Articles of Incorporation 1 Pages’1 Copies

Respectfully,

';-::f/féu—-

ROSS MILLER
Secretary of State

Certified By: Stephen Loff

Certificate Number. C20140320-2324
Yo may verify this cerificate

onling at hitp:/hwww.nvsos,.gov/

Commereial Recording Division
202 W, Carson Sireel
Carson Cty, Nevada 89701-4069
Telephone (775) 684-3T08
Fux (T75) 684-7138



SECRETARY OF STA TE

_OF

CORPORATE CHARTER

1. ROSS MILLER, the duly clected and qualified Mevada Secretary of State, do herchy certify that
MEDICINE MAN TECHNOLOGIES, INC., did on March 20, 2014, file in this office the
original Articles of Incorporation; that said Acticles of Incorporation are now on file and of record
in the office of the Secretary of State of the State of Nevada, and Further, that said Articles contain
ull the provisions required by the law of said State of Nevada.

IM WITHESS WHEREOF, 1 have heveunto set my
hand and atfixed the Great Seal of State, al my
office on March 20, 2014

s

ROSS MILLER
Seeretary of Stale

Certified By: Stephen Loff

Certificate Number: C20140320-2324
You may verify this certifizate

online at http:lwww.nvsos.gov
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S A

ROSS MILLER A1
Spacretary of State

204 Morth Carson Street, Suite 4

Carson City, Nevada 85701-4520

{T75) 684-5T08

Wohsite: wenw.msos.gov
Filed w the offi | Daecumen) Wumher
il cE o I

T i [Fifing e and Tine

Ross Miller |ﬂ3f20.f2ﬂ14 12:16 PM
Secrelary of S1ate I;l ity Mumber
State of Nevada Eﬂ14ﬂ142u14—4

Articles of Incorporation

{PURSUANT TO NRS CHAPTER T&)
(USSE BLACK i OHLY -~ DO MOT HIGHLIGHT mmusmmmuv
1 Mama ";ﬂ ; Medicine Men Technologies, Inc. [

Agent for Service e : g e B

of Process: (check Nonoommercial Registared Agent £¥Ece by Poaltion il Exily
anty erin bax) O |ma@gm“§é';_l_ _Q.ﬁ___—m:._umuw -

Piarmib of Noncommercial Fegisiared Agenit OR Mixme of Tilo of Dfice or Olfier Pasibon wih Entily

5. Purpose: (cpwoeat; | The pupose of the coporstion shalibe: .| 6. Benefit Corporation:
mquitnd ooby if Benafit Il reme irmmactionsy
Comperation status t DYH»

t-nu.mnnqmuf knimbidga prnblty of patury, Mmmwﬂmlmtmﬂ
7. Name, Address mumu?m.numcm e for filing e the Office of

and Sighaturg of | heSssayelbies =~ 0000000
Incorporator: fattech |k elly Szatkowskic/olrvine Venture Law Finn,LLP !

than cne incorperateey | MATE

19900 MacAsibur Bid, Sulte 1150
Address

ET Ty
o Seomtatyof Stie RS TR

= A
This form must be sccompaniad by apempdain feos. Feinact 1149010




7 Colorado Secretary of State
Date and Time: (4/03/2014 01:10 PM

Dovument must be filed electronically. D Number; 20141222923

Paper documents are not aceepted,

Fees & forms are subject 1o change, Document number: 20041222923
For more information or to print copies Amount Paid: $100.00

of fled docwnents, visit www.sos.skate.cous.

ARUAVE SPACE FOR GFFICE USE ONLY
Statement of Foreign Entity Authority
filed pursuant to & 7-20-803 of the Colorado Revised Staiwes (C.R.S}
1. The entity 10 number., the entity name, and 1he true name, if different. are

Entity 1D number 20141222923 e
fialaradn Secrevany of Steke M0 mrmbeel

Entity name Medicing Man Technologies Inc

True name
LiF different from the endity name)

2. The form of entity and the jurisdiction under the law of which the entity is formed are

Form of entity Foreign Corporation -
Jurisdiction Mevada

3. The principal office address of the entity's principal ofTice is
Street address 1E?91_E- EC& Flace

{Someat Ml el wowmey

Aurora co 80015
LT (eare) FEIF Pesial Code)
. Uniled States.
(Previmee — i apyiicable) (st
Mailing address. o
{leave blank i1 samc as strect adlress) {Sancer e r and naoe or Past Offee Sor nfoemadlon

it T s (ZFestol Cody)
[Frovinet —Faieatied e

4. The regislered agent name and registered apent address of the enlity's registered agent are

MName
{if an individual) Roper _ Brett I R
[Lasr} (arsrd Ml (e
or

(ifan entiny)

(Cantion: Do no provide fosk e iodividued and wn entide e

AUTHORITY Page ! of 3 Rew, 12002001



Street address 13791 E. Rice Flace )
et anber o momel

Aurora ch o 80015 .
[ e VI Cake)
dailing address I et —
{lenve blank if same 55 street pddress) {Sireet mvmher o mome or P Offloe Sax it
iCa daed (EN Ol

e fallowing statement s adapied iy marding e boxf
[#] The person appointed as registered agent above has consented o being so appointed.

5. The date the entity commenced oF expects 1o commence transaeting business or conducting activities in
Colorado i= 04/01/2014

[

G (T i, castopr il findlo g Arareusent by swreking e e and el aw aiachuent, )
1 This document contains additional information as provided by law,

T. (Cumtiore: Leave Blank i U documens dees wot Reve o delaped affective dote. Staing o defaped offéciie dime fae
sigrifteaar fegal covsapuences, Reod iarreucrions fefee enterlig a dove )

{8 the faliowing siafesment applier. miaps the statement b emierieg o dite and Mapeiicable, e wsimg the sogwred frmm)
The delayed effective date and, if applicable, time of this document is/ane

(mimiddyyyy hourminsse ampm)

Notlee:

Causing this document o be delivered 1o the Secretary of State for filing shall constitute the affirmation or
acknowledgment of each individual causing such delivery, under penaltics of perjury, that the document is the
individual's act and deed, or that the individual in good faith believes the document is the act and deed of the
person on wihose behalf the individual is causing the document o be delivered for fling, taken in confarmity
with the requirements of part 3 of article 90 of title 7, C.R.5.. the constituent documents, and the organic
statutes, amd That the individual in good faith believes the fucts stated in the document are truc and the
document complies with the requirements of that Part, the constituent documents, and the organic statutes,

This perjury notice applics to cach individual who causes this document 1o be delivered w the Sceroary of
State, whether or not such individual is named in the decument as one who has caused it 1o be delivered.

8. The true mame and mailing address of the individual cavsing the document to be delivered For filing are
Sratkowski Kelly
(L) R il Hififc
19900 MacArthur Blvd

ezt mmber i manns e Pt (e For imferasaiion)
Suite 1150 e
Irvine CA 92612
fETe e B Pt Cocle)
= United States,
(Poravimee = W apylicable) T

{1 sh flawsnye aiaivoreny appiies. adups the e by smaeking e Do e ezl an anaciosenr, )
[[J This doeument contains the true nme and mailing address of one or more additional individuals
causing the document to be delivered for filing,

AUTHORITY Page 20l 3 Rew, 120002011



Disclaimer:

‘This formfcover sheet, and any related instructions, are not intended to provide legal, busingss or tax advice,
and are furnished withoun representation o warranty.  While this formdcover shect is belicved o satisfy
minimem legal requirements as of its revision dwe, compliance with applicable law, as the same may be
amended from time to ime. remains the respensibility of the user of this formcover sheet, Cruestions should
be addressed o the user’s legal, business or lax advisor(s),

AUTHORITY Pags3 ol 3 Rev, 12002011
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STATE OF NEVADA
BARBARA K. CEGAVSKE

Cowrrerctal Recordings Division

H 202 M Crrrerw Sinees
Secretorr of State Pa————
Telephowe (775} f54-5704
Fape (PR3 BRI
KIMBERLEY PERONDI Wik Marth Las Fegar Coty Fill
Deputy Secretary for OFFICE OF THE e Lo Vegas N 39030
Commercial Becordings SECRETARY OF STATE Tele (U3 285
Far {702 S8E-2355
Certified Copy
2TE202] S84 AM
Work Crder Number: W2OZT0Z] HOO422
Reference Number: 20211243619
Through Date: RS20 94841 AN
Corporate Name: MEDICINE MAN

TECTINOLOGIES, TMC.

The undersigned filing officer hereby certifies that the attached copies are true and exact
copies of all requested siatements and related subsequent documentation ed with the
Secretary of State’s Office, Commercial Recordings Division listed on the attached report.

Dogument Mumber Deseription Mummber of Fages
200 4060961 2-11 Arnendm ent 1

Respectiully,

Bt

BARBARA K. CEGAVEKE
Mevada Secretary of State

Centified By: Rhonda Tuin

Cartifieate Mumber: B2021 02181439269
You may verily this cortificate

online at DR WWW NV s o



AR

ROSS MILLER
Secretary of Stale
204 North Caracn Street, Juite 1
Garson Chy, Nevada 897014520
[775) 84-5T08
AR, (Fled = the Offis of |Eunness Homber
E1401420044
!I“:I ﬂlhlblh
’ ;.,r &—'mlaﬁmﬂﬁmn
i |Eiled n
Seeretay of Stale | RS0
H See OF Hevada | Buniber o Fages
Certificate of Amendment i 5

(PURSLMNT TO NRS 73,330)

LFBE: BILASH IMI 0L Y - DO NOT HIGHLIGHT ADCVE SPACE 13 FOR DFRICE USE DMLY

(Purauant tn MRS 78.380 - Before issvance of Stock)
1. Name of corporation:
Medicine Man Technologies, Ing,

2. The anticles have been amendad as follows: (peovide article numbere. if availabie)

Secton 3 is replaced with: The Corporation is authorized to issue one ¢lass of shares, désignated "Common
Stock". The number of shares of Common Stock authorized iz 24,000,008, par value 001,

3. The undersigned deciare that they constitute at laast two-thirds of the following:
{zhagi anly sna bex} :| incorporators boarg of directors

4. Effective dale and time of filing: {oplional) Date: Time:
[Fisst noE e SHET GN BO BaYS SHE e obniliat s fled)

5. The undersigned affimatively dectare that to the date of this certificate, no stock of the
carporation has been issued.

B, Signatures: | more ihin two signatuns, sitech an 8 1/2° % 117 plain shoat with the addsional signatures. )

7

Awthorized Signature Authorized Signature

IMPGRTANT: Faiune 1 iresiae amy of the Bbav infarmation and aubrt with the DTN TREs Wiy Shuse Bus g o Be repected.

Fevad Socroliory of S Armendg Fobi fosng.
Tisizs form yreie Bo cuompariod by aaomrvate faas. Frampnrd %3140




STATE OF NEVADA
BARBARA K. CEGAVSKE

Cowrrerctal Recordings Division

H 202 M Crrrerw Sinees
Secretorr of State Pa————
Telephowe (775} f54-5704
Fape (PR3 BRI
KIMBERLEY PERONDI Wik Marth Las Fegar Coty Fill
Deputy Secretary for OFFICE OF THE e Lo Vegas N 39030
Commercial Becordings SECRETARY OF STATE Tele (U3 285
Far {702 S8E-2355
Certified Copy
2TE202] 4838 AM
Work Crder Number: W2OZT0Z] HOO422
Reference Number: 20211243619
Through Date: TR0 948538 AN
Corporate Name: MEDICINE MAN

TECTINOLOGIES, TMC.

The undersigned filing officer hereby certifies that the attached copies are true and exact
copies of all requested siatements and related subsequent documentation ed with the
Secretary of State’s Office, Commercial Recordings Division listed on the attached report.

Dogument Mumber Deseription Mummber of Fages
201 50124902-66 A endm ent 1

Respecttully,

Bt

BARBARA K. CEGAVEKE
Mevada Secretary of State

Centified By: Rhonda Tuin

Certifizate Mumber BROZ102181439267
You may verily this cortificate

online at DR WWW NV s o
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sumuqorm
?Nﬂ By e i Eiledin the Cflics of R ress mker
raon Phﬂd'l E01491420144
(TR BB4-5700 : ‘E&JM{ Fliag Hombe:
Vibaite: WWwIT0S.g e ) 2015012490266
Sacpetary of Srns Siled
. AR
Stte O Heduda Fhumber of Pagee
1

Certificate of Amendment

(PURSLIANT TC: MRS T8.285 AND TB.380}

UBE BLACH MK ORLY - DO MO HIGRUEHT ABDHE SPADS IS POR OFFICE UBE CHLY
Cortificats of Amendment to Aricles of incerporation
For Neyada Profit Coporations
(Pursitant to NRS 78,385 and 78,380 - After lssuance of Stock)

2. The articles hava been ame‘ndadm folh:mﬁ mrmlrla-a:ﬂau narbers, (mm:

fsetunm:s15@hwdmh1hﬂmpmﬁmbammm:mmchmafﬂmqmmd
{"Preferred Stock™ and "Common Stock™. The mumber of shares of Prefimed Stock autharized is

[ 10,000,000, par vahue 001 and tha umber of shares of Common Stock mathorized 90,000,000, par

valne 001, The preferred Stock may be divided into such sumber of series as the Board may defermine.
The Board is authorized to determine and slter the tight, preferences, privileges and restrictions granted snd
mﬂwwwﬁuﬂymmﬂ%cﬂn{m&d&mhmmﬁx%mmmm
ehurms of any weries of Preferred Stock, The Board, within limit end reatrictions stated in any resolution of
ithe Board, originally Axieg de pumber of chares cometnitiag any sariss mary increase o decmease, but pat
Mwhumhﬁmwmmmmsmﬂmymmm 1
[ e e e S e Rl e S -
3. Tha wba by which the stnckhuldm hokting ﬂl-'ares n ﬂmcﬂrputaﬂnnanhﬂhg them to exercise
at least & majorlty of the voting power, or such greater proportion of the vating power a3 msey be
requited in the case of a vole by clatses or serias, or 48 may be required by the provisions of the

articles of incorporation” have veted in favor nflh&mnand’mntlsh 7[95' OO et C’E q% Ui"l

4, Effactive date and time of fling: (optional)  Date: | March 10,2015 | Time: | Ioteodh |

mmumwmmmmmmmm

5. Signature: {required})

x Sy =

Elprurinra of Gificer
*if any proposad amgdimnt sl siler o Shange sty fraSsiene or sy relalhm ot other N 9““%
iiistindisg shares, han MR SMBROMET MU be nppicyad By the vels, i addilon to tho affimadve e
hmﬁmemuamdhﬂmmﬂmmﬂmmwhmﬁ

limiatinng or resklotoas on te voting power (Emo, e

IMPORTANT: F-‘hn:mmmmpmhmmmnm:wmmmnummﬂsmnuubsmguk'd.
This fogm mut i soccmnaed by sagveatiNs fas, Mol Becheiorf ol ke St mb e




STATE OF NEVADA
BARBARA K. CEGAVSKE e

Secrenoy of Stare

Crammercial Mecordwgs Division
202N ey et
Carzan Sy, NS0
Trlaphime (775 65425705
Fare {75 ERSTTAR
Faitle Liox Vegeesr ity Fiecld
TR 2250 Lear Vegns Bival Novih, Sade 00
I'HE Ressth bz Vg, NV 59070
SECRETARY OF STATE Telepheme [702) J56-2850

For {FO2) SFH-2555

KIMBERLEY PERONDI
g pusy Secretary for OFFICE OF
Conumercial Recordings

Business Entity - Filing Aclmowledgement
12/13/2019

Waork Order Item Number: W2019121301077-288462

Filing Number: 2B0331573

Filing Type: Amendment After [ssuance of Stock
Filing Date/Time: 12/13/2019 12:50:00 PM

Filing Page(s): 3

Indexed Entity Information:

Entity 1D: E0149142014-4 Entity Name: MEDICINE MAN
TECHNOLOGIES, TNC,
Entity Status: Active Expiration Date: Nene

Commereial Registered Agent
UNISEARCH, INC.
321 W WINNIE LN 8TE 104, CARSON CITY., NV 89703, USA

The attached document(s) were filed with the Nevada Seeretary of  State, Commercial
Recording Division. The filing date and time  have been aflixed to cach document,
indicating the date and time of Gling, A Gling number 15 also alixed and can be used 1o
relerance this document i the luturs,

BARBARA K. CEGAVSKE
Secretary of State

Page 1 of1

Comemerciul Recording Dinison
02 M Carson Blreet



Fikedd i the Dffiee of Fusiness Humbor

m FINS 182084

£ Filig Furmber
AMIHAEISTS

Seerclary of S i

FaleDrimela Toumilicr of Tages

Filad On
12032019 | 2-50:-00 FA

BARBARA K. CEGAVSKE

State

Sacretary of

202 Horth Carson Srect
Carson Clty, Mevada B9T01-4201
[T75) BB4.STOE

‘Wolisite: www.nvsos.gov

Certificate of Amendment jpursvest 1o vrs 78200 & 78.30870.300)
Certificate to Accompany Restated Articles or Amended and

Profit Corporation:

Restated Articles pursuant 10 vms rucos)
Officer's Statement rursuanr ro nrs 60050

TYPE OR PRINT - USE DARK INK ONLY - DO NOT HIGHLIGHT

1. Entity infermation:

Mama of andity as an file with the Nevada Secretary of Slata:
[Medicine Man Tachnalogies, Inc. |

Enfity & Nevada Business [danbficetion Mumber (NVID): |t]\j;ﬂ14119§_3_39 . !.|

2. Restated or
Amanded and
Restated Artlclos:
{Satect ora)

HLET)

Amendirg 8cd
rgstating anly, complabe
saclion 1,23, Sanc &)

* Reataled or Amended snd Restaled Aricikes must ba induded with this filing tyee,

I Ceniicate to Accampany Restated Aricles or Amended and Reslaled Articles.

] Restaied Articles - Mo amandmeants; aricles are reslated enly and are signed By an
afficer of tha corparalion who hes been authorized to exacule the cartificate by
rasoiution of ne baard of directors adoptedon: [ ]

The cerlificate comacily sels forth the text af the aridies or carificein az amendad
o the date of the cartificata,
] Amended and Restatad Articlea

3 Typeof

Amendment Flling
Being Complated:
(Salact only ane beos)

(Il amending, complela
section 1,3, Sand 6.)

1] Certificate of Amendrment lo Asticles of Incorporation (Pursuant lo NRS 78.380 - Balare
T Issuanes of Slack)

The undersigned dactare that they constitule at leas! hwe-thirds of he
{ollowing: '
[Chack only one o) [ incorporalors [0 beard of direciors

The undersignod affirmatively declare thal to the dale of his cerificale, no sl
af the sarporalion has heen Issued

Cerlificata of Amandment la Articles of incorporation (Pursuant te NRS TE.3ES and
78,380 - Ater |zauanca of Slock)
The wale by which the stacunolders helding shares in the corparalion enlilling Sem |0 ssencig
at inpst o ety af te woling pewar, of SUch greater progodion of 1he voling pawer a5 may
Be ragquited In ihe case of 8 vebe by classes or sefes, or as may be requirad by IF isions
af the articles of incareration® have saled in favor of the amandmant &

[ Offices Statement (farelgn qualified entilies anfy) -
Mare in hame stele, if using 4 modilied nama in Nevade:

Juriedicsion of formation: |
Changes te takes the fellowing afect:

(7] Tha erility nama has been amenced. [ Dissalulion
[} Tha purpose of the enlity has been amanded, [ Mergar
] The aulhorizad sharas have been amended. DICanmversian

[ other: {spegify changus)
]

* &ficer's Staterant mus! be submitled wit gitor @ cerified capy of ar & Geriffcale evidencing ihe filing
of any dacumenl, amandalory or cianraise, ralaling (o he erginal acticles in the pece of Ihe corparations
croptian,

Tniz farm must be aceampanled by approprate leas,

Pege il
Ravand; 512010




BARBARA K. CEGAVSHE
Secratary of Stats

202 Haorth Carson Straat
Carzon Clly, Mevada BSTO1-4201
(T76) Ea4-8708

iobsite: www.nvsos.gov

Profit Corporation:
Certificate of Amendment rursuas Tonns m.sm s rasssme g0
Certificate to Accompany Restated Articles or Amended and
Restated Articles jpursusnr 1o Rs 72.0m
Officer's Statement wussumrronrs e

4. Effective Date and Cate: [_ ) o : Time: [

Time: (Cpllznaly {must nel be laler fian 00 days aller Me conifozle ia fled)
&, Information Being | Changes 10 tkes the following effeck:

Changed: (Domasile - "

corporations oréy) ] Tha entity name has been emendad.

'} Tha registarad agent has been chargad. (aitach Certificate of Aseeplance from new
regletered Bgent)

7] Tha purpose of the antity has bean amendad,

(# The 2uthorized shares have boen amended.

] The direclors, meragaers o« general pariners have been amonged,

1 IRS x lznguage has Been added,

1 Articles have been added.

1 Articles have heen deleted,

) Other.
. The articies nava bean emendad a5 follows: |provida article numbers, If availadle)
\Article 3 has been amended - See attached Annex A

{afiach addiional pagels) if nacessery)

e PO P B L S ¥y I /e 1
i

Signature of Cicer or Aulhorized Signar

x | ~ |
Slgnature of Dfficer ar Authorized Signer Tihe

"It ary propesed emencment would alber or €hange any prelerence of any relalive or ather right given 1o

ony cluss ar sarks of culatanding shares, then e amandment must be appraved by the vote, in acditan to)

1ra affirmativa wole alhereise requred, af the heldars af Shares representng a majary af o vallng pewer

of pach clags or serles affectad by fhe smandment regardiass Lo Fmilations of realriclians on Ike valing

pawer [haresd.

Fleasa Include any raquired or optienal Information In space below:
[aliach eddilicral pageis) i necassary)

Thés form mus! be accempanied by appropriate faes. PapZal2
Resised: 11/2019




Annex A

Certificate of Amendment o Articles of lncorporation
For Nevadn Profit Corporations
{Pursunnt to NRS 78.385 and T6.390 ¢ After lssuapce of Stack)

MEDICINE MAN TECHNOLOGIES, INC,
Anicle 3 of the Corporation’s Articles of Incorparation is hereby amended 1w provide a3 follows;

The Corparation i3 mutherized to issuc two classes of shares, designatec “Preferred Stock” and "Common Stock”
The number of shaes of Preferred Stock authoeized js 10,000,000, par value S0001 and the number of shares of
Commen Stock outharized 250,000,000, par value S0.001.

The preferred Siock may be divided into such number of series 25 the Beard may determine.

The Board is suthorized to desermine and alter the right, preferences, Privileges and restrictions pranted and impesed
upan any wholly unissued series of Preferred Stock, and ta fix the numbar and designation of shares of any sesies of
Praferred Stock. The Board, within limits and resirictions stated in any resafution of the Board, originatly fixing the
number of skares constituting any serics may increase or detrease, bt not bolow the number of sush series then
autstanding, the shares of any subscquan secies,
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NEVADA STATE BUSINESS LICENSE

MEDICINE MAN TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

MNevada Business Identification # NV20141198339
Expiration Date: 03/31/2020

In accerdance with Title 7 of Nevada Revisad Statutes, purasant 1o preper application duly filed and
payment of appropriate prescribed fees, the above named is hereby granted a Mevada State Business
License [or business aclivilies conducted within the State of Mevada.

Walid until the expiration date lsted unless suspended. revoked or cancelled in accordance with the
provisions in MNevada Revised Stetutes. License is not transferable and 18 not m liew of any local business
licenge, permit or registration.

License must be cancelled on or before its expiration date if business activity ceases, Failure Lo do
50 will result in late fees or penalties which, by law, cannot be waived.

IN WITMESS WHEREQF, I have heteunto set my
hand and affixed the Great Seal of State, at my
office on 12/13/2019,

Mﬁ.ajwzb

BARBARA K. CEGAVSKE
Secretary of State

Certificate Number: B20181213428180
You may verify this certificate
onling at hip:www. nvans ooy




STATE OF NEVADA
BARBARA K. CEGAVSKE

Cowrrerctal Recordings Division

H 202 M Crrrerw Sinees
Secretorr of State Pa————
Telephowe (775} f54-5704
Fape (PR3 BRI
KIMBERLEY PERONDI Wik Marth Las Fegar Coty Fill
Deputy Secretary for OFFICE OF THE e Lo Vegas N 39030
Commercial Becordings SECRETARY OF STATE Tele (U3 285
Far {702 S8E-2355
Certified Copy
2/1E/202] Se48:51 AM
Work Crder Number: W2OZT0Z] HOO422
Reference Number: 20211243619
Through Date: R0 9851 AN
Corporate Name: MEDICINE MAN

TECTINOLOGIES, TMC.

The undersigned filing officer hereby certifies that the attached copies are troe and exact
copies of all requested siatements and related subsequent documentation ed with the
Secretary of State’s Office, Commercial Recordings Division listed on the attached report.

Dogument Mumber Deseription Mummber of Fages
20201103858 Certiliwate of Designation 17

Respecttully,

Bt

BARBARA K. CEGAVEKE
Mevada Secretary of State

Centified By: Rhonda Tuin

Certifieate Mumber BROZ102181439277
You may verily this cortificate

online at DR WWW NV s o



BARBARA K. CEGAVSKE
Secretary of State

202 Morth Carson Stroet
Carson City, Nevada 85701-4201
({T78) 6845708

Website: www nvsos.gov

Flusiness HXumbor
Fi1891£2004-4
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Cer;ﬁ’icate, Amendment or Wi

hdrawal of Designation

Cert

NRS 78.1955, 78.1955(6)

# Certificate of Dasignation
ificate of Amandment to Designation - Before Issuance of Class or Series

Certificate of Amendment to Designation - After Issuance of Class or Saries

Certificate of Withdrawal of Certificate of Designation

TYPE OR PRINT - USE DARK INK OMLY - DO NOT HIGHLIGHT

1. Entity information;

MName of andi

¥
Medicine Man Technologies, Inc.

Entity or Nevada Business Identification Mumber (NVID):  EQ149142014-4

2. Effective date and
[:H

For Cenificate of Designalion or
Amandirent 1o Desigraten Onty
| Dptional):

Tirne
st not e latar than S0 days Bftar the cartficate is fivd)

Date

3, Class or serigs of
stock: (Certifizae of
Dwsignation oriy)

Th class or series of slock baing designated within this filing:
Series A Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock

&4 Informatian tor
amendmant of class
or serles of steck:

The ariginal class or series of stock being amended within this filing:

5. Amendment of
class or series of

Certificate of Amendment to Designation. Before lssuance of Class or Seres
A5 ol tha dale of this cenificate no shares of the class ar series of slock have been lssued

shock:

Certificate of Amendment to Designation- Afler lssuance of Class or Series
The amendrmant has been approved by the vobe af stackhalders holdng shares in the corparation
ariitling them b exerciza a majerily of the vating power, or such graater proportion of the wlifng
POEr 35 May be required by the aicles of incorporation or the cartificate of dasagnation.

&, Resolution:
Cartificate of Designation
ard Amardment i
Desigratmn onliy}

By resolution of the board of direstors pursuant fo a provision in the articles of incorparatian this

certificate eslablishes OR amends the following regarding the veting pawers, designalions,

preferences, limitations, restrictions and relative rights of the following class or saries of stock.”
The board of directors hereby designates the corporation's "Series A
Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock" as set forth in the attached pages,

7. Withdrawal:

Doale of
Cresignation:

Designation being
Withdrawn:

No shares of the dass or series of stock baing withdrawn are oulslanding.

The resalution of the board of directors autherizing the withdrawal of e cerfificate of
designaticn establishing the ciass or serics of stock: =

8. Signature: (Reguired)

x_ Mof—

Signalure of Officer

12M16i2020

Date:

" Attach acdiional gage(s,

) if necessary
This form mus! be accompanied by apprepriate fees,

[ 11
Rivisect 112015




MEDICINE MAN TECHNOLOGIES, INC,

CERTIFICATE OF DESIGNATION
OF
SERIES A CUMULATIVE CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED STOCK

Pursuant 10 MNevada Revised Statutes (“NRS™ 78,195 and 78,1955, the undersigned
officer of Medicing Man Technelogies. Inc.. a Nevada corperation (the “Corporation”™), hereby
certifies:

The Aricles of [ncorporation of the Corporation, as amended w date (and as fusther
amended from time to time, the "Articles of Incorporation”™), confer upon the Corporation’s
Board of Darectors (the “Board of Directors™) the authority o provide for the designation and
issuance of shares of prefierred stock, par value 30,000 per share, in a serics and to establish the
number of shares to be included in such series and to fix the designation, nights, preferences,
privileges and restnciions granted and imposed upon any of the shares of such series. The Board
of Directors has duly adopted the lollowing resolution creating a series of the Corporation’s
preferred stock designated os the Series A Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock:

RESQLVED, that pursuant to the authority wested in the Hoard of Dircctors in
accordance with the provisions of the Amicles of Incorperation, such series of preferred stock,
par value $0.001 per share, of the Corporation 15 hereby created, and that the designation and
number of shares thereol and the rights, preferences, privileges and restrictions of the shares of
such series, and the qualifications, limitations and restrictions thereof are as follows:

I.
meanings:

itiong. For the purposes hereof, the following terms shall have the following

“Anticipated Change of Control Notiee™ shall have the meaning set forth in Section Hib).

“Business Dov™ means any day other than Saturday, Sunday or other day on which
commercial banks in The City of New York are authorized or required by law to remain closed.

“Change of Control Transaction” means the occurrence after the date hereof of any of:
(2} the acquisition by any Person, including any syndicate or group deemed to be a “person”
under Scetion 13{dn3) of the Exchange Act, of heneficial ownership, dircetly or indirectly,
theough @ purchase, merger or other acguisition transaction or series of related purchases,
mergers or other acquisition transactions of shares of the Corporation, in each case, which such
transaction or transactions arc with the Cotporation or approved by the Board of Directors,
cntitling that person to exercise more than a majority of the tal voting power of all shares of the
Corporation entitled 1o vote generally in clections of directors {except that such Person will be
deemed to have beneficial ownership of all securitics that such Person has the dght w acquire,
whether such right is currently exercisable or is exercisable only upon the occurrence of a
subsequent condition); (k) the Corporation merges into ot conselidates with any other Person, or
any Person merges into or consolidates with the Corporation and, after giving effect o such
transaction, the stockholders of the Corporation immediately prior (o such ransaction pwn less
then o mojonty of the aggregate voting power of the Corporation or the succeszor entity of such
21410013




transaction immediately after such transaction; (¢} the Corporation voluntarily sells, leases,
transfers or otherwise disposes, in 2 single transaction or a serigs of related transactions, all or
substantially all of its asscts 10 another Person and the stockholders of the Corporation
immediately prior to such transaction own less than 2 majority of the apgrepate voring power of
the acquiring entity immediately alter such transaction; or (d) the Common Stock censes to be
listed om any Trading Marker,

and stock of any other class of securities into which such securitics may hereafter be reclassified
or changed.
“Conversion Price” shall have the meaning set forth in Section T(ali).

“Conversion Shares” means, collectively, the shares of Common Stock 1ssuable upon
conversion of the shares of Preferred Stock in accordence with the terms hereof

“Cumulative Dividend™ shall have the meaning set forth in Seetion 4{a).
“Deemed Liguidation” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 6(h)

"Deemed Liguidation Election™ shall have the meaning set forth in Section 6(b).

“Forced Conversion Date™ shall have the meaning set forth in Section 7l
“Forced Redemption Notice™ shall have the meaning se1 forth in Section 9(b}.
“Helder™ shall have the meaning given such term in Section d4(a).
“lunior Securities” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 3.

“Liguidation™ shall have the meaning set forth in Section 6{a).

Lasting Event™ means the bisting of the Corporation’s Common Stock on the Nasdag
Capital Market, the MNasdag Global Market, the Nasdaq Global Select Market, the New York
Stock Exchange. followed within 90 davs thereafter by a public offering of Commaon Stock that
generates gross proceeds to the Comporation of no less than 3100 million.

“MNPLT shall have the meaning set forth in Section 11{h}.
“Notice of Forced Conversion™ shall have the meaning set forth in Scetion Trhigii).

“Notige of Forced Conversion Date™ shall have the meaning set forth in Section 7(b)Nii).

“otice of Voluntary Conversion™ shall have the meaning set forth in Scetion 2a(iil.
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& inal Issue Date”™ means the dute of the [rst issuance by the Corporation of any share
ol the Preferred Stock.

“Parity Seeurivies” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 3

“Person” means an individual or corporation, partnership, frust. incorporated or
wnineorporated association, joint venture, limited labality company. joint stock company,
povermment (or an agency of subdivision thereoD or other entity of any kind.

“Preference Amount™ shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2, as the same may be
increased pursuant to Section 4,

“Preferred Stock™ shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2.

“Redemption Price” shall have the meaning set forth in Scction ().

“Representatives” shall have the meaning set forth in Section | 1ih).

“Share Delivery Date™ shall have the meaning set forh in Section Tc).

“Trading Day™ means a day on which the principal Trading Market is open for business.

“Trading Market™ means any of the tollowing markets or exchanges on which the
Common Stock s listed or quoted for mading on the date in guestion: the NYSE MKET, the
Masdaq Capital Market, the Masdag Global Market, the Nasdaq Global Select Market, the Mew
York Stock Exchange, OTC Bulletin Board, OTCOQB, OTCQX or any recognized stock

exchange in North America {or any successors to any of the foregoing),

“Wolentaw Conversion Date™ shall have the meaning set forth in Section T{auiil

x Designation, Par Value and Preference Amount. The series of preferred stock is
hereby designated as Serics A Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock (the "Preferred Stock™)
and the numbher of sharcs so designated shall be 60.000. Each share of Preferred Stock shall have
a par value of 30,000 per share and a preference amount equal to 31000, subject 10 increase as
set forth in Section 4 below (the “Preference Amount™).

3. Ranking. Unless provided otherwise in this Certificate of Designation. the
Preferred Stock, with respect to conversion rights. redemption payments. and rights upon
liguidation, disselution or winding-up of the affairs of the Corporation or a Change of Control
Transaction. shall rank: {a) senior to the Common Stock and any other class of capital stock or
other securities the Corporation issued after the etfective date of this Certificate of Designation.
the terms of which do not provide that they rank semior fo the Preforred Stock (collectively,
“Junior Securities™): (b) on parity with any class of capital stock or other securities the
Corporation issues after the effective date of this Certificate of Designation, the terms of which
provide that they rank on parity with the Preferred Stack (collectively, “Parity Securitics™): (c)
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junior to each class of capital swock or other securities the Corporation issues after the ¢ffective
date of this Certificate of Designation, the terms of which provide that such securitics rank senior
to the Preferred Stock (collectively, “Senior Sccurities™); and (d) junior o all of the
Corporation’s existing and future indebtedness,

4, Dividends.

() Dividends in Kind. Holders of Preferred Stock (each, a “Holder” and
collectively, the “Holders™ shall be entitled 10 receive, and the Corporation shall pay, a
cumulative dividend (each, 2 “Cumulative Dividend” and collectively, “Cumulative Dividends™)
at the rate of 8% per annum on the Preference Amount per share, payable annually on each
anmiversary of the Original [ssue Date, to Helders of record on each such payment date (each
such date, a "Dividend Payvment Date™), by having esch such Cumulative Dividend antomatically
accrete as of the relevant Dividend Payment Date to, and increage. the outstanding Preference
Amount, and shall thereafter be considered fully paid and no longer accrued and unpaid
Cumulative Dividends.

(b} Dividend Caleulations.  Cumulative Dividends -on the Preferred Stock
shall be caleulated on the basis of a 360-day vear. consisting of tvelve 30-calendar-day periods,
and shall accrue daily commencing on the Criginal lssue Date, and shall be deemed to accrue
from such date whether or not eamed or declared and whether or not there are [unds of the
Corporation legally available for the pavment of dividends in accordance with NRS TE28E or
otherwise. Cumulative Dividends shall cease w accrue with respeel 1o any share of Preferred
Stock upon the conversion or redemption of such share.

= Voting Rights. On any matter presented to the Corporation’s stockholders for
their action or consideration at any meeting of the Corporation’s stockholders (or by written
consent of stockholders m lieu of meenng), cach Holder of outstanding shares of Preferred Stock
shall be entitled to cast the number of votes equal to the number of whole shares of Common
Stock into which the shares of Preferred Stock held by such Holder would convent into as of the
record date for determining stockholders entitled to vote on such matter as if such shares of
Preferred Smock were convertible as of such date. Except as provided by law ar by the other
provisions of the Anicles of Incorporation, Holders shall vote wgether with the holders of
Common Stock as a single class,

[0S Liquidation,

a) General.  Tn the evemt of any voluntary or inveluntary liquidation,
digsolution or winding-up of the Corporation {each, a “Liguidation”), the Holders shall be
entitled. wgether and pro rare with the holders of Parity Securities, to be paid out of the
Comporation’s assers available for distributions 1o its stockholders, before any payment shall be
made to the holders of Junior Securities by reason of their vwnership thereof, an amount in cash
equal ta the Preference Amount for each share of Preferred Stock plus the pro rara portion of the
amount of the next Cumulative Dividend for the period between the previous Dividend Payment
Date and the date of such Liguidation, and if the assets of the Corporation shall be insufficient to
pay such amounts in full. then the entire assers to be distributed 1o the Holders shall be ratably
distributed among the Holders in aceordance with the respective amounts thal would be payable
31012 4
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on such shares if all amounts payable thercon were paid in full. The Corporation shall mail
written notice of any such Liquidation. not less than 43 days prior to the payment date stated
therein, o cach Holder.

thy  Change of Control Transaction. [n the event the Corporation anticipates
consummating a Change of Contral Transaction, ar least 2| days prior to the consummation of
such Change of Contrel Transaction. the Corporation shall provide written notice (o the Holders
disclosing the material terms of such Change of Control Transaction and the anticipared
consummation date {an “Anticipated Chanze of Comrol Notice™). At the written election of the
Corporation to the Holders or the Holders halding not less than a majority of the then issued and
outstanding shares of Preferred Stock to the Corporation, in cach case, no more than 10 days
after the Anticipated Change of Control Motice is deemed delivered hereunder (a “Deemed
Liguidation Election™), such Change of Contrel Transaction shall be deemed a Liquidation for
purposes of this Section 6 (a “Deemed Liguidation™). Upoa the consummation of o Deemed
Liguidation. the Holders shall. in consideration of cancellation of their shares of Preferred Stock,
be entitled. together and pro rade with the holders of Parity Securities, 1 the same rights such
Holders are entitled to under this Scction & upon the ocewrrence of a Liguidation. The amount
deemed paid or distributed 1o the Holders under Section &(a) upon a Deemed Liguidation in
consideration of cancellation of thewr shares of Preferred Srock shall be the cash or the value of
the property, rights or securities paid or distributed 1o the Holders in such Deemed Liguidation.
The value of such property, rights or securitics shall be equal to the fair market value, as
determined in good faith by the Board of Directors.

Conversion.

fa} Voluntary Conversions al Option of Holder.

1} General. Each share of Preferred Stock shall be convertible at the
aptien of the Holder thereof { 1) after the occurrence of a Listing Event, (2) after the receipt of an
Anticipated Change of Control Notice (even if the Corporation shall have sent a Deemed
Liquidation Election), but solely in the evern the Change of Control Transaction that is the
subject of such Anticipated Change of Contral Natice is consummated, (3} after the receipt by
the Holders of a Forced Redemption Notice. but selely with respect to the shares of Prefermed
Stock that are the subject of such Forced Redemption Motice, and (4) at any time after the first
anniversary of the Orginal lssue Date, in cach case, into that number of shares of Common
Stock determmed by dividing {x) the Freference Amount of such share of Preferred Stock, plus
the pro rara portion of the amount of the next Cumulative Dividend for the period between the
previous Dividend Payment Date and the date of such conversion, by {y) $1.20, subject to
adjustment as provided herein (as adjusted, the “Conversion Price™); provided that, in cach
Nutice of Voluntary Conversion, a Holder must request conversion of (3 a number of shares of
Preferred Stock having an agaregate Preterence Amount equal to or exceeding 5 100,000, or, ()
if less, ull of the sheres of Preferred Stock held by such Holder,

il Matice of Voluntary Conversion.  Holders shall effect any
conversion under Section T(a) by providing the Corporation (or its agent appointed o administer
comversion of the Preferred Stock) with a notice in the form attached herato as Annex A jeach, a
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“Mptice of Valuntary Conversion™, (11 in the case of the occurrence of a Listing Event, within
0 days thereafter. (21 in the caze of an Anticipated Change of Control Motice. no more than 14
davs after such Anticipated Change of Control Motice is deemed delivered hercunder, and (3) in
the case of a Forced Redemption Notice, no more than 10 days after such Forced Redemption
Notice is deemed deliveraed hereunder. Each Notive of Voluntary Conversion shall specify the
rumber of shares of Preferred Stock a Holder elects 1o be converted and, in the case of a Listing
Event or a Forced Redemption Notice, the datc on which such conversion is 1o be effected,
which dale may not be prior 1o the date the applicable Notice of Voluntary Conversion is
delivered to the Corporaticn of its agent appointed o administer conversion of the Preferred
Stock (sueh date. the “Veoluntary Conversion Date™). If no number of shares of Preferved Stock is
specified as elected to be converted i a Notice of Voluntary Conversion. all shares of Preferred
Stock held by the Holder shall be deemed 10 be elected 1o be converted, If no Voluntary
Conversion Date 15 specified in a Notiee of Voluntary Conversion, in the case of a Listing Event
or a Foreed Redemption Motice, the Voluntary Conversion Date shall be the date that such
Matice of Voluntary Conversion 1o the Corporation s deemed delivered  heveunder. The
Vaoluntary Conversion Date in the case of an Amticipated Change of Control Motice shall be the
date of the consummation of the Change of Control Transaction that is the subject ol such
Anticipated Change of Contral Notice, Upon delivery of the MNotice of Voluntary Conversion by
a Holder, in the case of a Listing Event. a Forced Redemption Notice or voluntary conversion
after the second anniversary of the Onginal Issue Date, such Holder shall be deemed for all
purpeses o have become the halder of vecord of the Conversion Shares with respect to which the
Preferred Stock has been converted, irrespective of the date of delivery of the cenificates
evidencing such Conversion Shares. Mo ink-original Notice of Voluntary Conversion shall be
required, nor shall any medallion guarantee (or other wvpe of guarantee of notarization) of any
Matige of Voluntary Conversion form be required. The caleelations and eatries et forth in the
Matice of Volumary Conversion shall control in the absence of manifest or mathematical ervor.
Fusther, the cabculations made by the Corperation or its agent appointed to administer conversion
of the Preferred Stock conceming information required in a Notice of Voluntary Conversion in
the form attached hereto as Anpex A that is not actually provided in a Notice of Voluntary
Conversion. shall control in the absence of manifest or mathematical error. To effect any
conversion of shares of Preferred Stock, a Holder shall not be required 10 sumrender the
certificateds) representing the shares of Preferred Stock to the Corporation unless all of the shares
of Preferred Swock represented thereby are so convented, in which case such Holder shall deliver
the certilicate representing such shares of Preferred Stock promptly following the Voluntary
Conmversion Date at issue. With regpect 10 Preferred Stock held in electronic form through a
broker, hank or other nominee, of required by the transfer agent, Holder shall cause its broker,
bank or nominee to rewmn to the Corporation, in electronic form, the number of shares of
Preferred Stock being converted,

[{:3] Forced Conversion by Corporition

(i) Geperal. Al the election of the Corporation (1) within 90 days
afier the pecurrence of a Listing Event, or (2) subject to Holders' rights under Segtion 6ib) and
Ga) within 14 days after an Amicipated Change of Control Motice is deemed delivered
hereunder. in each case. each share of Preferred Stock shall be convertible, a1 the option of the
Corporation, inta that aumber of shares of Common Stock determined by dividing (x) the
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Preference Amount of such share of Preferred Stock plus the pro kta portion of the anrount of
the next Cumulative Dividend for the period between the previous Dividend Payment Date and
the date of such conversiom, by {¥) the Conversion Price.  Notwithstanding anything to the
contrary herem. the Corporation shall not have the option to force conversion of the Preferred
Stock wnder this Section 6k} in the cvent that the Commen Stock ceases to be listed on any
Trading Market.

(i} Notice of Forced Conversion.  The Corporation shall effect any
conversion under Section 7{bYi} by delivering a written notice o all Holders (a “Notice of
Foreed Conversion,” and the date such notice is delivered to all Holders, the “Notiee of Forced
ite™). Each Motice of Forced Conversion shall specify the number of shares of
Preferred Stock the Corporation elects to be converted. [f no number of shares of Preferred Stock
is gpecilied as elected to be converted in a Notice of Forced Conversion, all shares of Preferred
Stock held by the Holder shall be deemed o he elected to be converted, Each conversion under
Section Mol shall be deemed to ocour (1) in the ease of a Listing Event. on the sccond Trading
Day following the Naotice of Forced Conversion Date is deemed delivered hereunder, and (23 in
the case of an Anticipated Change of Control Notice. on the date of the consummation of the
Change of Contral Transaction that is the subjeet of such Anticipated Change of Control Natice
{such date, the “Forced Conversion Date™), Notwithstanding the foregoing. for any Notice of
Forced Conversion in connection with an Anticipated Change of Contral Notice to be effective,
the Change of Control Transaction that is the subject of such Antcipated Change of Control
Notice must not be or hbecome subject to a Deemed Ligeidation Election. Na ink-ariginal Notice
of Foreed Conversion shall be required, nor shall any medallion guarantee (or other rype of
guarantee or notarization) of amy Notwe of Forced Conversion form be required. The
calewlations and entries set forh in the Notice of Forced Conversion shall control in the absence
of manifest ar mathematical ecror. Further, the caleulations made by the Corporation or its agent
appointed fo administer conversion of the Preferred Stock conceming information required in a
Motice of Forced Conversion that is not actually provided in a Notice of Forced Conversion,
shull control in the ahsenee of manifest or mathematical error. Upon receipt of a MNotice of
Forced Conversion, each Holder shall (i} surrender the certificate(s) representing the shares of
Preferred Stock to be converted to the Corporation, and {ii) with respect to Preferred Stack held
in clectronic form through & broker, bank or ather neminee, il required by the transfer agent,
cause its broker, bank or nominee to return te the Corporation, in electronic fonm. the number af
shares of Preterred Stock being converted.

(€] Mechanics of Conversion.

(i} Delivery af Conversion Shares Lipon Conversion. Mot later than
five Trading Days after any Valuntary Conversion Date or Forced Conversion Date (the “Share
Delivery Date™}, the Corporation shall deliver, or cause to be delivered, o the converting Holder:
[ A} the number of Conversion Shares being acquired upon the conversion of the Preferred Stock.
and (B] a bank check in the amount of any amount payable under Section TieMiii}. The
Corporstion shall deliver the Conversion Shares in centificated form if the convened shares of
Preferred Stock were held in certificated form and electronically through the Depository Trust
Company or another established clearing corporation performing similar functions i the
converted shares of Preferred Stock were held in electronic form,
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{ity  Reservation of Shares Issuable Upon Conversion.  The
Corporation covenans that it will at all times reserve and keep available out of its authorized and
unissued shares of Common Stock, for the sole purpose of issvance upon conversion of the
Preferred Stock and free from preemptive rights or any other actual contingent purchase rights of
Persons other than the Holders, net less than such aggregate number of shares of the Common
Stock then issuable {taking into account the adjustments of Section #) upon the conversion of the
then ouwtstanding shares of Preferred Stock. The Corporation covenants that all shares of
Common Stock issued in accordance with the terms of this Certificate of Designation shall, upon
such issuance, be duly asthorized, validly issued, fully paid and nonassessablc.

(i) Fractional Shares. No fractional shares or scrip representing
fractional shares shall be issued upon the conversion of the Preferred Stock, As 1o any fraction of
a share which the Holder would otherwise be entitled upon such conversion, the Corporation
shall at its election, either pay a cash adjustment in respect of such final fraction in an amount
equal to such fraction multiplied by the Canversion Price or round up to the next whole share,

{vd  Transfer Taxes and Expenses. The issuance of Conversion Shares
on conversion of this Preferred Stock shall be made without charge to any Holder [or any
documentary stamp or similar laxes or transfer taxes that may be payable in respect of the issue
or delivery of such Conversion Shares, provided that the Comporation shall not be required o pay
any tax that may be payable in respect of any transfer involved in the ssuance and delivery of
any such Conversion Shares upon conversion m a name other than that of the Holdees of sech
shares of Prefemred Stock and the Corporation shall not be required to issue or deliver such
Conversion Shares unless or until the Person or Persons requesting the issuance thereof shall
have paid to the Corporation the amount of such tax or shall have esmblished to the satisfaction
of the Corporation that such tax has been paid. The Corporation shall pay all ransfer agent fees
required for same-day processing of any Motice of Conversion and all fecs to the Depository
Trust Company (or another established clearing corporation performing similar functions)
reguired for same-day electronic delivery of the Conversion Shares, if applicable.

8, Cenain Adjustonents.
{ah Stock Splits and Combinaiions.

{1 If the Corporation shall at any time or from tme 10 time after the
Original lssue Date mcrease the number of outstanding shares of Preferred Stock by means of a
subdivision (including by way of o seock split), reclassification or other similar event of the
outstanding shares of Preferred Stock, the applicable Preference Amount in effect immediately
betare that subdivision. reclassification ot other similar evem shall be proportionately reduced.

(1) IF the Corporation shall at any nme or from time to time atter the
Original Issue Date decrease the number of vutstanding sharces of Preferred Stock by means of o
combination (ineluding by way of a reverse steck splith, reclassification or other similar event of
the outstanding shares of Preferred Stock, the applicable Preference Amount in effect
immediately  before that combmation, reclassification or other simalar event shall be
proportionately increased.
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{uii} IF the Corporation shall at any time or from tme to time after the
Original Issue Date increase the number of outstanding shares of Common Stock by means of a
subdivision {including by way of a steck gplit), reclassification or other similar event, of the
cutstanding Comumon Stock, the applicable Conversion Price in effect immediarely before that
subdivision. reclassification or other similar event shall be propartionately decreased so that the
number of shares of Common Stock issuable upon conversion of cach share of Preferred Stock
shall be increased in proportion to such ineresse in the aggregate number of shares of Comimoen
Stock outstanding,

(ivy  If the Corporation shall at any time or from time to time afler the
Original Issue Date decrease the number of outstanding shares of Common Stock by means afa
combination (including by way of a reverse stock split), reclassification or other similar event. of
the outstanding Commen Stock. the applicable Conversion Price n effect immediately before
that combination, reclassification or other similar event shall be praportionately decreased so that
the number of shares of Common Stock issuable upon conversion of each share of Preferred
Stock shall be increased in proportion fo such increase in the aggregate number of shares of
Common Stock outstanding.

(v} Any adjustment under this subscction shall become effective at the
close of busingss on the date the subdivision. combination, reclassification or other similar event
becomes effective.

{ln Stock Dividends.

(i If the Corporation at any time or from time to time after the
Original [ssue Date makes or issues, or fixes a record date for the determination of holders of
Common Stock entitled to receive. a dividend or other distribution payable on the Commaon
Stock in addinonal shares of Common Stock, then, in each such event the applicable Conversion
Price in effect immediately before such event shall be decreased as of the time of such issuance
or, in the event such a record date shall have been fixed. as of the cloge of business on such
record date, by multiplying the applicable Conversion Price then in effect by a fraction {1) the
numerator of which shall be the total number of shares of Common Stock issued and ourstanding
imiediately before the time of such issuance or the close of business on such record date. and
{2) the denominator of which shall be the total number of shares of Common Stock issued and
oustanding immediately befare the time of such issuance or the close of business on such record
date plus the number of shares of Commeoen Steck 1ssuable i payment of such dividend.

(i) MNotwithstanding the foregoing, (1) if such record date shall have
been fixed and such dividend is not fully paid or if such distribution is not fully made on the date
fixed therefor, the applicable Conversion Price shall be recomputed accordingly as of the close
of business on such record date and thereafter the applicable Conversion Price shall be adjusted
pursuant 1o this subsection as of the ume of actual payment of such dividends or distnbutions;
atd (2) that no such adjustment shall be made if the holders of Preferred Siock simultaneously
receive a dividend or other distribution of shares of Commoen Stock in 2 number equal o the
number of shares of Common Stock as they would have received if all outstanding shares of
Preferred Stock had been conventad into Common Stock on the date of such event.
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fch Caleulatipns.  All caleulations under this Section & shall be made to the
nearest cent of the nearest 101000 of a share, as the case may ke, For purposes of this Section 8,
ithe number of shares of Common Stock deemed to be issued and outstanding as of a given date
shall be the sum of the number of shares of Conron Stock (excluding any treasury shares of the
Corporation] issued and outstanding.

(d} Notice of Adjustment to Conversion Price.  Whenever the Conversion
Price or Preference Amount is adjusted pursuant to any provision of this Sccion 8, the
Corparation shall promptly deliver to cach Holder 2 written notice setting forth the Conversion
Price or Preference Amount, as applicable, after such adjustment and setting torth a brief
statement of the facts requiring such adjustment,

4. Redemption.

{a) Voluntary Redemption. At the writien election of any Holder (i) within 90
days after a Listing Event, {ity al any time after the Gfth anniversary of the Original [ssue Date,
iy within 14 days afier an Anticipated Change of Control Notice is deemed delivered
hereunder, or (iv) within 3 days after o Notice of Forced Conversion shall be deemed 1o have
heen sent, such Holder may elect to have the Corporation redeem all or any portion of such
Holder's shares of Preferred Stock for the Redemption Price per share. Motwithstznding the
foregoing, for any redemption request in connection with an Anticipated Change of Control
Motice to be effective, the Change of Control Transaction that is the subject of such Anticipated
Change of Contral Motice {x) must not be or become subject 1o a Deemed Liquidation Election,
and (¥) must be consummated. Matice of redemption must be given by a Holdervio the
Corporation at least 20 Business Days before the desired redemption date. Motwithstanding the
foregoing, after receipt of & redemption notice from a Holder, the Corporation may elect to defer
such redemption by defernng the redempiion date one or more times until no later than the date
that is 12 months {the “Deferzal Period”) from the redemption date originally requested by such
Holder by providing written notice to such Holder of such deferral within 20 Business Days
before the redemption date originally requested by such Holder; provided that the Cumulative
Dividends on the Preferred Stock during such deferred redemption peried shall be increased woa
rite of 10% per anmum on the Preference Amount per share [or the first & months of the Deferral
Peniod and shall thereafier increase to a rate of 15% per annum on the Preference Amount per
share.  Motwithstanding anything 10 the contrary herein, during the Deferral Period the
Corporation shall act in good faith, use all commercially reaspnable efforts 10 pay the full
redemptigp amaount as soon as practicable. and shall not take any actions that are intended to
deluyssr reduce the paviment of the full redemption amount as soon as practicable.

b Forced Redemption. At the option of the Corporation, at any time within
90 days after a Listing Event, the Corporation may elect to redeem all ar any portion of Preferred
Stock for the Redemption Price per share. Notice of redemption (3 “Foreed Redemption Notiee™)
shall he given by the Corporation to the Holders as provided in Section I L(#). and must be given
at least 20 days before the desired redemption dote.

(4] Redemption Price; Miscellaneous, The redemption price for any shares of
Preferred Stack to be redeemed shall be payable in cash, our of funds legally available therefor,
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and shall be equal to the Preference Amount per share plus the pro rata portion of the amount of
the next Cumulative Dividend for the period between the previous Dividend Payomem Date and
the date of such redemption (the ©Redemption Price’™). [T fewer than all of the outstanding shares
of Preferred Stock are to be redeemed at any time. the Corporation shall redeem shares
proportionally from all Holders. Motwithstanding anything herein 1w the contrary. the
Corporation may repurchase shares of Preferred Swock in the open market or in privately
negatiated transactions at amy lime.

10, Cannabis Law Compliance and Unsuitability Redemprion. Each Holder shall ()
take all action reasonably required by such Holder in such Holder's capacity as a holder of
Preferred Stock 1o comply with applicable state cannabis laws and regulations, including,
without Bmitation, making all requisite filings vnder such laws and regulabions as and when
required and reasonably keep the Corporation apprised of the same, and (b) upon the
Corporation’s reasonable request, at the Corporation™s sole cost and expense, reasonably
cooperate with the Comperation witl respect to any Corporation report, filing, notification or
ather communication with or Lo any state governmental authority related to the Corporation’s
licenses, approvals, consents or obligations under state cannabis laws and regulations related 1o
such [lolder's capacity as a holder of Preferred Stock. including, without limittion., any
imvestigation or inguiry by a state govemnmental authority related to any of the foregoing. The
Caorporation shall have the night but not the obligation to redeem all or any portion of the shares
of Preferred Stack held by such Holder for cash at a per share purchase price equal to the greater
of (i} the Preference Amount plus the pro rara portion of the amount of the next Cumulative
Dividend for the period between the previgus Dividend Fayment Date and the date of such
redemption per share, and (i) (x) the Preference Amount plus the pro rata portion of the amount
of the next Comulative Dividend for the peried between the previous Dividend Payment Date
and the date of such redemption per share divided by (¥} the Conversion Price, and then
multiplying the quatient by () the average closing price of the Commaon Stock as reported on the
Trading Market for the Common Stock for the 45 Trading Days immediarely preceding the date
of such redemption notice, on not less than five days’ wrinien notice, if such Holder or one of its
affiliates is determuined fo be unsuitable or disqualified 1w own a direct or indirect interest in the
Corporation by a state povernmental authonty, including, without limitation, the Colorado
Marzjuana Enforcement Division; provided. that. (A) to the extent permitted by the applicable
stute governmental authority withour jeopardizing the Corporation’s licenses, approvals,
consents or obligations under state cannabis laws and regulotions, the Corporation shall provide
such Holder with a reasonable period 1o cure the cause for such determination or disqualification
prior o such redemption, (B) the Corporation shall only redeem the Holder's shares of Preferrcd
Stock 1o the extent necessary 1o comply with applicable state cannabis laws and regulations, and
{C) the redempion price per share shall be cqual to such Holder's oniginal purchuse price per
share if such Holder or onc of its affiliowes is defermined by a state governmenial authority to
have been unsutable or disqualified at the rime of such Holder's acquisition of shares of
Preferred Stock.

11 Miscellancous,

{a) Notic Motices, consents, waivers or other communications required or
permitied o be given hereunder including, without limitation, any Notice of Voluntary
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Conversion or Motice of Foreed Conversion must be in writing (other than a Notice of Voluntary
Conversion or Notice of Forced Conversion required to be submitted electronically through the
Depository Trust Company) and will be deemed to have been deliverad: (i) upon receipt, when
delivered personally: (i) upon delivery, when sent by facsimile {provided confirmation of
transmissicn s mechanically or electronically generated and kept on file by the sending party):
{ini) upon delivery, when sent by electronic mail (provided that the sending party does not
receive an automated rejeotion notice); or (v} upon receipt, when sent by overnight colTier
service. in cach case properly addressed to the party to receive the same. The addresses,
facsimile numbers and c-mail addresses for such communications shall be: If to the Corporation:
Medicine Man Technologies, Inc.. 4880 Havana Street, Suite 201, Denver, OO BO239,
Telephone: (303) 371-0387, Facsimile: (303) 371-0594, Attention: General Counsel, E-mail:
danfwschwazze com. If to a Holder, to such Holder's address and e-mail address then appearing
in the hooks of the Corporation. with copies to such Holder's represematives, if any, then
appearing in the books of the Corporation. Amy notice address, facsimile number or email
address for a party may be changed by delivering such other address, facsimile number and or ¢-
mail address and/or to the attention of such ather Person as the specified by written notice given
ta the Corporation or the Holders, as applicable. five calendar days prior to the effectivensss of
such change. Written confirmation of receipt (A) piven by the recipient of such notice, consent,
waiver or other commaumieation, (B} mechanically or electronically gencrated by the sender’s
facsimile machine of e-mail containing the time, date, recipient facsintile number and an image
of the first page of such transmission or {C) provided by an overnight courier service shall be
rebuttable evidence of personal service, receipt by facsimale or receipt from an ovemight courier
service in accordance with elawse (1), (i) or (i) above, respectively.

] Lost or Mutilgted_Preferred Stock Centificate.  Upon receipt by the
Corporation of evidence reasonably satisfactory o the Corporation of the loss, thefi, destmection
or mutilation of a Holder's Preferred Stock centificate, and, in the cose of loss, theft or
destruction, of any indemnification undertaking by the Holder w the Corporation in customary
form and, in the case of mutilation, upen surrender and cancellation of the mutilaed centificare,
the Corporation shall execute and deliver, in exchange and substitution for and upon cancellation
of a murilated certificare, ot in liew of or in substitation for a logl, stolen or destroyed certificate,
a mew certificate for the shares of Preferred Stock so mutilated, lost, stolen or destroyed,

{ch Amendment and Waiver. Mo provision of this Cerntificate of Designation
may be amended, modificd or waived except upon approval of such amendment. modification or
WIlVET PUMSHant 1o an instrament in writing executed by the Corporation and the Holders of a
majority of the then outstanding shares of the Preferred Stock (and, if required pursuant o the
MRS, the filing of certificate of amendment to this Certificate of Designation in accordance with
WRS 78 1955) and ary such written ameadment, modification or waiver shall be binding upon
the Corporation and gach helder of Preferred Stock: provided that no such action shall modify or
waive (1) the defimition of Preference Amount, {11) the rate ot which or the manner in which
Cumulative Dividends accrue or sccumubate or the tunes at which such Cumwlative Dividends
become payable pursuant o Section 4, or (i) this Section ¢}, without the prior written
consent of cach holder of the then outstanding shares of Preferred Stock.  Mowwithstanding
anything to the contrary set forth in this Certificate of Designation or the NR3 (including.
without limitation, MRS 78,1955), no consent or approval of the helders of any Senior Securties,

PR 12




Parity Securities of Junior Securities shall be required in connection with any amendment,
moedification or waiver of this Certificate of Designation.

{d) Wajver, Any waiver by the Corporation or a Holder of a hreach of any
provision of this Cenificate of Designation shall not operate as or be construed to be a waiver of
any other breach of such provision or of any breach of any other provision of this Certificate of
Dresygnation or a waiver by any other Holders. The failure of the Corporation or a Holder to
insist upon strict adherence o any term of this Certificate of Designation on one or more
oceasions shall not be considered a waiver or deprive that party {or any other Holder) of the right
thereafter to insist upon strict adherence w that term o any other term of s Certificate of
Designation on any other occasion.  Any waiver by the Comporation or a Holder must be in
wriling.

el Severability. ITany provision of this Certificate of Designation is imvalid.
illegal ot unenforceable, the balance of this Ceriificate of Designation shall remaim i effect, and
it any provision is inapplicable 10 any Person or circumstance, it shall nevertheless remain
applicable 10 all other Persons and ciccumstances. 10t shall be found that any interest or other
amount deemed interest due hereunder violates the applicable law governing usury, the
applicable rate of interest due heneunder shall automatically be lowered to equal the maximum
rate of interest permitted under applicable law,

i Mext Business Day. Whenever any payment or other obligation hereunder
shall be due on a duy other than a Business Day, such payment Il be made on the next
succeeding Business Day,

(=} Status of Converled or Redeemed Preforred Stock. [T any shares of
Preferred Stock shall be converted. redeemed or reacquired by the Corporation, such shares shall
resume the status of authorized and unissued shares of the Comperation’s prefered stock, shall no
longer be designated as Series A Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock. and thereafter may be
designuted and 1ssued as part of another series of the Corporation’s preferred stock

{h} Material Non-Public Information.  In the event that the Corporation
believes that a notice provided by the Corporation 1o any Holder under this Certificate af
Designation containg material, pompublic infermation relating e the Corporation or s
subsidiaries ("MNFI™), the Corporation shall so indicate w such Holder contemporaneously with
delivery of such notice. Each Holder sgrees that such Holder will not disclose any MNP it
receives under the terms of this Centificate of Designation to any individual or entity, except to
such Holder's affiliates. employees. officers. directors, partners, managers, sharcholders,
members,  equity owners,  agents,  attomeys,  accountamts  or  advisors  {collectively,
“Representatives™) whe: (1) need to know such MNPI to assist sueh Helder. or act on its behalf,
in such Holder's capacity as a Holder or 10 exercise its rights under this Certificate of
Designation; {2) are imformed by such Holder of the contidential nature of such MNPL and (3)
are subject 1o confidentiality duties or obligations to such Holder that are no less restrictive than
the terms and conditions of this Section 11ih). Each Holder agrees that it shall be responsible for
any breach of this Section |1(thy caused by any of #s Representatives, unless such
Represeniatives entered inwo a separate confidentialiey agreement with the Corporation,
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Motwithstand eoing, this Section LI(h] does not prohibit a Holder from reparting. or
COMIMUnICAinG or participating in any investigation or proceeding with respect to, possible
violations of U5, federal sceurities laws or regulation to any LS. fedetal governmental agency
ar entity, including, without limitation, the US. Department of Justice, the Securities and
Exchange Commassion, the US. Congress and any LS, agency inspector general, or making
other disclosures that are protected under the whistichlower provisions of federal law or
regulation. Mo prior awthorization from the Corporation s required for such repors,
communications of participation nor does a Holder need to notify the Corporation that such
Halder has made such report or communicalion or is parlicipating in any such investigation or
proceeding
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IN WITNESS WHEREQF, the undersigned officer of Medicine Man Technologies, Inc.
has execuied this Certficate of Designation as of December 16, 2020,

MEDICINE MAN TECHNOLOGIES, INC,

L)

Name: Naney Huber
Title: Chief Financial Officer
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ANNEX A
NOTICE OF VOLUNTARY CONVERSION

{TO BE EXECUTED BY THE REGISTERED HOLDER IN ORDER TO CONVERT SHARES
OF PREFERRED STOCK)

The undersigned herchy clects to convert the number of shares of Series A Cumulative
Convertible Preferred Stock indicated below into shares of common stock, par value $0.041 per

“Comoration™), according to the conditions hereal, as of the date written below. [I' shares of
Common Steck are o be issued inothe name of a Person other than the undersigned, the
undersigned will pay all transfer taxes payable with respect thereto and is delivering herewith
such cenificates and opinions as may ke required by the Corporation, No fee will be charged to
the Holders for any conversion, except for any such transfer taxes,

Conversion caleulations;
Date 1o Effect Converston:
Mumber of shares of Preferred Stock owned prior to Conversion:
Mumber of shares of Preferred Stock to be Converted:

Preference Amount of shares of Preferred Stock to be Converted:

Mumber of shares of Common Swek 10 be Issued:

Applicable Conversion Price:

Number of shares of Preferred Stock subsequent to Conversion:

Address for Delivery:
ar

DWAC Instmuctions:
Broker mo:

Account no:

HOLDER
By:_

Mame:
Tirle:
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Exhibit 4.1

Description of Securities of Medicine Man Technologies, Inc.
Registered Pursuant to Section 12 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

General

The following is a summary of information concerning the capital stock of Medicine Man Technologies, Inc. (hereinafter referred to as the “Company”, “our” and “we”). The
summaries and descriptions below do not purport to be complete. It is subject to and qualified in its entirety by reference to our Articles of Incorporation, as amended (the
“Articles of Incorporation”), and our Amended and Restated Bylaws (the “Bylaws”), each of which are incorporated by reference as an exhibit to the Annual Report on Form
10-K of which this Exhibit 4.1 is a part. We encourage you to read our Articles of Incorporation, including the Certificate of Designation (as defined below), our Bylaws and
any applicable provisions of relevant law, including the Nevada Revised Statutes. Our Common Stock (as defined below) is our only security registered pursuant to Section 12
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

Common Stock
Authorized Shares. The Company is authorized to issue up to 250,000,000 shares of common stock, par value $0.001 per share (the “Common Stock™).

Dividends. Holders of shares of Common Stock are entitled to receive dividends when, as and if declared by the Company’s Board of Directors (the “Board”) out of funds
legally available for that purpose, subject to the rights of holders of any class or series of preferred stock, including our Series A Preferred Stock (as defined below), which may
then be outstanding. The Company has not declared or paid any cash dividends on its Common Stock, and the Company does not anticipate doing so in the foreseeable future.

Voting Rights. Each share of Common Stock is entitled to one vote on all matters submitted to a vote of the Company’s shareholders, including as to the election of directors to
the Board. Shareholders are prohibited from cumulating their votes in any election of directors of the Company.

Liquidation Rights. In the event of any liquidation, dissolution, or winding up of the Company, subject to the rights of creditors and the holders of any outstanding shares of
preferred stock having a preference, including our Series A Preferred Stock, holders of shares of Common Stock are entitled to ratable distribution of the remaining assets
available for distribution to shareholders.

Redemption. The shares of Common Stock are generally not subject to redemption by operation of a sinking fund or otherwise; provided, however, so long as the Company
holds (directly or indirectly) a license from a governmental agency to conduct its business, if such license is conditioned upon some or all of the holders of the Company
possessing certain qualifications, then, the Company, in its sole option and sole discretion, may redeem the shares of Common Stock held by a holder that is deemed unsuitable
or disqualified to own a direct or indirect interest in the Company by such license granting governmental agency.

Preemptive Rights. Holders of shares of Common Stock are not currently entitled to preemptive rights.
Fully Paid. The issued and outstanding shares of Common Stock are fully paid and non-assessable. This means the full purchase price for the outstanding shares of Common
Stock has been paid and the holders of such shares will not be assessed any additional amounts for such shares. Any additional shares of Common Stock that the Company may

issue in the future will also be fully paid and non-assessable.

Listing and Ticker Symbol. The Common Stock is currently quoted on the OTCQX under the ticker symbol “SHWZ.”




Preferred Stock

Authority to Designate and Issue Shares of Preferred Stock. Subject to limitations prescribed by Nevada law, without vote or action by our stockholders, the Board is authorized
to determine and alter the right, preferences, privileges and restrictions granted and imposed upon any wholly unissued series of preferred stock, and to fix the number and
designation of shares of any series of preferred stock. The Board also may increase or decrease the number of shares of any series of preferred stock, but not below the number
of shares of that series then outstanding, without any further vote or action by our stockholders. The Board may authorize the issuance of preferred stock with rights, such as
voting or conversion rights, that could adversely affect the rights of the holders of the Common Stock. The issuance of preferred stock, while providing flexibility in connection
with possible acquisitions and other corporate purposes, could, among other things, have the effect of delaying, deferring or preventing a change in control of our company.

Authorized Shares. The Company is authorized to issue up to 10,000,000 shares of preferred stock, par value $0.001 per shares. The Company has designated 110,000 shares of
preferred stock as Series A Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock (the “Series A Preferred Stock™) pursuant to the Certificate of Designation of Series A Cumulative
Convertible Preferred Stock filed with the Nevada Secretary of State on December 16, 2020 and amended on March 1, 2021 (the “Certificate of Designation”).

Dividends. Holders of Series A Preferred Stock are entitled to receive cumulative dividends at the rate of 8% per annum on the “Preference Amount,” which initially is equal to
$1,000 per share and subject to increase, payable annually on each anniversary of the date of the first issuance of any shares of Series A Preferred Stock to holders of record on
each such payment date, by having such dividends automatically accrete as of each dividend payment date to, and increase, the outstanding Preference Amount.

Liquidate Preference. In the event of any voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution or winding-up of the Company, holders of Series A Preferred Stock are entitled to be
paid out of the Company’s assets available for distributions to its stockholders, before any payment shall be made to the holders of any junior securities, such as the Common
Stock, an amount in cash equal to the Preference Amount (plus the pro rata portion of the next dividend, if any), for each share of Series A Preferred Stock. In connection with
a Change of Control Transaction (as defined in the Certificate of Designation), either the Company or holders of Series A Preferred Stock holding no less than a majority of the
then-issued and outstanding shares of Series A Preferred Stock may elect to treat such Change of Control Transaction as a liquidation and to receive the cash or the value of the
property, rights or securities paid or distributed to holders of Series A Preferred Stock in such Change of Control Transaction. Generally, a Change of Control Transaction
means the occurrence of any of: (i) the acquisition by a person or group through a purchase, merger or other acquisition transaction or series or related transactions, in which
such transaction or transactions are with the Company or approved by the Board, entitling that person or group to exercise more than a majority of the total voting power of all
shares of the Company entitled to vote generally in the election of directors (including all securities such person has the right to acquire), (ii) a merger or consolidation
involving the Company and, after giving effect to such transaction, the Company’s stockholders immediately before such transaction own less than a majority of the Company’s
aggregate voting power the successor entity of such transaction immediately after such transaction, (iii) a sale, lease or transfer of all or substantially all of the Company’s
assets and the Company’s stockholders immediately before such transaction own less than a majority of the aggregate voting power of the acquiring entity immediately after
such transaction, or (iv) the Common Stock ceases to be listed on a Trading Market (as defined in the Certificate of Designation).

Conversion by Holders. Each share of Series A Preferred Stock will be convertible at the option of the holder thereof (i) for 90 days after the occurrence of a Listing Event (as
defined in the Certificate of Designation), (ii) on the date of the consummation of a Change of Control Transaction if requested within 14 days after delivery to holders of a
notice of an anticipated Change of Control Transaction, (iii) for 10 days after the receipt by the holders of a notice of forced redemption by the Company, and (iv) at any time
after the first anniversary of the date of the first issuance of any shares of Series A Preferred Stock, in each case, into that number of shares of Common Stock determined by
dividing the Preference Amount (plus the pro rata portion of the next dividend, if any) of such share of Series A Preferred Stock by $1.20. Generally, a Listing Event involves
the listing of the Common Stock on the Nasdaq Capital Market, the Nasdaq Global Market, the Nasdaq Global Select Market or the New York Stock Exchange followed within
90 days thereafter by a public offering of Common Stock that generates gross proceeds to the Company of no less than $100,000,000.

Conversion by the Company. The Company may force conversion of the Series Preferred Stock (i) within 90 days after the occurrence of a Listing Event, and (ii) on the date of
the consummation of a Change of Control Transaction if requested within 14 days after delivery to holders of a notice of an anticipated Change of Control Transaction, other
than a Change of Control Transaction as a result of the Common Stock ceasing to be listed on any Trading Market.




Redemption Rights. Each share of Series A Preferred Stock will be redeemable at the option of the holder thereof (i) for 90 days after the occurrence of a Listing Event, (ii) at
any time after the fifth anniversary of the date of the first issuance of any shares of Series A Preferred Stock, (iii) on the date of the consummation of a Change of Control
Transaction if requested within 14 days after delivery to holders of a notice of an anticipated Change of Control Transaction, or (iv) for five days after the receipt by the holder
of a notice of forced conversion by the Company. In each case, a holder of Series A Preferred Stock may elect to have the Company redeem all or any portion of the shares of
Series A Preferred Stock held for a redemption price per share equal to the Preference Amount (plus the pro rata portion of the next dividend, if any). The Company has a right
to defer such redemption one or more times until no later than the one year anniversary of the redemption date originally requested by the holder, provided that the dividends
rate would be increased from 8% to 10% per annum during the first six months of such deferral period and 15% thereafter, if applicable. In addition, the Company may redeem
all or any portion of the Series A Preferred Stock within 90 days after the occurrence of a Listing Event.

Cannabis Law Compliance and Unsuitability Redemption. Each holder of Series A Preferred must take all action reasonably required by such holder to comply with applicable
state cannabis laws and regulations, including, without limitation, making all requisite filings under such laws and regulations as and when required. The Company has the right
but not the obligation to redeem all or any portion of the shares of Series A Preferred Stock held by any holder that is determined to be unsuitable or disqualified to own a direct
or indirect interest in the Company by a state governmental authority, including, without limitation, the Colorado Marijuana Enforcement Division.

Ranking. With respect to conversion rights, redemption payments and rights upon the Company’s liquidation, dissolution or winding-up or a Change of Control Transaction, the
Series A Preferred Stock rank junior to the Company’s indebtedness and any securities the Company issues in the future the terms of which expressly make such securities
senior to the Series A Preferred Stock, on a parity with any securities the Company issues in the future the terms of which expressly make such securities on a parity with any
or all of the Series A Preferred Stock, but senior to the Common Stock and any securities the Company issues in the future that are not expressly made on a parity or senior to
the Series A Preferred Stock.

Voting Rights. Each holder of Series A Preferred Stock will be entitled to cast the number of votes equal to the number of whole shares of Common Stock into which the shares
of Series A Preferred Stock held would convert into as of the record date for determining stockholders entitled to vote on any matter presented to the Company’s stockholders
for their action or consideration at any meeting (or by written consent in lieu of meeting) voting together with the holder of Common Stock as a single class as if such shares of
Series A Preferred Stock were convertible as of such date.

Action by Written Consent.

The Bylaws provide that holders holding a majority of the voting power of each class of capital stock of the Company, or, if different, the proportion of voting power required
to take such action at a meeting of stockholders.

Certain Anti-Takeover Measures

Under our Articles of Incorporation, the Board, without further vote by our stockholders, has the authority to issue shares of preferred stock and to determine the rights and
preferences, price and restrictions, including but not limited to voting and dividend rights, of any such shares of preferred stock. The issuance of preferred stock, while
providing flexibility in connection with possible acquisitions and other corporate purposes, could, among other things, have the effect of delaying, deferring or preventing a
change in control of our company.




The Bylaws contain provisions that may be deemed to have an anti-takeover effect and may del, defer or prevent a change of control. These provisions include:

Staggered Board of Directors. The Bylaws provide for a “staggered” or “classified” Board, whereby the directors of the Board are divided into two classes - Class A
Directors consisting of one-half of the members of the Board, and Class B Directors consisting of one-half of the members of the Board. Each class shall be elected for two-
year terms, in alternating years.

Change in the Number of Directors. The Bylaws provide that approval by no less than four members of the Board is required to change the total number of directors
comprising the Board.

Bankruptcy, Insolvency, Dissolution or Liquidation. The Bylaws provide that approval by no less than four members of the Board is required to commence any
bankruptcy or insolvency proceeding, or to dissolve or liquidate or agree to dissolve or liquidate the Company.

Transfer Agent

The Company’s Transfer Agent is Globex Transfer, LLC.




Exhibit 4.5
FORM OF WARRANT TO PURCHASE COMMON STOCK

NEITHER THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY THIS CERTIFICATE NOR THE SECURITIES INTO WHICH THESE
SECURITIES ARE EXERCISABLE HAVE BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, OR APPLICABLE STATE
SECURITIES LAWS. THE SECURITIES MAY NOT BE OFFERED FOR SALE, SOLD, TRANSFERRED OR ASSIGNED (I) IN THE ABSENCE OF (A) AN
EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION STATEMENT FOR THE SECURITIES UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, OR (B) AN OPINION OF
COUNSEL SELECTED BY THE HOLDER, IN A GENERALLY ACCEPTABLE FORM, THAT REGISTRATION IS NOT REQUIRED UNDER SUCH ACT
OR (II) UNLESS SOLD PURSUANT TO RULE 144 OR RULE 144A UNDER SUCH ACT. NOTWITHSTANDING THE FOREGOING, THE SECURITIES
MAY BE PLEDGED IN CONNECTION WITH A BONA FIDE MARGIN ACCOUNT OR OTHER LOAN OR FINANCING ARRANGEMENT SECURED BY
THE SECURITIES.

MEDICINE MAN TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
Warrant To Purchase Common Stock

Warrant No.: [ 1
Number of Shares of Common Stock: [
Date of Issuance: [ 1, 2019 (“Issuance Date™)

Medicine Man Technologies, Inc., a Nevada corporation (the “Company”), hereby certifies that, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and

sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, [ ], the registered holder hereof or its permitted assigns (the “Holder”), is entitled, subject to the terms set
forth below, to purchase from the Company, at the Exercise Price (as defined below) then in effect, at any time or times on or after the date hereof, but not after 11:59 p.m.,
New York time, on the Expiration Date, [ ) ([ 1) (as defined below), fully paid nonassessable shares of Common Stock, all subject to adjustment as

provided herein (the “Warrant Shares”). Except as otherwise defined herein, capitalized terms in this Warrant to Purchase Common Stock (including any Warrants to
Purchase Common Stock issued in exchange, transfer or replacement hereof, this “Warrant”), shall have the meanings set forth in Section [__]. This Warrant is one of the
Warrants to purchase Common Stock (the “SPA Warrants”) issued pursuant to Section 1 of that certain Securities Purchase Agreement, dated as of [ 1, 2019 (the
“Subscription Date”), by and between the Company and the Buyer (the “Securities Purchase Agreement”). Capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise defined shall
have the definitions ascribed to such terms in the Securities Purchase Agreement.

1. EXERCISE OF WARRANT.

(a) Mechanics of Exercise. Subject to the terms and conditions hereof, this Warrant may be exercised by the Holder at any time or times on or after the
Issuance Date, in whole or in part, by (i) delivery of a written notice, in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A (the “Exercise Notice”), of the Holder’s election to exercise
this Warrant and (ii) payment to the Company of an amount equal to the applicable Exercise Price multiplied by the number of Warrant Shares as to which this Warrant is
being exercised (the “Aggregate Exercise Price”) in cash by wire transfer of immediately available funds. The Holder shall not be required to deliver the original Warrant in
order to effect an exercise hereunder. Execution and delivery of the Exercise Notice with respect to less than all of the Warrant Shares shall have the same effect as
cancellation of the original Warrant and issuance of a new Warrant evidencing the right to purchase the remaining number of Warrant Shares. On or before the first (1st)
Trading Day following the date on which the Company has received the Exercise Notice, the Company shall transmit by electronic mail an acknowledgment of confirmation
of receipt of the Exercise Notice to the Holder and the Company’s transfer agent (the “Transfer Agent”). On or before the earlier of (i) the second (2nd) Trading Day and
(ii) the number of Trading Days comprising the Standard Settlement Period, in each case, following the date on which the Holder delivers the Exercise Notice to the
Company, so long as the Holder delivers the Aggregate Exercise Price on or prior to the seventh (7th) Trading Day following the date on which the Company has received
the Exercise Notice (the “Share Delivery Date”) (provided that if the Aggregate Exercise Price has not been delivered by such date, the Share Delivery Date shall be two
(2) Trading Days after the Aggregate Exercise Price is delivered), the Company shall (X) provided that the Transfer Agent is participating in The Depository Trust Company
(“DTC”) Fast Automated Securities Transfer Program and the Warrant Shares are subject to an effective resale registration statement in favor of the Holder, credit such
aggregate number of Warrant Shares to which the Holder is entitled pursuant to such exercise to the Holder’s or its designee’s balance account with DTC through its Deposit
/ Withdrawal At Custodian system, or (Y) if the Transfer Agent is not participating in the DTC Fast Automated Securities Transfer Program or the Warrant Shares are not
subject to an effective resale registration statement in favor of the Holder, issue and dispatch by overnight courier to the address as specified in the Exercise Notice, a
certificate, registered in the Company’s share register in the name of the Holder or its designee, for the number of Warrant Shares to which the Holder is entitled pursuant to
such exercise. The Company shall be responsible for all fees and expenses of the Transfer Agent and all fees and expenses with respect to the issuance of Warrant Shares via
DTC, if any. Upon delivery of the Exercise Notice, the Holder shall be deemed for all corporate purposes to have become the holder of record of the Warrant Shares with
respect to which this Warrant has been exercised, irrespective of the date such Warrant Shares are credited to the Holder’s DTC account or the date of delivery of the
certificates evidencing such Warrant Shares, as the case may be. If this Warrant is submitted in connection with any exercise pursuant to this Section 1(a) and the number of
Warrant Shares represented by this Warrant submitted for exercise is greater than the number of Warrant Shares being acquired upon an exercise, then the Company shall as
soon as practicable and in no event later than three (3) Trading Days after any exercise and at its own expense, issue a new Warrant (in accordance with Section 7(d))
representing the right to purchase the number of Warrant Shares issuable immediately prior to such exercise under this Warrant, less the number of Warrant Shares with
respect to which this Warrant is exercised. No fractional Warrant Shares are to be issued upon the exercise of this Warrant, but rather the number of Warrant Shares to be
issued shall be rounded up to the nearest whole number. The Company shall pay any and all taxes which may be payable with respect to the issuance and delivery of Warrant
Shares upon exercise of this Warrant. The Company’s obligations to issue and deliver Warrant Shares in accordance with the terms and subject to the conditions hereof are
absolute and unconditional, irrespective of any action or inaction by the Holder to enforce the same, any waiver or consent with respect to any provision hereof, the recovery
of any judgment against any Person or any action to enforce the same, or any setoff, counterclaim, recoupment, limitation or termination.




(b) Exercise Price. For purposes of this Warrant, “Exercise Price” means $[ ] per share, subject to adjustment as provided herein.

(c) Company’s Failure to Timely Deliver Securities. If the Company shall fail for any reason or for no reason to issue to the Holder on or prior to the Share
Delivery Date either (I) if the Transfer Agent is not participating in the DTC Fast Automated Securities Transfer Program, a certificate for the number of shares of Common
Stock to which the Holder is entitled and register such shares of Common Stock on the Company’s share register or if the Transfer Agent is participating in the DTC Fast
Automated Securities Transfer Program, to credit the Holder’s balance account with DTC, for such number of shares of Common Stock to which the Holder is entitled upon
the Holder’s exercise of this Warrant or (II) if any registration statement covering the resale of the Warrant Shares that are the subject of the Exercise Notice (the
“Unavailable Warrant Shares”) is not available for the resale of such Unavailable Warrant Shares at a time when such registration is contractually required to be available
by the Company pursuant to the Securities Purchase Agreement or any other Transaction Document and the Company fails to promptly (x) so notify the Holder and (y)
deliver the Warrant Shares electronically without any restrictive legend by crediting such aggregate number of Warrant Shares to which the Holder is entitled pursuant to
such exercise to the Holder’s or its designee’s balance account with DTC through its Deposit / Withdrawal At Custodian system (the event described in the immediately
foregoing clause (II) is hereinafter referred as a “Notice Failure” and together with the event described in clause (I) above, an “Exercise Failure”), then, in addition to all
other remedies available to the Holder, (X) the Company shall pay in cash to the Holder on each day after the Share Delivery Date and during such Exercise Failure an
amount equal to 1.0% of the product of (A) the sum of the number of shares of Common Stock not issued to the Holder on or prior to the Share Delivery Date and to which
the Holder is entitled, and (B) any Closing Bid Price of the Common Stock selected by the Holder in writing occurring during the period beginning on the applicable date of
delivery of an Exercise Notice and ending on the applicable Share Delivery Date, and (Y) the Holder, upon written notice to the Company, may void its Exercise Notice with
respect to, and retain or have returned, as the case may be, any portion of this Warrant that has not been exercised pursuant to such Exercise Notice; provided that the voiding
of an Exercise Notice shall not affect the Company’s obligations to make any payments which have accrued prior to the date of such notice pursuant to this Section 1(c) or
otherwise. In addition to the foregoing, if on or prior to the Share Delivery Date either (I) if the Transfer Agent is not participating in the DTC Fast Automated Securities
Transfer Program, the Company shall fail to issue and deliver a certificate to the Holder and register such shares of Common Stock on the Company’s share register or, if the
Transfer Agent is participating in the DTC Fast Automated Securities Transfer Program, credit the Holder’s balance account with DTC for the number of shares of Common
Stock to which the Holder is entitled upon the Holder’s exercise hereunder or pursuant to the Company’s obligation pursuant to clause (ii) below or (II) a Notice Failure
occurs, and if on or after such Trading Day the Holder purchases (in an open market transaction or otherwise) shares of Common Stock relating to the applicable Exercise
Failure (a “Buy-In”), then the Company shall, within five (5) Trading Days after the Holder’s request and in the Holder’s discretion, either (i) pay cash to the Holder in an
amount equal to the Holder’s total purchase price (including brokerage commissions and other out-of-pocket expenses, if any) for the shares of Common Stock so purchased
(the “Buy-In Price”), at which point the Company’s obligation to deliver such certificate (and to issue such shares of Common Stock) or credit the Holder’s balance account
with DTC for such shares of Common Stock shall terminate, or (ii) promptly honor its obligation to deliver to the Holder a certificate or certificates representing such shares
of Common Stock or credit the Holder’s balance account with DTC, as applicable, and pay cash to the Holder in an amount equal to the excess (if any) of the Buy-In Price
over the product of (A) such number of shares of Common Stock, times (B) any Closing Bid Price of the Common Stock selected by the Holder in writing occurring during
the period beginning on the applicable date of delivery of an Exercise Notice and ending on the applicable Share Delivery Date. Nothing herein shall limit the Holder’s right
to pursue any other remedies available to it hereunder, at law or in equity, including, without limitation, a decree of specific performance and/or injunctive relief with respect
to the Company’s failure to timely deliver certificates representing shares of Common Stock (or to electronically deliver such shares of Common Stock) upon the exercise of
this Warrant as required pursuant to the terms hereof.

(d) Disputes. In the case of a dispute as to the determination of the Exercise Price or the arithmetic calculation of the Warrant Shares, the Company shall
promptly issue to the Holder the number of Warrant Shares that are not disputed and resolve such dispute in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.




(e) Insufficient Authorized Shares. If at any time while this Warrant remains outstanding the Company does not have a sufficient number of authorized and
unreserved shares of Common Stock to satisfy its obligation to reserve for issuance upon exercise of this Warrant at least a number of shares of Common Stock equal to
100% of the number of shares of Common Stock as shall from time to time be necessary to effect the exercise of all of this Warrant then outstanding without regard to any
limitation on exercise included herein (the “Required Reserve Amount” and the failure to have such sufficient number of authorized and unreserved shares of Common
Stock, an “Authorized Share Failure”), then the Company shall immediately take all action necessary to increase the Company’s authorized shares of Common Stock to an
amount sufficient to allow the Company to reserve the Required Reserve Amount for this Warrant then outstanding. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing
sentence, as soon as practicable after the date of the occurrence of an Authorized Share Failure, but in no event later than sixty (60) days after the occurrence of such
Authorized Share Failure, the Company shall hold a meeting of its stockholders for the approval of an increase in the number of authorized shares of Common Stock. In
connection with such meeting, the Company shall provide each stockholder with a proxy statement and shall use its best efforts to solicit its stockholders’ approval of such
increase in authorized shares of Common Stock and to cause its board of directors to recommend to the stockholders that they approve such proposal. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, if any such time of an Authorized Share Failure, the Company is able to obtain the written consent of a majority of the shares of its issued and outstanding shares
of Common Stock to approve the increase in the number of authorized shares of Common Stock, the Company may satisfy this obligation by obtaining such consent and
submitting for filing with the Securities and Exchange Commission an Information Statement on Schedule 14C. In the event that upon any exercise of this Warrant, the
Company does not have sufficient authorized shares to deliver in satisfaction of such exercise, then unless the Holder elects to void such attempted exercise, the Holder may
require the Company to pay to the Holder within three (3) Trading Days of the applicable exercise, cash in an amount equal to the product of (i) the quotient determined by
dividing (x) the number of Warrant Shares that the Company is unable to deliver pursuant to this Section 1(e), by (y) the total number of Warrant Shares issuable upon
exercise of this Warrant (without regard to any limitations or restrictions on exercise of this Warrant) and (ii) the Black Scholes Value.

2. ADJUSTMENT OF EXERCISE PRICE AND NUMBER OF WARRANT SHARES. The Exercise Price and the number of Warrant Shares shall be adjusted
from time to time as follows:

Holders, reduce the then current Exercise Price to any amount and for any period of time deemed appropriate by the Board of Directors of the Company.

(b) Adjustment Upon Subdivision or Combination of Common Stock. If the Company at any time on or after the Subscription Date subdivides (by any
stock split, stock dividend, recapitalization or otherwise) one or more classes of its outstanding shares of Common Stock into a greater number of shares, the Exercise Price
in effect immediately prior to such subdivision will be proportionately reduced and the number of Warrant Shares will be proportionately increased. If the Company at any
time on or after the Subscription Date combines (by combination, reverse stock split or otherwise) one or more classes of its outstanding shares of Common Stock into a
smaller number of shares, the Exercise Price in effect immediately prior to such combination will be proportionately increased and the number of Warrant Shares will be
proportionately decreased. Any adjustment under this Section 2(b) shall become effective at the close of business on the date the subdivision or combination becomes
effective.

(c) Other Events. If any event occurs of the type contemplated by the provisions of this Section 2 but not expressly provided for by such provisions
(including, without limitation, the granting of stock appreciation rights, phantom stock rights or other rights with equity features), then the Company’s Board of Directors
will make an appropriate adjustment in the Exercise Price and the number of Warrant Shares, as mutually determined by the Company’s Board of Directors and the Required
Holders, so as to protect the rights of the Holder; provided that no such adjustment pursuant to this Section 2(c) will increase the Exercise Price or decrease the number of
Warrant Shares as otherwise determined pursuant to this Section 2.

3.RIGHTS UPON DISTRIBUTION OF ASSETS. If the Company shall declare or make any dividend or other distribution of its assets (or rights to acquire its
assets) to holders of shares of Common Stock, by way of return of capital or otherwise (including, without limitation, any distribution of cash, stock or other securities,
property, options, evidence of indebtedness or any other assets by way of a dividend, spin off, reclassification, corporate rearrangement, scheme of arrangement or other
similar transaction) (a “Distribution”), at any time after the issuance of this Warrant, then, in each such case, the Holder shall be entitled to participate in such Distribution
to the same extent that the Holder would have participated therein if the Holder had held the number of shares of Common Stock acquirable upon complete exercise of this
Warrant (without regard to any limitations or restrictions on exercise of this Warrant) immediately before the date of which a record is taken for such Distribution, or, if no
such record is taken, the date as of which the record holders of shares of Common Stock are to be determined for the participation in such Distribution.

4. PURCHASE RIGHTS; FUNDAMENTAL TRANSACTIONS.

(a) Purchase Rights. In addition to any adjustments pursuant to Section 2 above, if at any time the Company grants, issues or sells any Options, Convertible
Securities or rights to purchase stock, warrants, securities or other property pro rata to the record holders of any class of Common Stock (the “Purchase Rights”), then the
Holder will be entitled to acquire, upon the terms applicable to such Purchase Rights, the aggregate Purchase Rights which the Holder could have acquired if the Holder had
held the number of shares of Common Stock acquirable upon complete exercise of this Warrant (without regard to any limitations or restrictions on exercise of this Warrant)
immediately before the date on which a record is taken for the grant, issuance or sale of such Purchase Rights, or, if no such record is taken, the date as of which the record
holders of shares of Common Stock are to be determined for the grant, issue or sale of such Purchase Rights.




(b) Fundamental Transactions. The Company shall not enter into or be party to a Fundamental Transaction unless the Successor Entity assumes in writing
all of the obligations of the Company under this Warrant and the other Transaction Documents in accordance with the provisions of this Section 4(b) pursuant to written
agreements in form and substance satisfactory to the Required Holders and approved by the Required Holders prior to such Fundamental Transaction, which such approval
shall not be unreasonably withheld, including agreements, if so requested by the Holder, to deliver to each holder of the SPA Warrants in exchange for such SPA Warrants a
security of the Successor Entity evidenced by a written instrument substantially similar in form and substance to this Warrant, including, without limitation, an adjusted
exercise price equal to the value for the shares of Common Stock reflected by the terms of such Fundamental Transaction, and exercisable for a corresponding number of
shares of capital stock equivalent to the shares of Common Stock acquirable and receivable upon exercise of this Warrant (without regard to any limitations on the exercise
of this Warrant) prior to such Fundamental Transaction, and satisfactory to the Required Holders, and with an exercise price which applies the exercise price hereunder to
such shares of capital stock (but taking into account the relative value of the shares of Common Stock pursuant to such Fundamental Transaction and the value of such
shares of capital stock, such adjustments to the number of shares of capital stock and such exercise price being for the purpose of protecting the economic value of this
Warrant immediately prior to the occurrence or consummation of such Fundamental Transaction). No later than (i) thirty (30) days prior to the occurrence or consummation
of any Fundamental Transaction or (ii) if later, the first Trading Day following the date the Company first becomes aware of the occurrence or potential occurrence of a
Fundamental Transaction, the Company shall deliver written notice thereof via facsimile or electronic mail and overnight courier to the Holder. Upon the occurrence or
consummation of any Fundamental Transaction, and it shall be a required condition to the occurrence or consummation of any Fundamental Transaction that, the Company
and the Successor Entity or Successor Entities, jointly and severally, shall succeed to, and the Company shall cause any Successor Entity or Successor Entities to jointly and
severally succeed to, and be added to the term “Company” under this Warrant (so that from and after the date of such Fundamental Transaction, each and every provision of
this Warrant referring to the “Company” shall refer instead to each of the Company and the Successor Entity or Successor Entities, jointly and severally), and the Company
and the Successor Entity or Successor Entities, jointly and severally, may exercise every right and power of the Company prior thereto and shall assume all of the obligations
of the Company prior thereto under this Warrant with the same effect as if the Company and such Successor Entity or Successor Entities, jointly and severally, had been
named as the Company in this Warrant, and, solely at the request of the Holder, if the Successor Entity and/or Successor Entities is a publicly traded corporation whose
common stock is quoted on or listed for trading on an Eligible Market, shall deliver (in addition to and without limiting any right under this Warrant) to the Holder in
exchange for this Warrant a security of the Successor Entity and/or Successor Entities evidenced by a written instrument substantially similar in form and substance to this
Warrant and exercisable for a corresponding number of shares of capital stock of the Successor Entity and/or Successor Entities (the “Successor Capital Stock”) equivalent
to the shares of Common Stock acquirable and receivable upon exercise of this Warrant (without regard to any limitations on the exercise of this Warrant) prior to such
Fundamental Transaction (such corresponding number of shares of Successor Capital Stock to be delivered to the Holder shall be equal to the greater of (A) the quotient of
(i) the aggregate dollar value of all consideration (including cash consideration and any consideration other than cash (“Non-Cash Consideration”), in such Fundamental
Transaction, as such values are set forth in any definitive agreement for the Fundamental Transaction that has been executed at the time of the first public announcement of
the Fundamental Transaction or, if no such value is determinable from such definitive agreement, as determined by an independent appraiser chosen by the Holder and
reasonably consented to by the Company) that the Holder would have been entitled to receive upon the happening of such Fundamental Transaction or the record, eligibility
or other determination date for the event resulting in such Fundamental Transaction, had this Warrant been exercised immediately prior to such Fundamental Transaction or
the record, eligibility or other determination date for the event resulting in such Fundamental Transaction (without regard to any limitations on the exercise of this Warrant)
(the “Aggregate Consideration”) divided by (ii) the per share Closing Sale Price of such Successor Capital Stock on the Trading Day immediately prior to the
consummation or occurrence of the Fundamental Transaction and (B) the product of (i) the quotient obtained by dividing (x) the Aggregate Consideration, by(y) the Closing
Sale Price of the Common Stock on the Trading Day immediately prior to the consummation or occurrence of the Fundamental Transaction and (ii) the highest exchange
ratio pursuant to which any stockholder of the Company may exchange shares of Common Stock for Successor Capital Stock). Upon occurrence or consummation of the
Fundamental Transaction, and it shall be a required condition to the occurrence or consummation of such Fundamental Transaction that, the Company and the Successor
Entity or Successor Entities shall deliver to the Holder confirmation that there shall be issued upon exercise of this Warrant at any time after the occurrence or consummation
of the Fundamental Transaction, as elected by the Holder solely at its option, shares of Successor Capital Stock or, in lieu of the shares of Successor Capital Stock (or other
securities, cash, assets or other property purchasable upon the exercise of this Warrant prior to such Fundamental Transaction), such shares of stock, securities, cash, assets
or any other property whatsoever (including warrants or other purchase or subscription rights), which for purposes of clarification may continue to be shares of Common
Stock, if any, that the Holder would have been entitled to receive upon the happening of such Fundamental Transaction or the record, eligibility or other determination date
for the event resulting in such Fundamental Transaction, had this Warrant been exercised immediately prior to such Fundamental Transaction or the record, eligibility or
other determination date for the event resulting in such Fundamental Transaction (without regard to any limitations on the exercise of this Warrant), as adjusted in
accordance with the provisions of this Warrant. In addition to and not in substitution for any other rights hereunder, prior to the occurrence or consummation of any
Fundamental Transaction pursuant to which holders of shares of Common Stock are entitled to receive securities, cash, assets or other property with respect to or in
exchange for shares of Common Stock (a “Corporate Event”), the Company shall make appropriate provision to ensure that, and any applicable Successor Entity or
Successor Entities shall ensure that, and it shall be a required condition to the occurrence or consummation of such Corporate Event that, the Holder will thereafter have the
right to receive upon exercise of this Warrant at any time after the occurrence or consummation of the Corporate Event, shares of Common Stock or Successor Capital Stock,
as applicable, or, if so elected by the Holder, in lieu of the shares of Common Stock (or other securities, cash, assets or other property) purchasable upon the exercise of this
Warrant prior to such Corporate Event (but not in lieu of such items still issuable under Sections 3 and 4(a), which shall continue to be receivable on the shares of Common
Stock or on the such shares of stock, securities, cash, assets or any other property otherwise receivable with respect to or in exchange for shares of Common Stock), such
shares of stock, securities, cash, assets or any other property whatsoever (including warrants or other purchase or subscription rights and any shares of Common Stock)
which the Holder would have been entitled to receive upon the occurrence or consummation of such Corporate Event or the record, eligibility or other determination date for
the event resulting in such Corporate Event, had this Warrant been exercised immediately prior to such Corporate Event or the record, eligibility or other determination date
for the event resulting in such Corporate Event (without regard to any limitations on exercise of this Warrant). Provision made pursuant to the preceding sentence shall be in
a form and substance reasonably satisfactory to the Holder. The provisions of this Section 4(b) shall apply similarly and equally to successive Fundamental Transactions and
Corporate Events.




5. NONCIRCUMVENTION. The Company hereby covenants and agrees that the Company will not, by amendment of its Articles of Incorporation or Bylaws, or
through any reorganization, transfer of assets, consolidation, merger, scheme of arrangement, dissolution, issue or sale of securities, or any other voluntary action, avoid or
seek to avoid the observance or performance of any of the terms of this Warrant, and will at all times in good faith carry out all of the provisions of this Warrant and take all
action as may be required to protect the rights of the Holder. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the Company (i) shall not increase the par value of any shares
of Common Stock receivable upon the exercise of this Warrant above the Exercise Price then in effect, (ii) shall take all such actions as may be necessary or appropriate in
order that the Company may validly and legally issue fully paid and nonassessable shares of Common Stock upon the exercise of this Warrant, and (iii) shall, so long as any
of the SPA Warrants are outstanding, take all action necessary to reserve and keep available out of its authorized and unissued shares of Common Stock, solely for the
purpose of effecting the exercise of the SPA Warrants, 100% of the number of shares of Common Stock as shall from time to time be necessary to effect the exercise of the
SPA Warrants then outstanding.

6. WARRANT HOLDER NOT DEEMED A STOCKHOLDER. Except as otherwise specifically provided herein, the Holder, solely in such Person’s capacity as a
holder of this Warrant, shall not be entitled to vote or receive dividends or be deemed the holder of share capital of the Company for any purpose, nor shall anything
contained in this Warrant be construed to confer upon the Holder, solely in such Person’s capacity as the Holder of this Warrant, any of the rights of a stockholder of the
Company or any right to vote, give or withhold consent to any corporate action (whether any reorganization, issue of stock, reclassification of stock, consolidation, merger,
conveyance or otherwise), receive notice of meetings, receive dividends or subscription rights, or otherwise, prior to the issuance to the Holder of the Warrant Shares which
such Person is then entitled to receive upon the due exercise of this Warrant. In addition, nothing contained in this Warrant shall be construed as imposing any liabilities on
the Holder to purchase any securities (upon exercise of this Warrant or otherwise) or as a stockholder of the Company, whether such liabilities are asserted by the Company
or by creditors of the Company. Notwithstanding this Section 6, the Company shall provide the Holder with copies of the same notices and other information given to the
stockholders of the Company generally, contemporaneously with the giving thereof to the stockholders.

7. REISSUANCE OF WARRANTS.

(a) Transfer of Warrant. If this Warrant is to be transferred, the Holder shall surrender this Warrant to the Company, whereupon the Company will forthwith
issue and deliver upon the order of the Holder a new Warrant (in accordance with Section 7(d)), registered as the Holder may request, representing the right to purchase the
number of Warrant Shares being transferred by the Holder and, if less than the total number of Warrant Shares then underlying this Warrant is being transferred, a new
Warrant (in accordance with Section 7(d)) to the Holder representing the right to purchase the number of Warrant Shares not being transferred.

(b) Lost, Stolen or Mutilated Warrant. Upon receipt by the Company of evidence reasonably satisfactory to the Company of the loss, theft, destruction or
mutilation of this Warrant, and, in the case of loss, theft or destruction, of any indemnification undertaking by the Holder to the Company in customary form and, in the case
of mutilation, upon surrender and cancellation of this Warrant, the Company shall execute and deliver to the Holder a new Warrant (in accordance with Section 7(d))
representing the right to purchase the Warrant Shares then underlying this Warrant.

(c) Exchangeable for Multiple Warrants. This Warrant is exchangeable, upon the surrender hereof by the Holder at the principal office of the Company, for
a new Warrant or Warrants (in accordance with Section 7(d)) representing in the aggregate the right to purchase the number of Warrant Shares then underlying this Warrant,
and each such new Warrant will represent the right to purchase such portion of such Warrant Shares as is designated by the Holder at the time of such surrender; provided,
however, that no SPA Warrants for fractional Warrant Shares shall be given.

(d) Issuance of New Warrants. Whenever the Company is required to issue a new Warrant pursuant to the terms of this Warrant, such new Warrant (i) shall
be of like tenor with this Warrant, (ii) shall represent, as indicated on the face of such new Warrant, the right to purchase the Warrant Shares then underlying this Warrant (or
in the case of a new Warrant being issued pursuant to Section 7(a) or Section 7(c), the Warrant Shares designated by the Holder which, when added to the number of shares
of Common Stock underlying the other new Warrants issued in connection with such issuance, does not exceed the number of Warrant Shares then underlying this Warrant),
(iii) shall have an issuance date, as indicated on the face of such new Warrant which is the same as the Issuance Date, and (iv) shall have the same rights and conditions as
this Warrant.




8. NOTICES. Whenever notice is required to be given under this Warrant, unless otherwise provided herein, such notice shall be given in accordance with Section
[ 1 of the Securities Purchase Agreement. The Company shall provide the Holder with prompt written notice of all actions taken pursuant to this Warrant, including in
reasonable detail a description of such action and the reason therefor. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the Company will give written notice to the Holder (i)
immediately upon any adjustment of the Exercise Price, setting forth in reasonable detail, and certifying, the calculation of such adjustment and (ii) at least fifteen (15) days
prior to the date on which the Company closes its books or takes a record (A) with respect to any dividend or distribution upon the shares of Common Stock, (B) with
respect to any grants, issuances or sales of any Options, Convertible Securities or rights to purchase stock, warrants, securities or other property to holders of shares of
Common Stock or (C) for determining rights to vote with respect to any Fundamental Transaction, dissolution or liquidation; provided in each case that such information
shall be made known to the public prior to or in conjunction with such notice being provided to the Holder. It is expressly understood and agreed that the time of exercise
specified by the Holder in each Exercise Notice shall be definitive and may not be disputed or challenged by the Company.

9. AMENDMENT AND WAIVER. Except as otherwise provided herein, the provisions of this Warrant may be amended or waived and the Company may take any
action herein prohibited, or omit to perform any act herein required to be performed by it, only if the Company has obtained the written consent of the Holder.

10. GOVERNING LAW; JURISDICTION; JURY TRIAL. This Warrant shall be governed by and construed and enforced in accordance with, and all questions
concerning the construction, validity, interpretation and performance of this Warrant shall be governed by, the internal laws of the State of New York, without giving effect
to any choice of law or conflict of law provision or rule (whether of the State of New York or any other jurisdictions) that would cause the application of the laws of any
jurisdictions other than the State of New York. The Company hereby irrevocably submits to the exclusive jurisdiction of the state and federal courts sitting in The City of
New York, Borough of Manhattan, for the adjudication of any dispute hereunder or in connection herewith or with any transaction contemplated hereby or discussed herein,
and hereby irrevocably waives, and agrees not to assert in any suit, action or proceeding, any claim that it is not personally subject to the jurisdiction of any such court, that
such suit, action or proceeding is brought in an inconvenient forum or that the venue of such suit, action or proceeding is improper. The Company hereby irrevocably waives
personal service of process and consents to process being served in any such suit, action or proceeding by mailing a copy thereof to the Company at the address set forth in
Section [ ] of the Securities Purchase Agreement and agrees that such service shall constitute good and sufficient service of process and notice thereof. Nothing contained
herein shall be deemed to limit in any way any right to serve process in any manner permitted by law. Nothing contained herein shall be deemed or operate to preclude the
Holder from bringing suit or taking other legal action against the Company in any other jurisdiction to collect on the Company’s obligations to the Holder, to realize on any
collateral or any other security for such obligations, or to enforce a judgment or other court ruling in favor of the Holder. THE COMPANY HEREBY IRREVOCABLY
WAIVES ANY RIGHT IT MAY HAVE, AND AGREES NOT TO REQUEST, A JURY TRIAL FOR THE ADJUDICATION OF ANY DISPUTE HEREUNDER
OR IN CONNECTION WITH OR ARISING OUT OF THIS WARRANT OR ANY TRANSACTION CONTEMPLATED HEREBY.

11. CONSTRUCTION; HEADINGS. This Warrant shall be deemed to be jointly drafted by the Company and the Holder and shall not be construed against any
Person as the drafter hereof. The headings of this Warrant are for convenience of reference and shall not form part of, or affect the interpretation of, this Warrant.

12. REMEDIES, OTHER OBLIGATIONS, BREACHES AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF. The remedies provided in this Warrant shall be cumulative and in addition
to all other remedies available under this Warrant and the other Transaction Documents, at law or in equity (including a decree of specific performance and/or other
injunctive relief), and nothing herein shall limit the right of the Holder to pursue actual damages for any failure by the Company to comply with the terms of this Warrant.
The Company acknowledges that a breach by it of its obligations hereunder will cause irreparable harm to the Holder and that the remedy at law for any such breach may be
inadequate. The Company therefore agrees that, in the event of any such breach or threatened breach, the holder of this Warrant shall be entitled, in addition to all other
available remedies, to an injunction restraining any breach, without the necessity of showing economic loss and without any bond or other security being required.

13. TRANSFER. This Warrant and the Warrant Shares may be offered for sale, sold, transferred, pledged or assigned without the consent of the Company, except as
may otherwise be required by Section 2(f) of the Securities Purchase Agreement.




14. SEVERABILITY. If any provision of this Warrant is prohibited by law or otherwise determined to be invalid or unenforceable by a court of competent
jurisdiction, the provision that would otherwise be prohibited, invalid or unenforceable shall be deemed amended to apply to the broadest extent that it would be valid and
enforceable, and the invalidity or unenforceability of such provision shall not affect the validity of the remaining provisions of this Warrant so long as this Warrant as so
modified continues to express, without material change, the original intentions of the parties as to the subject matter hereof and the prohibited nature, invalidity or
unenforceability of the provision(s) in question does not substantially impair the respective expectations or reciprocal obligations of the parties or the practical realization of
the benefits that would otherwise be conferred upon the parties. The parties will endeavor in good faith negotiations to replace the prohibited, invalid or unenforceable
provision(s) with a valid provision(s), the effect of which comes as close as possible to that of the prohibited, invalid or unenforceable provision(s).

15. DISCLOSURE. Upon receipt or delivery by the Company of any notice in accordance with the terms of this Warrant, unless the Company has in good faith
determined that the matters relating to such notice do not constitute material, nonpublic information relating to the Company or its Subsidiaries, the Company shall
contemporaneously with any such receipt or delivery publicly disclose such material, nonpublic information on a Current Report on Form 8-K or otherwise. In the event that
the Company believes that a notice contains material, nonpublic information relating to the Company or its Subsidiaries, the Company so shall indicate to the Holder
contemporaneously with delivery of such notice, and in the absence of any such indication, the Holder shall be allowed to presume that all matters relating to such notice do
not constitute material, nonpublic information relating to the Company or its Subsidiaries.

16. CERTAIN DEFINITIONS. For purposes of this Warrant, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

(a) “1933 Act” means the Securities Act of 1933, as amended.
(b) “1934 Act” means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.
(c) “Affiliate” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Rule 405 of the 1933 Act.

(d) “Black Scholes Value” means the value of this Warrant calculated using the Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model obtained from the “OV” function on
Bloomberg determined as of the date the Holder exercises this Warrant and the Company cannot deliver the required number of Warrant Shares because of an Authorized
Share Failure, for pricing purposes and reflecting (i) a risk-free interest rate corresponding to the U.S. Treasury rate for a period equal to the remaining term of this Warrant as
of such date of request, (ii) an expected volatility equal to the greater of 100% and the 100 day volatility obtained from the HVT function on Bloomberg as of the date the
Holder exercises this Warrant and the Company cannot deliver the required number of Warrant Shares because of an Authorized Share Failure, (iii) the underlying price per
share used in such calculation shall be the highest Weighted Average Price during the period beginning on the date of the applicable date of exercise and the date that the
Company makes the applicable cash payment (iv) a zero cost of borrow and (v) a 360 day annualization factor.

(e) “Bloomberg” means Bloomberg Financial Markets.

(f) “Business Day” means any day other than Saturday, Sunday or other day on which commercial banks in The City of New York are authorized or required
by law to remain closed.

(g) “Closing Bid Price” and “Closing Sale Price” means, for any security as of any date, the last closing bid price and last closing trade price,
respectively, for such security on the Principal Market, as reported by Bloomberg, or, if the Principal Market begins to operate on an extended hours basis and does not
designate the closing bid price or the closing trade price, as the case may be, then the last bid price or the last trade price, respectively, of such security prior to 4:00:00 p.m.,
New York time, as reported by Bloomberg, or, if the Principal Market is not the principal securities exchange or trading market for such security, the last closing bid price or
last trade price, respectively, of such security on the principal securities exchange or trading market where such security is listed or traded as reported by Bloomberg, or if
the foregoing do not apply, the last closing bid price or last trade price, respectively, of such security in the over-the-counter market on the electronic bulletin board for such
security as reported by Bloomberg, or, if no closing bid price or last trade price, respectively, is reported for such security by Bloomberg, the average of the bid prices, or the
ask prices, respectively, of any market makers for such security as reported in the OTC Link or “pink sheets” by OTC Markets Group Inc. (formerly Pink OTC Markets
Inc.). If the Closing Bid Price or the Closing Sale Price cannot be calculated for a security on a particular date on any of the foregoing bases, the Closing Bid Price or the
Closing Sale Price, as the case may be, of such security on such date shall be the fair market value as mutually determined by the Company and the Holder. If the Company
and the Holder are unable to agree upon the fair market value of such security, then such dispute shall be resolved by an independent appraiser chosen by the Holder and
reasonably consented to by the Company. All such determinations to be appropriately adjusted for any stock dividend, stock split, stock combination, reclassification or
other similar transaction during the applicable calculation period.

(h) “Common Stock” means (i) the Company’s shares of common stock, par value $0.001 per share, and (ii) any stock capital into which such Common
Stock shall have been changed or any stock capital resulting from a reclassification, reorganization or reclassification of such Common Stock.




(i) “Convertible Securities” means any stock or securities (other than Options) directly or indirectly convertible into or exercisable or exchangeable for
shares of Common Stock.

(j) “Eligible Market” means the Principal Market, the NYSE American, The Nasdaq Global Select Market, The Nasdaq Global Market, The Nasdaq
Capital Market, The New York Stock Exchange, Inc. or the OTC QX (or any successor of the foregoing).

(k) “Expiration Date” means the date thirty-six (36) months after the Issuance Date or, if such date falls on a day other than a Business Day or on which
trading does not take place on the Principal Market (a “Holiday”), the next day that is not a Holiday.

(1) “Fundamental Transaction” means (A) that the Company shall, directly or indirectly, including through Subsidiaries, Affiliates or otherwise, in one or
more related transactions, (i) consolidate or merge with or into (whether or not the Company is the surviving corporation) another Subject Entity, or (ii) sell, assign, transfer,
convey or otherwise dispose of all or substantially all of the properties or assets of the Company or any of its “significant subsidiaries” (as defined in Rule 1-02 of
Regulation S-X) to one or more Subject Entities, or (iii) make, or allow one or more Subject Entities to make, or allow the Company to be subject to or have its Common
Stock be subject to or party to one or more Subject Entities making, a purchase, tender or exchange offer that is accepted by the holders of at least either (x) 50% of the
outstanding shares of Common Stock, (y) 50% of the outstanding shares of Common Stock calculated as if any shares of Common Stock held by all Subject Entities making
or party to, or Affiliated with any Subject Entities making or party to, such purchase, tender or exchange offer were not outstanding; or (z) such number of shares of
Common Stock such that all Subject Entities making or party to, or Affiliated with any Subject Entity making or party to, such purchase, tender or exchange offer, become
collectively the beneficial owners (as defined in Rule 13d-3 under the 1934 Act) of at least 50% of the outstanding shares of Common Stock, or (iv) consummate a stock
purchase agreement or other business combination (including, without limitation, a reorganization, recapitalization, spin-off or scheme of arrangement) with one or more
Subject Entities whereby all such Subject Entities, individually or in the aggregate, acquire, either (x) at least 50% of the outstanding shares of Common Stock, (y) at least
50% of the outstanding shares of Common Stock calculated as if any shares of Common Stock held by all the Subject Entities making or party to, or Affiliated with any
Subject Entity making or party to, such stock purchase agreement or other business combination were not outstanding; or (z) such number of shares of Common Stock such
that the Subject Entities become collectively the beneficial owners (as defined in Rule 13d-3 under the 1934 Act) of at least 50% of the outstanding shares of Common
Stock, or (v) reorganize, recapitalize or reclassify its Common Stock, (B) that the Company shall, directly or indirectly, including through Subsidiaries, Affiliates or
otherwise, in one or more related transactions, allow any Subject Entity individually or the Subject Entities in the aggregate to be or become the “beneficial owner” (as
defined in Rule 13d-3 under the 1934 Act), directly or indirectly, whether through acquisition, purchase, assignment, conveyance, tender, tender offer, exchange, reduction in
outstanding shares of Common Stock, merger, consolidation, business combination, reorganization, recapitalization, spin-off, scheme of arrangement, reorganization,
recapitalization or reclassification or otherwise in any manner whatsoever, of either (x) at least 50% of the aggregate ordinary voting power represented by issued and
outstanding shares of Common Stock, (y) at least 50% of the aggregate ordinary voting power represented by issued and outstanding shares of Common Stock not held by
all such Subject Entities as of the Subscription Date calculated as if any shares of Common Stock held by all such Subject Entities were not outstanding, or (z) a percentage
of the aggregate ordinary voting power represented by issued and outstanding shares of Common Stock or other equity securities of the Company sufficient to allow such
Subject Entities to effect a statutory short form merger or other transaction requiring other stockholders of the Company to surrender their shares of Common Stock without
approval of the stockholders of the Company (other than a short form merger consummated solely for the purpose of changing the Company’s corporate name) or (C)
directly or indirectly, including through Subsidiaries, Affiliates or otherwise, in one or more related transactions, the issuance of or the entering into any other instrument or
transaction structured in a manner to circumvent, or that circumvents, the intent of this definition in which case this definition shall be construed and implemented in a
manner otherwise than in strict conformity with the terms of this definition to the extent necessary to correct this definition or any portion of this definition which may be
defective or inconsistent with the intended treatment of such instrument or transaction.

(m) “Group” means a “group” as that term is used in Section 13(d) of the 1934 Act and as defined in Rule 13d-5 thereunder.

(n) “Options” means any rights, warrants or options to subscribe for or purchase (i) shares of Common Stock or (ii) Convertible Securities.

(o) “Parent Entity” of a Person means an entity that, directly or indirectly, controls the applicable Person, including such entity whose common capital or
equivalent equity security is quoted or listed on an Eligible Market (or, if so elected by the Required Holders, any other market, exchange or quotation system), or, if there is

more than one such Person or such entity, the Person or such entity designated by the Required Holders or in the absence of such designation, such Person or entity with the
largest public market capitalization as of the date of consummation of the Fundamental Transaction.




(p) “Person” means an individual, a limited liability company, a partnership, a joint venture, a corporation, a trust, an unincorporated organization, any
other entity and a government or any department or agency thereof.

(q) “Principal Market” means the OTC QB.

(r) “Qualified Eligible Market” means the NYSE American, The Nasdaq Global Select Market, The Nasdaq Global Market, The Nasdaq Capital Market
or The New York Stock Exchange, Inc.

(s) “Required Holders” means the holders of the SPA Warrants representing at least a majority of the shares of Common Stock underlying the SPA
Warrants then outstanding and shall include Dye Capital Cann Holdings, LLC so long as such Person or any of its Affiliates holds any SPA Warrants.

(t) “Standard Settlement Period” means the standard settlement period, expressed in a number of Trading Days, on the Company’s primary Eligible
Market with respect to the Common Stock as in effect on the date of delivery of the applicable Exercise Notice.

(u) “Subject Entity” means any Person, Persons or Group or any Affiliate or associate of any such Person, Persons or Group.

(v) “Successor Entity” means one or more Person or Persons (or, if so elected by the Holder, the Company or Parent Entity) formed by, resulting from or
surviving any Fundamental Transaction or one or more Person or Persons (or, if so elected by the Holder, the Company or the Parent Entity) with which such Fundamental
Transaction shall have been entered into.

(w) “Trading Day” means any day on which the Common Stock is traded on the Principal Market, or, if the Principal Market is not the principal trading
market for the Common Stock on such day, then on the principal securities exchange or securities market on which the Common Stock is then traded.

(x) “Weighted Average Price” means, for any security as of any date, the dollar volume-weighted average price for such security on the Principal Market
during the period beginning at 9:30:01 a.m., New York time (or such other time as the Principal Market publicly announces is the official open of trading), and ending at
4:00:00 p.m., New York time (or such other time as the Principal Market publicly announces is the official close of trading), as reported by Bloomberg through its “Volume
at Price” function or, if the foregoing does not apply, the dollar volume-weighted average price of such security in the over-the-counter market on the electronic bulletin
board for such security during the period beginning at 9:30:01 a.m., New York time (or such other time as such market publicly announces is the official open of trading),
and ending at 4:00:00 p.m., New York time (or such other time as such market publicly announces is the official close of trading), as reported by Bloomberg, or, if no dollar
volume-weighted average price is reported for such security by Bloomberg for such hours, the average of the highest closing bid price and the lowest closing ask price of
any of the market makers for such security as reported in the OTC Link or “pink sheets” by OTC Markets Group Inc. (formerly Pink OTC Markets Inc.). If the Weighted
Average Price cannot be calculated for a security on a particular date on any of the foregoing bases, the Weighted Average Price of such security on such date shall be the
fair market value as mutually determined by the Company and the Holder. If the Company and the Holder are unable to agree upon the fair market value of such security,
then such dispute shall be resolved by an independent appraiser selected by the Holder and reasonably consented to by the Company. All such determinations shall be
appropriately adjusted for any stock dividend, stock split, stock combination, reclassification or other similar transaction during the applicable calculation period.

[Signature Page Follows]




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused this Warrant to Purchase Common Stock to be duly executed as of the Issuance Date set out above.
MEDICINE MAN TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
By: [s/ Andrew Williams

Name: Andrew Williams
Title: Chief Executive Officer




EXHIBIT A
EXERCISE NOTICE

TO BE EXECUTED BY THE REGISTERED HOLDER TO EXERCISE THIS WARRANT TO
PURCHASE COMMON STOCK

MEDICINE MAN TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
The undersigned holder hereby exercises the right to purchase shares of Common Stock (“Warrant Shares”) of Medicine Man Technologies, Inc., a
Nevada corporation (the “Company”), evidenced by the attached Warrant to Purchase Common Stock (the “Warrant”). Capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise

defined shall have the respective meanings set forth in the Warrant.

1. Form of Exercise Price. The Holder intends that payment of the Exercise Price shall be made as a “Cash Exercise” with respect to Warrant
Shares.

2. Payment of Exercise Price. In the event that the holder has elected a Cash Exercise with respect to some or all of the Warrant Shares to be issued pursuant hereto,
the holder shall pay the Aggregate Exercise Price in the sum of § to the Company in accordance with the terms of the Warrant.

3. Delivery of Warrant Shares. The Company shall deliver to the holder Warrant Shares in accordance with the terms of the Warrant.

Date:

Name of Registered Holder

By:

Name:

Title:

11




ACKNOWLEDGMENT
The Company hereby acknowledges this Exercise Notice and hereby directs Globex Transfer, LLC to issue the above indicated number of shares of Common Stock in
accordance with the Transfer Agent Instructions dated June 5, 2019 from the Company and acknowledged and agreed to by Globex Transfer, LLC.
MEDICINE MAN TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
By:

Name:
Title:

12




Exhibit 4.6
FORM OF WARRANT TO PURCHASE COMMON STOCK

NEITHER THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY THIS CERTIFICATE NOR THE SECURITIES INTO WHICH THESE
SECURITIES ARE EXERCISABLE HAVE BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, OR APPLICABLE STATE
SECURITIES LAWS. THE SECURITIES MAY NOT BE OFFERED FOR SALE, SOLD, TRANSFERRED OR ASSIGNED (I) IN THE ABSENCE OF (A) AN
EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION STATEMENT FOR THE SECURITIES UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, OR (B) AN OPINION OF
COUNSEL SELECTED BY THE HOLDER, IN A GENERALLY ACCEPTABLE FORM, THAT REGISTRATION IS NOT REQUIRED UNDER SUCH ACT OR
(IT) UNLESS SOLD PURSUANT TO RULE 144 OR RULE 144A UNDER SUCH ACT. NOTWITHSTANDING THE FOREGOING, THE SECURITIES MAY BE
PLEDGED IN CONNECTION WITH A BONA FIDE MARGIN ACCOUNT OR OTHER LOAN OR FINANCING ARRANGEMENT SECURED BY THE
SECURITIES.

MEDICINE MAN TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
Warrant To Purchase Common Stock

Warrant No.: [ ]
Number of Shares of Common Stock: [ 1
Date of Issuance: [ 1, 2020 (“Issuance Date”)

Medicine Man Technologies, Inc., a Nevada corporation also known as Schwazze (the “Company”), hereby certifies that, for good and valuable consideration, the

receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, [ ], the registered holder hereof or its permitted assigns (the “Holder”), is entitled, subject to the
terms set forth below, to purchase from the Company, at the Exercise Price (as defined below) then in effect, at any time or times on or after the date hereof, but not after
11:59 p.m., New York time, on the Expiration Date, (as defined below), [ 11( )] fully paid nonassessable shares of Common Stock, all subject to

adjustment as provided herein (the “Warrant Shares”). Except as otherwise defined herein, capitalized terms in this Warrant to Purchase Common Stock (including any
Warrants to Purchase Common Stock issued in exchange, transfer or replacement hereof, this “Warrant”), shall have the meanings set forth in Section 16. This Warrant is one
of the Warrants to purchase Common Stock (the “SPA Warrants”) issued pursuant to Section [ ] of that certain Securities Purchase Agreement, dated as of [ 1, 2019
(the “Subscription Date”), by and between the Company and the Buyer (as amended, the “Securities Purchase Agreement”). Capitalized terms used herein and not
otherwise defined shall have the definitions ascribed to such terms in the Securities Purchase Agreement.

1. EXERCISE OF WARRANT.

(a) Mechanics of Exercise. Subject to the terms and conditions hereof, this Warrant may be exercised by the Holder at any time or times on or after the
Issuance Date, in whole or in part, by (i) delivery of a written notice, in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A (the “Exercise Notice”), of the Holder’s election to exercise this
Warrant and (ii) payment to the Company of an amount equal to the applicable Exercise Price multiplied by the number of Warrant Shares as to which this Warrant is being
exercised (the “Aggregate Exercise Price”) in cash by wire transfer of immediately available funds. The Holder shall not be required to deliver the original Warrant in order
to effect an exercise hereunder. Execution and delivery of the Exercise Notice with respect to less than all of the Warrant Shares shall have the same effect as cancellation of
the original Warrant and issuance of a new Warrant evidencing the right to purchase the remaining number of Warrant Shares. On or before the first (1st) Trading Day
following the date on which the Company has received the Exercise Notice, the Company shall transmit by electronic mail an acknowledgment of confirmation of receipt of
the Exercise Notice to the Holder and the Company’s transfer agent (the “Transfer Agent”). On or before the earlier of (i) the second (2nd) Trading Day and (ii) the number
of Trading Days comprising the Standard Settlement Period, in each case, following the date on which the Holder delivers the Exercise Notice to the Company, so long as the
Holder delivers the Aggregate Exercise Price on or prior to the seventh (7th) Trading Day following the date on which the Company has received the Exercise Notice (the
“Share Delivery Date”) (provided that if the Aggregate Exercise Price has not been delivered by such date, the Share Delivery Date shall be two (2) Trading Days after the
Aggregate Exercise Price is delivered), the Company shall (X) provided that the Transfer Agent is participating in The Depository Trust Company (“DTC”) Fast Automated
Securities Transfer Program and the Warrant Shares are subject to an effective resale registration statement in favor of the Holder, credit such aggregate number of Warrant
Shares to which the Holder is entitled pursuant to such exercise to the Holder’s or its designee’s balance account with DTC through its Deposit / Withdrawal At Custodian
system, or (Y) if the Transfer Agent is not participating in the DTC Fast Automated Securities Transfer Program or the Warrant Shares are not subject to an effective resale
registration statement in favor of the Holder, issue and dispatch by overnight courier to the address as specified in the Exercise Notice, a certificate, registered in the
Company’s share register in the name of the Holder or its designee, for the number of Warrant Shares to which the Holder is entitled pursuant to such exercise. The Company
shall be responsible for all fees and expenses of the Transfer Agent and all fees and expenses with respect to the issuance of Warrant Shares via DTC, if any. Upon delivery of
the Exercise Notice, the Holder shall be deemed for all corporate purposes to have become the holder of record of the Warrant Shares with respect to which this Warrant has
been exercised, irrespective of the date such Warrant Shares are credited to the Holder’s DTC account or the date of delivery of the certificates evidencing such Warrant
Shares, as the case may be. If this Warrant is submitted in connection with any exercise pursuant to this Section 1(a) and the number of Warrant Shares represented by this
Warrant submitted for exercise is greater than the number of Warrant Shares being acquired upon an exercise, then the Company shall as soon as practicable and in no event
later than three (3) Trading Days after any exercise and at its own expense, issue a new Warrant (in accordance with Section 7(d)) representing the right to purchase the
number of Warrant Shares issuable immediately prior to such exercise under this Warrant, less the number of Warrant Shares with respect to which this Warrant is exercised.
No fractional Warrant Shares are to be issued upon the exercise of this Warrant, but rather the number of Warrant Shares to be issued shall be rounded up to the nearest whole
number. The Company shall pay any and all taxes which may be payable with respect to the issuance and delivery of Warrant Shares upon exercise of this Warrant. The
Company’s obligations to issue and deliver Warrant Shares in accordance with the terms and subject to the conditions hereof are absolute and unconditional, irrespective of
any action or inaction by the Holder to enforce the same, any waiver or consent with respect to any provision hereof, the recovery of any judgment against any Person or any
action to enforce the same, or any setoff, counterclaim, recoupment, limitation or termination.




(b) Exercise Price. For purposes of this Warrant, “Exercise Price” means $[ ] per share, subject to adjustment as provided herein.

(c) Company’s Failure to Timely Deliver Securities. If the Company shall fail for any reason or for no reason to issue to the Holder on or prior to the Share
Delivery Date either (I) if the Transfer Agent is not participating in the DTC Fast Automated Securities Transfer Program, a certificate for the number of shares of Common
Stock to which the Holder is entitled and register such shares of Common Stock on the Company’s share register or if the Transfer Agent is participating in the DTC Fast
Automated Securities Transfer Program, to credit the Holder’s balance account with DTC, for such number of shares of Common Stock to which the Holder is entitled upon
the Holder’s exercise of this Warrant or (II) if any registration statement covering the resale of the Warrant Shares that are the subject of the Exercise Notice (the
“Unavailable Warrant Shares”) is not available for the resale of such Unavailable Warrant Shares at a time when such registration is contractually required to be available
by the Company pursuant to the Securities Purchase Agreement or any other Transaction Document and the Company fails to promptly (x) so notify the Holder and (y)
deliver the Warrant Shares electronically without any restrictive legend by crediting such aggregate number of Warrant Shares to which the Holder is entitled pursuant to such
exercise to the Holder’s or its designee’s balance account with DTC through its Deposit / Withdrawal At Custodian system (the event described in the immediately foregoing
clause (II) is hereinafter referred as a “Notice Failure” and together with the event described in clause (I) above, an “Exercise Failure”), then, in addition to all other
remedies available to the Holder, (X) the Company shall pay in cash to the Holder on each day after the Share Delivery Date and during such Exercise Failure an amount
equal to 1.0% of the product of (A) the sum of the number of shares of Common Stock not issued to the Holder on or prior to the Share Delivery Date and to which the Holder
is entitled, and (B) any Closing Bid Price of the Common Stock selected by the Holder in writing occurring during the period beginning on the applicable date of delivery of
an Exercise Notice and ending on the applicable Share Delivery Date, and (Y) the Holder, upon written notice to the Company, may void its Exercise Notice with respect to,
and retain or have returned, as the case may be, any portion of this Warrant that has not been exercised pursuant to such Exercise Notice; provided that the voiding of an
Exercise Notice shall not affect the Company’s obligations to make any payments which have accrued prior to the date of such notice pursuant to this Section 1(c) or
otherwise. In addition to the foregoing, if on or prior to the Share Delivery Date either (I) if the Transfer Agent is not participating in the DTC Fast Automated Securities
Transfer Program, the Company shall fail to issue and deliver a certificate to the Holder and register such shares of Common Stock on the Company’s share register or, if the
Transfer Agent is participating in the DTC Fast Automated Securities Transfer Program, credit the Holder’s balance account with DTC for the number of shares of Common
Stock to which the Holder is entitled upon the Holder’s exercise hereunder or pursuant to the Company’s obligation pursuant to clause (ii) below or (II) a Notice Failure
occurs, and if on or after such Trading Day the Holder purchases (in an open market transaction or otherwise) shares of Common Stock relating to the applicable Exercise
Failure (a “Buy-In”), then the Company shall, within five (5) Trading Days after the Holder’s request and in the Holder’s discretion, either (i) pay cash to the Holder in an
amount equal to the Holder’s total purchase price (including brokerage commissions and other out-of-pocket expenses, if any) for the shares of Common Stock so purchased
(the “Buy-In Price”), at which point the Company’s obligation to deliver such certificate (and to issue such shares of Common Stock) or credit the Holder’s balance account
with DTC for such shares of Common Stock shall terminate, or (ii) promptly honor its obligation to deliver to the Holder a certificate or certificates representing such shares
of Common Stock or credit the Holder’s balance account with DTC, as applicable, and pay cash to the Holder in an amount equal to the excess (if any) of the Buy-In Price
over the product of (A) such number of shares of Common Stock, times (B) any Closing Bid Price of the Common Stock selected by the Holder in writing occurring during
the period beginning on the applicable date of delivery of an Exercise Notice and ending on the applicable Share Delivery Date. Nothing herein shall limit the Holder’s right
to pursue any other remedies available to it hereunder, at law or in equity, including, without limitation, a decree of specific performance and/or injunctive relief with respect
to the Company’s failure to timely deliver certificates representing shares of Common Stock (or to electronically deliver such shares of Common Stock) upon the exercise of
this Warrant as required pursuant to the terms hereof.

(d) Disputes. In the case of a dispute as to the determination of the Exercise Price or the arithmetic calculation of the Warrant Shares, the Company shall
promptly issue to the Holder the number of Warrant Shares that are not disputed and resolve such dispute in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.




(e) Insufficient Authorized Shares. If at any time while this Warrant remains outstanding the Company does not have a sufficient number of authorized and
unreserved shares of Common Stock to satisfy its obligation to reserve for issuance upon exercise of this Warrant at least a number of shares of Common Stock equal to 100%
of the number of shares of Common Stock as shall from time to time be necessary to effect the exercise of all of this Warrant then outstanding without regard to any limitation
on exercise included herein (the “Required Reserve Amount” and the failure to have such sufficient number of authorized and unreserved shares of Common Stock, an
“Authorized Share Failure”), then the Company shall immediately take all action necessary to increase the Company’s authorized shares of Common Stock to an amount
sufficient to allow the Company to reserve the Required Reserve Amount for this Warrant then outstanding. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing sentence, as soon
as practicable after the date of the occurrence of an Authorized Share Failure, but in no event later than sixty (60) days after the occurrence of such Authorized Share Failure,
the Company shall hold a meeting of its stockholders for the approval of an increase in the number of authorized shares of Common Stock. In connection with such meeting,
the Company shall provide each stockholder with a proxy statement and shall use its best efforts to solicit its stockholders’ approval of such increase in authorized shares of
Common Stock and to cause its board of directors to recommend to the stockholders that they approve such proposal. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if any such time of an
Authorized Share Failure, the Company is able to obtain the written consent of a majority of the shares of its issued and outstanding shares of Common Stock to approve the
increase in the number of authorized shares of Common Stock, the Company may satisfy this obligation by obtaining such consent and submitting for filing with the
Securities and Exchange Commission an Information Statement on Schedule 14C. In the event that upon any exercise of this Warrant, the Company does not have sufficient
authorized shares to deliver in satisfaction of such exercise, then unless the Holder elects to void such attempted exercise, the Holder may require the Company to pay to the
Holder within three (3) Trading Days of the applicable exercise, cash in an amount equal to the product of (i) the quotient determined by dividing (x) the number of Warrant
Shares that the Company is unable to deliver pursuant to this Section 1(e), by (y) the total number of Warrant Shares issuable upon exercise of this Warrant (without regard to
any limitations or restrictions on exercise of this Warrant) and (ii) the Black Scholes Value.

2. ADJUSTMENT OF EXERCISE PRICE AND NUMBER OF WARRANT SHARES. The Exercise Price and the number of Warrant Shares shall be adjusted from
time to time as follows:

Holders, reduce the then current Exercise Price to any amount and for any period of time deemed appropriate by the Board of Directors of the Company.

(b) Adjustment Upon Subdivision or Combination of Common Stock. If the Company at any time on or after the Subscription Date subdivides (by any stock
split, stock dividend, recapitalization or otherwise) one or more classes of its outstanding shares of Common Stock into a greater number of shares, the Exercise Price in effect
immediately prior to such subdivision will be proportionately reduced and the number of Warrant Shares will be proportionately increased. If the Company at any time on or
after the Subscription Date combines (by combination, reverse stock split or otherwise) one or more classes of its outstanding shares of Common Stock into a smaller number
of shares, the Exercise Price in effect immediately prior to such combination will be proportionately increased and the number of Warrant Shares will be proportionately
decreased. Any adjustment under this Section 2(b) shall become effective at the close of business on the date the subdivision or combination becomes effective.

(c) Other Events. If any event occurs of the type contemplated by the provisions of this Section 2 but not expressly provided for by such provisions
(including, without limitation, the granting of stock appreciation rights, phantom stock rights or other rights with equity features), then the Company’s Board of Directors will
make an appropriate adjustment in the Exercise Price and the number of Warrant Shares, as mutually determined by the Company’s Board of Directors and the Required
Holders, so as to protect the rights of the Holder; provided that no such adjustment pursuant to this Section 2(c) will increase the Exercise Price or decrease the number of
Warrant Shares as otherwise determined pursuant to this Section 2.

3.RIGHTS UPON DISTRIBUTION OF ASSETS. If the Company shall declare or make any dividend or other distribution of its assets (or rights to acquire its
assets) to holders of shares of Common Stock, by way of return of capital or otherwise (including, without limitation, any distribution of cash, stock or other securities,
property, options, evidence of indebtedness or any other assets by way of a dividend, spin off, reclassification, corporate rearrangement, scheme of arrangement or other
similar transaction) (a “Distribution”), at any time after the issuance of this Warrant, then, in each such case, the Holder shall be entitled to participate in such Distribution to
the same extent that the Holder would have participated therein if the Holder had held the number of shares of Common Stock acquirable upon complete exercise of this
Warrant (without regard to any limitations or restrictions on exercise of this Warrant) immediately before the date of which a record is taken for such Distribution, or, if no
such record is taken, the date as of which the record holders of shares of Common Stock are to be determined for the participation in such Distribution.

4. PURCHASE RIGHTS; FUNDAMENTAL TRANSACTIONS.

(a) Purchase Rights. In addition to any adjustments pursuant to Section 2 above, if at any time the Company grants, issues or sells any Options, Convertible
Securities or rights to purchase stock, warrants, securities or other property pro rata to the record holders of any class of Common Stock (the “Purchase Rights”), then the
Holder will be entitled to acquire, upon the terms applicable to such Purchase Rights, the aggregate Purchase Rights which the Holder could have acquired if the Holder had
held the number of shares of Common Stock acquirable upon complete exercise of this Warrant (without regard to any limitations or restrictions on exercise of this Warrant)
immediately before the date on which a record is taken for the grant, issuance or sale of such Purchase Rights, or, if no such record is taken, the date as of which the record
holders of shares of Common Stock are to be determined for the grant, issue or sale of such Purchase Rights.




(b) Fundamental Transactions. The Company shall not enter into or be party to a Fundamental Transaction unless the Successor Entity assumes in writing all
of the obligations of the Company under this Warrant and the other Transaction Documents in accordance with the provisions of this Section 4(b) pursuant to written
agreements in form and substance satisfactory to the Required Holders and approved by the Required Holders prior to such Fundamental Transaction, which such approval
shall not be unreasonably withheld, including agreements, if so requested by the Holder, to deliver to each holder of the SPA Warrants in exchange for such SPA Warrants a
security of the Successor Entity evidenced by a written instrument substantially similar in form and substance to this Warrant, including, without limitation, an adjusted
exercise price equal to the value for the shares of Common Stock reflected by the terms of such Fundamental Transaction, and exercisable for a corresponding number of
shares of capital stock equivalent to the shares of Common Stock acquirable and receivable upon exercise of this Warrant (without regard to any limitations on the exercise of
this Warrant) prior to such Fundamental Transaction, and satisfactory to the Required Holders, and with an exercise price which applies the exercise price hereunder to such
shares of capital stock (but taking into account the relative value of the shares of Common Stock pursuant to such Fundamental Transaction and the value of such shares of
capital stock, such adjustments to the number of shares of capital stock and such exercise price being for the purpose of protecting the economic value of this Warrant
immediately prior to the occurrence or consummation of such Fundamental Transaction). No later than (i) thirty (30) days prior to the occurrence or consummation of any
Fundamental Transaction or (ii) if later, the first Trading Day following the date the Company first becomes aware of the occurrence or potential occurrence of a Fundamental
Transaction, the Company shall deliver written notice thereof via facsimile or electronic mail and overnight courier to the Holder. Upon the occurrence or consummation of
any Fundamental Transaction, and it shall be a required condition to the occurrence or consummation of any Fundamental Transaction that, the Company and the Successor
Entity or Successor Entities, jointly and severally, shall succeed to, and the Company shall cause any Successor Entity or Successor Entities to jointly and severally succeed
to, and be added to the term “Company” under this Warrant (so that from and after the date of such Fundamental Transaction, each and every provision of this Warrant
referring to the “Company” shall refer instead to each of the Company and the Successor Entity or Successor Entities, jointly and severally), and the Company and the
Successor Entity or Successor Entities, jointly and severally, may exercise every right and power of the Company prior thereto and shall assume all of the obligations of the
Company prior thereto under this Warrant with the same effect as if the Company and such Successor Entity or Successor Entities, jointly and severally, had been named as
the Company in this Warrant, and, solely at the request of the Holder, if the Successor Entity and/or Successor Entities is a publicly traded corporation whose common stock is
quoted on or listed for trading on an Eligible Market, shall deliver (in addition to and without limiting any right under this Warrant) to the Holder in exchange for this Warrant
a security of the Successor Entity and/or Successor Entities evidenced by a written instrument substantially similar in form and substance to this Warrant and exercisable for a
corresponding number of shares of capital stock of the Successor Entity and/or Successor Entities (the “Successor Capital Stock™) equivalent to the shares of Common Stock
acquirable and receivable upon exercise of this Warrant (without regard to any limitations on the exercise of this Warrant) prior to such Fundamental Transaction (such
corresponding number of shares of Successor Capital Stock to be delivered to the Holder shall be equal to the greater of (A) the quotient of (i) the aggregate dollar value of all
consideration (including cash consideration and any consideration other than cash (“Non-Cash Consideration”), in such Fundamental Transaction, as such values are set
forth in any definitive agreement for the Fundamental Transaction that has been executed at the time of the first public announcement of the Fundamental Transaction or, if no
such value is determinable from such definitive agreement, as determined by an independent appraiser chosen by the Holder and reasonably consented to by the Company)
that the Holder would have been entitled to receive upon the happening of such Fundamental Transaction or the record, eligibility or other determination date for the event
resulting in such Fundamental Transaction, had this Warrant been exercised immediately prior to such Fundamental Transaction or the record, eligibility or other
determination date for the event resulting in such Fundamental Transaction (without regard to any limitations on the exercise of this Warrant) (the “Aggregate
Consideration”) divided by (ii) the per share Closing Sale Price of such Successor Capital Stock on the Trading Day immediately prior to the consummation or occurrence of
the Fundamental Transaction and (B) the product of (i) the quotient obtained by dividing (x) the Aggregate Consideration, by (y) the Closing Sale Price of the Common Stock
on the Trading Day immediately prior to the consummation or occurrence of the Fundamental Transaction and (ii) the highest exchange ratio pursuant to which any
stockholder of the Company may exchange shares of Common Stock for Successor Capital Stock). Upon occurrence or consummation of the Fundamental Transaction, and it
shall be a required condition to the occurrence or consummation of such Fundamental Transaction that, the Company and the Successor Entity or Successor Entities shall
deliver to the Holder confirmation that there shall be issued upon exercise of this Warrant at any time after the occurrence or consummation of the Fundamental Transaction,
as elected by the Holder solely at its option, shares of Successor Capital Stock or, in lieu of the shares of Successor Capital Stock (or other securities, cash, assets or other
property purchasable upon the exercise of this Warrant prior to such Fundamental Transaction), such shares of stock, securities, cash, assets or any other property whatsoever
(including warrants or other purchase or subscription rights), which for purposes of clarification may continue to be shares of Common Stock, if any, that the Holder would
have been entitled to receive upon the happening of such Fundamental Transaction or the record, eligibility or other determination date for the event resulting in such
Fundamental Transaction, had this Warrant been exercised immediately prior to such Fundamental Transaction or the record, eligibility or other determination date for the
event resulting in such Fundamental Transaction (without regard to any limitations on the exercise of this Warrant), as adjusted in accordance with the provisions of this
Warrant. In addition to and not in substitution for any other rights hereunder, prior to the occurrence or consummation of any Fundamental Transaction pursuant to which
holders of shares of Common Stock are entitled to receive securities, cash, assets or other property with respect to or in exchange for shares of Common Stock (a “Corporate
Event”), the Company shall make appropriate provision to ensure that, and any applicable Successor Entity or Successor Entities shall ensure that, and it shall be a required
condition to the occurrence or consummation of such Corporate Event that, the Holder will thereafter have the right to receive upon exercise of this Warrant at any time after
the occurrence or consummation of the Corporate Event, shares of Common Stock or Successor Capital Stock, as applicable, or, if so elected by the Holder, in lieu of the
shares of Common Stock (or other securities, cash, assets or other property) purchasable upon the exercise of this Warrant prior to such Corporate Event (but not in lieu of
such items still issuable under Sections 3 and 4(a), which shall continue to be receivable on the shares of Common Stock or on the such shares of stock, securities, cash, assets
or any other property otherwise receivable with respect to or in exchange for shares of Common Stock), such shares of stock, securities, cash, assets or any other property
whatsoever (including warrants or other purchase or subscription rights and any shares of Common Stock) which the Holder would have been entitled to receive upon the
occurrence or consummation of such Corporate Event or the record, eligibility or other determination date for the event resulting in such Corporate Event, had this Warrant
been exercised immediately prior to such Corporate Event or the record, eligibility or other determination date for the event resulting in such Corporate Event (without regard
to any limitations on exercise of this Warrant). Provision made pursuant to the preceding sentence shall be in a form and substance reasonably satisfactory to the Holder. The
provisions of this Section 4(b) shall apply similarly and equally to successive Fundamental Transactions and Corporate Events.




5. NONCIRCUMVENTION. The Company hereby covenants and agrees that the Company will not, by amendment of its Articles of Incorporation or Bylaws, or
through any reorganization, transfer of assets, consolidation, merger, scheme of arrangement, dissolution, issue or sale of securities, or any other voluntary action, avoid or
seek to avoid the observance or performance of any of the terms of this Warrant, and will at all times in good faith carry out all of the provisions of this Warrant and take all
action as may be required to protect the rights of the Holder. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the Company (i) shall not increase the par value of any shares of
Common Stock receivable upon the exercise of this Warrant above the Exercise Price then in effect, (ii) shall take all such actions as may be necessary or appropriate in order
that the Company may validly and legally issue fully paid and nonassessable shares of Common Stock upon the exercise of this Warrant, and (iii) shall, so long as any of the
SPA Warrants are outstanding, take all action necessary to reserve and keep available out of its authorized and unissued shares of Common Stock, solely for the purpose of
effecting the exercise of the SPA Warrants, 100% of the number of shares of Common Stock as shall from time to time be necessary to effect the exercise of the SPA Warrants
then outstanding.

6. WARRANT HOLDER NOT DEEMED A STOCKHOLDER. Except as otherwise specifically provided herein, the Holder, solely in such Person’s capacity as a
holder of this Warrant, shall not be entitled to vote or receive dividends or be deemed the holder of share capital of the Company for any purpose, nor shall anything contained
in this Warrant be construed to confer upon the Holder, solely in such Person’s capacity as the Holder of this Warrant, any of the rights of a stockholder of the Company or any
right to vote, give or withhold consent to any corporate action (whether any reorganization, issue of stock, reclassification of stock, consolidation, merger, conveyance or
otherwise), receive notice of meetings, receive dividends or subscription rights, or otherwise, prior to the issuance to the Holder of the Warrant Shares which such Person is
then entitled to receive upon the due exercise of this Warrant. In addition, nothing contained in this Warrant shall be construed as imposing any liabilities on the Holder to
purchase any securities (upon exercise of this Warrant or otherwise) or as a stockholder of the Company, whether such liabilities are asserted by the Company or by creditors
of the Company. Notwithstanding this Section 6, the Company shall provide the Holder with copies of the same notices and other information given to the stockholders of the
Company generally, contemporaneously with the giving thereof to the stockholders.

7. REISSUANCE OF WARRANTS.

(a) Transfer of Warrant. If this Warrant is to be transferred, the Holder shall surrender this Warrant to the Company, whereupon the Company will forthwith
issue and deliver upon the order of the Holder a new Warrant (in accordance with Section 7(d)), registered as the Holder may request, representing the right to purchase the
number of Warrant Shares being transferred by the Holder and, if less than the total number of Warrant Shares then underlying this Warrant is being transferred, a new
Warrant (in accordance with Section 7(d)) to the Holder representing the right to purchase the number of Warrant Shares not being transferred.

(b) Lost, Stolen or Mutilated Warrant. Upon receipt by the Company of evidence reasonably satisfactory to the Company of the loss, theft, destruction or
mutilation of this Warrant, and, in the case of loss, theft or destruction, of any indemnification undertaking by the Holder to the Company in customary form and, in the case
of mutilation, upon surrender and cancellation of this Warrant, the Company shall execute and deliver to the Holder a new Warrant (in accordance with Section 7(d))
representing the right to purchase the Warrant Shares then underlying this Warrant.

(c) Exchangeable for Multiple Warrants. This Warrant is exchangeable, upon the surrender hereof by the Holder at the principal office of the Company, for a
new Warrant or Warrants (in accordance with Section 7(d)) representing in the aggregate the right to purchase the number of Warrant Shares then underlying this Warrant, and
each such new Warrant will represent the right to purchase such portion of such Warrant Shares as is designated by the Holder at the time of such surrender; provided,
however, that no SPA Warrants for fractional Warrant Shares shall be given.

(d) Issuance of New Warrants. Whenever the Company is required to issue a new Warrant pursuant to the terms of this Warrant, such new Warrant (i) shall
be of like tenor with this Warrant, (ii) shall represent, as indicated on the face of such new Warrant, the right to purchase the Warrant Shares then underlying this Warrant (or
in the case of a new Warrant being issued pursuant to Section 7(a) or Section 7(c), the Warrant Shares designated by the Holder which, when added to the number of shares of
Common Stock underlying the other new Warrants issued in connection with such issuance, does not exceed the number of Warrant Shares then underlying this Warrant), (iii)
shall have an issuance date, as indicated on the face of such new Warrant which is the same as the Issuance Date, and (iv) shall have the same rights and conditions as this
Warrant.




8. NOTICES. Whenever notice is required to be given under this Warrant, unless otherwise provided herein, such notice shall be given in accordance with Section
[ 1 of the Securities Purchase Agreement. The Company shall provide the Holder with prompt written notice of all actions taken pursuant to this Warrant, including in
reasonable detail a description of such action and the reason therefor. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the Company will give written notice to the Holder (i)
immediately upon any adjustment of the Exercise Price, setting forth in reasonable detail, and certifying, the calculation of such adjustment and (ii) at least fifteen (15) days
prior to the date on which the Company closes its books or takes a record (A) with respect to any dividend or distribution upon the shares of Common Stock, (B) with respect
to any grants, issuances or sales of any Options, Convertible Securities or rights to purchase stock, warrants, securities or other property to holders of shares of Common
Stock or (C) for determining rights to vote with respect to any Fundamental Transaction, dissolution or liquidation; provided in each case that such information shall be made
known to the public prior to or in conjunction with such notice being provided to the Holder. It is expressly understood and agreed that the time of exercise specified by the
Holder in each Exercise Notice shall be definitive and may not be disputed or challenged by the Company.

9. AMENDMENT AND WAIVER. Except as otherwise provided herein, the provisions of this Warrant may be amended or waived and the Company may take any
action herein prohibited, or omit to perform any act herein required to be performed by it, only if the Company has obtained the written consent of the Holder.

10. GOVERNING LAW; JURISDICTION; JURY TRIAL. This Warrant shall be governed by and construed and enforced in accordance with, and all questions
concerning the construction, validity, interpretation and performance of this Warrant shall be governed by, the internal laws of the State of New York, without giving effect to
any choice of law or conflict of law provision or rule (whether of the State of New York or any other jurisdictions) that would cause the application of the laws of any
jurisdictions other than the State of New York. The Company hereby irrevocably submits to the exclusive jurisdiction of the state and federal courts sitting in The City of New
York, Borough of Manhattan, for the adjudication of any dispute hereunder or in connection herewith or with any transaction contemplated hereby or discussed herein, and
hereby irrevocably waives, and agrees not to assert in any suit, action or proceeding, any claim that it is not personally subject to the jurisdiction of any such court, that such
suit, action or proceeding is brought in an inconvenient forum or that the venue of such suit, action or proceeding is improper. The Company hereby irrevocably waives
personal service of process and consents to process being served in any such suit, action or proceeding by mailing a copy thereof to the Company at the address set forth in
Section [__] of the Securities Purchase Agreement and agrees that such service shall constitute good and sufficient service of process and notice thereof. Nothing contained
herein shall be deemed to limit in any way any right to serve process in any manner permitted by law. Nothing contained herein shall be deemed or operate to preclude the
Holder from bringing suit or taking other legal action against the Company in any other jurisdiction to collect on the Company’s obligations to the Holder, to realize on any
collateral or any other security for such obligations, or to enforce a judgment or other court ruling in favor of the Holder. THE COMPANY HEREBY IRREVOCABLY
WAIVES ANY RIGHT IT MAY HAVE, AND AGREES NOT TO REQUEST, A JURY TRIAL FOR THE ADJUDICATION OF ANY DISPUTE HEREUNDER
OR IN CONNECTION WITH OR ARISING OUT OF THIS WARRANT OR ANY TRANSACTION CONTEMPLATED HEREBY.

11. CONSTRUCTION; HEADINGS. This Warrant shall be deemed to be jointly drafted by the Company and the Holder and shall not be construed against any
Person as the drafter hereof. The headings of this Warrant are for convenience of reference and shall not form part of, or affect the interpretation of, this Warrant.

12. REMEDIES, OTHER OBLIGATIONS, BREACHES AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF. The remedies provided in this Warrant shall be cumulative and in addition to
all other remedies available under this Warrant and the other Transaction Documents, at law or in equity (including a decree of specific performance and/or other injunctive
relief), and nothing herein shall limit the right of the Holder to pursue actual damages for any failure by the Company to comply with the terms of this Warrant. The Company
acknowledges that a breach by it of its obligations hereunder will cause irreparable harm to the Holder and that the remedy at law for any such breach may be inadequate. The
Company therefore agrees that, in the event of any such breach or threatened breach, the holder of this Warrant shall be entitled, in addition to all other available remedies, to
an injunction restraining any breach, without the necessity of showing economic loss and without any bond or other security being required.

13. TRANSFER. This Warrant and the Warrant Shares may be offered for sale, sold, transferred, pledged or assigned without the consent of the Company, except as
may otherwise be required by Section 2(f) of the Securities Purchase Agreement.




14. SEVERABILITY. If any provision of this Warrant is prohibited by law or otherwise determined to be invalid or unenforceable by a court of competent
jurisdiction, the provision that would otherwise be prohibited, invalid or unenforceable shall be deemed amended to apply to the broadest extent that it would be valid and
enforceable, and the invalidity or unenforceability of such provision shall not affect the validity of the remaining provisions of this Warrant so long as this Warrant as so
modified continues to express, without material change, the original intentions of the parties as to the subject matter hereof and the prohibited nature, invalidity or
unenforceability of the provision(s) in question does not substantially impair the respective expectations or reciprocal obligations of the parties or the practical realization of
the benefits that would otherwise be conferred upon the parties. The parties will endeavor in good faith negotiations to replace the prohibited, invalid or unenforceable
provision(s) with a valid provision(s), the effect of which comes as close as possible to that of the prohibited, invalid or unenforceable provision(s).

15. DISCLOSURE. Upon receipt or delivery by the Company of any notice in accordance with the terms of this Warrant, unless the Company has in good faith
determined that the matters relating to such notice do not constitute material, nonpublic information relating to the Company or its Subsidiaries , the Company shall
contemporaneously with any such receipt or delivery publicly disclose such material, nonpublic information on a Current Report on Form 8-K or otherwise. In the event that
the Company believes that a notice contains material, nonpublic information relating to the Company or its Subsidiaries, the Company so shall indicate to the Holder
contemporaneously with delivery of such notice, and in the absence of any such indication, the Holder shall be allowed to presume that all matters relating to such notice do
not constitute material, nonpublic information relating to the Company or its Subsidiaries.

16. CERTAIN DEFINITIONS. For purposes of this Warrant, the following terms shall have the following meanings:
(a) “1933 Act” means the Securities Act of 1933, as amended.
(b) “1934 Act” means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.
(c) “Affiliate” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Rule 405 of the 1933 Act.

(d) “Black Scholes Value” means the value of this Warrant calculated using the Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model obtained from the “OV” function on
Bloomberg determined as of the date the Holder exercises this Warrant and the Company cannot deliver the required number of Warrant Shares because of an Authorized
Share Failure, for pricing purposes and reflecting (i) a risk-free interest rate corresponding to the U.S. Treasury rate for a period equal to the remaining term of this Warrant as
of such date of request, (ii) an expected volatility equal to the greater of 100% and the 100 day volatility obtained from the HVT function on Bloomberg as of the date the
Holder exercises this Warrant and the Company cannot deliver the required number of Warrant Shares because of an Authorized Share Failure, (iii) the underlying price per
share used in such calculation shall be the highest Weighted Average Price during the period beginning on the date of the applicable date of exercise and the date that the
Company makes the applicable cash payment (iv) a zero cost of borrow and (v) a 360 day annualization factor.

(e) “Bloomberg” means Bloomberg Financial Markets.

(f) “Business Day” means any day other than Saturday, Sunday or other day on which commercial banks in The City of New York are authorized or
required by law to remain closed.

(g) “Closing Bid Price” and “Closing Sale Price” means, for any security as of any date, the last closing bid price and last closing trade price, respectively,
for such security on the Principal Market, as reported by Bloomberg, or, if the Principal Market begins to operate on an extended hours basis and does not designate the
closing bid price or the closing trade price, as the case may be, then the last bid price or the last trade price, respectively, of such security prior to 4:00:00 p.m., New York
time, as reported by Bloomberg, or, if the Principal Market is not the principal securities exchange or trading market for such security, the last closing bid price or last trade
price, respectively, of such security on the principal securities exchange or trading market where such security is listed or traded as reported by Bloomberg, or if the foregoing
do not apply, the last closing bid price or last trade price, respectively, of such security in the over-the-counter market on the electronic bulletin board for such security as
reported by Bloomberg, or, if no closing bid price or last trade price, respectively, is reported for such security by Bloomberg, the average of the bid prices, or the ask prices,
respectively, of any market makers for such security as reported in the OTC Link or “pink sheets” by OTC Markets Group Inc. (formerly Pink OTC Markets Inc.). If the
Closing Bid Price or the Closing Sale Price cannot be calculated for a security on a particular date on any of the foregoing bases, the Closing Bid Price or the Closing Sale
Price, as the case may be, of such security on such date shall be the fair market value as mutually determined by the Company and the Holder. If the Company and the Holder
are unable to agree upon the fair market value of such security, then such dispute shall be resolved by an independent appraiser chosen by the Holder and reasonably
consented to by the Company. All such determinations to be appropriately adjusted for any stock dividend, stock split, stock combination, reclassification or other similar
transaction during the applicable calculation period.

(h) “Common Stock” means (i) the Company’s shares of common stock, par value $0.001 per share, and (ii) any stock capital into which such Common
Stock shall have been changed or any stock capital resulting from a reclassification, reorganization or reclassification of such Common Stock.




(1) “Convertible Securities” means any stock or securities (other than Options) directly or indirectly convertible into or exercisable or exchangeable for
shares of Common Stock.

(§) “Eligible Market” means the Principal Market, the NYSE American, The Nasdaq Global Select Market, The Nasdaq Global Market, The Nasdaq Capital
Market, The New York Stock Exchange, Inc. or the OTC QX (or any successor of the foregoing).

(k) “Expiration Date” means the date thirty-six (36) months after the Issuance Date or, if such date falls on a day other than a Business Day or on which
trading does not take place on the Principal Market (a “Holiday”), the next day that is not a Holiday.

(D) “Fundamental Transaction” means (A) that the Company shall, directly or indirectly, including through Subsidiaries, Affiliates or otherwise, in one or
more related transactions, (i) consolidate or merge with or into (whether or not the Company is the surviving corporation) another Subject Entity, or (ii) sell, assign, transfer,
convey or otherwise dispose of all or substantially all of the properties or assets of the Company or any of its “significant subsidiaries” (as defined in Rule 1-02 of Regulation
S-X) to one or more Subject Entities, or (iii) make, or allow one or more Subject Entities to make, or allow the Company to be subject to or have its Common Stock be subject
to or party to one or more Subject Entities making, a purchase, tender or exchange offer that is accepted by the holders of at least either (x) 50% of the outstanding shares of
Common Stock, (y) 50% of the outstanding shares of Common Stock calculated as if any shares of Common Stock held by all Subject Entities making or party to, or
Affiliated with any Subject Entities making or party to, such purchase, tender or exchange offer were not outstanding; or (z) such number of shares of Common Stock such
that all Subject Entities making or party to, or Affiliated with any Subject Entity making or party to, such purchase, tender or exchange offer, become collectively the
beneficial owners (as defined in Rule 13d-3 under the 1934 Act) of at least 50% of the outstanding shares of Common Stock, or (iv) consummate a stock purchase agreement
or other business combination (including, without limitation, a reorganization, recapitalization, spin-off or scheme of arrangement) with one or more Subject Entities whereby
all such Subject Entities, individually or in the aggregate, acquire, either (x) at least 50% of the outstanding shares of Common Stock, (y) at least 50% of the outstanding
shares of Common Stock calculated as if any shares of Common Stock held by all the Subject Entities making or party to, or Affiliated with any Subject Entity making or
party to, such stock purchase agreement or other business combination were not outstanding; or (z) such number of shares of Common Stock such that the Subject Entities
become collectively the beneficial owners (as defined in Rule 13d-3 under the 1934 Act) of at least 50% of the outstanding shares of Common Stock, or (v) reorganize,
recapitalize or reclassify its Common Stock, (B) that the Company shall, directly or indirectly, including through Subsidiaries, Affiliates or otherwise, in one or more related
transactions, allow any Subject Entity individually or the Subject Entities in the aggregate to be or become the “beneficial owner” (as defined in Rule 13d-3 under the 1934
Act), directly or indirectly, whether through acquisition, purchase, assignment, conveyance, tender, tender offer, exchange, reduction in outstanding shares of Common Stock,
merger, consolidation, business combination, reorganization, recapitalization, spin-off, scheme of arrangement, reorganization, recapitalization or reclassification or otherwise
in any manner whatsoever, of either (x) at least 50% of the aggregate ordinary voting power represented by issued and outstanding shares of Common Stock, (y) at least 50%
of the aggregate ordinary voting power represented by issued and outstanding shares of Common Stock not held by all such Subject Entities as of the Subscription Date
calculated as if any shares of Common Stock held by all such Subject Entities were not outstanding, or (z) a percentage of the aggregate ordinary voting power represented by
issued and outstanding shares of Common Stock or other equity securities of the Company sufficient to allow such Subject Entities to effect a statutory short form merger or
other transaction requiring other stockholders of the Company to surrender their shares of Common Stock without approval of the stockholders of the Company (other than a
short form merger consummated solely for the purpose of changing the Company’s corporate name) or (C) directly or indirectly, including through Subsidiaries, Affiliates or
otherwise, in one or more related transactions, the issuance of or the entering into any other instrument or transaction structured in a manner to circumvent, or that
circumvents, the intent of this definition in which case this definition shall be construed and implemented in a manner otherwise than in strict conformity with the terms of this
definition to the extent necessary to correct this definition or any portion of this definition which may be defective or inconsistent with the intended treatment of such
instrument or transaction.

(m) “Group” means a “group” as that term is used in Section 13(d) of the 1934 Act and as defined in Rule 13d-5 thereunder.

(n) “Options” means any rights, warrants or options to subscribe for or purchase (i) shares of Common Stock or (ii) Convertible Securities.

(o) “Parent Entity” of a Person means an entity that, directly or indirectly, controls the applicable Person, including such entity whose common capital or
equivalent equity security is quoted or listed on an Eligible Market (or, if so elected by the Required Holders, any other market, exchange or quotation system), or, if there is

more than one such Person or such entity, the Person or such entity designated by the Required Holders or in the absence of such designation, such Person or entity with the
largest public market capitalization as of the date of consummation of the Fundamental Transaction.




(p) “Person” means an individual, a limited liability company, a partnership, a joint venture, a corporation, a trust, an unincorporated organization, any other
entity and a government or any department or agency thereof.

(q) “Principal Market” means the OTC QB.

(r) “Qualified Eligible Market” means the NYSE American, The Nasdaq Global Select Market, The Nasdaq Global Market, The Nasdaq Capital Market or
The New York Stock Exchange, Inc.

(s) “Required Holders” means the holders of the SPA Warrants representing at least a majority of the shares of Common Stock underlying the SPA
Warrants then outstanding and shall include Dye Capital Cann Holdings, LLC so long as such Person or any of its Affiliates holds any SPA Warrants.

(t) “Standard Settlement Period” means the standard settlement period, expressed in a number of Trading Days, on the Company’s primary Eligible
Market with respect to the Common Stock as in effect on the date of delivery of the applicable Exercise Notice.

(u) “Subject Entity” means any Person, Persons or Group or any Affiliate or associate of any such Person, Persons or Group

(v) “Successor Entity” means one or more Person or Persons (or, if so elected by the Holder, the Company or Parent Entity) formed by, resulting from or
surviving any Fundamental Transaction or one or more Person or Persons (or, if so elected by the Holder, the Company or the Parent Entity) with which such Fundamental
Transaction shall have been entered into.

(w) “Trading Day” means any day on which the Common Stock is traded on the Principal Market, or, if the Principal Market is not the principal trading
market for the Common Stock on such day, then on the principal securities exchange or securities market on which the Common Stock is then traded.

(x) “Weighted Average Price” means, for any security as of any date, the dollar volume-weighted average price for such security on the Principal Market
during the period beginning at 9:30:01 a.m., New York time (or such other time as the Principal Market publicly announces is the official open of trading), and ending at
4:00:00 p.m., New York time (or such other time as the Principal Market publicly announces is the official close of trading), as reported by Bloomberg through its “Volume at
Price” function or, if the foregoing does not apply, the dollar volume-weighted average price of such security in the over-the-counter market on the electronic bulletin board
for such security during the period beginning at 9:30:01 a.m., New York time (or such other time as such market publicly announces is the official open of trading), and
ending at 4:00:00 p.m., New York time (or such other time as such market publicly announces is the official close of trading), as reported by Bloomberg, or, if no dollar
volume-weighted average price is reported for such security by Bloomberg for such hours, the average of the highest closing bid price and the lowest closing ask price of any
of the market makers for such security as reported in the OTC Link or “pink sheets” by OTC Markets Group Inc. (formerly Pink OTC Markets Inc.). If the Weighted Average
Price cannot be calculated for a security on a particular date on any of the foregoing bases, the Weighted Average Price of such security on such date shall be the fair market
value as mutually determined by the Company and the Holder. If the Company and the Holder are unable to agree upon the fair market value of such security, then such
dispute shall be resolved by an independent appraiser selected by the Holder and reasonably consented to by the Company. All such determinations shall be appropriately
adjusted for any stock dividend, stock split, stock combination, reclassification or other similar transaction during the applicable calculation period.

[Signature Page Follows]




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused this Warrant to Purchase Common Stock to be duly executed as of the Issuance Date set out above.

MEDICINE MAN TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

By:/s/
Name:
Title:
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EXHIBIT A
EXERCISE NOTICE

TO BE EXECUTED BY THE REGISTERED HOLDER TO EXERCISE THIS WARRANT TO
PURCHASE COMMON STOCK

MEDICINE MAN TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
The undersigned holder hereby exercises the right to purchase shares of Common Stock (“Warrant Shares”) of Medicine Man Technologies, Inc., a Nevada
corporation (the “Company”), evidenced by the attached Warrant to Purchase Common Stock (the “Warrant”). Capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise defined shall
have the respective meanings set forth in the Warrant.

1. Form of Exercise Price. The Holder intends that payment of the Exercise Price shall be made as a “Cash Exercise” with respect to Warrant Shares.

2. Payment of Exercise Price. In the event that the holder has elected a Cash Exercise with respect to some or all of the Warrant Shares to be issued pursuant hereto,
the holder shall pay the Aggregate Exercise Price in the sum of § to the Company in accordance with the terms of the Warrant.

3. Delivery of Warrant Shares. The Company shall deliver to the holder Warrant Shares in accordance with the terms of the Warrant.

Date:

Name of Registered Holder

By:

Name:

Title:
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ACKNOWLEDGMENT
The Company hereby acknowledges this Exercise Notice and hereby directs Globex Transfer, LLC

to issue the above indicated number of shares of Common Stock in accordance with the Transfer Agent Instructions dated [ 1,2019 from the Company and
acknowledged and agreed to by Globex Transfer, LLC.

MEDICINE MAN TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

By:
Name:
Title:
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Exhibit 4.8
FORM OF WARRANT TO PURCHASE COMMON STOCK

NEITHER THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY THIS CERTIFICATE NOR THE SECURITIES INTO WHICH THESE SECURITIES
ARE EXERCISABLE HAVE BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, OR APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS. THE
SECURITIES MAY NOT BE OFFERED FOR SALE, SOLD, TRANSFERRED OR ASSIGNED (I) IN THE ABSENCE OF (A) AN EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION
STATEMENT FOR THE SECURITIES UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, OR (B) AN OPINION OF COUNSEL SELECTED BY THE HOLDER,
IN A FORM REASONABLE ACCEPTABLE TO THE COMPANY, THAT REGISTRATION IS NOT REQUIRED UNDER SUCH ACT OR (II) UNLESS SOLD
PURSUANT TO RULE 144 OR RULE 144A UNDER SUCH ACT. NOTWITHSTANDING THE FOREGOING, THE SECURITIES MAY BE PLEDGED IN
CONNECTION WITH A BONA FIDE MARGIN ACCOUNT WITH A FINRA REGISTERED BROKER/DEALER OR OTHER LOAN OR FINANCING
ARRANGEMENT WITH AN “ACCREDITED INVESTOR” SECURED BY THE SECURITIES.

MEDICINE MAN TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
Warrant To Purchase Common Stock

Warrant No.: [ ]
Number of Shares of Common Stock: [ ]
Date of Issuance: [ ], 2020 (“Issuance Date”)

Medicine Man Technologies, Inc., a Nevada corporation d/b/a Schwazze (the “Company”), hereby certifies that, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and
sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, [ ], the registered holder hereof or its permitted assigns (the “Holder™), is entitled, subject to the terms set forth below, to
purchase from the Company, at the Exercise Price (as defined below) then in effect, at any time or times on or after the date hereof, but not after 11:59 p.m., New York time, on
the Expiration Date, [ ] ([ ]) fully paid nonassessable shares of Common Stock, all subject to adjustment as provided herein (the “Warrant Shares” and, together with this
Warrant, collectively, the “Securities”). Except as otherwise defined herein, capitalized terms in this Warrant to Purchase Common Stock (including any Warrants to Purchase
Common Stock issued in exchange, transfer or replacement hereof, this “Warrant”), shall have the meanings set forth in Section 14. This Warrant is one of the Warrants to
purchase Common Stock (the “Loan Warrants™) issued pursuant to Section [ ] of the Loan Agreement, dated as of [ ], 2020, by and between the Company, as borrower, the
guarantors party thereto, FocusGrowth Asset Management, LP, a Pennsylvania limited liability company, as agent, and each of the lenders party thereto (as amended, the “Loan
Agreement”). Capitalized terms used and not otherwise defined herein shall have the definitions ascribed to such terms in the Loan Agreement.




1. EXERCISE OF WARRANT.

(a) Mechanics of Exercise. Subject to the terms and conditions hereof, this Warrant may be exercised by the Holder at any time or times on or after the
Issuance Date, in whole or in part, by (i) delivery of a written notice, in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A (the “Exercise Notice”), of the Holder’s election to exercise this
Warrant and (ii) payment to the Company of an amount equal to the applicable Exercise Price multiplied by the number of Warrant Shares as to which this Warrant is being
exercised (the “Aggregate Exercise Price”) in cash by wire transfer of immediately available funds. The Holder shall not be required to deliver the original Warrant in order to
effect an exercise hereunder. Execution and delivery of the Exercise Notice with respect to less than all of the Warrant Shares shall have the same effect as cancellation of the
original Warrant and issuance of a new Warrant evidencing the right to purchase the remaining number of Warrant Shares. Execution and delivery of an Exercise Notice for all
of the then-remaining Warrant Shares shall have the same effect as cancellation of the original of this Warrant after delivery of the Warrant Shares in accordance with the terms

hereof. On or before the first (1%%) Trading Day following the date on which the Company has received the Exercise Notice, the Company shall transmit by electronic mail an
acknowledgment of confirmation of receipt of the Exercise Notice to the Holder and the Company’s transfer agent (the “Transfer Agent”). On or before the earlier of (i) the
second (27) Trading Day and (ii) the number of Trading Days comprising the Standard Settlement Period, in each case, following the date on which the Holder delivers the
Exercise Notice to the Company and the Aggregate Exercise Price on or prior to the third (3rd) Trading Day following the date on which the Company has received the
Exercise Notice, the Company shall (X) provided that the Transfer Agent is participating in The Depository Trust Company (“DTC”) Fast Automated Securities Transfer
Program and the Warrant Shares are subject to an effective resale registration statement in favor of the Holder, credit such aggregate number of Warrant Shares to which the
Holder is entitled pursuant to such exercise to the Holder’s or its designee’s balance account with DTC through its Deposit / Withdrawal At Custodian system, or (Y) if the
Transfer Agent is not participating in the DTC Fast Automated Securities Transfer Program or the Warrant Shares are not subject to an effective resale registration statement in
favor of the Holder, issue and dispatch by overnight courier to the address as specified in the Exercise Notice, a certificate, registered in the Company’s share register in the
name of the Holder or its designee, for the number of Warrant Shares to which the Holder is entitled pursuant to such exercise. The Company shall be responsible for all fees
and expenses of the Transfer Agent and all fees and expenses with respect to the issuance of Warrant Shares via DTC, if any. Upon delivery of the Exercise Notice and the
Aggregate Exercise Price, the Holder shall be deemed for all corporate purposes to have become the holder of record of the Warrant Shares with respect to which this Warrant
has been exercised, irrespective of the date such Warrant Shares are credited to the Holder’s DTC account or the date of delivery of the certificates evidencing such Warrant
Shares, as the case may be. If this Warrant is submitted in connection with any exercise pursuant to this Section 1(a) and the number of Warrant Shares represented by this
Warrant submitted for exercise is greater than the number of Warrant Shares being acquired upon an exercise, then the Company shall as soon as practicable and in no event
later than three (3) Trading Days after any exercise and at its own expense, issue a new Warrant (in accordance with Section 5(d)) representing the right to purchase the number
of Warrant Shares issuable immediately prior to such exercise under this Warrant, less the number of Warrant Shares with respect to which this Warrant is exercised. No
fractional Warrant Shares are to be issued upon the exercise of this Warrant, but rather the number of Warrant Shares to be issued shall be rounded up to the nearest whole
number. The Company shall pay any and all transfer, stamp, issuance and similar taxes which may be payable with respect to the issuance and delivery of Warrant Shares upon
exercise of this Warrant.

(b) Exercise Price. For purposes of this Warrant, “Exercise Price” means $[ ] per share, subject to adjustment as provided herein.

(c) Disputes. In the case of a dispute as to the determination of the Exercise Price or the arithmetic calculation of the number of Warrant Shares, the Company
shall promptly issue to the Holder the number of Warrant Shares that are not disputed and resolve such dispute in accordance with the terms of the Loan Agreement.




(d) Insufficient Authorized Shares. If at any time while this Warrant remains outstanding the Company does not have a sufficient number of authorized and
unreserved shares of Common Stock to satisfy its obligation to reserve for issuance upon exercise of this Warrant at least a number of shares of Common Stock equal to 100%
of the number of shares of Common Stock as shall from time to time be necessary to effect the exercise of all of this Warrant then outstanding without regard to any limitation
on exercise included herein (the “Required Reserve Amount” and the failure to have such sufficient number of authorized and unreserved shares of Common Stock, an
“Authorized Share Failure”), then the Company shall immediately take all action necessary to increase the Company’s authorized shares of Common Stock to an amount
sufficient to allow the Company to reserve the Required Reserve Amount for this Warrant then outstanding. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing sentence, as soon
as practicable after the date of the occurrence of an Authorized Share Failure, but in no event later than sixty (60) days after the occurrence of such Authorized Share Failure,
the Company shall hold a meeting of its stockholders for the approval of an increase in the number of authorized shares of Common Stock. In connection with such meeting,
the Company shall provide each stockholder with a proxy statement and shall use its best efforts to solicit its stockholders’ approval of such increase in authorized shares of
Common Stock and to cause its board of directors to recommend to the stockholders that they approve such proposal. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if any such time of an
Authorized Share Failure, the Company is able to obtain the written consent of a majority of the shares of its issued and outstanding shares of Common Stock to approve the
increase in the number of authorized shares of Common Stock, the Company may satisfy this obligation by obtaining such consent and submitting for filing with the Securities
and Exchange Commission an Information Statement on Schedule 14C.

2. ADJUSTMENT OF EXERCISE PRICE AND NUMBER OF WARRANT SHARES. The Exercise Price and the number of Warrant Shares shall be adjusted from
time to time as follows:

Holders, reduce the then current Exercise Price to any amount and for any period of time deemed appropriate by the Board of Directors of the Company.

(b) Adjustment Upon Subdivision or Combination of Common Stock. If the Company at any time on or after the Issuance Date subdivides (by any stock
split, stock dividend, recapitalization or otherwise) one or more classes of its outstanding shares of Common Stock into a greater number of shares, the Exercise Price in effect
immediately prior to such subdivision will be proportionately reduced and the number of Warrant Shares will be proportionately increased. If the Company at any time on or
after the Issuance Date combines (by combination, reverse stock split or otherwise) one or more classes of its outstanding shares of Common Stock into a smaller number of
shares, the Exercise Price in effect immediately prior to such combination will be proportionately increased and the number of Warrant Shares will be proportionately
decreased. Any adjustment under this Section 2(b) shall become effective at the close of business on the date the subdivision or combination becomes effective.

3. NONCIRCUMVENTION. The Company hereby covenants and agrees that the Company will not, by amendment of its Articles of Incorporation or Bylaws, or
through any reorganization, transfer of assets, consolidation, merger, scheme of arrangement, dissolution, issue or sale of securities, or any other voluntary action, avoid or seek
to avoid the observance or performance of any of the terms of this Warrant, and will at all times in good faith carry out all of the provisions of this Warrant and take all action as
may be required to protect the rights of the Holder. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the Company (i) shall not increase the par value of any shares of Common
Stock receivable upon the exercise of this Warrant above the Exercise Price then in effect, (ii) shall take all such actions as may be necessary or appropriate in order that the
Company may validly and legally issue fully paid and nonassessable shares of Common Stock upon the exercise of this Warrant, and (iii) shall, so long as any of the Loan
Warrants are outstanding, take all action necessary to reserve and keep available out of its authorized and unissued shares of Common Stock, solely for the purpose of effecting
the exercise of the Loan Warrants, 100% of the number of shares of Common Stock as shall from time to time be necessary to effect the exercise of the Loan Warrants then
outstanding.




4. WARRANT HOLDER NOT DEEMED A STOCKHOLDER. The Holder, solely in its capacity as a holder of this Warrant, shall not be entitled to vote or receive
dividends or be deemed the holder of share capital of the Company for any purpose, nor shall anything contained in this Warrant be construed to confer upon the Holder, solely
in its capacity as the Holder of this Warrant, any of the rights of a stockholder of the Company or any right to vote, give or withhold consent to any corporate action (whether
any reorganization, issue of stock, reclassification of stock, consolidation, merger, conveyance or otherwise), receive notice of meetings, receive dividends or subscription
rights, or otherwise, prior to the issuance to the Holder of the Warrant Shares which it is then entitled to receive upon the due exercise of this Warrant. In addition, nothing
contained in this Warrant shall be construed as imposing any liabilities on the Holder to purchase any securities (upon exercise of this Warrant or otherwise) or as a stockholder
of the Company, whether such liabilities are asserted by the Company or by creditors of the Company.

5. REISSUANCE OF WARRANTS.

(a) Transfer of Warrant. If this Warrant is to be transferred, the Holder shall surrender this Warrant to the Company, whereupon the Company will forthwith
issue and deliver upon the order of the Holder a new Warrant (in accordance with Section 5(d)), registered as the Holder may request, representing the right to purchase the
number of Warrant Shares being transferred by the Holder and, if less than the total number of Warrant Shares then underlying this Warrant is being transferred, a new Warrant
(in accordance with Section 5(d)) to the Holder representing the right to purchase the number of Warrant Shares not being transferred.

(b) Lost, Stolen or Mutilated Warrant. Upon receipt by the Company of evidence reasonably satisfactory to the Company of the loss, theft, destruction or
mutilation of this Warrant, and, in the case of loss, theft or destruction, of any indemnification undertaking by the Holder to the Company in customary form and, in the case of
mutilation, upon surrender and cancellation of this Warrant, the Company shall execute and deliver to the Holder a new Warrant (in accordance with Section 5(d)) representing
the right to purchase the Warrant Shares then underlying this Warrant.

(c) Exchangeable for Multiple Warrants. This Warrant is exchangeable, upon the surrender hereof by the Holder at the principal office of the Company, for a
new Warrant or Warrants (in accordance with Section 5(d)) representing in the aggregate the right to purchase the number of Warrant Shares then underlying this Warrant, and
each such new Warrant will represent the right to purchase such portion of such Warrant Shares as is designated by the Holder at the time of such surrender; provided, however,
that no Loan Warrants for fractional Warrant Shares shall be given.

(d) Issuance of New Warrants. Whenever the Company is required to issue a new Warrant pursuant to the terms of this Warrant, such new Warrant (i) shall be
of like tenor with this Warrant, (ii) shall represent, as indicated on the face of such new Warrant, the right to purchase the Warrant Shares then underlying this Warrant (or in the
case of a new Warrant being issued pursuant to Section 5(a) or Section 5(c), the Warrant Shares designated by the Holder which, when added to the number of shares of
Common Stock underlying the other new Warrants issued in connection with such issuance, does not exceed the number of Warrant Shares then underlying this Warrant), (iii)
shall have an issuance date, as indicated on the face of such new Warrant which is the same as the Issuance Date, and (iv) shall have the same rights, terms and conditions as
this Warrant.

6. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF THE HOLDER. The Holder hereby represents and warrants to the Company as follows:

(a) No Public Sale or Distribution. The Holder is acquiring this Warrant, and when issued in accordance with the terms of this Warrant, the Warrant Shares, in
the ordinary course of its business for its own account and not with a view towards, or for resale in connection with, the public sale or distribution thereof, except pursuant to
sales registered or exempted under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”). The Holder does not presently have any agreement or understanding, directly
or indirectly, with any Person to distribute any of the Securities.




(b) Holder Status and Experience. The Holder is, and on each date on which the Holder acquires any Warrant Shares it will be, an “accredited investor” as
that term is defined in Rule 501(a) of Regulation D. The Holder, either alone or together with its representatives, has such knowledge, sophistication and experience in business
and financial matters so as to be capable of evaluating the merits and risks of the investment in the Securities, and has so evaluated the merits and risks of such investment. The
Holder is able to bear the economic risk of an investment in the Securities and, at the present time, is able to afford a complete loss of such investment.

(c) Information. The Holder and its advisors, if any, have been furnished with all materials relating to the business finances and operations of the Company
and materials relating to the offer and issuance of the Securities that have been requested by the Holder. The Holder and its advisors, if any, have been afforded the opportunity
to ask questions of the Company and receive answers from the Company concerning the terms and conditions of the offering of the Securities, the merits of investing in the
Securities and the business, finances and operations of the Company. Neither such inquiries nor any other due diligence investigations conducted by the Holder or is advisors, if
any, or its representatives shall modify, amend or affect the Holder’s right to rely on the Company’s representations and warranties contained herein. The Holder understands
that its investment in the Securities involves a high degree of risk. The Holder has sought such accounting, legal and tax advice as it has considered necessary to make an
informed investment decision with respect to its acquisition of the Securities.

(d) Transfer or Resale. The Holder understands that: (i) the Securities are “restricted securities” under applicable securities laws and have not been and are
not being registered under the Securities Act or any state securities laws, and may not be offered for sale, sold, assigned or transferred unless (A) subsequently registered
thereunder, (B) the Holder shall have delivered to the Company (if requested by the Company) an opinion of counsel, in a form reasonably acceptable to the Company, to the
effect that such Securities to be sold, assigned or transferred may be sold, assigned or transferred pursuant to an exemption from such registration, or (C) the Holder provides
the Company with reasonable assurance that such Securities can be sold, assigned or transferred pursuant to Rule 144 or Rule 144A promulgated under the Securities Act (or a
successor rule thereto) (collectively, “Rule 144”); (ii) any sale of the Securities made in reliance on Rule 144 may be made only in accordance with the terms of Rule 144 and
further, if Rule 144 is not applicable, any resale of the Securities under circumstances in which the seller (or the Person through whom the sale is made) may be deemed to be
an underwriter (as that term is defined in the Securities Act) may require compliance with some other exemption under the Securities Act or the rules and regulations of the
Securities and Exchange Commission thereunder; and (iii) neither the Company nor any other Person is under any obligation to register the Securities under the Securities Act
or any state securities laws or to assist the Holder to comply with the terms and conditions of any exemption thereunder. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Securities may be
pledged in connection with a bona fide margin account with a FINRA registered broker/dealer or other loan or financing arrangement with an accredited investor secured by the
Securities and such pledge of Securities shall not be deemed to be a transfer, sale or assignment of the Securities hereunder, and if the Holder effects such a pledge of Securities
it shall not be required to provide the Company with any notice thereof or otherwise make any delivery to the Company pursuant to this Agreement. The Holder understands
that the Warrant Shares shall bear such restrictive legend as required by the Company.

(e) Reliance on Exemptions. The Holder understands that the Securities are being offered and issued to it in reliance on specific exemptions from the
registration requirements of applicable securities laws and that the Company is relying in part upon the truth and accuracy of, and the Holder’s compliance with, the
representations and warranties of the Holder set forth herein in order to determine the availability of such exemptions and eligibility of the Holder to acquire the Securities.

7. NOTICES. Whenever notice is required to be given under this Warrant, unless otherwise provided herein, such notice shall be given in accordance with Section [ ]
of the Loan Agreement. The Company shall provide the Holder with prompt written notice of all actions taken pursuant to this Warrant, including in reasonable detail a
description of such action and the reason therefor. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the Company will give written notice to the Holder immediately upon any
adjustment of the Exercise Price, setting forth in reasonable detail, and certifying, the calculation of such adjustment.




8. AMENDMENT AND WAIVER. Except as otherwise provided herein, the provisions of this Warrant may be amended or waived and the Company may take any
action herein prohibited, or omit to perform any act herein required to be performed by it, only if the Company has obtained the written consent of the Required Holders and
any amendment, waiver or action made in conformity with the provisions of this Section 8 shall be binding on all holders of Loan Warrants and the Company The Holder
acknowledges and agrees that by operation of this Section 8, the Required Holders will have the right and power to amend this Warrant and all the other Loan Warrants,
including, without limitation, the power to diminish or eliminate all rights of the Holder under this Warrant.

9. GOVERNING LAW; JURISDICTION; JURY TRIAL. This Warrant shall be governed by and construed and enforced in accordance with, and all questions
concerning the construction, validity, interpretation and performance of this Warrant shall be governed by, the internal laws of the State of New York, without giving effect to
any choice of law or conflict of law provision or rule (whether of the State of New York or any other jurisdictions) that would cause the application of the laws of any
jurisdictions other than the State of New York. The Company and the Holder each hereby irrevocably submits to the exclusive jurisdiction of the state and federal courts sitting
in The City of New York, Borough of Manhattan, for the adjudication of any dispute hereunder or in connection herewith or with any transaction contemplated hereby or
discussed herein, and each hereby irrevocably waives, and agrees not to assert in any suit, action or proceeding, any claim that it is not personally subject to the jurisdiction of
any such court, that such suit, action or proceeding is brought in an inconvenient forum or that the venue of such suit, action or proceeding is improper. The Company and the
Holder each hereby irrevocably waives personal service of process and consents to process being served in any such suit, action or proceeding by mailing a copy thereof to the
respective address set forth in Section [ ] of the Loan Agreement and agrees that such service shall constitute good and sufficient service of process and notice thereof. Nothing
contained herein shall be deemed to limit in any way any right to serve process in any manner permitted by law. THE COMPANY AND THE HOLDER EACH HEREBY
IRREVOCABLY WAIVES ANY RIGHT IT MAY HAVE, AND AGREES NOT TO REQUEST, A JURY TRIAL FOR THE ADJUDICATION OF ANY DISPUTE
HEREUNDER OR IN CONNECTION WITH OR ARISING OUT OF THIS WARRANT.

10. CONSTRUCTION; HEADINGS. This Warrant shall be deemed to be jointly drafted by the Company and the Holder and shall not be construed against any Person
as the drafter hereof. The headings of this Warrant are for convenience of reference and shall not form part of, or affect the interpretation of, this Warrant.

11. REMEDIES, OTHER OBLIGATIONS, BREACHES AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF. The remedies provided in this Warrant shall be cumulative and in addition to
all other remedies available under this Warrant and the other Loan Documents, at law or in equity (including a decree of specific performance and/or other injunctive relief),
and nothing herein shall limit the right of the Holder to pursue actual damages for any failure by the Company to comply with the terms of this Warrant. The Company
acknowledges that a breach by it of its obligations hereunder will cause irreparable harm to the Holder and that the remedy at law for any such breach may be inadequate. The
Company therefore agrees that, in the event of any such breach, the holder of this Warrant shall be entitled, in addition to all other available remedies, to an injunction
restraining any breach.

12. TRANSFER. This Warrant and the Warrant Shares may be offered for sale, sold, transferred, pledged or assigned without the consent of the Company, subject to
compliance with all applicable federal and state securities laws.

13.  SEVERABILITY. If any provision of this Warrant is prohibited by law or otherwise determined to be invalid or unenforceable by a court of competent
jurisdiction, the provision that would otherwise be prohibited, invalid or unenforceable shall be deemed amended to apply to the broadest extent that it would be valid and
enforceable, and the invalidity or unenforceability of such provision shall not affect the validity of the remaining provisions of this Warrant so long as this Warrant as so
modified continues to express, without material change, the original intentions of the parties as to the subject matter hereof and the prohibited nature, invalidity or
unenforceability of the provision(s) in question does not substantially impair the respective expectations or reciprocal obligations of the parties or the practical realization of the
benefits that would otherwise be conferred upon the parties. The parties will endeavor in good faith negotiations to replace the prohibited, invalid or unenforceable provision(s)
with a valid provision(s), the effect of which comes as close as possible to that of the prohibited, invalid or unenforceable provision(s).




14. CERTAIN DEFINITIONS. For purposes of this Warrant, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

(a) “Business Day” means any day other than Saturday, Sunday or other day on which commercial banks in The City of New York are authorized or required
by law to remain closed.

(b) “Common Stock” means (i) the Company’s shares of common stock, par value $0.001 per share, and (ii) any stock capital into which such Common
Stock shall have been changed or any stock capital resulting from a reclassification, reorganization or reclassification of such Common Stock.

(c) “Expiration Date” means the date sixty (60) months after the Issuance Date or, if such date falls on a day other than a Business Day or on which trading
does not take place on the Principal Market (a “Holiday”), the next day that is not a Holiday.

(d) “Person” means an individual, a limited liability company, a partnership, a joint venture, a corporation, a trust, an unincorporated organization, any other
entity and a government or any department or agency thereof.

(e) “Principal Market” means the OTCQX.

(f) “Required Holders” means the holders of the Loan Warrants representing at least a majority of the shares of Common Stock underlying the Loan
Warrants then outstanding.

(g) “Standard Settlement Period” means the standard settlement period, expressed in a number of Trading Days, for the principal trading market for the
Common Stock as in effect on the date of delivery of the applicable Exercise Notice.

(h) “Trading Day” means any day on which the Common Stock is traded on the Principal Market, or, if the Principal Market is not the principal trading
market for the Common Stock on such day, then on the principal securities exchange or securities market on which the Common Stock is then traded or qualified for quotation.

[Signature Page Follows]|




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused this Warrant to Purchase Common Stock to be duly executed as of the Issuance Date set out above.

MEDICINE MAN TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

By:
Name:
Title:




EXHIBIT A

FORM OF EXERCISE NOTICE
TO BE EXECUTED BY THE REGISTERED HOLDER TO EXERCISE THIS
WARRANT TO PURCHASE COMMON STOCK
MEDICINE MAN TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

The undersigned holder hereby exercises the right to purchase shares of Common Stock (“Warrant Shares”) of Medicine Man Technologies, Inc., a Nevada
corporation d/b/a/ Schwazze (the “Company”), evidenced by the attached Warrant to Purchase Common Stock (the “Warrant”). Capitalized terms used herein and not

otherwise defined shall have the respective meanings set forth in the Warrant.

1. Payment of Exercise Price. The holder shall pay the Aggregate Exercise Price in the sum of § to the Company in accordance with the terms of the Warrant.

2. Delivery of Warrant Shares. The Company shall deliver to the holder Warrant Shares in accordance with the terms of the Warrant.

Please issue the Warrant Shares in the following name and to the following account:

Issue to:

Facsimile Number and Electronic Mail:

Authorization:




By:

Title:

Dated:

Broker Name:

Broker DTC #:

Broker Telephone #:

Account Number:

(if electronic book entry transfer)

Transaction Code Number:

(if electronic book entry transfer)
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ACKNOWLEDGMENT

The Company hereby acknowledges this Exercise Notice and hereby directs the Transfer Agent to issue the above indicated number of shares of Common Stock.

MEDICINE MAN TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

By:

Name:
Title:

11
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MEDICINE MAN TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

December 16, 2020

Dye Capital Cann Holdings II, LLC

Ladies and Gentlemen:

This letter agreement (this “Agreement”) will confirm our agreement that as a condition to your entering into the Purchase Agreement (defined below) and pursuant to
and effective upon the closing of your purchase (the “Purchase) of up to 13,000 shares of Series A Preferred Stock of Medicine Man Technologies, Inc. (the “Company”),
Dye Capital Cann Holdings II, LLC (the “Investor”) shall be entitled to the contractual rights set forth below, in addition to the rights specifically set forth in the Securities
Purchase Agreement dated November 16, 2020 by and among the Company and the investors that are party thereto, as amended by the Amendment to the Securities Purchase
Agreement dated the date hereof (the “Purchase Agreement”) and the Certificate of Designation of the Company that is attached as Exhibit A to the Purchase Agreement (the
“Certificate of Designation”). Capitalized terms that are used but not defined herein shall have the meaning given to them in the Purchase Agreement or, if applicable, the
Certificate of Designation.

1. Board Nomination Rights.

(a) The Company shall take all actions to ensure that from and after the Closing Date and for so long as the Investor meets the Ownership Threshold
(as defined below), one individual designated by the Investor shall be appointed to the board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) if the Board consists of five or fewer
members and two individuals designated by the Investor shall be appointed to the Board if the Board consists of more than five members (each an “Investor Designee”). For
purposes hereof, “Ownership Threshold” means that the Investor owns, in the aggregate, at least $10,000,000 of Preferred Stock, on an as-converted to Common Stock basis,
as of any date of determination, based on the 30-Day Trailing VWAP (as defined below); provided, however, that the Ownership Threshold shall automatically be deemed to be
satisfied at any time the Buyer holds at least 10,000 (as such amount may be adjusted for stock splits, subdivisions, combinations and the like) shares of Preferred Stock. For
purposes hereof, “30-Day Trailing VWAP” means, as of any date of determination, the volume-weighted average price per share of Common Stock on the exchange on which
the Common Stock is then traded during the regular trading session (and excluding pre-market and after-hours trading) over the thirty (30) consecutive trading days prior to and
including such determination date. The Investor’s initial Investor Designee shall be Pratap Muharji (the “Initial Designee”). On or prior to the Closing Date, the Company shall
take all actions necessary to cause the appointment to the Board of the Initial Designee effective as of the Closing Date, and thereafter, for so long as the Investor’s Board
nomination right under this Section 1 continues, the Company will use its best efforts to ensure that each Investor Designee is elected to the Board (including recommending
that the Company’s stockholders vote in favor of the election of such designees, soliciting proxies and contesting any proxy contest and otherwise supporting such designees for
election in a manner no less rigorous and favorable than the manner in which the Company supports its other nominees); provided that if the Investor determines to designate a
different individual (“Replacement Designee™) as an Investor Designee, such obligation shall instead apply to such Replacement Designee. If an Investor Designee ceases to
be a director of the Company, the Company shall take all actions necessary to cause the appointment to the Board of a Replacement Designee nominated by the Investor to fill
the vacancy and thereafter the Company will use its best efforts to cause the election of such an individual to the Board, subject to the same conditions and limitations as set
forth in the foregoing sentence. Each Investor Designee shall be entitled to the level of compensation, directors’ and officers’ indemnity insurance coverage and indemnity and
exculpation protection (including under any indemnification agreement) as the other members of the Board in their capacities as directors. Each Investor Designee shall be
entitled to the same level of directors’ and officers’ indemnity insurance coverage and indemnity and exculpation protection (including under any indemnification agreement)
as the other members of the Board. As promptly as practicable, and for so long as an Investor Designee serves on the Company’s board of directors, the Company shall
maintain in place directors’ and officers’ indemnity insurance coverage in an amount and on terms deemed reasonably acceptable to the Investor Designees, but no less than $2
million of coverage per director.




(b) For so long as the Investor is entitled to designate Investor Designees for election to the Board under this letter agreement, each committee of the
Board shall include at least one Investor Designee as a member or, if the Investor so elects, as an observer; provided, however, that if such Investor Designee is not eligible for
membership on any given committee of the Board under then applicable listing and corporate governance standards of a trading exchange or any Applicable Law, then such
committee shall include such Investor Designee as an observer only; provided, further, that the Company shall exercise all authority under Applicable Law to permit the
inclusion of such Investor Designee on such committee, including, without limitation, by causing an increase in the number of directors on such committee.

(c) Any Investor Designee shall take all action reasonably requested by the Company, at the Company’s cost and expense, to comply with applicable
state cannabis laws and regulations, including, without limitation, making all requisite filings under such laws and regulations as and when requested by the Company and the
Investor Designee shall, at the Company’s cost and expense, reasonably cooperate with the Company with respect to any report, filing, notification or other communication
with or to any state governmental authority related to the Company’s licenses, approvals, consents or obligations under state cannabis laws and regulations related to such
Investor Designee’s capacity as director of the Company, including, without limitation, any investigation or inquiry by a state governmental authority related to any of the
foregoing. If an Investor Designee is determined to be unsuitable or disqualified to serve on the Board by a state governmental authority, including, without limitation, the
Colorado Marijuana Enforcement Division, such Investor Designee shall immediately resign from the Board and the Investor shall be entitled to appoint a Replacement
Designee in accordance with the provisions of Section 1(a) above.

2. This Agreement and the rights, privileges and obligations herein are personal to the Investor and may not be assigned, transferred, subcontracted or
delegated (in whole or in part) by the Investor, including by operation of law, without the prior written consent of the Company.

3. Unless earlier terminated pursuant to the terms hereof, this Agreement and the rights described herein, other than the last three sentences of Section 1(a)
above and Sections 2 through 4, shall terminate and be of no further force or effect upon the earlier of: (a) a Listing Event; or (b) a Change of Control Transaction.

4. The parties acknowledge and agree that this Agreement is a Transaction Document as such term is defined under the Purchase Agreement.

[Signature Page Follows]




Very truly yours,
MEDICINE MAN TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

By: /s/ Nancy Huber

Name: Nancy Huber

Title: Chief Financial Officer

Accepted and agreed:

DYE CAPITAL CANN HOLDINGS II, LLC

By: Dye Capital & Company, LLC,
its Managing Member

By: Justin Dye
Name: Justin Dye
Title: Authorized Person
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Paul D. Dickman
33680 County Rd. 112,
Robertsdale , AL 36567 March 20, 2020

Dear Mr. Dickman,

It has come to our attention that Medicine Man Technologies, Inc. erroneously issued 500,000 shares of common stock to you on or about January 8, 2019. The
grant of such 500,000 shares of common stock is explicitly contingent upon the common stock meeting certain milestones within 36 months from the date of the
board of directors' approval - (i) market price of $8.00 per share and (ii) minimum 0f250,000 shares in average daily trading volume for five consecutive trading
days. The shares should not have been issued until the conditions are met. Therefore, we have instructed our common stock transfer agent to cancel the stock
certificate representing these shares. In connection with the cancellation of these shares, we hereby request that you (i) countersign this letter and (ii)
return this countersigned letter and stock certificates number 1880 and 1881 to us by putting it in the pre-paid UPS envelope enclosed herewith and
sending it back to us.

We are requesting the original stock certificates for everyone's protection, in order to prevent the possibility that someone may innocently believe that the stock
certificates represents validly issued shares of Medicine Man Technologies, Inc. Failure to promptly return the stock certificate could result in us taking action
against you, including but not limited to, termination

of the Consulting Agreement for Cause.

At such time as the milestones described above are met, the Company will issue a new stock certificate to you representing the shares.

Thank you for your cooperation.

Sincerely,

/s/ Daniel R. Pabon

Daniel R. Pabon

General Counsel /s/ Paul Dickman 3/23/2020
Medicine Man Technologies, Inc. Paul D. Dickman Date

4880 Havana St., Suite 201, Denver, CO 80239




HOT VALID UMLESS COUNTERSIGNED BY TRANSFER AGENT
IMCORPORATED UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF NEVADA
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TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

AUTHORIZED COMMON STOCK: 50,000,000
PAR VALUE: $0.001

THIS CERTIFIES THAT PAUL DICKMAN

IS THE RECORD HOLDER OF TWO HUNDRED FIFTY THOUSAND

== Shares of Medicine Man Technologies, Inc. Common Stock =

transferable on the books of the Corporation in person or by duly authorized altorney wpon surrender ol this
Certilicate m.qﬁ“_.aq_u.. endorsed. This Certificale is not valid until a...‘::ra-.w_m:...h .r.___ the Transfer .}_.mmw.—. and
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Piiness the facsimile seal of the Corporation and the facsimile signatures of its duly authorized officers.
Dated: 6/4/2019
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{B13) 3444450
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AUTHORIZED COMMON STOCK: 90,000,000
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THIS CERTHIES THAT PAUL DICKMAN

IS THE RECORD HOLDER OF TWO HUNDRED FIFTY THOUSAND

== Shares of Medicine Man Technologies, Inc. Common Stock =

translerable on the books o the Corporation in person or by duly authorized altormey upon surrender of this
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Dated: 6/4/2019

Countersigned & Rogistered: Globex Transfer, LG By &.\l
(B12) 3444450




Exhibit 10.25

THIRD AMENDMENT
TO
SECURITIES PURCHASE AGREEMENT

This THiRD AMENDMENT To SECURITIES PURCHASE AGREEMENT (this “Amendment”) is entered into as of March 30, 2021, by and between Medicine Man Technologies,
Inc., a Nevada corporation (the “Company”), and Dye Capital Cann Holdings II, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (the “Buyer”). Capitalized terms used but not
defined herein shall have the meanings given them in the Purchase Agreement (as defined below).

RECITALS
WHEREAS, the Company and the Buyer previously entered into the Securities Purchase Agreement, dated as of November 16, 2020, the Amendment to Securities
Purchase Agreement, dated as of December 16, 2020, and the Second Amendment to Securities Purchase Agreement, dated as of February 3, 2021 (collectively, the “Purchase

Agreement”);

WHEREAS, the Company issued and sold to the Buyer (a) 7,700 Shares on December 16, 2020, (b) 1,450 Shares on December 18, 2020, (c) 1,300 Shares on
December 22, 2020, (d) 3,100 Shares on February 3, 2021, and (e) 3,800 Shares on March 2, 2021; and 4,000 Shares on March 30, 2021.

WHEREAS, the Company and the Buyer wish to amend the Purchase Agreement pursuant to this Amendment to provide for one or more additional Closings.
AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual agreements, covenants and considerations contained herein, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby
acknowledged, the parties hereto agree as follows:

1. Amendment to Recital B and Section 1(a)_of the Purchase Agreement. Recital B of the Purchase Agreement is hereby amended by replacing “17,000” with
“21,350” and “February 23, 2021 with “March 30, 2021” and Section 1(a) of the Purchase Agreement is hereby amended by replacing “17,000” with “21,350.”

2. Receipt of PPM Supplement. The Buyer and its advisors, if any, have been furnished with a copy of the Company’s Supplement No. 2 to Confidential Private
Placement Memorandum, dated February 24, 2021 (the “PPM Supplement”) as well as a draft of the Company’s Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2020 to be filed
with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission. The Buyer understands that its investment in the Securities involves a high degree of risk, including the risks outlined in
the Confidential PPM and the PPM Supplement.

3. Use of Proceeds. The Company will use the proceeds from the Closings contemplated by this Amendment for general corporate purposes, including working
capital and the payment of outstanding accounts payable provided that in no event may the proceeds be used, directly or indirectly, for the redemption or repurchase of any
securities of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries or repayment of any Indebtedness.




4. Conditions to the Company’s Obligation to Sell. The obligation of the Company hereunder to issue and sell Shares to the Buyer at the Closings contemplated
by this Amendment is subject to the satisfaction, at or before each Closing, of the conditions to the Company’s obligation to sell set forth in Section 5(a) of the Agreement,
other than Section 5(a)(iv) of the Agreement, which is hereby waived, and the following condition:

(a) CRW Capital Cann Holdings, LLC (“CRW?”) shall have waived its participation rights with respect to the issuance and sale of the Shares to the Buyer pursuant
to Section 5 of the Letter Agreement between CRW and the Company dated February 26, 2021 (the “CRW Letter Agreement”).

7. Conditions to the Buyer’s Obligation to Purchase. The obligation of the Buyer hereunder to purchase Shares from the Company at the Closings contemplated
by this Amendment is subject to the satisfaction, at or before each Closing, of the conditions to the Buyer’s obligation to purchase set forth in Section 6(a) of the Agreement,
other than Sections 6(a)(ii), 6(a)(iii), 6(a)(iv), 6(a)(viii) and 6(a)(ix) of the Agreement, which are hereby waived, and the following conditions:

(a) Other than as set forth in a Schedules attached hereto as Attachment A, the representations and warranties of the Company shall be true and correct as of the
date when made and as of the Closing as though made at that time (except for representations and warranties that speak as of a specific date which shall be true and correct as
of such specified date) and the Company shall have performed, satisfied and complied in all material respects with the covenants, agreements and conditions required by the
Transaction Documents to be performed, satisfied or complied with by the Company at or prior to the Closing. The Buyer shall have received a certificate, executed by an
officer of the Company, dated as of the Closing, to the foregoing effect and as to such other matters as may be reasonably requested by the Buyer in the form attached hereto as
Attachment B.

(b)  CRW shall have waived its participation rights with respect to the issuance and sale of the Shares pursuant to Section 5 of the CRW Letter Agreement.

8. Representations and Warranties of the Company. The Company has the requisite corporate power and authority to enter into and perform its obligations
under this Amendment, including the Purchase Agreement as amended by this Amendment. The execution and delivery of this Amendment and the consummation by the
Company of the transactions contemplated hereby (including the Purchase Agreement as amended by this Amendment), including, without limitation, the issuance of the
Shares, have been duly authorized by the Company’s Board of Directors and no further filing, consent or authorization is required by the Company, its Board of Directors or its
stockholders. This Amendment has been duly executed and delivered by the Company, and constitutes the legal, valid and binding obligations of the Company, enforceable
against the Company in accordance with its terms, except as such enforceability may be limited by general principles of equity or applicable bankruptcy, insolvency,
reorganization, moratorium, liquidation or similar laws relating to, or affecting generally, the enforcement of applicable creditors’ rights and remedies

9. Miscellaneous.
(a)  This Amendment shall be automatically effective upon the execution and delivery hereof by the Company and the Buyer.

(b) All questions concerning the construction, validity, enforcement and interpretation of this Amendment shall be governed by the internal laws of the
State of Nevada, without giving effect to any choice of law or conflict of law provision or rule (whether of the State of Nevada or any other jurisdictions) that would cause the
application of the laws of any jurisdictions other than the State of Nevada. Each party hereby irrevocably submits to the exclusive jurisdiction of the state and federal courts
sitting in The City of New York, Borough of Manhattan, for the adjudication of any dispute hereunder or in connection herewith or with any transaction contemplated hereby or
discussed herein, and hereby irrevocably waives, and agrees not to assert in any suit, action or proceeding, any claim that it is not personally subject to the jurisdiction of any
such court, that such suit, action or proceeding is brought in an inconvenient forum or that the venue of such suit, action or proceeding is improper. Each party hereby
irrevocably waives personal service of process and consents to process being served in any such suit, action or proceeding by mailing a copy thereof to such party at the address
for such notices to it under this Agreement and agrees that such service shall constitute good and sufficient service of process and notice thereof. Nothing contained herein shall
be deemed to limit in any way any right to serve process in any manner permitted by law. EACH PARTY HEREBY IRREVOCABLY WAIVES ANY RIGHT IT MAY
HAVE, AND AGREES NOT TO REQUEST, A JURY TRIAL FOR THE ADJUDICATION OF ANY DISPUTE HEREUNDER OR IN CONNECTION WITH OR
ARISING OUT OF THIS AMENDMENT OR ANY TRANSACTION CONTEMPLATED HEREBY.




(d) This Amendment may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but both of which together shall constitute one and the
same instrument. Either or both parties may execute this Amendment by facsimile signature or scanned signature in PDF format, and any such facsimile signature or scanned
signature, if identified, legible and complete, shall be deemed an original signature and each of the parties is hereby authorized to rely thereon.

(e) In the event one or more of the provisions of this Amendment should, for any reason, be held to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any respect,
such invalidity, illegality or unenforceability shall not affect any other provisions of this Amendment, and this Amendment shall be construed as if such invalid, illegal or
unenforceable provision had never been contained herein. In the event of any inconsistencies between this Amendment and the Purchase Agreement, the terms of this
Amendment shall govern. Except as set forth above, the Purchase Agreement shall remain in full force and effect in accordance with its terms. References in the Purchase
Agreement to “this Agreement” shall mean the Purchase Agreement as amended by this Amendment, except where the context otherwise requires.

® The provisions hereof shall inure to the benefit of, and be binding upon, the parties hereto and their respective successors, assigns, heirs, executors and
administrators and other legal representatives.

[Signature Pages Follow]




IN WitNess WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Amendment as of the date set forth in the first paragraph above.
COMPANY:
MEDICINE MAN TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
By:__/s/Nancy Huber

Name: Nancy Huber
Title: Chief Financial Officer

[Third Amendment to Securities Purchase Agreement)]




IN WitNess WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Amendment as of the date set forth in the first paragraph above.

BUYER:
Dye Caritar Cany Hovpings II, LLC
By: Dye Capital & Company, LLC,

its Managing Member

By: _/s/ Justin Dye
Name: Justin Dye
Title: Authorized Person

[Third Amendment to Securities Purchase Agreement)]
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Medicine Man Technologies, Inc.

Subsidiary State or Jurisdiction of Incorporation or Organization
Two JS LLC Colorado
PBS HoldCo LLC Colorado
SBUD LLC Colorado
Schwazze Colorado LLC Colorado
Medicine Man Consulting Inc. Colorado
SCG Holding Company Colorado
Mesa Organics Ltd. Colorado
Mesa Organics II Ltd. Colorado
Mesa Organics 1T Ltd. Colorado

Mesa Organics IV Ltd. Colorado
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Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements on Form S-8 (No. 333-218662) of Medicine Man Technologies, Inc. of our report dated
March 31, 2021, relating to the consolidated financial statements, which appears in this Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2020 and 2019.
/s/ BF Borgers CPA PC

Lakewood, CO
March 31, 2021
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1, Justin Dye, certify that:

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 USC, SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES OXLEY ACT OF 2002

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Medicine Man Technologies, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary in order to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal controls over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the
registrant and have:

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedure to be designed under our supervision, to ensure
that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision,
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness
of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based upon such evaluation; and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal
quarter (the registrant’s fourth quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

S. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

Dated: March 31, 2021

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely
to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over

financial reporting.

/s/ Justin Dye
Justin Dye, Chief Executive Officer
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CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 USC, SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Nancy Huber, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Medicine Man Technologies, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary in order to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal controls over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the
registrant and have:

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedure to be designed under our supervision, to ensure
that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision,
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness
of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based upon such evaluation; and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal
quarter (the registrant’s fourth quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

S. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

Dated: March 31, 2021

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely
to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over

financial reporting.

/s/ Nancy Huber
Nancy Huber, Chief Financial Officer
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CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 USC, SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with this annual report of Medicine Man Technologies, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2020, as filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 31, 2021 (the “Report”), we, the undersigned, in the capacities and on the date indicated below, certify, pursuant to 18
U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to the best of our knowledge:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirements of Rule 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
2. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.
Dated: March 31, 2021 /s/ Justin Dye

Justin Dye, Chief Executive Officer

Dated: March 31, 2021 /s/ Nancy Huber
Nancy Huber, Chief Financial Officer




